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RENEWAL CERTIFICATION APPLICATION

COMPETITIVE RETAIL NATURAL GAS BROKERS/AGGREGATORS

Please type or print all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and title (Example: Exkibit
A-16 - Company History). All attachments should bear the legal name of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed
applications and all related correspondence with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division,

180 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793,
This PDF form is designed so that you may directly input infarmation onto the form. You may also download the form by
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A-4

saving it to your local disk.
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SECTION A - APPLICANT INFORMATION AND SERVICES

Applicant intends to renew its certificate as: (check all that apply)
Retail Natural Gas Aggregator Retail Natural Gas Broker

Applicant information:
Ecova, Inc.

Legal Name
1313 N. Atlantic Street, Suite 5000, Spokane WA 99201

Address

Telephone No.  800-767-4167
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Web site Address WWW,.ecova.com

_ - : J 14, 2
Current PUCO Certificate No. 12-2366 Effective Dates anuary 14, 2012 through January 0143 0
o
Applicant information under which applicant will do business in Ohio: e
Name Ecova, Inc. 3
Address 1313 N. Atlantic Street, Suite 5000, Spokane WA 99201 R
Web site Address WWW.ecova.com Telephone No. 800-767-4197 : H
List all names under which the applicant does business in North America: i
1 find
Ecova, Inc. A5
N
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]
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Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters: -
ER N o%
Name Legal Depariment Title :f §
@
Business Address 1313 N. Atiantic Street, Suite 5000, Spokane WA 89201 ° ’§
«
Telephone No. 800-767-4197 Fax No, 509-321-0828 Email Address '698I@ecova.com as
LY
30
=
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A-7

A-8

A9
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Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints:
Name Ecova, Inc. Title General Counsel

Business address 1313 N. Atlantic Street, Suite 5000, Spokane WA 99201

Telephone No, 800-767-4167 Fax No. 509-321-0828 Email Address legal@ecova.com

Applicant's address and toli-free number for customer service and complaints
Customer service address  Steve Huber, 180 E. 5th Street, St. Paul MN 55101

Toll-Free Telephone No. 500-767-4197 Fax No. 866-728-8853 Email Address shuber@ecova.com

Provide “Proof of an Ohio Office and Employee,” in accordance with Section 4929.22 of the Ohio
Revised Code, by listing name, Ohio office address, telephone number, and Web site address of the
designated Ohio Employee

Name Chris Jernigan Title VP Sales Operations/Finance

Business address 600 Vine Street, Suite 100, Cincinnati, OH 45202

Telephone No. 523-763-3112 Fax Ng. 523-763-3437 Email Address SIernigan@ecova.com

Applicant's federal employer identification number ~ 92-1701028

Applicant’s form of ownership: (Check one)

|:| Sole Proprietorship |:| Partnership

[] Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) [] Limited Liability Company (LLC)

Corporation D Other

(Check all that apply) Identify each natural gas company service area in which the applicant is
currently providing service or intends to provide service, including identification of each customer
class that the applicant is currently serving or intends to serve, for example: residential, small
commercial, and/or large commercial/industrial (mercantile} customers. (A mercantile customer, as defined
in Section 4929.01(L)1) of the Ohio Revised Code, means a customer that consumes, other than for residential use, morc
than 53,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year at a singie location within the state or consumes natural gas, other than for
residential use, as part of an undertaking having more than three locations within or outside of this state. In accordance with
Section 4929.01{L}2) of the Ohio Revised Code, “Mercantile customer” excludes a not-for-profit customer that consumes,
ather than for residential use, more than 500.000 cubic feet of natural gas per vear at a single location within this state or
consumes natural gas, other than for residential use, as part of an undertaking having more than three locations within or
outside this state that has filed the necessary declaration with the Public Utilities Commission.)

(CRNGS Broker/Aggregator Renewal - Version 1.07) Page 2 of 7
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Z Columbia Gas of Ohio [ Residential Z Small Commercial Z Large Commercial / Industrial
7 Pominion East Ohio |: Residential Z Small Commercial 7 Large Commercial / Industrial
IZ Duke Energy Ohic l: Residential Small Commercial Large Commercial / Industrial
7 Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio [ Residential ZI Small Commercial 7 Large Commercial / Industrial

A-12 If applicant or an affiliated interest previously participated in any of Ohio’s Natural Gas Choice
Programs, for each service area and customer class, provide approximate start date(s) and/or end
date(s) that the applicant began delivering and/or ended services.

Olumbia Gas of Ohio
I::I Residential Beginning Date of Service End Date
Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 08-01-2004 End Date
Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 05-01-2004 End Date
D Industrial Beginning Date of Service End Date

Il ominion East Ohio

[:] Residential Beginning Date of Service End Date
Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 06-01-2004 End Date
Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 05-01-2004 End Date
[:I Industrial Beginning Date of Service End Date

uke Energy Ohio

[:l Residential Beginning Date of Service End Date
Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 08-01-2005 End Date
Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 07-01-2006 End Date
[:l Industrial Beginning Date of Service End Date

Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio

[:l Residential Beginning Date of Service End Date
Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 06-01-2009 End Date
Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service (8-01-2009 End Date
[:] Industrial Beginning Date of Service End Date

A-13 If not currently participating in any of Qhio’s four Natural Gas Choice Programs, provide the
approximate start date that the applicant proposes to begin delivering services:

(CRNGS Broker/Aggregator Renewal - Version 1.07) Page 3 of 7



A-14

A-15

A-16

A-17

A-18

B-2

B-3

I:l Celumbia Gas of Ohio Intended Start Date
[[] Dominion East Ohio Intended Start Date
[:I Duke Energy Ohio Intended Start Date
l:l Vectren Energy Delivery of Ohio Intended Start Date

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED.

Exhibit A-14 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners,” provide the names, titles, addresses and

telephone numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors, partners, or other similar officials.

Exhibit A-15 "Corporate Structure,”" provide a description of the applicant’s corporate structure,

including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and subsidiary companies that
supply retail or wholesale natural gas or electricity to customers in North America.

Exhibit A-16 "Company History," provide a concise description of the applicant’s company history

and principal business interests.

Exhibit A-17 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws," provide the articles of incorporation
filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is incorporated and any amendments
thereto, enly if the contents of the originally filed documents changed since the initial application.

Exhibit A-18 '"Secretary of State," provide evidence that the applicant is still currently registered with
the Ohio Secretary of the State.

SECTIONB - APPL}CANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED

Exhibit B-1 *Jurisdictions of Operation,” provide a current list of all jurisdictions in which the
applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the application, certified,
licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail natural gas service, or retail/wholesale
electric services.

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans,” provide a current description of the applicant’s experience and
plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing statements, and
responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant
to Section 4929 .22 of the Revised Code and contained in Chapter 4901:1-29 of the Ohio Administrative
Code.

Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience," provide a concise and current summary of the applicant’s
experience in providing the service(s) for which it is seeking renewed certification (e.g., number and
types of customers served, utility service areas, volume of gas supplied, etc.).

Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations,” provide a description of all existing,
pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocations of authority, regulatory
investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the applicant’s financial or operational

{CRNGS Broker/Aggregator Renewal - Version 1.07) Page 4 of 7
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B-5

B-6

C-1

C-2

C-5

status or ability to provide the services for which it is seeking renewed certification since applicant last
filed for certification.

Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure_of Consumer Protection Violations,” disclose whether the applicant,
affiliate, predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of the applicant has been convicted or held
liable for fraud or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws since applicant last filed for

certification,
No DYes

If Yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-S "Disclosure of Consumer Protection
Yiolations,” detailing such violation{(s) and providing all relevant documents.

Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of Certification Denial, Curtailment. Suspension, or Revocation,” disclose
whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, license, or application
to provide retail natural gas or retail/'wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, suspended, or revoked,
or whether the applicant or predecessor has been terminated from any of Ohio’s Natural Gas Choice
programs, or been in default for failure to deliver natural gas since applicant last filed for certification.

No DYes

If Yes, provide a separate attachment, labeled as Exhibit B-6 '"Disclosure of Certification Denial
Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation,” detailing such action(s) and providing all relevant documents.

SECTION C - APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED

Exhibit C-1 “Annual Reports,” provide the two most recent Annual Reports to Shareholders. If
applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide similar information, labeled as
Exhibit C-1, or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why.

Exhibit C-2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If applicant does
not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the applicant does not have such
filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 whether the applicant is not required to file with
the SEC and why.

Exhibit C-3 “Financial Statements,” provide copies of the applicant’s two most recent years of
audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement). If audited
financial statements are not available, provide officer-certified financial statements. If the applicant has
not been in business long enough to satisfy this requirement, it shall file audited or officer-certified
financial statements covering the life of the business.

Exhibit C-4 “Financial Arrangements,” provide copies of the applicant's current financial
arrangements to conduct competitive retail natural gas service (CRNGS) as a business activity (e.g.,
guarantees, bank commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.)

Exhibit C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements,” provide two years of forecasted financial statements
(balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the applicant’s CRNGS operation. along
with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, email address, and telephone number of the preparer.

(CRNGS Broker/Aggregator Renewal - Version 1.07) Page 5 0f 7

5



C-7

C-8

D-3

Exhibit C-6 “Credit Rating,” provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s current credit rating as
reported by two of the following orgamzations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet Information
Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a similar organization, In
instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings of a
parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer
of the applicant’s parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant.

Exhibit C-7 “Credit Report,” provide a copy of the applicant’s current credit report from Experion,
Dun and Bradstreet, or a similar organization.

Exhibit C-8 “Bankruptcy Information,” provide a list and description of any reorganizations,
protection from creditors, or any other form of bankruptcy filings made by the applicant, a parent or
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant or any officer of the applicant in the
currenit year or since applicant last filed for certification.

Exhibit C-9 “Merger Information,” provide a statement describing any dissolution or merger or
acquisttion of the applicant since applicant last filed for certification.

SECTION D — APPLICANT TECHNICAL CAPABILITY

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED.

Exhibit D-1 “Operations,” provide a current written description of the operational nature of the
applicant’s business functions.

Exhibit D-2 “Operations Expertise,” given the operational nature of the applicant’s business, provide
evidence of the applicant’s current experience and technical expertise in performing such operations.

Exhibit D-3 “Key Technical Personnel,” provide the names, titles, email addresses, telephone
numbers, and background of key personnel involved in the operational aspects of the applicant’s current
business.

/ Senigm ke frogdeg?
Applicant Signature and Title W /f %[M} 5 nigw L € / - 7
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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Service
Affidavit Form
(Version 1.07)

In the Matter of the Application of )
) ¢ i
ase No. - < -GA-AGG
for a Certificate or Renewal Certificate to Provide ) ¥ 595 ‘/
Competitive Retail Natural Gas Service in Ohio. )

County Ofﬁ{;r{‘h ol
State of fi i 1S/ (4, ljf@f ~

v 3 B S R . )
\L');}'r' o G@L’({M g Sty 7 g - L)é [Affiant], being duly sworn/affirmed, hereby states that:
Ecopa Iy
(1) The information provided within the certification or certification renewal application and supporting information is
complete, true, and accurate to the best knowledge of affiant.

(2) The applicant will timely file an annual report of its intrastate gross receipts and sales of hundred cubic feet of
natural gas pursuant to Sections 4505.10(A), 4911.18(A), and 4929.23(B), Ohio Revised Code.

(3} The applicant will timely pay any assessment made pursuant to Section 4905.10 or Section 4911.18(A), Ohio
Revised Code.

(4} Applicant will comply with all applicable rules and orders adopted by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
pursuant to Title 49, Ohio Revised Code.

(5) Applicant will cooperate with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and its staff in the investigation of any
consumer complaint regarding any service offered or provided by the applicant.

(6} Applicant will comply with Section 4929.21, Ohio Revised Code, regarding consent to the jurisdiction of the Ohio
courts and the service of process,

(7} Applicant will inform the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio of any material change to the information supplied in
the certification or certification renewal application within 30 days of such material change, including any change in
contact person for regulatory or emergency purpeses or contact person for Staff use in investigating customer
complaints.

{8) Aftiant further sayeth naught.

/ Jeain Viee Prva
L A e Vice Prvadeat
Affiant Signature & Title %/’V% / / )

s st

g

L4
lopgfh) Sworn and subscribed before me this LQ J( (-L day of 0 [‘M{f Month SZC} / F Year

Signature of

Qé/zlﬂ%m /L-/ W/~ Ladonic M Lle=zo/t

S S S
cial Administering Oath Print Name and Title /b"gZéZ{(? Fﬂ'%..t ﬁ/ /c
My commission expires on
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PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF OHIO

BROKER LICENSE NATURAL GAS APPLICATION

ECOVA, INC.

Certification Application for Aggregator/Power Brokers

Addendum to Section A

A-14 “Principal Officers, Directors & Partners” — see Exhibit A14 (List of Corporate Officers) attached

A-15 “Corporate Structure”
Applicant is a privately held indirect subsidiary of Avista Corparation (Avista Corp.)
{approximately 76 percent owned as of December 31, 2010) providing energy efficiency and
cost management programs and services for multi-site customers and utilities throughout North
America, Applicant’s primary product lines include expense management services for utility,
telecom and lease needs as well as strategic energy management and efficiency services that
include procurement, conservation, performance reporting, financial planning and energy
efficiency program management for commercial enterprises and utilities. Applicant is a
subsidiary of Avista Capital, Inc. (Avista Capital} which is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of
Avista Corp. On or about August 31, 2009, Applicant’s wholly owned subsidiary, Ecos IQ, Inc.,
acquired Ecos Consulting, Inc.

Avista Utilities — an operating division of Avista Corp. that comprises our regulated utility
operations. Avista Utilities generates, transmits and distributes electricity and distributes
natural gas. The utility also engages in wholesale purchases and sales of electricity and natural
gas. Avista Utilities provides electric distribution and transmission, as weli as natural gas
distribution services in parts of eastern Washington and northern Idaho. It also provides natural
gas distribution service in parts of northeast and southwest Oregon. At the end of 2010, Avista
Utilities supplied retail electric service to 359,000 customers and retail natural gas service to
319,000 customers across our entire service territory. Avista Utilities’ service territory covers
30,000 square miles with a population of 1.5 million.

See Exhibit A15 (Corporate Structure) attached

A-16 “Company History”
“Founded in 1995, as WWP Energy Solutions {and formerly known as Avista Advantage and

Advantage 1Q), Applicant pioneered the utility expense management industry, and today,
continues as a leader in the field — offering facility information and expense management
services not only for utility costs but also for telecom, lease and waste services. As the
developer and provider of Performance IQ®, our patented reporting system, Applicant provides
world-class outsourced bill payment, auditing, reporting and enhanced consulting services for
multi-site companies nationwide. We offer clients a superior and effective solution for the
management and payment of facility-related energy and telecom costs — converting bill data



into actionable intelligence about each facility.”

A-17 “Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws” — No changes or amendments

A-18 “Secretary of State” — see Exhibit A-18 attached

SECTION B — APPLICANT MANGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operations” - see Exhibit B-1 (Licensing Program) attached

B-2 “Experience & Plans”
With respect to energy procurement and consulting services, Ecova intends to provide such

services to commercial, industrial and government customer classes throughout the state of
Chio.

Ecova has provided retail electric procurement services via the broker and consultant model
throughout the country since 2002, The company does not take title to the electricity/natural
gas, and is not a supplier, therefore does not bill or contract for the electricity/natural gas
supply of the customer. However, we have significant experience in providing customers with
contract negotiation consulting services and billing problem resalution on behalf of our clients.
For clients who have complaints or inquiries regarding the services we provide, we offer a
dedicated procurement or service representative with a direct line, 1-800#s for general
inquiries, plus back up staff and higher level management for problem resolution.

See Exhibit B-2 (Procurement Team Organizational Chart) attached

B-3 “Summary of Experience”
Ecova has been offering consulting, brokering and simple aggregation services for hundreds of

customers across the country in deregulated utility service territories totaling approximately 15
billion kwh and 360 million therm on contract with suppliers. The vast majority of the client’s
are commercial businesses. The aggregation services entail providing single event RFP services
for a management group’s portfolio of properties, within a jurisdiction, of which many of the
properties will have different legal entity names. These contracts for this type of aggregation
can have multiple signature lines on a single contract, or multiple contracts for each owner’s
sites. The RFP can have a single price across all properties or be individualized. All the above
options are at the discretion of the client(s) after consulting on the best options to meet their
price risk management goals.

B-4 “Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations”
Applicant is not aware of any liabilities or investigations.




SECTION C ~ APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

C-1 “Annual Reports” -Attached
C-2 “SEC Filings” Attached

C-3 “Financigl Statements” — Filed separately under oath

C-4 “Financial Arrangements” - None

C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements” - Filed separately under oath.

C-6 “Cradit Rating” - see Exhibit C-6 attached

C-7 “Credit report” - see Exhibit C-7 attached

C-8 “Bankruptcy Information” — Applicant has not filed for bankruptey since last filing.

C-9 "Merger Information” Applicant has not been dissolved or acquired since last filing.

SECTION D ~ APPLICANT TECHNECAL CAPABILITY

D-1 “Operations”

Ecova Inc. provides sustainable utility expense management and energy management solutions
to multi-site companies across North America to assess and manage utility costs and usage.
Ecova, Inc.’s invoice processing, auditing and payment services, coupled with energy
procurement, comprehensive reporting and advanced analysis, provide the critical data clients
need to balance the financial, social and environmental aspects of doing business. Ecova, Inc.
also provides comprehensive energy efficiency program management services to utilities across
North America.

In addition to providing energy procurement services for our clients, Ecova, Inc. offers a fuli
suite of consultative services that include, but is not limited to:
* Rate Optimization and Analysis
* Sustainability
e Facilities Optimization, including Energy Efficiency, Demand Side Management {"DSM”}
and Engineering Feasibility Studies.

e



D-2 “Operations Expertise” See Exhibit D-2

D-3 “Key Technical Personnel” also see Exhibit D-3 attached

Steven Huber — Senior Manager, Energy Procurement Services

Steve has been with Ecova for 6 years and is market expert in the procurement of energy in all
deregulated natural gas and electric markets. Steve leads a team of 18 highly skill analysts in the
procurement activities for Ecova’s clients in all deregulated markets of the U.S. and Canada. He and his
team are responsible for understanding all utility tariffs in the deregulated market place, and to provide
our clients with transparency into these markets through our detailed analysis of Retail Provider pricing
and Local Distribution Company pricing. Transparency is provided through our competitive bidding
process, and our detailed analysis of both bid pricing and LDC pricing. Steve is also responsible for
ensuring that only licensed retail providers are used in our competitive bid process and who are
recommend to our clients. Steve is a military veteran with 25 years of service in the U.S. Navy, prior to
working for Ecova.

shuber@ecova.com
Tel. 651-900-6039, Fax 866-728-8853
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Exhibit A-14

Ecova, Inc. List of Corporate Officers
91-1701028
Name Title SSN Address Telephone
Scoft L. Morris Chairman of the Board 533-72-7574 |4805 E. Gleneagle Spokane WA | 95223|(509) 443-2226
Jeff Heggedahl President & Chief Executive Officer 474-90-3773 1165 Soulh Post Sireet #305 _|Spokane WA 99201 [(612)722-3983
Ed Schiect Executive Vice President 534-72-4868 {15114 E Paloming Lane Mica WA 99023 |{509)922-7903
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial
Gene Lynes Officer 568-86-3077 _ |131018 Valle Vista Road Lakeside CA 192040 |(519)561-1285
Danato Capobianco  |Sr. Vice President & General Counsel 1684-54-0928 |3354 SE Stark St Portland OR [97214 |(9711405-43562
Marian M. Durkin Sr. Vice President 166-48-0597 11019 E. 20th Ave. Spokans WA | 99203|(503) 534-1460
Mark T, Thies Sr. Vice President A79-82-8041 |10602 N. Atberta Rd. Spokane Wa | 9920B|(508) 443-3618
Karen S, Felies 3r. Vice President & Corporaie Secrelary 522-84-6221 12806 S. Park Rd. Spokana WA | 99212[(508) 465-1235
Julie Kearmney Sr. Vice Prasidert - Human Resources 519-88-46683_ (2374 NW Birkendene 3t Poriland OR_ [97229 |(503)296-9883
Sr. Vice President & General Manager -
Jana Schimicit Sales, Client Management & UEM Delivery 449-73-8128 13175 Sugarioaf Club Drive Duluth GA 30097 |(770)1622-4749
Sr, Vige Presldent & General Manager -
Seath Nesbitt Marketing & Technology Innovation 105-66-4946 1313 NW 81s1 St. Seatile WA (08117 [(2061782-5150
o ™ T 6T
_ _ _ _ ss4-agccgs | 4659 SE Cavalry Way Port Orchard WA | 88367
Robert Zak St. Vice Prasident - Facility Solutions Delivery y
11§-54-2067 [ 110 Wrate Horse Dr. Mooresville | Ng | 28117
Ted Schuliz Sr. Vice President - Utility Solutions Delivery
John Robison Chief Investment Officer & Treasurer 295-52-4144 13321 Ivy Hills Bivd Newiown OH _ 45244 [(513)271-1910
Susan Y. Fleming Assistant Corporate Secretary 518-86-2174 [600 W. Hubbard Si. #32 Coeur d'Alene _|I1D 83814|(208) 667-1144
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Exhibit A-14

Ecova, Inc. List of Corporate Officers
91-1701028
Name Title 88N Address Telephone
Scoit L. Morris Chairman of the Board 533-72-7574 |4BD5 E. Gloneagle Spokang WA | 99223)1500) 443.2226
Jeff Heggedahi Presidant & Chief Executive Officer 474-90-3773 |165 South Post Sireet #305 |Spekang WA |98201 [(612)722-3983
Ed Schlect Exocutive Vice President 534-72-48688 15114 E Palomino Lane Mica WA 199023 |{509)922-7908
Executive Vice Prasident & Chief Financial
Gene Lynes Officer 5568-86-3077 [11016 Valle Visla Road Lakeside CA 92040 |(619)561-1265
Donato Capobianco | Sr. Vica Prasident & General Counset 164-54-0926 (3354 SE Stark St Portland OR_|97214 1(871)409-4352
Marian M. Durkin Sr, Vice Pasident 166-48.0587 {1018 E. 20th Ava. Spokane WA | 89203((509) 534.1460
’M_a_rk T. Thles Sr, Vice President 479-82-8041 |10602 N, Alberta Rd. Spokane WA | D0208[(508) 443-3619
Karen S. Feltes Sr. Vice Prasident & Corporale Seerelary 522-84-6221 |2806 S. Park Rd. Spokans WA | 99212({508) 465-1235
Julie Keamey Sr. Vice President - Human Resources 518-88-4663 12374 NW Sirkendena St Portland QR 97229 |(503)2096-9883
Sr. Vice President & General Manager -
Jana Schmidt Sales, Client Management & UEM Dalivery 449-73-8128 {3175 Sugarioaf Club Drive Duluth GA__|30097 |(77T0EZ2-4749
Sr. Vice Prasident & General Manager -
Seth Nesbiit Marketing & Technoiogy Innovation 105-66-4946 |313 NW 8131 St. Seattls WA 98117 |(208)782-5150
4659 SE Cavalry Way Fort Orchard WA [ 98367
! . 524-50-4582
Robert Zak Sr. Vice Prasident - Facility Solufions Delivery
11§-54-2067 | 110 White Horse Dr. Mocresville | wc | 28117
Ted Schultz Sr. Vice Pregident - Utility Solutions Dalivery
John Robison Chief Investment Officer & Traasurer 205-52-4144 3321 lvy Hills Blvd Newlown OH_[45244 1(513)271-1910
Susan Y. Fleming Assistant Comporate Secretary 519-85-2174 |600 W. Hubbard St. #32  [CoeurdAlene (ID 838141(208) 667-1144
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- *201130400022*

DATE: DOCUMENT 1D DESCRIPTION
10/31/2011 201130400022  FOREIGN/AMENDMENT (FAM)

FILING EXPED PENALTY CERT COPY
50.00 100.00 oa .00 00

Receipt
This is not a bill. Please do not remit payment.

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM

4400 EASTON COMMONS WAY, SUITE 125
ATTN: JAMES H. TANKS llI

COLUMBUS, OH 43219

STATE OF OHIO

CERTIFICATE
Ohio Secretary of State, Jon Husted

1794122

It is hereby certified that the Secretary of State of Ohio has custody of the business records for
ECOVA, INC,
and, that said business records show the filing and recording of:

Document(s)

Document No(s):
FOREIGN/AMENDMENT

201130400022

Witness my hand and the seal of the
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio
this 28th day of October, A.D. 2011.

United States of America

State of Chio
Office of the Secretary of State

Gt

Chio Secretary of State




United States of America

State of Ohio
Office of the Secretary of State

I, Jon Husted, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and present
acting Secretary of State for the State of Ohio, and as such have custody of the
records of Ohio and Foreign business entities; that said records show
ADVANTAGE IQ, INC., a Washington corporation, having qualified to do
business within the State of Ohio on July 22, 2008 under License No. 1794122 is
currently in GOOD STANDING upon the records of this office.

Witness my hand and the seal of the
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio
this 11th day of March, A.D. 2011

i

Ohio Secretary of State

Validation Number: V201170MF1DSA
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Ecova, Inc. State Licensing Program

State
Connecticut
District of Columbia
Delaware
lllinois

Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
New Hampshire
New Jersey
Ohio
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Texas

Electric Broker License
Docket No. 07-05-11
EA11-21-7 Order No. 16509
11-308 Order No. 8007
11-0297

11-249

IR-2240

EB 201

DM 12-025

EA-0134

11-352E(1)
A-2011-2234410
D96-6(A5)

80350

Exhibit B-1

Gas Broker License
N/A

GA 2013-06-5

N/A

N/A

99-334

IR-2242

RA-075

DM 12-108
PA-0099
12-236G(1)
Application in process
N/A

N/A
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EXHIBIT C-1 and EXHIBIT C-2

Ecova, Inc. is a privately held subsidiary of Avista Corporation (Avista
Corp). Avista Corp’s Annual Report/10K is attached hereto as Exhibit
C-1/C-2.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20548

FORM 10-K
(Mark Gne)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15{d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THEFISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMEER 31, 2012 OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TC SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITHON
PERIOD FROM T0

Commission file number 1-3701

AVISTA CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified inits charter)

Washington 91-0462470
(S1ate or other jurisdiction of {1.R.S. Emplayer
incorporation or organizatian) Identification No.}
1411 East Mission Avenue, Spokane, Washington 99202-2604
{Address of principal exacutiva offices) {Zip Code}

Registrant’s telephone number, including arez code: 509-489-0500
Wabh site: http://www.avistacorp.com

Securities registered pursuant to Section t2{b) of the Act:

Title of Class Name af Each Exchange on Which Registared
Common Stock, ne par value New York Stack Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{g} of the Act:

Title ot Class
Praferred Stack, Cumulative, Withaut Par Value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as definad in Rule 405 of tha Securities Act.

Yes Na
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required o file reports pursuantto Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act.
ves 3 Na

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant {1) has filed a!l reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 154d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1‘334 during the
preceding 12 menths (or for such shorter pariod that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2} has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days. Yes Na

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electranicaily and posted on its cerporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation 8-T (3 232,405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 menths {or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit snt post such files). Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to [tem 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this chapterlis not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of Registrant's knowladge, in definitive proxy orinfermation statements incorporated by reference in Part |11 of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Farm 18-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the repistrant is a large accelgrated filer, accelerated fifer, 8 non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company, See the
definttions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)

Large atcelerated filer Accelerated filer [ Non-accelerated filer [] Smaller reparting company [
(Do net check if a smaller reparting company}

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company {as defined in Rule 126-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes [ Ne

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s outstanding Common Stock, no par value (the only class of voting stock), held by non-affiliates is $1,568,836,865
based o0 ihe lastreported sale price thereaf onthe consolideted tape on June 30, 2012,

As of January 31, 2013, 59, 851, 338 shares of Registrant’s Comman Stack, na par value {the only class of common stock), were outstanding.

Documents Incorporeted By Reference

Part of Farm 10-K inte Which
Document Document is Incorporated
Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the annual Partill, ltems 10, 11,
meeting of shareholders 1o be held May 9, 2013 12,13 and 14
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Forward-Locking Statements

Fram time to time, we make forward-(ooking statements such as

statements regarding projected or future:

+ financial performance,

¢ cashflows,

* capital expenditures,

* dividends,

« capital structure,

« gther financial items,

+ strategic goals and objectives,

+ husingss environment, and

« plans for operations.

These statements have underlying assumptions {many of which
are based, in turn, upon further assumptions}. Such statements are
made both in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (including this Annual Report on Form 10-K}, and
elsewhere, Forward-looking statements are all statements except those
af historical fact including, without limitation, those that are identified
by the use of words that include “will,” “may,” "could,” "should,”
“intends,” “plans,” "seeks,” "anticipates,” “estimates,” "expects,”
“forecasts,” “projects,” “predicts,” and similar expressions. Forward-
looking statements {including those made in this Annual Reporton Form
10-K) are subject to a variety of risks and uncertaintias and other
factars. Many of these factors are beyond our control and they could
have a significant effect on our operations, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. This could cause actual results to
differ materially from those anticipated in our statements. Such risks,
uncertainties and other factors include, among others:

*» weather conditions {temparatures, precipitation levels and
wind patterns) which affect energy demand and elactric
generation, including the effect of precipitation and
temperatura on hydroelectric resources, the effect of wind
patterns on wind-generated power, weather-sensitive
customer demand, and similar impacts on supply and
demand in the whalesale energy markets;

« state and federal regulatory decisions that affect our ahility to
recover costs and earn a reasonable return including, but not
limited to, disallowance or delay in the recovery of capital
investments and aperating costs;

¢+ changes in whelesate energy prices that can affect operating
income, cash requirements to purchase electricity and nataral
gas, value received for wholesale sales, collateral required of us
by counterparties on wholesale enargy transactions and cradit
risk to us from such transactions, and the market value of
derivative assets and liahilitias;

« gconomic conditions in our service areas, including customer
demand for utility services;

= the effect of increased customer energy efficiency;

* qur ability to obtain financing through the issuance of debt and/er
equity securities, which can be affected by various factors
including our credit ratings, interest rates and other capital market
conditions and the global economy;

"a "o
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» the potentiat effects of legislation or administrative rulemaking,

including possible effects on our generating resources of
restrictions on greenhouse gas emissions to mitigate concerns
over global climate changes;

changes in actuarial assumptions, interest rates and the actual
return en plan assets for our pension and other postretirement
medical plans, which can affect future funding obligations,
pension and other postretirement medical expense and pension
and ather pestretirement medieal plan liabilities;

valatility and illiquidity in wholasale energy markets, including the
availability of willing buyers and sellers, and prices ¢f purchased
energy and demand for energy sales;

the outcome of pending regulatory and legal proceedings arising
out of the "western energy crisis” of 2800 and 2001, including
possible refunds;

the outcorne of legal proceedings and other contingencies;
changes in, and compliance with, environmental and endangered
species laws, regulations, decisions and policies, including
present and potential environmental remediation costs;
wholesale and retail competition ineluding alternative energy
sources, suppliers and delivery arrangements and the extent that
new uses for our services may materialize;

the ability to comply with the terms of the licenses for our
hydroefeciric generating facilities at cost-effective levels;
severe weather ar natural disasters that can disrupt energy
generation, transmission and distribution, as well as the
availability and costs of materials, equipment, supplies and
support services;

explosions, fires, accidents, mechanical breakdowns, or other
incidents that may cause unplanned outages at any of our
generation fagilities, transmission and distribution systems or
other operations;

public injuries or damages arising from or allegedly arising from
qur gperations;

blackouts or disruptions of interconnected transmission systems
(the regional power grid);

disruption to information systems, automated controls and other
technologies that wa rely on for operations, communications and
CuStomer service,;

tarrorist attacks, cyber attacks ur other malicious acts that may
disrupt or cause damage to our utility assets or to the national
economy in general, inchuding any effects of terrorism, cyber
attacks or vandalism that damage or disrupt information
technology systems;

delays or changes in construction costs, and/or our ability to
obtain required permits and materials for present or

prospective facilities;

changes in the costs to implement new information technology
systems and/or obstacles thatimpede our ability to complata such
projects imely and affectively;

changes in the leng-term ¢limate of the Pacific Northwest,
which can affect, among other things, customer demand
patterns and the volume and timing of streamflows to our
hydroelectric resources;

changes in industrial, commercial and residential growth and
demographic patterns in our servige territory or thangesin
demand by significant customers;

the [oss of key suppliers for materials ar services;
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* default or nonperformance on the part of any parties from which
we purchase andfor sell capacity or energy;

« deterioration inthe creditworthiness of our customers;

* potential decline in our credit ratings, with effects including
impeded access to capital markets, higher interest costs, and
certain ratings trigger covenants in our financing arrangements
and wholesale energy contracts;

= increasing health care costs and the resulting effect on heaith
insurance provided to our employees and retirees;

+ increasing costs of insurance, more restricted coverage terms and
our ability to obtain insurance;

+ work force issues, including changes in collective bargaining unit
agreements, strikes, work stoppeges or the loss of key executives,
availability of werkers in a variety of skill areas, and our ability to
recruit and retain employeas;

« the potential effects of negative publicity regarding business
practices—whether true or not—which could result in litigation
or a decline in our common stock price;

+ changes in technologies, possibly making some of the current
technology ohsolets;

+ changes in tax rates and/or policies;

+ changes inthe payment acceptance policies of Ecova’s client
vendors that ceuld reduce operating revenues;

+ potential difficulties for Ecovain integrating acquired operations
and in realizing expected opportunities, diversions of management
rescurces and losses of key employees, challenges with raspect to
operating new businesses and ather unanticipated rigks and
liabilities; and

+ changes in our strategic business plans, which may be affected by
any or all of the faregeoing, including the entry into new businesses
and/or the exit from existing businesses.

Qur expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good
faith, We believe they are reasonable hased on, without limitation, an
examination of histerical operating trends, our records and other
information available from third parties. Howaver, thera can he no
assurance that our expectations, beliefs or prajections will be achieved
ar accomplished. Furthermare, any forward-loeking statement speaks
only as of the date an which such statement is made. We undertake no
obligation to update any forward-tooking statement or statements to
reflect events or circumstances that oceur after the date on which such
statement is made or to reflact the occurrence of unanticipated events.
New risks, uncertainties and other factors emerge from time to time,
and itis not pessible for us to predict all such factors, nor can we assess
the effect of each such factor on our business or the extent that any
such factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

Availatle Information

Our Web site address is www.avistacorp.com. We make annual,
quarterly and current reports available at our Web site as soon as
practicable after electronically filing these reports with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Information centained on our Web site is not
part of this report.

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Company Overview

Avista Corporation (Avista Corp. or the Company), incorporated
in the state of Washington in 1889, is an energy company engaged in
the generation, transmission and distribution of energy as well as
other energy-related businesses. As of December 31,2012, we
employed 1,682 people in our utility operations (prior to the veluntary
severance incentive program, which resulted in the termination of 55
employees effective at the end of the day on December 31, 2012} and
1,497 penple in our subsidiary businesses. See “Note 4 f the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further discussion of the
valuntary severance incentive program. Our corperate headquarters
are in Spokane, Washington, the secend-largest city in Washington.
Spokane serves as the business, transpartation, medical, industrial
and cultural hub of the Inland Northwest region (eastern Washington
and northera tdaho). Regional services include government and
higher education, medical services, retait trade and finance. The
fnland Northwest also coincides closely with our utility service area
in Washington and ldahe. Our gas utility operations also include
separate service areas in southwestern Oregon.

We have two reportable business segments as follows:;

» Avista iMilities—an operating division of Avista Corp. that
comprises our regulated wiility operations. Avista Utilities
generates, transmits end distributes electricity and distributes
natural gas. The utility also engages in wholesale purchases and
sales of electricity and natural gas.

+ Ecova—an indirect subsidiary of Avista Corp. (74.0 percent gwned
as of December 31, 2012) provides energy efficiency and cost
management programs and services for multi-site customers and
utilities throughout North America. Ecova’s service lines include
expense management services for utility and telecom needs as
well as strategic energy management and efficiency services that
include procurement, censervation, performance reporting,
financial planning, facility optimization and continuous monitoring,
and energy efficiency program management for commercial
enterprises and utilities.

We have other businesses, including a sheet metal fabrication
business, emerging technology venture fund investments and
commercial real estate investments, as weli as Spakane Energy, LLC
{Spokane Energy}). These activities do not represent a repertable
business segment and ara conducted by various indirect subsidiaries of
Avista Corp.

Ecova and varicus other companies are subsidiaries of Avista
Capital, inc. (Avista Capital) which is a direct, whaolly owned subsidiary
of Avista Corp. Total Avista Corp. stockholders’ equity was §1,259.5
million as of December 31, 2012, of which $118.7 million represented our
investment in Avista Capital. Additionally, Ecova represents $73.9
million of our investment in Avista Capital.

See "Item 6. Selected Financial Data” and “Note 24 ofthe
Notes to Consolidated Finangial Stataments™ for infermation with
respect to the eperating performance of each business seqment
{and other subsidiaries).
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Avisia Utilities

General

Through our reguiated utility aperations, we generate, transmit
and distribute electricity and distribute natural gas. Retail electric and
natural gas customers include residential, commarcial and industrial
classifications. We also engage in wholesale purchases and sales of
electricity and natural gas as an integral part of energy resource
management and our load-serving obligation,

Our utility provides electric distribution and transmission, as welk
as natural gas distribution services in parts of eastarn Washington and
northern ldaho. We also provide natural gas distribution service in
parts of northeastern and southwestern Oregon. Atthe end of 2012, we
supplied retail electric service to 362,000 customers and retail natural
gas service to 323,000 customers across our entire service territory.
Our service territory covers 30,000 sguare miles with a pepulation of 1.5
million. See “Item 2, Properties” for further information on our utility
assets. See "ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Economic Conditions
and Utility Load Growth" for information on economic conditions in our
service territory,

Electric Operations

In addition to providing electric distribution and transmission
services, we generate electricity from facilities that we own and we
purchase capacity and energy and fuel for generation under long-term
and short-term contracts. We also sell electric capacity and energy, as
well as surplus fuelin the wholesale market in connection with our
resource optimization activities as described below.

As partof our resource procurement and management operations
in the electric business, we engage in an ongoing process of resource
optimization, which involves the economic selection from available
energy resources to serve our load obligations and the use of these
resources to capture available economic value. We transact business in
the wholesale markets by selling and purchasing electric capacity and
energy, fuel for electric generation, and derivative instruments related
to capacity, energy, transport and fuel. Such transactions are part of the
process of matching resources with our load cbligations and hedging
the related financial risks. These transactions range from terms of
intra-hour up to multiple years. We make centinuing projections of:

¢ electric boads at various points in time {ranging from intra-hour to
muttiple years) based on, among other things, estimates of
customer usage and weather, historical data and contract terms,
and

* resource availability at these points in time based on, among other
things, fuel choices and fuel markets, estimates of streamfiows,
availahility of generating units, historic and forward market
infermation, centract terms, and experience.

On the hasis of these projections, we make purchases and sales of
elsctric capacity and energy, fuel for electric generation, and related
derivative instruments to match expected resources to expected
glectric load requirements and reduce our exposure to electricity {or
fuel) market price changes. Resource optimization invoives genarating
plant dispateh and scheduling available resources and also includes
transactions such as:

A 15T A

+ purchasing fuel for generation,

« when economical, selling fuel and substituting wholesale electric
purchases, and

+ gther wholesale transactions te capture the value of generation
and transmission resources and fuel delivery {transport}
capacity contracts.

Qur gptimization process includes entering into hedging
transactions to manage risks. Transactions include both physical energy
contracts and refated derivative instruments.

Qur generation assets are intercennected through the regional
transmission system and are operated on a coerdinated basisto
enhance Joad-serving capability and reliability, We provide transmission
and anciflary services in eastern Washington, northern idaho and
western Mentana, Transmission revenues were $12.7 million in 2012,
$13.B million in 2011 and $12.8 million in 2010,

Electric Requirements
Qur peak electric native lead requirement for 2012 occurred en
August 7, 2012 at which time our total obligation was 2,485 MW
consisting of:
+ pative load of 1,579 MW,
* long-term wholesale obligations of 236 MW, and
» short-term wholesale obligations of 670 MW.

Atthattime our maximum resource capacity available was
3.060 MW, which included:

« company-owned or controlled electric generation of 1,755 MW,

* lpng-term hydroelectric contracts with certain Public Utility
Districts {PUDs} of 152 MW,

* long-term thermal generation contract with Lancaster Plant of
270 MW,

» pther long-tarm whelesale contracts of 133 MW, and

» short-term wholesale purchases of 750 MW,

Historically, our peak electric native load requirement has
occurred during the winter months; however, dus to a weather anomaly
in 2012, the peak electric native load requirement eccurred during the
summer period. We expect our peak electric native load requirement to
pccur in winter periods in the future,

Electric Resourres

We have a diverse electric resource mix of Company-owned and
cantracted hydroelectric projects, thermal generating facilities, wind
generation facilities, and power purchases and exchanges.

Atthe end of 2012, our Company-owned facilities had a total net
capability of 1,844 MW, of which 55 percent was hydroelectric and 45
percent was thermal. See “ltem 2. Properties” for detailed information
on generating facilities.

Hydroelectric Resosrces—\We own and operate six hydraslactric
projects on the Spokane River and two hydroelectric projects on the
Clark Fork River. Hydroelectric generation is our fowest cost source per
megawatt-hour IMWHh} of electricity and the availability of hydroslectric
ganeration has a significant effect on total power supply cests. Under
normal streamffow and operating conditions, we estimate that we would
be able t6 meet approximately one-half of our total average electric
requirements {both retail and long-term wholesale) with the
combination of our hydroelectric generation and long-tarm
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hydroelectric purchase contracts with certain PUDs inthe state of

Washington. Qur estimate of normal annual hydroelectric generation for

2013 lincluding reseurces purchased under fong-term hydroelectric

contracts with certain PUDs) is 534 average megawatts {aMW) (or
4.7 million MWhs). Hydroelectric rasources provided 583 aMW for 2012,
837 aMW for 2011 and 477 aMW for 2010

The following table shows our hydroelectric generation (in thousands of MWhs} during the year ended December 31:

2012 20m 2018

Noxon Rapids 1823 211 1,503
Cabinet Gorge 1,193 1,292 942
Post Falls 83 % 0
Upper Falls i) I n
Monroe Street 102 Ho 106
Nine Mile 106 90 10
Long Laks 813 556 480
Little Falls 202 213 20t
Total company-owned hydreelectric generation 4,068 4534 3494
Long-tarm hydroelectric contracts with PUDs o 1,047 685
Total hydroelectric generation 5110 5,581 4179

Thermal Resources—We own:

» the combined cycle combustion turbine {CT) natural gas-fired
Coyate Springs 2 Generation Project (Cayote Springs 2} located
near Boardman, Oregon,

* a 15 percentinterest in a twin-unit, coal-fired boiler generating
facility, the Colstrip 3 & 4 Generating Project (Colstrip}in
southeastern Montana,

« awood waste-fired baiter generating facility known as the
Kettle Fafls Generating Station {Kettle Falls 6§} in
northeastern Washington,

* atwo-unit natural gas-fired CT generating facility, located in
nartheastern Spokane [Northeast CT},

« atwo-unit natural gas-fired CT generating facility in northern
Idaha {Rathdrum CT}, and

+ two small natural gas-fired generating facilities (Boulder Park and
Kettle Falls CT).

Coyote Springs 2, which is operated by Portland General Electric
Company, is supplied with natural gas under bath tarm contracts and

spot market purchases, including transportation agreements with
hilateral renawal rights.

Colstrip, which is operated by PPL Montana, LLC, is supplied with
fuel from adjacent coal reserves under coal supply and transportation
agreements in effect through 2019.

The primary fuel for the Kettle Falls GS is wood waste ganerated
as a by-product and delivered by trucks from forest industry eperations
within 100 miles of the plant. A combination of leng-term contracts and
spot purchases has provided, and is expected to meet, fuel reguirements
for the Kettle Falls GS.

The Naortheast CT, Rathdrum CT, Boulder Park and Kettle Falls CT
generating units are primarily used to meet peaking efastric
requirements. We also operate these facilities when marginal costs are
below prevailing wholesale efectric prices. These generating facilities
have access to natural gas supplies that are adequate to meet their
respective operating naeds,

See "ltem 2 Properties—Avista Utilities—Generation Propertiss
for the nameplate rating and present generating capabilities of the
above thermal rasources.

-

The following tahle shows our thermal generation (in theusands of MWhe) during the year anded Becember 31:

2012 2m 2010

Coyote Springs 2 1142 5 1,661
Colstrip 1,499 1432 1,749
Kettle Falls G5 709 291 312
Wortheast CT and Rathdrum CT 7 3 i2
Boulder Park and Kettle Falls CT ! 10 14
Total company-owned thermal genaration T e a4 3,748
Long-term cantract with Lancaster Plant I P 835 1418
Total thermal generation 1077 3,282 5,158

Lancaster Plant Power Purchase Agreement-The Lancaster
Plantis a 270 MW natural gas-fired combined cycle combustien turbine
plant lacated in Idaho, owned by an unrelated third party. All of the
output from the Lancaster Plant is contracted ¢ us through 2026 under
a power purchase agreement {PPA).

Palouse Wind PPA—In June 2011, we entered into a 30-year PPA
with Palouse Wind, LLC {Palouse Wind}, an affiliate of First Wind

E-E )

Holdings, LLC. Under the PPA, we acquire all of the power and
renewable attributes produced by a wind project that was develeped by
Palouse Wind in Whitman County, Washington. The wind project has a
nameplate capacity of approximately 105 MW and is expected to
produce approximately 40 aMW, The project was completed and
deliveries began during the fourth quarter of 2012, Generation from
Falouse Wind was 61,450 MWhs in 2012. We have an annual option to
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purchase the wind project following the 10th anniversary of its
December 2012 commercial operation date.

Other Purchases, Exchanges and Sales—In addition to the
respurces dascribed above, we purchase and sell power under various
long-term contracts and we also enter into short-term purchases and
sales. Further, pursuant to the Public Utility Regutatory Policies Act of
1978 {PURPA), as amended, we are required to purchase generation
from gualifying facilities, This includes, among other resources,
hydroelectric projects, cogeneration projects and wind generation
projects at rates approved by the Washington Utilities and
Transportation Commission (UTC) and the Idaho Public Utilities
Commission {IPUL). Existing PURPA contracts expire at various times
threugh 2022

See "Avista Utilities Qperating Statistics—Electric
Dperations—Elzctric Energy Resources” for annual quantities of
purchased power, wholesale power sales and power from exchanges
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, See "Electric Operations” for additional
information with respect to the use of whalesale purchases and sales
as part of our resource optimization process and also see “Future
Resource Needs” for the magnitude of these poewer purchase and
sales contracts in future peripds.

Hydroetectric Licensing

We are a licensee under the Federal Power Act as administered by
the FERC, which includes regulation of hydreelectric generation
resources, Excluding the Little Falls Hydroelectsic Generating Project,
pur gther seven hydroelectric ptants are regulated by the FERC through
two projectiicenses. The licensed projects are subject to the provisions
of Part | of the Federal Power Act. These provisions include payment for

headwater benefits, condemnation of ficensed projects upon payment
of just compensation, and take-over of such projects after the expiration
of the license upan payment of the lesser of “net investment” or “fair
vaiug” of the project, in either case, plus severance damages.

The Cahinet Gorge Hydroelectric Generating Project (Cahinat
Gorge) and the Noxon Rapids Hydroelectric Generating Project (Noxan
Rapids) are under ane 45-year FERC license issued in March 2001. See
“Cabinet Gorge Total Dissolved Gas Abatement Plan” in “Note 21 of the
Notes ta Consolidated Finantial Statements” for discussion of dissolved
atmaspheric gas levels that exceed state of idaho and federal watar
quality standards downstream of Czhinet Gorge during periods when we
must divert excess river flows over the spillway and our mitigation plans
and efforts,

Five of our six hydroelectric projects on the Spukane River {Long
Lake, Nine Mile, Upper Fails, Monroe Street, and Post Falls) are under
one 50-year FERC license issued in June 2009 and are referred to
collectively as the Spokane River Project. The shath, Little Falls, is
cperated under separate Congressional authority and is not licensed by
the FERC. For further information sea “Spokane River Licensing” in
“Neote 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Future Resource Needs

We have operational strategies to provide sufficient resourcesto
meet Qur enaryy requirements under a range of operating congitions.
These operational strategies consider the amount of energy needed,
which varies widely because of the factors that influence demand over
intra-hour, hourly, daily, menthly and annual durations. Dur average
hourly load was 1,075 aMW in 2012, 1,096 aMW in 2011 and 1,075 aMW
in 2010,

The follawing is a forecast of our average annual energy requirements and resources for 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2M6:

FDRECASTED ELECTRIC ENERGY REQUIREMENTS AND RESOURCES (aMW)

2013 2014 2015 2016

Requirements:
System load 1,067 1.054 1,067 1,079
Contracts for powar sales 128 109 58 49
Total requirements 1,195 1,163 1125 1,128

Resources:

Company-ewned and contract hydro generation®® 534 535 504 504
Companry-owned and contract thermal generation® 04 704 125 718
Other contracts for power purchases 194 162 161 160
Total resources 1432 1401 1,390 1,382
Surplus resources 237 238 265 254
Additional available energy® 149 153 138 154
Total surplus resources 386 i) 404 408

{1t SystemJpad is reduced in 2013 because a large industrial customer will begin ganarating efectricity te meet a portion of its own load after June 30, 2013. The full impact

of this laad change culminates in 2014 when foad is reduced for 12 calendar months.

{3 The forecast assumas mear nermal hydroelectric generation fdecline in 2015 and 2016 is due to changes in contracts with PUDs).

{3} Includes our long-term contract with the Laneaster Plant. Exclutles Northeast CT and Rathdrum CT as these ara considered peaking facilities and are genarally not used

to meet sur base load requirements. We generally dispateh thermal resources when operating costs are fower than short-term wholesale market prices.

i4)  Northeast CT and Rathdrum LT, The combined maximum capacity of the Northeast CT and Rathdrum CT is 243 MW, with astimated available enargy production as

indicated for each year.
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fn August 2011, we filad gur 2011 Electric Integraied Resource Plan
{IRP} with the UTC and the IPUE. The IRP details projected growthin
demand for energy and the new resousces nesded 1o serve customers
over the next 20 years. We regard the IRP as a tool for resource
evafuation, rather than an acquisition plan for a particular project.
Highlights of the 2011 IRP in¢lude:

+ Acontract for the 105 MW Palouse Wind, LLC project,
which provides a new resource to serve our customers’
increasing energy needs. Commercial operations began on
December 13,2012,

+ An additional 42 aMW of wind or other renewable beginring
in 2021,

+ Enargy efficiency measures are expected to save 310 aMW of
cumulative anergy over the 20-ysar IRP timeframe. This
aggressive effort could reduce load growth to half of what it would
be without these measures.

« 750 MW of new natural gas-fired generation facilities are
anticipated in two or three increments between 2018 and 2031.

* Grid modernization programs are projected to save 5 aMW of
energy by 2013.

+ Transmission upgrades wilt be needed to deliver the energy from
new generation resources to the distribution ines serving
customers. We will continue to participate in regional efferts to
expand the region’s transmission system.

We are required to file an IRP every twa years with the next IRP
expected to be filed during the third quarter of 2013. Our resource
strategy may change from the 2011 IRP based on market, legislative and
regulatory developmants, etc.

We are subject to the Washington state Energy Independence Act,
which includes renewable energy portfolio standards and we must
obtain a portion of our electricity from qualifying renawable resources
or through purchase of ranewable energy credits. Future generation
rasource decisions will be impacted by legislation for restrictions on
greenhouse gas emissions and renewable energy requirements.,

See “Item 7. Managemant's Qiscussion and Analysis of
Einancial Condition and Results of Operations—Environmental
Issues and Other Contingencies” for information refated to existing
laws, a5 well as potential [egislation that could influance aur future
gleCtric resource mix.

Natural Gas Operations

General—We provide natural gas distribution services to retail
customers in parts of eastern Washington, northern ldahe, and
northeastern and southwestern Oregon.

Market prices for natural gas, like other commodities, can be
valatile. To provide reliable supply and to manage the impact of volatile
prices on our customers, we procure natural gas through a diversified
mix Of spot market purchases, forward fixed price purchases, and
derivative instruments from various supply basins and aver various time
periods. We also use natyral gas storage capacity to suppart high
demand periods and to procure natural gas when prices may be
seasonally lower, Securing prices threughout the year and even into
subsequent years mitigates potential adverse impacts of significant
purchase requirements in a volatile price environment.

Natural gas loads are highly variable and daily natural gas loads
can differ significently from the monthly load projections. We make
continuing projections of our natural gas loads and assess available
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natural gas resqurces. Onihe basis of these projections, we plan and
execute a series of transactions to hedge a significant portion of our
projected natural gas requirements through forward market
transactions and derivative instruments. These transactions may
extend for multiple years into the future with the highest volumes
hedged for the current and most immediate upcoming natural gas
operating year {November through October). We alse leave a significant
portion of our natural gas supply requirements unhedged for purchase in
short-term and spot markets.

As part of the process of halancing natural gas retail load
requirements with resources, we engage in whelessle purchases and
sales of natural gas. We plan for sufficient natural gas delivery capacity
ta serve our retail customers on a theoretical peak day. As such, we
generally have more pipeline and storage capacity than what is needed,
during periods other than a peak day. We optimize natural gas resources
by using market opportunities to generate gconomic value that partially
offsats net natural gas costs. Wholesale sales are delivered through
wholesale market facilities outside of our natural gas distribution
system and, when feasible, physical delivery may be avoided through
offsetting purchase and sale book-out arrangements, Natural gas
resource optimization activities include, but are not limited to;

» wholesale market sales of surplus netural gas suppligs, and
+ purchases and sales of natural gas to pptimize use of pipeline and
storage capacity.

We also provide transportation service to certain large
commercial and industrial natural gas customers who purchase natural
qas through third-party marketers. For these customers, we move their
natural gas from natural gas transmission pipeline delivery points
through our distribution system to the customers’ premises.

Natural Gas Supply—We purchase all of our natural gasin
whaolesale markets. We are connected to multiple supply basins in the
western United States and western Canada through firm capacity
delivery rights on six pipeline networks. Access to this diverse portfolio
of natural gas resources allows us ta make natural gas procurement
tecisions that benefit our natural gas customers. These interstate
pipeline delivery rights provide the capacity to serve approximately 25
percent of paak natural gas customer demands from domestic sources,
and 75 percent from Canadian sources, Natural gas prices in the Pagific
Northwest are affected by global energy markets, as well as supply and
demand factorsin other regions of the United States and Canada. Future
prices and delivery constraints may cause our seurce mix {o vary.

Natural Gas Storage—Wa own a one-third interest in the Jackson
Prairie Natural Gas Storage Project (Jackson Prairie}, an underground
natural gas storage field located near Chehalis, Washington. Jackson
Prairie has a total peak day deliverability of 11,5 million therms, with a
total working natural gas capacity of 253 million therms. Qur share of the
peak day defiverahility and total working capacity is one-third of these.

Natural gas storage enables us to place natural gas into storage
when prices may be lower or to satisfy minimum natural gas purchasing
requirements, as well as to meet high demand periods or to withdraw
natural gas from storage when spot prices are highsr.

Natural Gas Pipeline Replacement—In 2013, we began
implementation of a plan to replace certain vintages of Aldyl A natural
gas pipe within its distribution systems in Washington, Oregon and
Idaho. In aarly 2012, we released our protocel report to each state
Commission describing our Aldyl A natural gas pipe replacement plan
across its natural gas system. Later in 2012, after technical workshaps
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held by the UTC to gather perspectives on pipeline replacement
programs, including the need for expedited cost recovery, the UTC
required all natural gas utilities operating in Washington to file
applicable replacement plans with the Commission. We subsequently
filed our protocal report with the UTC proposing to replace our Aldyl A
naturat gas pipe at a cost of approximately $10 million per year, indexed
to inflation, acrass our three state jurisdictions over a 20-year period,
We expectto receive costrecovery for these capital expenditures from
the three jurisdictions over the subsequent future life of these assets.

Regulatory Issues

General—As a public utility, we are subject to regulation by state
utifity commissiens for prices, accounting, the issuance of securities
and other matters. The retail electric and natural gas operations are
subject to the jurisdiction of the UTC, the IPUC, the Public Utility
Commission of Oregon (GPUC), and the Public Service Cammission of
the State of Montana {Montana Commission}, Approval of the issuance
of securities is not required from the Montana Commission. We are also
subjectto the jurisdiction of the FERC for licensing of hydroelectric
generation resources, and for electric transmission services and
wholesale sales.

QOur rates for retail electric and natural gas services {other than
specially negotiated retail rates for industrial or large commercial
customers, which are subject to regulatory review and approval) are
determined on a “cost of service” basis.

Rates are designed to provide an epportunity for us to recover
allowable operating expenses and earn a reasonable return on “rate
base.” Rate hase is generally determined by reference to the original
cost (net of accumulated depreciation) of utility plantin service, subject
to various adjustments for deferred taxes and other items. Qver time,
rate base is increased by additions to utility plant in service and reduced
by depreciation and retirement of utility plant and write-offs as
authorized by the utility commissions. Our operating expenses and rate
hase are allocated or directly assigned among five regulatory
jurisdictions; electric in Washington and ldaha, and natural gas in
Washingtan, ldaho and Oregon. |n general, a reguest for new rates in
Washington and ldaho is madae on the basis of net investmentas of a
date, and operating expenses and ravenues for a test year that ended
prior to the date of the request, plus certain adjustments designed to
reflect expected revenues, expenses and net investment during the
period new retail rates will ba in affect. Although the current ratemaking
process in these $tates provides recovery of soma future changes in net
investment, operating costs and revenues, it does not reflect all
changes in costs far the peried in which new retail rates will be in place.
This histori¢ally has resufted in o lag between the time we incur costs
and the time when we start recovering the costs through subsequent
changas in rates. Oregon cureently aliows a forecasted test year, which
generally is more effective in providing timely recovery of costs,

Our rates for wholesale electric and natural gas transmission
services are based on either “cost of service” principles or market-
hased rates as set forth by the FERC. Ses “Notes 1 and 23 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additienal information about
regulation, depreciation and deferred income taxes,

General Rate Cases—We regularly review the need for
electric and natural gas rate changes in each state in which
we provide service. Sea “ltem 7. Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of
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Dparations—Avista Utilities—Regulatory Matters—General
Rate Cases” for information on general rate case activity.

Pawer Cost Deferrals—We defer the recognition in the ingome
statement of certain power sepply costs that vary from the level
currently recovered from our retail customers as authorized by the UTC
and the IPUC. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Finangial Condition and Results of Operations—Avista Utilities—
Regulatery Matters—Power Cost Deferrals and Recovery Mechanisms
and "Nate 23 of the Notas to Consolidated Financial Statements” for
detailed informatian on power cost deferrals and recovery mechanisms
in Washington and ldaho.

Purchased Sas Adjustment [PGA)—Under established regulatory
practices in each state, we are allowed to adjust natural gas rates
periodically {with requlatory approval} to reflectincreases or decreases
in the cost of natural gas purchased. Differences between actual
natural gas ¢osts and the natural gas costs included in retail rates are
deferred during the perivd the differences are incurred. During the
subsequent period when regulators approve inclysion of the cost
changes in rates, any amounts thatwere previgusly deferred arg
charged or credited to expense. We typically propose such PGAs at
least once per year. See “item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Avista Utilities—
Reguiatory Matters—Purchased Gas Adjustments” and “Note 23 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for detailed information en
natural gas cost deferrals and recovery mechanisms in Washington,
idaho and Oregon.

o

Federal Laws Related to Wholesale Competition

Federal law promotes practices that epen the electric
wholesgle energy market to competition. The FERC requires electric
utilities to transmit power and energy to or for wholesale purchasers
and sellers, and requires electric utilities to enhance or construct
transmission facilities to ¢reate additienal transmission capacity for
the purpose of providing these services. Public utilities {through
subsidiaries or affiliates) and other antities may participate in the
development of independent electric generating plants for sales to
whalesale customers.

Pubiic utilities aperating under the Federal Power Act are required
to provide apen and non-discriminatory access to their transmission
systems tp third parties and establish an Open Access Same-Time
Information System to provide an electronic means by which
transmission customers ¢an obtain information about available
transmission capacity and purchase transmission access. The FERC
alsa requires each public utility subject to the rules to operate its
transmission and whelesate power merchant operating functions
separately and to comply with standards of conduct designed te ensure
that all wholesale users, including the public utility’s power merchant
eperations, have equal access ta the public utility’s transmission
system, Cur compliance with these standards has not had any
substantive impact on the operation, maintenance and marketing of our
transmission system or our ability to provide service to customers,

See “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Competition” for
Further information.



Regional Transmission Drganizations

Beginning with FERC Orders No. 888 and Ne. 2000 (issued in 2000}
and eontinuing with subsequent rulemakings and policies {including the
Variable Energy Resource Order No. 764 and the Transmission Planning
and Cost Allocation Order No. 1000), the FERC has encouraged better
coordination and operational consistency aimed to capture efficiencies
that might otherwise be gained through the formation of a Regional
Transmission Organization (RT0) such as an independent system
operator (I50). While it has not mandated RT0 formation, the FERC has
issued orders and made public policy statements indicating its support
for the development and formation of independent organizations,
including those intended to implement a number of regienal transmission
planning coordingtion requirements.

We have participated in discussions with transmission providers
and ther stakeholders in the Pacific Northwest for several years
regarding the possible formation of an IS0 in the region. ColumbiaGrid is
a Washington nonprofit membership corporation with an independent
slate of directors formed to improve the operational efficiency,
reliability, and planned expansion of the transmission grid in the Pacific
Northwest and we became a member of ColumbiaGrid in 2008 during its
formation. ColumbiaGrid is not an (S0, but performs limited functiens as
setfarth in specific agreements with ColumbiaGrid members and other
stakeholders, and fills the role of coordinating Avista's regional planning
as required in Order No. 1000 and any clarifying Qrders. ColumbiaGrid
and its members also work with other western organizations to address
operational efficiencias, including WestConnect and the Northern Tier
Transmission Group (NTTG). We became a registered Planning
Participant of the NTTG during 2011. We will continue to assess the
benefits of entering into ather functional agreements with CalumbiaGrid
andyor participating in other forums to attain operational efficiencies
ant to meet FERC policy objectives.
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The FERC requires RTOs to provide various data and is currently
requesting nen-RTQ regions to report similar data for the purpose of
estehlishing performance metrics. We expect the FERC to use this data
to compare RTD and non-AT( regions. We cannot foresee what policy
objectives the FERC may develop s a result of establishing such
perfarmance metrics,

Reliahility Standards

Among its other provisions, the U.8. Energy Policy Act provides for
the implementation of mandatory reliability standards and autherizes
the FERC ta assess fines for non-compliance with these standards and
ether FERC regulations.

The FERC certified the North American Electricity Reliability
Corporation {(NERC) as the single Electric Reliability Grganization
authorized to establish and enforce reliability standards and delegate
authority to regional entities for the purpose of establishing and
enforcing reliability standards, The FERC has approved NERC Refiability
Standards, including western region standards, making up the set of
legally enforceable standards for the United States” bulk electric
system. The first of thase reliability standards became effective in June
2007. We are required to seif-certify our compliance with these
standards on an annual basis and underge regufarly scheduled periodic
reviews by the NERC and its regional entity, the Western Electricity
Coordinating Council {WECC). Qur failure to comply with these
standards could result in financial penalties of up to $1 million per day
per violation, Annual self-certification and audit processes te date have
demonstrated our substantial compliance with these standards.

3\
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Avista Corporation

Avista Utilities Electric Qperating Statistics
Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Electric Dperations
Operating Revenuves (Dollars in Thousands):
Residential g 315337 § 324835 296,527
Commercial 286,568 280,139 265,219
Industrial 1:5589 122,560 114,792
Public street and highway lighting 7.240 6,941 6,702
Total retail 728534 134,475 683,340
Wholesale 102,77 78,308 165,553
Sales of fuel 115 835 153,470 106,375
Other 21,067 21,937 19,015
Tatal electric oparating revenues 8 WeB172 § wRE 974,283
Energy Sales (Thousands of MWhs}:
Residential 3,608 3728 3618
Commerciat ERYY 3122 3,100
Industrial 2300 2,147 2099
Public street and highway lighting 26 26 26
Total retail 2861 9,023 8843
Wholesale 3,133 2,7% 3,803
Total ¢lectric energy sales 12 544 11,819 12,645
Energy Resources {Thousands of MWhs}:
Hydro generation {from Company facilities} 4,058 4,534 3494
Tharmal generation {from Company facilities) 2 464 2447 348
Purchased power—hydro generation from long-term contracts with PUDs 1022 1047 685
Purchased power—thermal generation from long-term contracts with Lancaster plant 1,208 835 1,410
Purchased power—whelesale 4056 3,553 3,905
Power exchanges o {24) {15}
Total power resources 13278 12,392 13,221
Energy losses and Company use in34) {573) {581}
Tatal energy resources (net of losses) 12,544 11,818 12,646
Number of Retail Customers (Average for Period):
Residentia e by? 316,762 315,283
Cammercial 39,865 39618 38,489
Industrial 1.345 1,380 1,316
Public street and highway lighting o8 485 49
Total electric retail customers 360459 /8,215 356,597
Residential Service Averages:
Annual use per customer (KWhj s 11,769 11476
Revenue per kWh {in cents) 343 g 8.20
Annual revenue per customer g “igsl o 102548 § 940.83
Average Hourly Load {aMW} 11 1,096 1,078
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Avista Corporation {continuedi)

Avistz Utilitips Electric Operating Statistics
Yaars Ended December 31,

2012 201 2010
Electric Operations {continued)
Reguirements and Resource Availability at time of system pazk (MW}
Total requirements pwinter):
Retail native load 1,554 1,669 1,704
Wholesale obligations 637 n2 a03
Total reguirements (winter} AT 2,381 2,507
Total rescurce availability (winter) 2618 2923 2,905
Total requirements {summer}:
Retail nativa load 1519 1535 1,556
Whelesale obligations N 906 477 g2
Total requirements (summer} 1AE 2,007 2,318
Total resource availability {summer) ST 060 2310 2,662
Cooling Degree Days:®
Spokane, WA
Actual 535 426 330
30-year average L34 434 434
% of average 1237, 98% 88%
Heating Degree Days:?
Spokane, WA
Actuat B 756 6,861 6,320
30-year average AETG 6,547 6,647
% of average 94+ 103% 95%

{1y} Cooling degree days are the measure of the warmness of weather exparienced, based on the extent to which the average of high and fow temperatures foe a day exceeds
63 degress Fahranheit (annual degree days above historic indicate warmer than average temperatures).

{2} Heating degree days are the measurs of the coldness of weather experienced, based on tha extent to which the average of high and low temperatures far g day falls
below 65 degrees Fahrenheit {annual degree days below histeric indicate warmer than average tempseratures).

|
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Avista Corpaoration {continued)

Avista Utilities Natural Gas Operating Statistics

Yoars Ended December 31,
2012 201 2010
Natural Gas Operations
Operating Revenues (Dollars in Thousands):
Residential S 196719 § 219857 § 193,169
Commercial 98,994 111,964 98,257
Interruptible 2,232 2519 27138
Indugtrial 3.635 4,180 3,756
Total retail 301,680 338,220 297,920
Whalesale 158,637 195,882 197,364
Trangportation 7,032 6,703 6,470
Other 69 744 9,495
Total natural gas operating revenues § A4 0§ 5875 & BI249
Theems Delivered {Thousands of Therms}:
Residential 188,152 207,202 188,546
Commercial 118,083 125,344 113,422
Interruptible 4363 4503 4443
Industrial 5,073 5,604 5312
Total retail e %2703 311,723
Wholesale 586,193 510,755 458 887
Transportation 154,704 152,515 142,093
interdepartmental and Company use 381 440 393
Total tharms delivered LIS 1006413 923,09
Sourees of Naturai Gas Delivered {Thousands of Therms):
Purchases N4 B8 877,290 187,836
Storage—injections {105,304) {104,782} (86,750
Storage—withdrawals 33850 34,504 83,313
Natural gas for transportation 154,704 152,515 142,093
Distribution system losses 17,388 (8,114} {3.416)
Total natural gas delivered TS84 1006413 923,096
Number of Retail Customers (Average for Penod):
Resigential 86,522 284,504 282,121
Commercial 33763 33540 33,431
Interruptible 78 38 38
|ndustrial #63 255 254
Total natural gas retail customers B 320,536 318,337 316,444
Residential Service Averages:
Annual use per customer (therms} ) 728 667
Revenue per therm {in dollars) S LN I .06 § 1.02
Annual revenue per customer g 8657 § M s §83.25
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Avista Corporation (continued)

Avista Unlitigs Natura! Gas Qperating Statistics

Yedrs Ended Dacember 31,
2012 201% 2010
Matural Gas Operations (continued}
Heating Degrea Days:™
Spokane, WA
Actual 6,256 6,861 6,320
30-year average £,676 6,647 5,647
% of averane 94% 103% 95%
Medford, OR
Actual 43142 4,634 4119
30-year average 4,422 4402 4402
% of average 9575 105% 84%

(1) Heating degree deys are the measure of the coldnass of weather axperienced, based on the extent to which the average of kigh snd low temperatures for a day fails

below 65 degrees Fahrenhait (annual degree days below historic indicate warmer than average temperatures).

Ecova

Ecova provides sustainable utiiity expense management and
energy management solutions to multi-site companies across Narth
America. Ecova’s inveice processing, auditing and payment services,
coupled with enargy procurement, comprehensive raporting and
advanced analysis, provide the critical data clients need to help bafance
the finaneial, social and environmentat aspects of doing business.

As part of the expense management services, Ecova analyzes and
audits invaices, then prasents consolideted bills an-ling, and pracesses
payments. Information gathered from invoices, providers and othar
customer-specific data allows Ecova to provide its clients with in-depth
analytical suppert, real-time reporting and consulting services.

Ecova alsa provides a wide array of energy efficiency program
management services to utilities across North America. As part of
these management services, Ecova helps utilities develop and
exetute energy efficiency programs and can pravide utilities with a
complete turn-key solution.

The following table presents key statistics for Ecova:

2012 2mMm A

Expense management
customers at year-end 740 645 534

Billed sites at year-end £97.078 496,842 360,596
Dollars of customer bills
processed [in billions) 3 194 § 183 § 17.3

Ecova's growth over the last saveral years inthe key statistics
listed above can be attributed to a combination of strategic acquisitions,
new services and growth ameng existing customers, additional
customers, and a high customer retention rate. Gn December 31, 2010,
Eceva acquired The Layalton Group, a Minneapolis-based energy
management firm that provided energy procurement and price risk
management sofutions. In January 2011, Ecova acquired Building
Knowiedgs Networks, a Seattle-based real-time buiiding energy
management services provider. In November 2011, Ecova acquired
Prenova, an energy management company headquartered in Atlanta,
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Georgia. kn January 2012, Ecova acquired LPB Energy Management
(LPB), an energy management company headquartered in Dallas, Texas.

The nancentrolling interest of Ecova twhich was 21.0 percent as of
December 31, 2012) is primarily held by the previous owners of Cadence
Netwaork, a company acquired by Ecova in 2008,

Other Businesses

The following takle shows our assets related 10 our other businesses
as of December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 2011

Spokane Energy S 54235 § 66317
Avista Energy 12,549 12,678
METALfx 11,773 11,919
Steam Plant and Courtyard Office Center 7172 7.3%
Dther s 13,835
Total 5 4B 8 112145

Spokane Energy is a special purpose limited liability company and
all of its membership capital is owned by Avista Corp. Spokane Energy
was formed in December 1998, to assume ownership of a fixed rate
electric capacity contract between Avista Corp. and Portland General
Electric Company. Of the total assets for Spokane Energy, the fixed rate
electricity capacity contract represents $52.0 million and $62.5 million
for 2012 and 2011, respectively and the likelihood of this asset being at
rigk of impairment is remote. In addition to the assets above, Spokane
Energy also has nonrecourse long-term debt gutstanding in the amount
of $32.8 million and $46.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respactively, related to the acnuisition of the fixed rate electric capacity
contract. The final payment is due in January 2015 and Spokane Energy
bears fult recourse risk for the debt. See "Note 14 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financiaf Statements” for further discussion regarding
this debt,

Avista Energy is a former electricity and natural gas marketing,
trading and resource management business, which was a subsidiary of
Avista Capital, This subsidiary has not been active since 2009; however,
it continues to incur legal fees as it defends its actions related to several
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legal proceedings including the Federal Enargy Regulatory Commission .

Inquiry, the California Refund Proceeding, the Pacific Northwest Refund
Proceeding, and the California Attorney General Complaint {the
*Lockyer Complaint”). See “Note 21 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements” for further detail regarding these legal
proceedings. The assets associated with Avista Energy are deferred tax
assets ralatad to its former operations.

Advanced Manufacturing and Development (AM&D} doing
business as METALfx performs custom sheet metal fabrication of
electronic enclosures, parts and systems for the computer,
construction, telecom, renewable energy and medical industries.

Steam Plant and Courtyard Office Center consist of real estate
investments [primarily commercial office buildings).

Our other investments and operations include:

» emerging technology venture capital funds, and
« residual ownership of 2 fuel cell business that was previously a
subsidiary of the Company.

Overtime as opportunities arise, we dispose of investments and
phase eut operations that do not fit with our overall corporate strategy.
However, we may invest incremental funds to protect our existing
investments and investin new businesses that we believe fit with our
overall corporatae strateqy.

We are focused on discovering new ways to accelerate growth for
Avigta Corp. within and adjacent to our core utility business and are
planning to spend $2.0 million to $3.0 million in 2013 explering
opportunities to develop new markets and ways for customers to use
electricity and natural gas for commerciat productivity and
transportation. We may alse make other targeted investments that will
help us gein strategic insights to build new growth platforms.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Risk Factors

Tha following facters ceufd have a significantimpact on our
operations, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
These factors could cause actual results or gutcomes to differ
materially from those discussed in our reports filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commigsion {including this Annual Report on Form 14-K),
and glsewhere. Plgase also see “Forward-Looking Statements” for
additional factors which could have a significantimpact on our
operations, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows and
could cause actugl results to differ materiglly from those anticipated in
such statements,

Weuther itemiperatures, precipitation levels and storms) has a
signiicant elfect on our results of operations, financial condition ant
cash flaws
Woeather impacts are described in the following subtopics:

+ retail electrigity and natural gas sales,

« the cost of natural gas supply,

« the cost of power supply, and

» damagesto facilities.

Cortain retail electricity and natural gas sales volumes vary
directly with changes in temperatures. We normally have our highest
retail {electric and natural gas) energy sales during the winter heating
season in the first and fourth quarters of the year. We alsa have high
electricity demand for air conditioning during the summer {third
guarter]. in general, warmer weather in the heating season and coolar
weathet in the cooling season will raduce our customers’ energy
demand and retail operating revenues.

The costof natural gas supply tends to increase with higher
demand during periods of cold weather. Increased costs adversely
affect cash flows when we purchase natural gas for retail supply at
prices above the amount then allowed for recovery in retail rates. We
defer differences between actual natural gas supply tosts and the
amount currently recovered in retail rates and we have generally been
allowed ta recover substantially all of these differences after regulatary
review. However, these deferred costs require cash outflows from the
time of natural gas purchases until the costs arg fater recovered through
retail sales.

The cost of power supply can be significantly impacted by
weather, Precipitation (consisting of snowpack, its water content and
melting pattern plus rainfalll and other streamflow conditions (such as
regional water storage operations) significantly affect hydroelectric
genaration ¢apability, Variations in hydroelectric generation inversely
affect our reliance on market purchases and thermal ganeration. To the
extent that hydroelectric generation is less than normal, significantly
more costly power supply resources must be acquired and the ability to
realize net benefits from surplus hydroelectric wholesale sales is
reduced. Wholesale prices also vary to a greater extent aach year based
enwind patterns as wind generation facilities have grown significantly
inthe region.

The price of power in the wholesale energy markets tends to be
higher during perieds of high regional demand, such as occurs with
temperature gxtremes. We may need to purchase powerin the
wholesale market during peak price periods. The price of natural gas as
fuel for natural gas-fired electric generation also tends to increase
during petiods of high demand which are often refated te temperature
extremes. Wa may need to purchase natural gas fuel in these periods of
high prices to meet electri¢ demands. The cost of power supply during
peak usage periods may be higher than the retail sales price orthe
amount allowed in retail rates by our regulators. To the extent that
power supply costs ara ahove the amount allowed currently in retail
rates, the difference is partially absarbed by the Comgpany in current
expense and itis partially deferred or shared with customers through
regulatory mechanisms.

As a result of these combined fagtors, our net cast of power
supply—the difference between our costs of generation and market
purchases, reduced by our revenug from wholesale sales—varies
significantly because of weather.

Damages 1o facilities may be caused by severe weather,
such as snow, ice or wind storms. The costto implement rapid
repair to such facilities can be significant. Overhead electric
lines are mest susceptibie to such severe weather. Collateral
damage from utility assets that are damaged by external forces
may result in third-party claims against the Company for
property damage and/or personal injuries.



Regulators may not grant rates that provide timely or suificient -
recovery of our costs or allow a reasonable rate of return for
our shareholders.

We have experienced higher cests for utility operations in each of
the fast several years. Wa have also made significant capital
investments inte utility plant assets. Our ability to recover these costs
depends on the amgunt and timeliness of retail rate changes allowed by
regulatory agencies. We expect to periedically file for rate increases
with regulatery agencies to recaver our costs and provide an
opportunity to earn a reascnable rate of return for shareholders. If
regulators grant substantiatly lower rate increases than our requests in
the feture or if deferred costs are disallowed, it could have a negative
effect on our operating revenues, netinceme and cash flows. In
addition, provisions to our approved settlementin the Washington
general rate cases in 2012 and gur proposed settlement to the ldaho
general rate cases in 2013, do not prevent us from filing general rate
cases in these two jurisdictions in 2014; however, new rates from these
general rate case filings would nottake effect prior to January 1, 2615,

Energy commadity price changes atfect our cash flows and results
of operations.

Energy commodity prices can be quite volatile. A combination of
factors exposes our pperations to commodity price risks. We refy on
energy markets and other counterparties for energy supply, surplus and
pptimization transactions and commadity price hedging. These factors
include:

* Qurobligation to serve our retail customers at rates setthrough
the requiatory process. We cannot change retail rates to reflect
current energy prices unless and until we receive regulatory
approval,

+ Customer demand, which is beyond our contrel because of
weather, customer choices, prevailing economic conditions and
other factors.

+ Some of our energy supply cost is fixed by nature of the energy-
producing assets or through contractual arrangements. However,
a significant portion of our energy resource costs are not fixed,

Because we must supply the amount of energy demanded by our
customers and we must sell it at fixed rates and only a portion of our
erergy supply costs are fixed, we are subject to the risk of buying
energy at higher prices in wholesale energy markets {and the risk of
selling energy atlower prices if we are in a surplus position). Electricity
and natural gas in wholesale markets are commodities with historicaily
high price volatility, Changes in wholesale energy prices affect, among
ather things, the cash requirements to purchase electricity and natural
gas for retail customers or wholesale obligations and the market value
of derivative assets and liabilities.

When we enter into fixed price energy commodity transactions for
future delivery, we are subject to creditterms that may require usto
pravide collateral to wholesate counterparties related to the difference
between current prices and the agreed upon fixed prices. These
collateral requirements can place significant demands on our ¢ash flows
or borrowing arrangements. Price volatility can cause collaterat
requirements to change quickly and significantly.

Cash flow deferrals refated to energy commadities can be
significant. We are permitted to collect from customers only amounts
approved by regutatory commissions. However, our costs to provide
energy service can be much higher or lower than the amounts currantly
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hilled to customers, We are permitted to defer most of this difference
for review by the regulatory commissions wha have discretion as to the
extent and timing of future recovery or refund to customers.

Power and natural gas costs higher than those recovered in retail
rates reduce cash flows. Amounts that are not alfowed for deferral or
which arg not approved to become part of customer rates affect gur
results of operations.

We defer income statement recognition and recovery from
customers of certain power and naiural gas costs that are higher or
lower than whatis currently authorized in retail rates by regulators.
These power and natural gas costs are recerded as deferrad charges
with the oppartunity for future recovery through retail rates. These
deferred costs are subject to review for prudence and potential
disaliowance by reguiators.

{Jespite the opportunity to recaver deferred power and natural gas
costs, pur pperating cash flows can be negatively affected until these
costs are recovered from customers.

Qur energy resource rish management processes can cause volatility
in our cash flows and resulis of operations,

We engage in active hedging and resource optimization
practices hut we cannot and do not attempt ta fully hedge our energy
resource assets or our forecasted net positions for various time
horizons. To reduce energy cost volatility and economic exposure
related to commodity price fluctuations, we routinely enter into
contracts to hedge a portion of our purchase and sala commitments
for electricity and natural gas, as well a5 forecasted excess or deficit
energy positions and inventories of natural gas. We use physical
energy contracts and derivative instruments, such as forwards,
futures, swaps and options traded in the over-the-counter markets or
on exchanges. We do not covar the entire market price volatility
axposure far our forecasted net positions. To the extent we have
positions that are not hedged, or if hedging positions do not fully
match the correspanding purchase or sale, fluctuating commedity
prices could have a material effect on our operating revenues,
resource ¢osts, defivative assets and liabilities, and operating cash
flows. In addition, actual lpads and resources typically vary from
farecasts, sometimes to a significant degree, which require additionat
transactions or dispatch decisions that impact cash flows.

The hedges we enter into aré reviewed for prudence by the
various regulators and any deferrad costs (including those as a result of
our hedging transactions} are subject to review for prudence and
potential disallowance by regutators.

We rely on regular access to financial markets but we cannot assure
tavorable or reasonable financing terms will be availahle when we
newd them,

Access to capital markets is critical to our operations and our
capital structure. We have significant capital requirements that we
expectto fund, in part, by accessing capital markets. As such, the state
of financial markets and credit availability in the glebal, United States
and regional economies impacts our financial condition. We could
experience increased borrowing ¢0sts or limited access to capital on
reasonable terms.

We access long-term capital markets to finance capital
expenditures, repay maturing long-term debt and obtain additional
warking capital from time to time. Our ability to access capital on
reasonable terms is subject to numerous factors and market conditians,
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many of which are beyond our control, If we are unable to obtain capital
on reasonable terms, it may limit or prohibit our ability to finance capital
expendituras and repay maturing long-term debt. Qur liquidity needs
could exceed our short-term credit avaitabifity and lead te defauits on
various financing arrangements, We would also likely be prohibited from
paying dividends en our commen steck,

Performance of the financial markets could also resultin
significant declines in the market values of assets held by our pension
plan and/for a significant increase in the pension liability (which impacts
the funded status ofthe plan) and could increase future funding
obfigations and pension expense.

We rely on credit from financial institutions for short-ferm borrowings

We need adequate levels of credit with financial institetions
for short-term liquidity. We haye a $460.0 million committad ling of
cradit that is scheduled to expire in Febreary 2017. There is no
assurance that we will have access to credit beyond the expiration
date. The committed line of ¢redit agreement contains customar;y
covenants and default provisions. |n the event of default, it would be
dificult for us to obtain financing on reasonable terms to pay
creditors or fund operations. We would also likely be prohibited
from paying dividends on our commen stack.

In July 2012, Ecova entered into a $125.0 million committed line of
credit agreament with various financial institutions that replaced its
$60.0 million committed iine of credit agreement and has an expiration
date of July 2017, There is na assurance that we will have accassto
credit beyond the expiration date. The committed fine of credit
agreemnent tontains customary covenants and default provisions, end
kasad on certain cavenant conditions contained in the credit
agreement, at December 31, 2012, Ecova could borrow an additianal
$5.6 million and stilt be compliant with the covenants, The covenant
restrictions are calculated en a rolling twelve month basis, so this
additional borrowing capacity could increase or decrease or Ecova
could be required to pay down the outstanding debt as future results
change. See further discussion of the specific covenamsin “tem 7
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Ecova Credit Agreement.” In the event of
default, it would be difficult for Ecova to obtain financing on reasonshle
terms to pay creditars or fund operations.

Downgrades in our credit ratings could impede our ability ta obitain
financing. advessely affect the terms of financing and impact our abifity
to transact for or hedge energy resaurces.

If we do not maintain our investment grade credit rating with the
major credit rating 2gencies, we ¢ould expect increased debt service
costs, limitations on our ability to access capital markets or obtain ather
finaneing on reasgnable terms, and requiraments to provide coltateral
(in the form of cash ar [etters of credit] to lenders and counterparties. In
addition, credit rating downgrades could reduce the number of
counterparties willing to do business with us.

We are subject io various operational and event risks that are
associated with the utilivy industry.
Our utility operations are subjectto operational and event risks
that include:
» biackouts or disruptions to distribution, transmission or
transportation systems,
« forced outages at generating plants,

« fuel cost and availability, including delivery constraints,

« gxplosions, fires, accidents, or mechanical breakdowns that may
occur while operating and maintaining our generation,
transmigsion and distribution systems, and

» natural disasters that can disrupt energy generation, transmission
and distribution.

As protection against operational and event risks, we maintain
insurange coverage against seme, but not all, potential losses and we
seek to negatiate indemnification arrangements with contractors for
certain event risks. However, insurance or indemnification agreements
may not be adequate to protect us against liability, extra expenses and
operating disruptions fram all of the operational and event risks
described above. In addition, we are subject to the risk that insuiers
and/or other parties will dispute or be unzble to perform on their
obligations te us.

Ecova may be unable te attain the level or timeliness of growth
we expect.

Ecova's operations involve several recent acquisitions and may
include other acquisitions as opportunities warrant. There are various
uncertainties involved with assimilating acquired operations, achieving
revenue growth and operating synergies in acquired operations. Ecova's
organic growth and its ability to manage costs with the dyramics of
growth and emerging business processes make it more difficult to
accurately forecast cash flows end results of operations. As a result,
earnings may be mora volatile and cash flows may be irreqular in this
husiness segment,

Cyber attacks, terrerism or other malicious acts could disrupt aur
businesses and have a negalive impact on ¢ur resuits of operations and
cash flows.

In the course of our operations, we raly on intercannected
technology systems for operation of our generating plants, electric
transmission and distribution systems, natural gas distribution systems,
customer billing and custemer service, accounting and other
administrative processes and compliance with various regulations.
There are various risks associated with technology systems such as
hardware or spftware failure, communications failure, data distortion or
destruction, unauthorized access to data, misuse of proprietary or
cenfidential data, unauthorized control through electronic means,
programming mistakes and other deliberate or inadvertent human
errors. In particular, cyber attacks, terrorism or other malicious acts
could damage, destroy or disrupt these systems. Any failure of
technology systems could resultin a loss of operating revenuss, an
increase in operating expenses and costs to repair or replace damaged
assets, Any of the ahove could also resultin the less or release of
cenfidential customer information or other proprietary data that could
adversely affact our reputation and resultin costly litigation. As these
potential cyber attacks become more comman &nd sophisticated, we
cauld be required to incur costs to strengthen our systems and respond
to emerging concerns.

We are currently the subject of several regulatory proceedings, and we
are named in multiple tawsuits related to our participation in western
efergy markets,

Threugh our utility operations and the prioT operatiens of Avista
Energy, we are involved in a number of legal and regulatery proceadings
and complaints related to energy markets in the western United Statas,
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Most of these proceedings and complaints relate te the significant
increase in the spot market price of energy in 2008 and 2001. This
allegedly contributed to or caused unjust and unreasonable prices.
Thaese proceedings and eomplaints include, but are not limited to:

* refund proceedings in California and the Pacific Northwest,

» marketf congduct investigations by the FERC, and

» complaints filed by various parties related to alleged misconduct

by parties in western power markets.

As a rosult of these proceedings and complaints, certain parties
have asserted claims for significant refunds end damages fram s,
which could resultin a negative effect on our results of operations and
¢ash flows, See “Note 21 of the Notes to Conselidated Financial
Statements” for further information.

There have been numeraus recent changes in legislation, related
adntinistrative rulemaking, and Executive Drders, including periodic
audits of cempliance with such rules, which may adversely affect our
operational and financial performance.

We expect to continue to be affected by fegislation at the national,
state and local level, as well as by administrative rules and requirements
published by government agencies, including but not limited to the FERC,
the EPA and state regulators. We arg alse subjectto NERC and WECC
reliability standards. The FERC, the NERC and the WECL may perform
periodic audits of the Company. Failure to comply with the FERC, the
NERC, or the WECC requiremants can result in financial penaltias of up
to $1 million per day per viclation.

Future legisiation or administrativa rules could have a material
adverse effect on our operations, results of operatians, financial
condition and cash flows.

Actions er limntatians to adidress cancerns over long-term ylobal
climate changes may affect our operations apd financial performance.

Legislative developments and advocacy atthe state, national and
intarnationai levels concerning climate change and other environmental
issues may have significantimpacts on our operations. The efectric
utility industry is one of the largest and most immediate industries to be
mora heavily regulated in some proposals, For example, various
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legislative propasals have been made to limit or place further
restrictions on byproducts of combustion, including sulfur diexide,
nitragen oxide, carbon dioxide, and other greenhouse gases and
mercury emissions. Such proposals, if adopted, could restrict the
operation and raise the cost of our powar generation resources.

We expect continuing activity in the future and we are evaluating
the extent that patential changes to environmental taws and
regulations may:

+ increase the operating costs of generating plants,

* increase the lead time and capital costs for the construction of
new generating plants,

« require medification of our existing generating plants,

¢ require existing generating plant operations tg he curtailed er shut
down,

* reduce the amount of enargy available from aur generating plants,

» restrictthe types of ganerating plants that can be built or
contracted with, and

* require construction of specific types of genaration plants at
higher cost.

We have contingent Habilities, including certain matiers related to
pofential environmental labilities, and capnot predict the outcome of
these matters.

In the normal course of our business, we have matters that are the
subject of ongoeing litigation, mediation, investigation andfor negotiation,
We cannot predict the uitimate outcome or potential impact of any
particular issue, including the extent, if any, of insurance coverage or
that amounts payable by us may be recoverable through the ratemaking
process. We are subjact to environmental regulation by federal, state
and local autharities related to our past, present and future operatiens.
See “Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for
further details of these matters.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

As of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have
no unraselved comments from the staff of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.



ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Avista Utilities

Substantiaily all of our utiliey properties are subject to the lien of our mortgage indenture,

Our utility electric properties, Jocated in the states of Washington, [daho, Montana and Oregon, include the following:

GENERATION PROPERTIES
Nameplate Present
No. of Rating  Capability
Units (MW (M)
Hydroslectric Generating Stations (River)
Washington:
Long Lake (Spokans) 4 700 88.0
Little Falls (Spokane} 4 320 356
Nine Mile {Spokane) 4 2.4 224
Upper Falls {Spokane} 1 100 10.2
Monroe Streat {Spokane) 1 148 150
ldaho:
Cahinet Gorge {Clark Fork) © 4 265.0 773t
Post Falls [Spokane) 6 14.8 154
Montana:
Noxon Rapids (Clark Fork} 5 4806 5624
Tatal Hydroalectsic 9136 10220
Thermal Generating Stations
Washington:
Kettlg Falls GS 1 50.7 535
Kettle Falis CT 1 7.2 69
Northeast CT 2 61.8 648
Boulder Park 6 248 240
idaha:
Rathdrum CT 2 186.5 166.5
Montana;
Colstrip Units 3and 4 ™ 2 2334 2220
Oregon:
Coyote Springs 2 1 2870 284.4
Total Thermal 8312 8221
Total Generation Properties 17448 18441

1} Nameplate fating, afso referrad to as “instalied capacity,” is the manufacturar’s assigned power capability under specified conditians.

{2} Pressnt capability is the maxinum capacity of the plant under standard test canditions without exceeding specified limits of temperature, stress and envirenmental

conditions. Information is provided as of December 31, 2012,

{31 The present capability of Cabinet Garge is limited by our water rights. This output leve! reflegts the maximum capability within aur water sights. When river flows exceed

these water rights limits, we are permitted to increase flow through the plant resolting in up to 265 M.
{8 Jowlly ownath data refers to our 15 percent interest.

{5/ There are currently four units at the Nine Mile plant; however, the present capability is limited due 1o @ mechanical failure of Units 1 snd 2. A project is underway to

replace these units and restere capability. The namaplata rating of the twe remaining units is 18 MW.
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Electric Distribution and Transmission Plant

We own and operate approximately 18,600 miles of primary and
secondary electric distribution lings providing service to retail
custemers. We have an electric transmission system of 685 miles of 230
kV line and 1,534 milas of 115 kY line. We also own an 11 parcent interest
in approximately 500 miles of 500 kV line between Colstrip, Montana
and Townsend, Montana. Our transmission and distribution systems
alsp include numerous substations with transformers, switches,
mon/toring and metering devices, and other equipment,

The 230 kV lings are the backbone of our transmission grid and are
used 1o transmit power from generation rasources, including Naxen
Rapids, Cabinet Gorge and the Mid-Columbia hydroelectric projects, to
the major Ioad centers in our service area, as well as to transfer power
hetween points of interconnection with adjoining electric transmission
systems. These lines interconnect at varicus locations with the
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), Grant County PUD, PacifiCarp,
NorthWestern Energy and |daho Power Company and serve as points of
defivery for power from generating facilities outside of owr service area,
including Calstrip, Coyote Springs 2 and the Lancaster Plant.

These lings also provide a means for us to optimize resources by
entering into short-term purchases and sales of power with entities
within and eutside of the Pagific Northwest.

The 115 kV lines provide for transmission of energy and the
integration of smaller generation facilities with our service-area load
ceaters, including the Spokane River ydraelectric projects, the Kettle
Falls projects, Rathdrum CT, Boulder Park and the Northeast CT. These
lines interconnect with the BPA, Chelan County PUD, the Grand Loulee
Project Hydroelectric Autherity, Grant County PLID, NorthWestern
Energy, PacifiCorp and Pend Orgille County PUD, Both the 115kV and
230 kV interconnections with the BPA ara used to transfer energy to
facilitate service to each other's customers that are connected through
the other’s transmission system. We hold a long-term transmission
agreement with the BPA that allows us to serve our native load
customers that are connected through the BPA's transmission system.

Natural Gas Plant

We have naturat gas distribution mains of approximately 3,400
miles in Washington, 1,978 miles in ldaho and 2,300 miles in Oregon,
We have natural gas transmission mains of approximately 75 miles in
Washington and 40 miles in Oregen. Our natural gas system includes
numercus regulator stations, service distribution lines, monitoring and
metering devices, and other equiprent,

We own a one-third interestin the Jackson Prairie Naturat Gas
Storage Project{Jackson Prairie}, an underground natural gas storage
field lecated near Chehalis, Washington. Jackson Prairie has a tetal
peak day deliverability of 11.5 million therms, with a total working

AyisTa

natural gas capacity of 253 million therms. Dur share of the peak day
deliverability and total working capacity is one-third of thess. Natural
gas storage enables us to place natural gas into storage when prices
arg lower or to satisfy minimum natural gas purchasing requirements, as
well as to maat high demand periods or to withdraw naturai gas from
storage when spot prices are highsr.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See “Nota 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for
infermation with respect to legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

PART |l

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON
EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Qur comman stock is currently listed on the Mew York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol “AVA”". As of January 31, 2013, thare
ware 10,083 registered sharsholders of our common stock.

The Board of Directors considers the level of dividends on our
common stock on a regular basis, taking into account numerqus factors
including, without limitation;

* ourresults of operations, cash flows and finangial condition,
+ the success of our business strategies, and
+ general economic and competitive conditians.

Our netincome available for dividends is ganarally derived from
our regulated utility operations,

The payment of dividends on commaon stock is restricted by
provisions of certain covenants applicable to preferred stack (when
outstanding) contained in eur Restated Articles of Incorporation, as
amended.

Dn February 8, 2013, Avista Corp.'s Board of Directors declared a
quarterly dividend of $0.305 per share on the Company's common stock.
This was an increase of $0.015 per share, or 5 percent from the previous
quarterly dividend of §6.29 per share.

Far additional information, see “Notes 1, 18, 19 and 20 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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The following table presents quarterly high and low stock prices as reported on the consolidated reporting system, as well as dividend information:

Three Months Ended
March June  September  December
N 30 30 3
w2
Dividends paid per commen share $ 0.2 0.29 0.29 029
Trading price range per commen share:
High ' $ 2638 2 .05 %77
Low 8 2448 24.95 .07 18
2011
Dividends paid per commen share § 0.275 0.275 0.215 0.275
Trading price range per commaon share:
High $ 2369 25.83 26.53 26.35
Low s 21.78 28 2113 2314

Farinformation with respect to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, see “Item 12. Security Dwnership of Certain

Beneficial Gwners and Managament and Related $Stockholder Matters.”

AVISETA b A7

o8



ITEM &.

Selected Financial Data

Avists Corperation
{in thousands, except per share data and ratios)
Years Ended Decamber 31,
2012 2m 2019 2009 2008

OGperating Revenues:

Avista Utilities S 1354085 $§ 1443322 & 1419846 § 1395201 § 1572664

Ecova 195 664 137,843 102,085 11278 59,085

Gther 35953 40410 61,067 40,088 45014

Intersagment eliminations 11 8001 {1,800} (24,008} — —

Total $ 1547002 § 1619780 & 1556740 § 1512565 § 1676763
Income {Loss} from Operations {pre-tax):

Avista Utilities® S 17§ 202373 0§ 198200 § t8em & 170067

Ecova 2972 2097 15,865 11,603 11,297

Other® _BED; 4714 5,669 (1,103} {1,454)

Tatal S 190070 3 228004 5 219734 % 193011 § 179910
Netincome $ 76800 § 103539 § 0 M8 § 8858 § 74757
Net income attributabile to noncontrolling interests g i590) § {3315) § [2,523) § {1.577) § {1,137)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Avista Corporaticn shareholders:

Avista Utilities $ 108§ 209502 $ 86681 § g6744 $ 70,032

Ecova 18 9671 7433 5,323 6,090

Other t5,319) {349) {1,689} {5,002) {2,502}

Total S 73710 $ 100224 § 92425 § 8107 § 736N
Average common shares outstanding—basic ny 028 57872 55,595 54,604 53,637
Average cormmon shares outstanding—diluted 59,201 58,092 5h,B24 54,942 54,028
Comman shares outstanding at year-end 53213 58423 57,120 54,837 54,488
Earnings per Common Share Attributable
fo Avista Corporation shareholders:

Diluted s 1§ 172 & 165 § 158 $ 1.36

Basic § 7 Tim o 173 § 166§ 159 § 1.37
Dividends paid per common share $ 16§ 110§ 100 § 081 § 069
Book value per comman share at year-end S 2106 § 2030 § 1971 § %19 8 18.30
Total Asseis at Year-End:

Avista Utilities 33894821 § 3809446 § 3589235 § 3400334 § 3434844

Ecova 3227800 292,940 221,086 143,060 125911

Qther 4k B3 112,145 129,774 63515 69,992

Total S 4312179 $ 421453 § 3940095 $ 3606950 § 3630747
Long-Term Debt (including current portion) E_T 1,248 ?.SE $ 1017300 & 1101857 $ 1LGM338 § 826465
Nonrecourse Long-Ferm Debt of Spokane S

Energy {including current portion)" 3 333 % HAT § 58934 § - & —
Lang-Term Debt to Affiliated Trusts § 51547 § 51547 § 51547 § 51547 § N340
Total Avista Corporatien Stockholders' Equity S 1ZR3477 % 1185701 $ 1125784 § 1051287 § 996,883
Ratio of Farnings to Fixed Charges® 227 306 2.85 295 243

{1} Spoksne Energy was consolidated effective Janvary 1, 2010. See “Note 3 of the Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements.”

{2l Sea Exhibit 12 for computations,

{3} Incluges an immaterial corection of an error related to the reclassification of certain operating expenses from other expense-net te other operating expenses. This

correction ditd not have an impact on net incofne OF eamings per share. See “Nota 1 of the Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements™ for further informstion regarding

this reclassification.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Busingss Segments

We have two reportable business segments as follows:

* Avista Utilities—an operating division of Avista Corp. that
comprises our regulated utility operations. Avista Utilities
generates, transmits and distributes electricity and distributes
natural gas. The utility also engages in wholesale purchases and
sales of electricity and natural ges.

» Ecova—anindirect subsidiary of Avista Corp. (79.0 percent owned
as of Decembar 31, 2012} provides energy efficiency and cost
management programs and services for multi-site customers and
utilities throughout North America. Ecova’s service lines include
expense management services for utility and telecom needs as
well as strategic energy management and efficiency services that
include procurement, canservation, performance reporting,
financial planning, facility eptimization and continuous manitoring,
and energy efficiency program management for commercial
enterprises and utilities.

We have other businesses, including sheet metal fabrication,
venture fund investments and real estate investments, as well as
certain other operations of Avista Capital. These activities do aat
represent a reportable business segment and are conducted by various
direct and indirect subsidiaries of Avista Corp., including AM&D, doing
business as METALfx.

The following table presents nat income {Joss) attributable to Avista
Corp. shareholders for each of our businass segments (and the other
husinesses) for the year ended December 31 {dollars in thousands):

2012 20m 2010
Avista Utilitigs $ 31702 § g2 $ 86,691
Ecova 1825 961 1433
Other i5,519) {349) {1,639)
Net income attributable
to Avista Corporation
shargholders S 7810 § 10024 § 92425

Executive Level Summary

Dversh

Netinceme attributable to Avista Corporation shareholders was
$78.2 million far 2012, a decrease from $100.2 million for 2011, This was
dueto a decrease in earnings at each of our businesses. Earnings at
Avista Utilities decreased primarily due to reduced retail foads during
the first and fourth quarters of the year {as a result of warmer weather|
and due in partto fower usage at certain industrial customers, due to
temporary eperational challenges. In addition, there were increases in
other operating expenses {including costs under a voluntary severance
incentive pregram), and depreciation and amortization, partially offset
by the implementation of general rate increases. Netincome at Ecova
decreased a& revenue growth for the expense and data management
sarvices and energy management services at Ecova was not as high as
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expected and did not offset increased oparating costs. In addition,
Ecova's earnings were raduced by increased costs associated with
completing and integrating the acquisitions of Prencva and LPB and an
increase in depreciation and amortization. Netincome at other
subsidiaries decreased due losses on investments, inclusive of an
impairment foss recognized during the third quarter, increased costs
assotiated with strategic consulting and other corporate costs, and
increased litigation costs related ta the previgus aperations of Avista
Energy. These losses were partially offset by pasitive earnings at
METALfx. Thesa results, including a quantification of their respective
impacts, are discussed in detail below.

Avista Utilities
Avista Utilities is our most significant business seqment. Our utility
financial performance is depengant upon, among other things:

« weather conditions,

* regulatory decisions, allowing our utility to recover costs,
inctuding purchased power and fuel costs, on a timely basis, and to
earn a reasonable return on investment,

* the price of natural gas in the wholesale market, including the
effect on the price of fuel for generation, and

= the price of elactricity in the wholesale market, including the
effects of weather conditions, natural gas prices and other factors
affecting supply and demand.

Basad on aur ferecasts far our utility operations for 2013 through
2016, we expect annual electric customer growth to average 0.7 percent
to 1.3 percent per year and annual natural gas customer growthte
average 0.7 percent to 1.§ percent within our service area, We
anticipate retail electric load growth to average betwaen 0.7 percent
and 1.0 percent and natural gas load growth to average between 0.7
percent and 1.4 percent. We anticipate customer and load growth atthe
lower end of the range in 2013 and a modest recovery as the econamy
strengthens during the four-year period. White the number of efectric
and natyral gas customers is growing, the average annual usege by
each residential customer has net changed significantly. For further
discussion regarding utility custamer growth, load growth, and the
general economic conditions in our service territery, see “Economic
Cenditions and Utility Load Growth™.

In our utility eperations, we regularly review the need for rate
changes in each jurisdiction to improve the recovery of costs and capital
investments in our generation, transmission and distribution systems.
General rate increases went intg effect in Idaho on October 1, 2011, in
Washington on January 1, 2012, and in Oregen effective March 15, 2011,
June 1, 2011 and June 1, 2032. On October 1%, 2012 we filed electric and
natural gas general rate increase requests in ldaho, which are currently
the subject of a settiement that is before the IPUC for approval {see
discussion below under “Idaho General Rate Cases”}. In December
2012, the UTC approved a settlement agreementin our Washington
general rate cases, which were originally filed on April 2, 2012, that
provides for electric and natural gas rate increases effective January 1,
2013 and January 1, 2014,

We are making significant capital investments in generation,
transmission and distribution systems to preserve and enhance service
reliability for our customers and replace aging infrastructure. Utifity
capital expenditures were $271.2 million for 2012. We expect utility
capital expenditures to be about $260 million for each of 2013 and 2014,
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These estimates of capital expenditures are subject to continuing
review and adjustment {see discussion under “Avista Utilities Capitat
Expenditures™).

On October 22, 2812, we announced a voluntary severance
incentive program to reduce our total utility workforce and achieve
necessary long-term, sustainable, Eompany-wide savings, in addition to
other cost saving measures.

Based onthe response to the program by interested employees
and the approvals by Company management the program resulted in the
termination of 55, or appreximately § percent, of the eligible 919
non-unigh employees, and the total severance costs under the program
were 37.3 million {pre-tax}. The long-term operating and maintenance
cost savings under the program are expected to exceed the severance
costs of the program and the expected payback period for the severance
costs will be approximately 1.4 years.

All terminations under the voluntary severance incentive program
were completed by December 31, 2812, The cost of the program was
recognized &s expense during the fourth quarter of 2012 and severance
pay was distributedin a single lurmp sum cash payment to each
participant during January 2013.

Anagreement with one of our largest elactric customers, which
cansumes approximately 100 aMWSs per year, is expiring on June 30,
2013. We are currently renegotiating a new agreement with this
customer thatis expected to become effective July 1, 2013, The new
agreement will be subject to approval from the IPUC ance itis finalized.
We would expect to receive ragulatory recovery of any changes in costs
ar revenues refated te the agreement.

Euava

On November 30, 2011, Ecova acquired Prenova, an Atlanta-based
energy management company. The cash paid far the acquisition of
Prenova of $35.7 million was funded primarily through borrowings under
Ecova's committed credit agreement.

On January 31, 2012, Ecova acquired LPB, a Dallas-based energy
management company. The cash paid for the acquisition of LPB of $50.6
mitlion was funded by Ecova through $25.0 million of borrowings under
its committed credit agreement, a $20.0 million equity infusion from
existing shareholders {including Avista Capital and the other owners of
Ecova), and available cash.

While these acquisitions have grown the overail cost structure for
Ecova for 2012, they have also increased both operating revenues and
Ecova's market share and will allow Ecova o offer its clients a broader
range of services which should lead to potential future earnings growth
as the acquisitions are integrated with Ecova's operations.

The acquisition of Cadence Network in July 2008 was funded by
issuing additional Ecova commaon stock. Under the transaction
agreement, the previous owners of Cadence Netwaork had a right to
have their shares of Ecova common stock redeemed by Ecova during
July 2011 or July 2012 if their investment in Ecova was not liguidated
through either an initial public offering ur safe of the business to a third
party. These redemption rights were not exercised and expired effective
July 31, 2012 and were reclassified to permanent equity, which resulted
in a decrease of $41.6 million in redeemable noncontrolling interests
from December 31, 201,

The value of the remaining redeemable noncontrolling interests in
Ecova associated with redeemable stock aptions and other outstanding
redeemable stock was $4.9 million at December 31, 2012, a decrease
from $12.8 million at December 31, 2011, Options are valued at their
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maximimm redemption ameuntwhich is equal to their intrinsic value
(fair valua tass exercise pricel. During 2012, the estimated fair valye of
Ecova common stock decreased such thatitis closer to the exercise
price of the optiens which reduced the overall value of the redeemable
noncontrelling interests down to their currant value.

Ecova plans to continue to grow erganically and possibly through
sirategic acquisitions, Ecova’s acquisitions after 2008 have been funded
through internally generated cash, borrewings under Ecova’s credit
facility and, in the case of LPB, an equity infusion from existing
shareholders. If Ecova's capital needs exceed its credit facility capacity
or management determines a different capital structure is necessary,
Ecova may require additional equity infusions from existing
sharaholders and/or new funding seurces.

We may seek to monetize all or part of our investment in Ecovain
the future. The value of a potential monatization depends on future
market conditions, growth of the business and other factors. A strategic
change to Ecava's ownership structere may provide access to public
market capital and provide potential liquidity to Avista Corp. and the
ather owners of Ecova. There can be no assurance that such a
transaction will be completed.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

We have a committed line of credit with various financial
institutions in the total ameunt of $400.0 million with an expiration date
of February 2017. As of December 31, 2012, there were $52.0 million of
cash horrowings and $35.9 million in letters of credit outstanding
leaving $312.1 million of avaitable liquidity under this lina of credit.

In July 2012, Ecova entered into a five-year $125.0 mitlion
cammittad line of credit agreemant with varigus financial institutions
that replaced its $60.0 million committed lina of credit agreement. As of
December 31, 2012, Ecova had $54.0 million of borrowings outstanding
under its committed line of cradit agreement. Based on certain covenant
conditions contained in the credit agreement, at December 31, 2012,
Ecova could barrow an additional $5.6 million and still be compliant with
the covenants, The covenant restrictions are calculated on aralling
twelve month basis, so this additienal borrowing capacity could
increase or decrease o7 Ecova could be required to pay down the
vutstanding debt as future results change. We expect Ecova's earnings
toincrease inthe future, so we expect the excess borrowing capacity to
increase as wall. See further discussion of the specific covenants below
under "Ecova Credit Agreement™.

In November 2012, we issued $80.0 million of 4.23 percent First
Mortgage Bonds due in 2047 as an obligation of Avista Corp. Net total
praceeds from the sale of the new bonds were used to rapay a portien of
the borrowings outstanding under our $400.0 million committed line of
credit and for general ¢orporate purposes. There are $30.0 million in
First Mortgage Bonds maturing in 2013 and we expect to issve up to
$100 million of long-term debt during the second half of 2013,

In May 2012, we cash settled interestrate swap contracts
{notional amount of $75.¢ million} and paid a totat of $18.5 million. The
interest rate swap contracts were settled in connection with the pricing
of $80.0 million of First Mortgage Bonds as described above. Upon
settlement of the interest rate swaps, the regulatary asset er liability
lincluded as part of long-term debt) is amortized as a component of
interest expense over the life of the forecasted interest payments.

In August 2012, we entered into twe sales agency agreements
under which we may issue up to 2.7 million shares of our common
stock from time to time. In 2012, we sold 0.9 million shares and

45



recgived net proceeds of $23.4 million {net of issuance costs).
As of December 31, 2012, we had 1.8 million shares available to be
issued under thase agreements.

In 2012 we received net proceeds of $29.1 million tnet of issuance
costs) by issuing comman stock, including $23.4 miltion under our sales
agency agreements. During 2013, we expact to issue up to $50 million of
common stock in order to maintain our capital structure atan
appropriate level for our business. After considering the issuances of
long-term debt and common stock during 2013, we expect net cash
flows fram operating activities, together with ¢ash avaitable under our
$400.0 million committed line of credit agreement, to provide adequate
resources 1o fund capital expenditures, dividends, and nther
contractual commitments.

Avista Utilties—Regulatory Matters

General Rate Cases
We regularly review the need for electric and natural gas rate
changes in each state in which we provide service. We will continue to
file for rate adjustmants to:
 provide for recavery of operating coests and capital investments,
and
+ provide the oppertunity to improve our earned returns as allowed
by regulatars.

With regards to the timing and plans for future filings, the
assessment of our need for rate relief and the development of rate case
plans takes into consideration short-tarm and long-term needs, as well
as specific factors that can affect the timing of rate filings. Such
factars include, but are not limited to, in-service dates of major capital
investments and the timing of changes in major revenue and expense
iterns. We filed general rate cases in Washington in May 2011 (which
were settled with new rates effective January 1, 2012 and in ldaho in
July 201% (which were settled with new rates effective October 1,
2011]. We filed general rate cases in Washingtonin April 2012 {which
were settled with new rates effective January 1, 2013 and Janvary 1,
2014) ang Idaho in October 2012 (which are the subject of a settlement
thatis before the IPUC (see discussion below under “ldaho General
Rate Cases” M.

Washington General Rale Dases

In November 2010, the UTC approved an all-party settlement
stipulation in our general rate case filed in March 2010 As agreed to in
the settlement stipulation, electric rates for Washington customers
increased by an average of 7.4 percent, which was designed to increase
annual revenues by $29.5 miltien. Natural gas rates for Washington
tustomers increased by an average of 2.9 percent, which was designed
o incresase annual evenuss by 54,6 million. The new electric and
natural gas rates became effective on December 1, 2010.

tn December 2011, the UTC approved a settlement agreement in
our edectric and natural gas generat rate cases filed in May 2011, As
agreed to in the settiemant agreement, base electric ratas for our
Washington customers increased by an average of 4.6 percent, which
was designed to increase annual revenues by $20.0 million. Base natural
gas rates fpr our Washington customers increased by an average of 2.4
percent, which was designed to increase annual revenues by §3.75
million, The new electric and natural gas rates became effective an
January 1, 2012
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The settlement agreement provided for the deferral of certain
generation plant maintenance cests. In arder to address the variability
in year-to-year maintenance costs, beginning in 2011, we deferred
certain changes in maintenance cests related to our Coyote Springs 2
natural gas-fired generation plant and aur 15 percent awnership interest
in Units 344 of the Colstrip generation plant. These maintenance costs
may be much higher in certain years because certain significant
maintenance procedures are less frequent than annual and, therefore,
may not he properly represented in test year expenses used in our filed
rate requests. For 2011 and 2012 the Company compared actual,
non-fuel, maintenance expanses for the Coyote Springs 2 and Colstrip
plants with the amaunt of baseline maintenance expenses used to
establish base retail rates, and deferred the difference. This defarrat
occurred annually, with no ¢arrying charge, with deferred costs being
amortized over a four-year period, beginning in the year following the
period costs are deferred. The amount of expense to be reguested for
recovery in future general rate cases would be the agtual maintenance
expense recorded inthe test period, less any amount deferred during
the test peripd, plus the amertization of previously deferred costs. Total
net deferred costs under this mechanism in Washington were a
requiatory asset of 34.0 million as of December 31, 2012 comparedto a
requlatory liability of $0.5 million as of December 31, 2011. As part of the
settlement agreement in Octaber 2012 to our fatest general rate case
discussed in further detail below, the parties have agreed that the
maintenance cost deferral mechanism on these generation plants will
terminate on December 31, 2012, with the four-year amortization of the
2011 and 2012 deferrals to concfude in 2015 and 2016, respectively.

In December 2012, the UTC approved a settlement agreement in
our electric and natural gas ganetal rate cases fited in April 2012. As
agreed to in the settlement, effective January 1, 2013, base rates for our
Washington electric customers increased by an overall 3.0 percent
{designed to increase annual revenues by $13.6 million}, and base rates
for our Washington natural gas customers increased by an overall 3.6
percent (designed to increase annual revenues by $5.23 million). The
settling parties agree that a one-year credit of $4.4 million will he
returned to electric customers from the existing Energy Recovery
Mechanism (ERM] deferral balance so the net average elestric rate
increase to gur customers in 2013 will be 2.0 percent. The creditto
customers from the ERM halance will not impact our earnings.

The settlement alsa provided that, effective January 1, 2014, we
will increase base rates for our Washington electric customers by an
overali 3.0 percent (designed to increase annual revenues by $14.0
million), and for our Washington natural gas tustomers by an overall
0.9 percent {designed to increase annual revenues by $1.4 million). The
settling parties agree that a one-year credit of $9.0 million will be
returned to electric customers from the then-existing ERM deferral
balance, if such funds are available, so the net average electric rate
increase to our costomers effective January 1, 2004 will be 2.0
percent, The credit to ¢ustomers from the ERM balance will not
impact our earnings.

The UTC Grder appraving the settlement agreement included
certain conditions. The new retail rates to hecome effective January 1,
2014 will be temporary rates, and on January 1, 2015 alactric and natural
gas basa rates will revert back to 2013 levels absent any intervening
action from the UTC. Included in the original settlement agreementis a
pravision that we will not file a general rate case in Washington seeking
new rates to take effect before January 1, 2015. We can, however, make
a filing prior to January 1, 2015, but new rates resulting from the filing
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would not take effect prior to January 1, 2015, We currently intend to file
a general rate case in early 2014 with proposed rates that would take
affect on January 1, 2015, This provision does not preclude us from filing
anmuab 1350 adjustments such as the PLA and the POA.

In addition, in its Order, the UTC found that much of the approved
base rate increases is justified by the planned capital expenditures
necessary to upgrade and maintain our utility facilities. If these capital
projects are not completed to a level thatwas contempleted in the
original settlement agreement, this could result in base rates which are
considered too high by the UTE. As a result, we must file capital
expenditure progress reports with the UTC on a periodic basis 5o that
the UTC can monitor the capital expenditures and ensure they are in line
with those contemplated in the settlemant agreament. We expect total
utility capital expenditures among &l jurisdictions to be approximately
$260 million for each of 2013 and 2014,

The settlement agreement provides for an authorized return on
equity of 9.8 percent and an equity ratio of 47 percent, resulting in an
overall return on rate base of 7.64 percent.

[daho General Rate Cases

In September 2010, the IPUC approved a settlement agreement
with respectto our general rate case filed in March 2010, The new
electric and natural gas rates became effective on October 1, 2010. As
agreed to in the settlement, base electric rates for our ldaho customers
increased by an average of 9.3 percent, which was designed to increase
annual revenues by $21.2 million, Base natural gas rates for gur Idahe
customers increased by an average of 2.6 percent, which was designed
to increase annual revenues by $1.8 miltien.

The settlement agreement inciuded a rate mitigation plan under
which the impact on customers of the new rates was reduced by
amortizing $11.1 million {$17.5 million when grossed up for incame taxes
and other ravenue-related items} of previously deferred state income
taxes over a twa-year period as a ¢redit to customers. While our cash
collections from customers are reduced by this amortization during the
twao-year period, the mitigation plan has no fmpact on our netincome.
Retail rates increased on October 1, 2011 and Qctober 1, 2012 a5 the
previously deferred state income tax balance was amertized.

In September 2011, the IPUC approved a settlement agreement in
aur general rate case filed in July 2011, The new electric and naturaf gas
rates became effective on October 1, 2011, As agreed toin the
settlement agreement, base electric rates for our Idaho customers
increased by an average of 1.1 percent, which is designed to increase
annual revenues by $2.8 million. Base natural gas ratas for our [daho
customers increased by an average of 1.6 percent, which is designed to
ingrease annual revenues by $1.1 millien.

As part of the settlement agreement, we agreed notta file a
general rate case seeking changes in base electric or natural gas rates
effective prior to April 1, 2013, This dees not preciude us from filing
annual rate adjustments such as the PCA and the PGA.

The settlement agreement also provides for the deferral of certain
generation plant operation and maintenance costs. In order to address
the variability in year-to-year operation and maintenance costs,
beginning in 2011, we are deferring certain changes in operation and
maintenance costs related to the Coyote Springs 2 natural gas-fired
generstion plant end our 15 percent ownership interestin Units 3&4 of
the Calstrip generation plant. We compara actual, non-fuel, aperation
and maintenance expenses for the Coyote Springs 2 and Colstrip plants
with the amount of expenses authgrized for recovery in base ratesin the

applicable deferral year, and defer the difference from that currently
authorized. The deferral nccurs annually, with no carrying charge, with
deferred costs being amortized over a three-year petiod, beginning in
the year Wiowing fe period tosts are deferred. The amount of expense
to ba requested for recovery in future general rate cases will be the
actual operation and maintenance expense recorded in the test period,
less any amount deferred during the test pericd, plus the amortization of
previgusly deferred costs. Total net deferred costs under this
mechanism in |daho were requlatory assets 0f$2.3 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 30.1 million as of December 31, 2011

On Octeber 11, 2012, we fited electric and natural gas general rate
cases with the IPUC. We requestad an overall increase in electric rates
of 4.6 percent and an overall increase in natural gas rates of 7.2 percent.
The filings were designed to increase annual efectric revenues by $11.4
million and increase annual natural gas revenues by $4.6 million. Qur
requests were based on a proposed overall rate of return of 8.46
percent, with a commen equity ratio of 50 percantand a 10.9 percent
return on aguity.

Dn Febreary 8, 2013, Avista Torp. and certain other parties fited a
settlement agreement with the IPUC with respect to our electric and
natural gas general rate cases. Parties to the settlement agreement
include the staff of the IPUC, Clearwater Paper Corparation, Idaho
Forest Group, LLG, the Idaho Conservation League, and the Company.
Community Action Partnership Assaciation of Idaho {CAPAI}, 2
low-income customer advocacy group, and the Snake River Alliance did
not join in the settlament agreement. However, on Febroary 20, 2013 the
Snake River Alliance provided a letter to the IPUC supporting the
settlement agreement. This settlement agreement is subject to approval
by the IPUC and would conciude the proceedings related the general
rate requests filed by the Company on Gctober 11, 2012. New rates
would be implemented intwo phases: April £, 2013 and October 1, 2013.

The settlement agreement proposes that, effective Aprii 1, 2013,
we would be suthorized to implement a base rate incraase for our [daho
natural gas customers of 4.9 percent {designed to ncrease annual
revenues by $3.1 million}, There would be no change in hase electric
rates on April 1, 2013. However, the settlement agreament would provide
for the recovery of the costs of the Palouse Wind Project through the
Power Cost Adjustment mechanism beginning April 1, 2013,

The settlement agraement alse proposes that, effective October 1,
2013, we would be suthorized to implement a base rate increase for our
tdaha natural gas custemers of 2.0 parcant (designed te increase annual
revenues by $1.3 million}. A credit resulting from deferrad natural gas
costs of $1.6 millien would be returned to our Idahe natural gas
customers from Cetober 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014, so the net
annual average natural gas rate increase to natural gas customers
effective October 1, 2013 would ba 0.3 percent.

Further, the setilement proposes that, effective Detober 1, 2013,
we would be authorized to implement a base rate increase for our ldaho
electric customers of 3.1 percent {designed o increase annual revenuas
by $7.8 million). A $3.9 million credit resulting from a payment to be made
to ug by the Bonneville Power Administration relating te its prior use of
Avista Corp.'s transmission system would be returned to Idaho electric
customers from October 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014, so the net
annual average elactsic rate increase to electric customars sffective
Detober 1, 2013 wouild be 1.9 percent.

The $1.6 miltion creditta tdaho natural gas customers and the
$3.9milkien credit to idaho electric customers would not impact gur
netincome.,
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Also included in the settlament agreement is a provision that we
may file a general rate casa in ldahe in 2014; however, new rates
resulting fram the filing would not take effect prior to January 1, 2015.

The setflement agresment provides for an authorized retwin en
equity of 9.8 percent and an equity ratio of 50.0 percent.

The settlemant also includes an after-the-fact garnings tast for
2013 and 2014, such that if Avista Corp., on a consolidatad basis for
electric and natural gas operations in Idaho, earns more thana 9.8
percent return on equity, we would refund to customers 50 pereent of
any earnings above the 9.8 percent.

Oregen General Rate Cases

In March 2011, the OPUC approved an all-party settlement
stipulation in our general rate case that was filed in September 2010,
The settiement provided for an averall rate increase of 3.1 parcent for
our Oregon customers, designed to increase annual revenues by $3.0
million. Part of the rate increase became effective March 15, 2011, with
the remaining increase effective June 1, 201%. An additional rate
adjustment desigred 1o increase revenues by $0.5 mitlion became
effective on June 1, 2012 to recover capital costs associated with
certain reinfarcement and replacement projects, having demonstrated
that such projects were gomplete by November 1, 2011, and the costs
incurréd were prudent. In addition, rates increased by an additional $0.5
millign, from June 1, 2012 through May 31, 2013, to recover the November
2011 through May 2012 deferred revenue requirement,

On January 1, 2013, we purchased the Klamath Falts Lateral
{Lateral}, a 15-mile, 6-inch natural gas transmission pipeline from
Wiliiams Northwest Pipeline (Williams). The Klamath Falls Lateral
interconnects with another interstate pipeline, Gas Transmission
Northwest, to transport natural gas to serve our customers in Klamath
Falls, Oregon, The purchase price was approximately $2.3 million and
will save our Oregon customers approximately $t.4 million annually as
we will be able to reduce our contracted natural gas transportation
requirements from Wiltiams. tn Order No. 12-429, the DPUC approved
our request ta recover from customers the revenue requirement
associated with the purchase ofthe Lateral, which is approximately $8.%
mitliont annually. This approvat will provide a return of and a return on
pur investmentin the lateral. While the OPUC approved the recovery of
the revenue requirement, it will not determine whether the purchase of
the Lateral was prudent until our next Oregon general rate case.

Peaposed Electric Decoupling—Washingtan

Inthe September 2011 Washington general rate case settlement
(which was approved by the UTC in December 2011}, one party, the
Morthwest Energy Coalition [NWECH, did not sign the agreement and
continued to pursue an electric decoupling mechanism for us through a
separate procedural schedule. On May 14, 2012, the UTC consolidated
this igsue into our April 2012 Washington general rate case. As a part of
the Setfiement fited on Dctaber 19, 2012, related to aur April 2012
Washington general rate case, we agreed that we would not support
adoption of decoupling in this case, nor seek to implement a decoupfing
mechanism prior to our next general rate case. Inthe UTC's Order
approving the settlement agreement, however, the UTC did nat support
this provisien related to decoupling inthe settlement agreament.

ALESTA

Bonneville Power Administration Reimbursement and Reardan Wind
Generation Project

On January 28, 2013, we filed with the UTC a Patitien for an order
et auhorizes certsin Tatemaking veatmen relatet toiwo issues:
The first issue relates to transmission revenues associated with a
settlement betwean Avista Corp. and the Bonneville Power
Administration {“Bonnaville”), whereby Bonneville will reimburse the
Company $11.7 million far its past usa of our transmission system. The
second issug relates to approximately $4 million of cests we incurred
over the past several years for the develppment of a wind generation
project site near Reardan, Washington. We propose to aliocate $7.6
million, regresenting Washington's share of the Bonneville Settlement,
as foflows: $4.6 million would be allocated to benefit customers, and
$3.0 million woulg be retained by the Company. With regard to the
recovery of costs for Reardan, we propose to use $2.6 million of the
Washington customers’ share of the Bonneville settiement proceeds to
fully offset the Washingten share of Reardan costs, and the remaining
$2.0 million would be credited to the ERM balancing account for the
venefit of custemers. Indaho, under the terms of the proposed rate
case settlement, [daho’s share of the BPA settlement would be credited
back to customers over 15 months, beginning Getober 2013, and we
would amortize ldaho’s share of Rearden costs over a two-year period,
beginning April 2013.

Purchased Gas Adjustments

PGAs are designed to pass through changes in natural gas casts
to our customers with no change in gross margin (operating revenues
less resource costs) or netincome. Effective Octaber 1, 2011, natural
gas rates increased 1.0 percent in Idaho. Effective November 1, 2011,
nateral gas rates increazed 1.0 percent in Washington, while decreasing
0.2 percent in @regan, In Oregon, we absorh {gain or loss) 10 percent of
the difference hetween actual and prejected gas costs far supply that is
not hedged. Total net deferred natural gas costs were a liability of $12.1
millian as of December 31, 211,

Effective March 1, 2012, natural gas rates decreased 6.4 percent in
Washingten and 6.0 percent in ldaho. Effective October 1, 2012, natural
gas rates decreased 3.1 percentin ldaho. Effective November 1, 2012,
natural gas rates decreased 4.4 percent in Washington and 7.5 percent
in Oregon. Total net deferred natural gas costs were a lishility of $6.9
miliion as of December 31, 2012,

Asitrelates to the Washingtan PGA, effective Navember 1,

2012, the UTC approved, on a temporary basis, aur PGA and the PGAs
far the other three natural gas utiiities operating in Washingten. The
UTC approved the recommendation of the staff of the UTC that itbe
allowed mare time to evaluate all four natural gas utilities” hedging
transactions, potential implications of instituting natural gas
pracurement and hedging guidelines, and potential uniformity as it
relates to PGA filings. The timing for such analysis and potential
workshops has not been determined.

As itrelates to the Oregan PGA, we raquested that the PGA be
implemented intwo steps.Théfirst step, implemented on November 1,
2012, is a decrease of 7.5 percent. The second step is an additional
decrease of .8 percent, effective on January 1, 2013, to provide
customers the net savings related to our purchase of tha Klamath Falls
Lateral transmission pipeling.

T
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Power Cost Deferrals and Recovery Mechanisms

The ERM is an accounting method used to track ¢ertain
differences hetween actual power supply costs, net of the margin an
wholesale sales and sales of fuel, and the amount included in basa retail
rates for oyr Washington customers. In the 2010 Washington general
rote case settlement, the parties agreed that there would be no
deferrals under the ERM in 2010, Deferrals under the ERM resumed in
2011. Total net deferred power costs under the ERM were a liability of
$22.2 million as of December 31, 2012 compared to $12.9 millien as of
December 31, 2011, and these balances represent the customer portion
of the deferred power casts. As part of the approved Washington
general rate case settlement in December 2012, during 2013 a one-year
credit of $4.4 miflion wili be returned to electric customers from the
existing ERM deferral bafance to reduce the net average electric rate
increase impact te customers in 2013, Additionally, during 2014 a
one-year credit up to $9.0 miltion will be returned to electric customers
from the then-existing ERM deferrel balance, if such funds are availabls,
so the net average electric rate increase impact to customers effective
January 1, 2014 would alsa be reduced. The credits to customers from
the ERM balances would rot impact our net income.

The difference in net power supply costs under the ERM primarily
results from changesin:

+ short-term whotesale market prices and sales and
purchase volumes,
» the level of hydroelectric generation,

The following is a summary of the ERM:

* the leval of thermal gengration {including changes in fuel prices),

* the net value from optimization activities related to our generating
resources, and

+ ratail lpads.

Under the ERM, we ahsorb the costor receiva the benefit from the
initial amount of power supply costs in excess of or below the levstin
retail rates, which is referred to as the deadband. The anaual {calendar
year) deadband amount is currently $4.0 million. We incur the cost of, or
receive the benefit from, 100 parcent of this initial power supply cost
variance. We share annual power supply cost variances between $4.0
million and $10.0 million with customers. There is 2 50 percent
customers/5@ percent Company sharing ratio when actual power supply
expenses arg higher (surcharge to customers} than the amount included
in base retail rates within this band. There is a 75 percent customers/
25 percent Company sharing ratio when actual power supply expenses
ara lower {rabate to customers} than the amount included in base retail
rates within this band. To the extent that the annugl power supply cost
variance from the amount included in base rates exceeds $10.0 million,
there is 98 percent customers/10 percent Cempany sharing ratio of the
cost variance.

Deferred far Future
Surcharge or Rebata Expense or Benefit
Annual Power Supply Cost Variability to Customers to the Company
within +/- $0 to $4 million {deadband} 0% 100%
higher by $4 million to $18 million 50% 50%
lower by 34 million to $1¢ million 75% 5%
higher or lower by over $10 million 90% 10%

Under the ERM, we make an annual filing on or befere Aprii 1 of
each year to provide the opportunity for the UTC staff and other
interested parties to review the prudence of and audit the EAM deferred
power costtransactions for the prior calendar year, The ERM provides
for a 90-day review period for the fiting; however, the period may be
extanded hy agreement of the parties or by UTC order.

As part of the 2012 Washington general rate case settlement, we
proposed modifications to the ERM deadband and other sharing bands
inthe original April 2012 general rate case filing. The proposed
modifications were not agreed te and the ERM will continue unchanged.
However, the trigger point at which rates will change under the ERM
was modified to be $30 million rather than the previous 10 percent of
base revenues {approximately $45 million) under the mechanism.

We have a PCA mechanism in [daha that allows us to modify
electric rates on Jctober 1 of each year with IPUC approval. Under the
PCA mechanism, we defer 90 percent of the difference between certain
actual net power supply expenses and the amount included in base
retail rates for our [daho customers. The October 1 rate adjustments
recaver or rebate power supply costs deferred during the praceding
July-June twelve-menth peried. Total net power supply costs deferred
under the PCA machanism were a lrability of 5.1 million as of
December 31, 2012 comparad to $0.7 million as of December 31, 2011.

Aw 5T

Natural Gas Safety Regulations

On February 3, 2012, President Obama signed into law the
“Pipeline Safety, Regulatory Certainty and Job Creation Act of 2011"
mandating new regulations be created to address public safety
cancerns, Regulations include validation of pipeline recards for
transmission pipelines, evaluation of transmission pipelines for
autematic shut-off valves, consideration of increased "high
consequence area” boundaries far transmission pipelines, increased
installation of excess flow valves an gas service piping, as well as
increased scrutiny on existing emergency preparedness plans, quality
assurance plans and damage prevention pregrams, and broader federal
oversight including breader use of fines and penafties to pipeline
operators. The U.S. Department of Transportation has already proposed
rules that address many areas of the new Act and we have already
compliad with many of the requirements of this legislation. We are still
evaluating the Aet and waiting for further rules and ¢larifications
surrgunding certain portions of this Act; however, we expect that any
additional campliance required would not have a significant impact on
our gperations.
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Results of Operations

The following provides an overview of changes in cur Consolidated
Statements of Income. More detailed explanations are provided,
particularly for operating revenues and aperating expenses, in the
husiness segment discussions {Avista Utilities, Ecova and the other
businesses) that follow this section.

2012 compared to 2011

Utility revenues decreased $89.1 miltion, after elimination of
intracompany revenues of $88.2 millien for 2012 and $93.1 million for
2011, Including intracompany revenues, electric revenues decreased
$20.0 miliion and natural gas revenues decreased $74.1 million. Retail
electric revenues decreased $5.9 million due 1o a decrease in volumes
sold which was primarily the result of warmer weather during the
heating season and lawer usage at certain industrial customers, due to
temporary operational challenges atthese customers. This was mastly
offset during the third quarter due to warmer weather {and increased
cooling loads}, which increased electric use per customer and also
general rete increases. Retall natural gas revenues decreased $36.6
million due to a decrease in volumes caused by warmer weather.

E¢ova revenues increased §17.8 million to $155.7 million primarily
as a resuli of Ecova’s acquisitions of Prenova effective November 30,
2011 and LPB effective January 31,2012,

Utility resource costs decreased $36.9 million, after elimination of
intracompany resource costs of $88.2 millien for 2012 and $93.1 million
for 2011. Including intracempany resource costs, electric resource costs
decreased $32.9 million and natural gas resource costs decreased $68.9
million. The decrease in electric resource costs was primarily due to a
decrease in other fuel costs (represents fuel that was perchased for
generation butwas later sold whan conditions indicated that it was not
ecanomical to use the fuel for generation as part of the resource
optimization process) and the amortization of deferred power supply
costs, partially offset by anincrease in fuel costs (due to higher tharmal
generation) and power purchased. The decrease in natural gas resource
casts was primarily due to a decrease in natural gas prices, partially
offset by anincrease in volumes.

Utility other operating expenses increased $14.9 million primarily
due to [abor (including $7.3 million of cests under the voluntary
severance incentive plan), increased pensions and other postretirement
benefits, and electric distribution costs, partially offset by decreased
alectric maintenance costs (which included the requlatory deferral of
$6.7 million of maintenance costs) and outside service costs.

tility depreciation and amortizetion increased $6.5 million driven
by additions to utility pfant.

Ecova other aperating expenses increased $29.4 million primarily
reflecting increased costs necessary for business growth and the
acquisitions of Prengva and LPB, including transaction and integration
casts of $2.6 milkign.

Ecova depreciation and amgrtization increased $6.3 million
primarily due tothe amortization of intangibles recordedin connection
with Eceva’s acquisitions of Prenova and LPE.

@ther non-utility operating expenses increased $4.9 million
primarily due to increased outside service expense of $1.2 million and
increased consufting services and other corporate coststhat can't he
charged te utility customers of $2.5 millien.

interest expense increased $3.0 million primarily due to the
issuance of long-term debt in December 2011 that increased the balance
of long-term debt outstanding.

Other income—net increased $1.6 million primarity due to an
increase in equity method earnings of $1.8 million fram Ecova’s
investment in the SEEL variable interest entity. [n prior years, this entity
was consolidated and the operating revenugs and expenses were
included inthe consclidated results of the Company. Additionally,
equity-related AFUDC increased $1.8 million. These increases in other
incame were offset by an increase in losses on investments, including
$2 4 million for the impairment of our investment in a fuel cell business
and the write-off of our investment in a solar engrgy company.

Income taxes decreased $15.4 million and our effective tax rate
was 34.4 percent for 2012 compared to 35.4 percent for 2011. The
decrease in expense was primarily due to a decrease inincome before
income taxes.

2011 compared te 2010

Utility revenues increased $23.7 million, after elimination of
intracompany revenues of $353.1 milion in 2011 and $85.9 miltian in 2010.
including intracompany revenues, electric revenues increased $13.9
miliion and natural gas revenues increased $37.0 million. Retail electric
revenues increased 851.1 miliion due to general rate increases and an
increase in volumes seld caused by colder weather during the first three
menths of 2011 compared to 2010, Retail natural gas revenues increased
$40.3 million due to anincrease in volumes caused by colder weather
and prices from rate increases.

E£cova revenues increased $35.8 million to $137.8 million
primarily due to growth in expense management and energy
management services, as well as the acquisition of Loyalten effective
December 31, 2010.

Revenues from our other businesses increased $1.6 million
(excluding intercompany revenues) primarily due to increased salas
at METALTx.

Utility resource costs decreased $5.0 million, after elimination
of intracompany resaurce costs of $93.1 million in 2011 and $65.9
miflion in 2010. Including intracompany resource costs, electric
resource costs increased $5.1 million and natural gas resource costs
increased $17.1 million, The increase in electric resgurce costs was
primarily due to an increase in other fuel costs {represents fuel that
was purchased for generation but was later sold when conditions
indicated that it was not ecenomical to use the fusl for generation as
partef the resource optimization processt and the amortization of
deferred power supgly costs, partially offset by a decrease in fuel
costs (due to lower thermal generation} and power purchased {due in
part to higher hydroelectric generation), The increase in natural gas
reseurce ¢osts was primarity due to an incraase in natural gas
perchased due to an incraase in retail sales.

Utility other operating expenses increased $9.5 million primarily
due toincreased maintenance expenses (including planned major
maintenance at Colstripl, pensions and other postretiremant benefits,
and [abor.

Utility depreciation and amortization increased $5.1 million driven
by additions to utility plant.

Utility taxes other than income taxes increased $10.0 million
primarily reflecting higher retail revenus related taxes, as well as
increased property taxes.



Ecova other operating expenses increased $29.6 million
reffecting increased costs necessary for business growth and the
acquisition of Loyalton.

Interest expense decreased $1.9 million primarify due to
refinancing transactions completed in December 2010 that lowered our
effgctive rate on leng-term debt. This was partially offset by higher
interest rates an short-term borrowings.

Capitalized interest increased $2.6 million due to higher
average construction wark in progress balances and higher
borrowing rates (including an increase on short-term barrowing
rates used in the caleulation).

Other income—net decreased $0.9 million primarily dueto a
decrease in losses on investments {including a $2.2 millien impairment
of our investment in a fual cell business recorded in 2010}, partially
offset by a decrease in equity-related AFUDC.

Income taxes increased $5.5 million and our effective tax rate was
35.4 percent far 2011 compared to 35.0 percent for 2010, This increase in
eapense was primerily due to an increase in income before income
taxes. Adjustments associated with reconciling the 2000 federal income
tax return to the amount included in the financial statements for 2009
and prior year income tax return amendments decreased income tax
expense by $1.7 miltien for 2010.

Avista Utlities

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
The following discussion includes tweo financial measures that
are ¢onsidered “non-GAAP financial measures,"” efectric gross margin

and natural gas gross margin. Generally, a non-GAAP financial
measure is a numerical measure of a company's financial performance,
financial position or cash flows that excludes {or includes) amopunts
that are incfuded (excluded) in the most directly comparable measure
calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP. The prasentation
of electric gross margin and natural gas gross margin is intended to
supplement an understanding of Avista Utilities’ operating
performance. We use these measures to determine whether the
appropriate amount of energy costs are being collected from our
customers to aflow for recovery of operating costs, as well as to
anatyze how changes in loads (due 10 weather, economic or ather
conditions}, rates, supply costs and other factors impact oyr results of
operations, These measures are not intended to replace income from
operations as determined in accordance with GAAP as anindicator of
operating perfermance. The calculations of efectric and natural gas
gross margins arg presented below,

2012 compared 1o 2011

Netincome for Avista Utilities was $81.7 million for 2012, a
decrease from $90.9 million for 2011, Avista Utilities' income from
aparations was $188.8 millien for 2012 compared to $202.4 million for
2011. The decrease in net income and income from operations was
primarily due to reduced retail loads during the first and fourth quarters
of the year and an increase in other operating expenses {including costs
forthe vcluﬁtary severance incentive program), and depreciation and
amortization, partially offset by the implementation of general rate
increases. The decrease in netincome from Avista Utilities was also due
to an ingrease in interest expense.

The fallowing tahle presents our operating revenues, resource costs and rasulting gross margin for the year ended December 31

{dollars in thousands}):

Electric Natural Gas Intracompany Total

2012 am 2012 2mMm 2012 2011 2012 201

Operating revenues S 98172 0§ 988787 5 47473 8 BA8225 S iBgiR0) & (93000) 5 13645 § 1,443,322
Resourca costs IR 484359 379,853 388779 {ag.80) {93,090) EEA 790,048
Bross margin § 5738 5 B0382 S 144320 §  1A9446 S B — 5 B0 5 6530M

Avista Utilities” aperating revenues decreased $89.1 millior and
resource costs decreased $36.9 million, which resulted in anincrease of
$7.8 million in gross margin. The gross margin en electric sales
increased $12.9 million and the gross margin on natural gas sales
decreased $5.1 million, The increase in slectric gross margin was
primarily dee to general rate increases. This was partially offset by
warmer weather during the heating season (grimarily the first and fourth
quarters) that reduced retail loads. In addition, electric gross margin
growth was limited in part by lower usage at certain industrial
customers due to temporary operational challenges. Natural gas gross
margin decreased primarily due to warmer weather throughout the year

AVISTA Lo2w
1

that reduced retail heating loads, partially offset by general rate
increases, For 2012, we recognized a pre-tax benefit of $6.0 million
under the ERM in Washington compared to $6.4 million for 2011,

Intracompany revenues and resource costs represent purchases
and sales of natural gas between pur netural gas distribution pperations
and our electric generation operations (as fuel for our generation
plantsl. These transactions are eliminated in the presentation of total
results for Avista Utitities and in the consolidated financial statements
but are reflected in the presentation of the separate results for electric
and natural gas below.
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The following table presents our utility electric operating revenues and megawatt-hour (MWh] sales for the year ended December 31

{doHars and MWhs in thousands);

Electric Operating Electric Energy

Revenues MWh sales

2012 2Mm 2012 2011

Residential § 35137 0§ 324mE 3,608 3728
Commercial 286,568 280,133 3127 31
Industrial 119,589 122 560 2.100 2147
Pubfic street and highway lighting 7,240 6,941 26 pii]
Total retail 728,534 734,475 8,861 5,023
Wholesale 102,736 78,305 3,733 2,796
Sales of fuel 115,835 153,470 e —
{ther 21067 21,937 — —
Total § 95872 § 988187 12594 11,819

Retait electric revenues decreased $5.9 million due to a decrease
in total MWhs sold {decreased revenues $13.3 miltion) offset by an
increase in revanue per MWh {increased revenues $7.3 million), The
decrease in MWhs sold was primarily the result of warmer weather
during the heating season, and due in part to lower usage at certain
industriaf custemars due to temporary operational challenges. This was
partially offset during the cooling season due to warmer weather {and
increased loads), which increased electric use per customer. Compared
to 2011, residential electric use per customer decreased 4 percent,
(ooling degree days at Spokane were 23 percent above histarical
average for 2012 and were 26 percent above 2011, Heating degree days
at Spokana were 6 percent below historical average for 2012, and &
peccent below 2011, The increase in revenue per MWh was primarily
due to the Washington and Idahe general rate increases.

Wholesale electric revenues increased $24.4 million due to an
incrazsa in zales volumes fincreased revenues 525 8 million}, partiatly
offset by a decrease in sales prices {decreased revenues $1.4 million).
The increase in sales volumes was primarily due to the fact that our
retail sales were lower than expected, as discussed above, and we sold

the resulting excess capatity, energy and fuel on the wholesale market
through our optimization procedures.

When electric wholesale market prices are helow the costof
operating our natural gas-fired thermal generating units, we sell the
natural gas purchased for genaration in the wholesale market rather
than operats the generating units. The revenues from sales of fuel
decreased $37.6 millien due to a decrease in sales of natural gas fuel as
part of thermal generation reseurce eptimization activities and higher
usage of our thermal generation plants in 2012 as compared to 2011, as
well as a decrease in natural gas prices. Higher usage of our thermal
generation plants was dua in part to decreased hydroelectric
generation. For 2012, $45.3 million of these sales were made to our
natural gas operatiens and are included as intracempany revenues and
resource costs. For 2011, $38.6 mitlion of these sales were made te our
natural gas operations.

The net margin an whelesale sales and sales of fusl is applied to
reduce orincrease resource ¢osts 45 accounted for under the ERM, the
PCA mechanism, and in general rate cases as partof base power
supply costs.

The following table presents our utility natural gas operating revenues and therms defivered for the year ended December 31

(dollars and therms in thousands):

Natural Gas Natural Gas

Operating Revenues Therms Delivered

2012 201 2012 2

Residential S 196712 § 219557 149152 207,202
Commercial 95994 111,364 115,083 125,344
|nterruptible 2519 4363 4,503
Industriat 4,180 5,072 5,654
Tatal retail ansa 338,220 13671 342,703
wWholesale 158 53t 195,882 536,143 510,755
Transportation 7.132 6,709 154704 152515
Other AL 3 M
Total 5 § 548225 1054949 1,006.413

Retail natural gas revenues decreased $36.6 million primarily due
to a decrease in volemes {decreased revenues $27.9 million) and lower
retail rates (decreased revenues $8.7 million), We sold less retail naturat
gas in 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due 1o warmer weather.
Compared to 2013, residential and commercial natural gas use per
customer decreased 9 percent. Heating degree days at Spokane were

AMTATA

& percent below historical average for 2012, and 9 percent below 2011,
Heating degree days at Medford were 5 percent below historical
average for 2012, end 10 percent below 2011,

Wholesale natural gas revenues degreased $37.3 milliendueto a
decrease in prices (decreased revenues $57.7 million), partially offset by
aningrease in volumes {increased revenues 320.4 miltign). We plan for

52



sufficient natural gas capacity to serve our retail customers on a
theoretical peak day. As such, on nonpeak days we generally have more
pipefine and storage capacity than what is needed for retail loads. We
engage in optimization of available interstate pipeline transgortation
and storage capacity through whalesale purchases and sales of natural
gas to generate economic value that partially offsets net natural gas
costs. In sume situations, customer demand is below the amount

hedged and we sell natural gas in excess of load reguirements. In 2012,
$42.9 miltien of these sales were made to our electric generation
operations and are included as intracompany revenues and resource
costs. In 2011, $54.5 million of these sales were made to our electric
generation operations. Differences batween revenues and costs from
sales of resources in excess of retail ioad requirements and from
resource aptimization are accounted for through the PGA mechanisms,

The following teble presents our average number of electric and natural gas retail customers for the year ended December 31:

Electric Customers Natural Gas Customers
2012 2011 012 2011
Residential 318,692 316,762 786,522 284,504
Commergial 34,869 39618 33783 33540
Irmerruptibtle — — 38 8
Industrial 1.395 1380 763 255
Publi¢ street and highway lighting 503 455 o —
Total retail customers Y 3,215 20,586 318337
The following table presents our utility resource costs for the year ended December 31 [dollars in thousands):
2012 204
Electric resource costs:
Power purchased $ 194083 § 159845
Power cost amortizations—net 12782 31,910
Fuel for generation 40029 84,367
Other fuel costs 120074 164,173
Other requlatory amortizations—net 15,565 16,381
Other electric resource costs 18,794 17,683
Total electric rasource costs - 451,434 454,359
Natural gas resource costs: T
Natural gas purchased 7458 396,481
Natural gas cost amartizations—net 15.804) (10.041)
Gther regulatory amartizations—net LARE! 12323
Total natural gas resource costs 329,85"3 298,779
Intracompany resource costs AL {93,090}
Total resource costs S 683127 § 790048

Power purchased increased $24.2 million due to an increase in the
volume of power purchases (increased costs $26.7 mitlion}, partially
offset by a decrease in whalesale prices {decreased costs $2.4 million).

Net amertization of deferred power costs was $12.8 million for
2012 compared to $31.9 millioa for 2011, During 2012, wa recovered
{collacted as revenue] $1.3 milion of previously deferred pawer costsin
Idaho thraugh the PCA surcharge. The Washington ERM surcharge was
gliminated in February 2010, since the previous balance of defarred
power costs had been recovered. During 2012, actual power supply
costs were below the amount included in base retail rates and we
deferred $8.9 miltien in Washington and $2.8 mitlion in Idaho for
patential future rebate to customers.

Fuel for generation increased $5.7 million primarily due to an
increase in thermal generation. This was due in partto a decrease in
hydroglectric generation. The increase in thermal generation usage was
partially offset by a decrease in natural gas fuel prices.

AWISTA

Dther fuel costs decreased $44.1 million. This represents fuel that
was purchased for generation but was later sold when conditions
indicated that it was not economical to use the fuel for generation, as
part of the resource optimization process. When the fuelis sold, the
revenue generated from selling the fuelis included in the sales of fuel
revenue line item above.

The expense for natural gas purchased decreased $69.0 million
due tu a decrease in the price of natural gas {decreased costs $85.9
million), partially offset by an increase in total therms purchased
{increased costs $16.9 million). Total therms purchased increased due to
an increase in wholesale safes which are used te balance loads and
resources as part of the natural gas precurement and resource
optimization process. We engage in optimization of available interstate
pipeline transpartatior and storage capacity through wholesale
purchases and sales of natural gas to generate economic value that
offsets net natural gas costs.

14



2011 compared to 2010

Netincome for Avista Utilities was $30.9 miflion for 2011, an
inciease from $86.7 midlion for 2010, Avista Utilities’ income from
operations was $202.4 million for 2011 compared to $198.2 miltion for
2010. The increase in net income and income from operations was
primarily due te an increase in gross margin {aperating revenues less

resource costs), partially offset by an increase in othar operating
expenses, depreciation and amortization, and taxes other than income
taxes. The increase in net income from Avista Utilities was also dusto a
decrease in intergst expense {net of capitalized interest} and a decrease
in denations {included in other income—net}.

The fallowing table presents our operating revenues, rescarce costs and resulting gross margin for the year ended Dacember 31

{dollars in thousands):
Electric Natural Gas Intracompany Total
2m 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
Operating revenues § 988187 § 974283 §  L4B2 5 s11249 & (93,0000 & (658360 § 1443322 § 1419646
Resource costs 484,359 478,252 398,779 381,703 (93,0304 {65,986} 790,048 795,075
Gross margin § 503828 & 495031 § 149445 § 129540 § -~ § — §  BS32M § 624571

Avista Utilitias” operating revenues increased $23.7 million and
rgsource costs decreased $5.0 million, which resulted in an increase of
$2B.7 million in gross margin. The gross margin on electric sales
increased $8.8 million and the grass margin on nateral gas sales
increased $19.9 million. The increase in electric gross margin was due to
colder weather during the first quarter of 2011 thatincreased retail
loads and general rate increases. For 201, we recognized a benefit of
$6.4 million under the ERM in Washington. As part of & rate case
settlement there were ro deferrals under the ERM in 2010. For 2010,
power supply costs were $7.1 million below the fevel included inbase

retail rates in Washington. The increase in our natural gas gross margin
was primarily due to colder weather thatincreased retail loads
{particularly in the first quarter) and partially due to general

rate increases.

Intracompany revenues and resource costs represent purchases
and sales of natural gas between our natural gas distribution operations
and our electric generation eperations {as fuel for our generation
plants). These transactions are eliminated in the presentation of Avista
Utilities total results and in the consolidated financial statements.

The following table presents our utility electric operating revenies and megawatt-hour (MWh} sales for the year ended Decemher 31

{dotiars and MWhs in thousands):

Efectric Operating Electric Erergy

Revenues MWh Sales

201 2010 2011 200

Residential $ 324835 § 296817 3728 3618
Commercial 280,139 265,219 3122 3,100
industrial 122,560 114,792 2147 2,098
Public street and highway lighting 6,941 6,702 26 26
Total refait 734,475 583,340 9,023 8843
Whalesale 78,305 165,553 2,796 3,803
Sales of fuel 153470 106,375 — —
Othar 1931 19015 — —
Total 3 988187 § 974283 11,819 12,646

Retail electric revenues increased $51.1 million due to an increass
in total MWhs sold {increased revenues $14.6 million) primarily due to an
increase in use per customer as a result of colder weather, and an
increase in revenue per MWh (increased revenues $36.5 million].
Compared to 2010, residential electric use per customer increased 3
percent. The increase in revenue per MWh was primarily due to the
Washington and Idaho general rate increases.

Wholesale electric revenues degreased $87.2 million due to 2
decrease in sales prices (decreased revenues $59.0 million) and a
decrease in sales volumes {detreasad revenues $28.2 million). The
decrease in sales volumes was primarily due to decreased wholesale
power optimization and higher than expected retail sales caused by
colder weather in the first quarter.

When eletiric whoiesale markes prices are below the cost of
operating our natural gas-fired thermal generating units, we sell tha

natural gas purchased for generation in the wholesale market rather
than operate the generating units. The revenues from sales of fuel
increased $47.1 mitlion due to an increase in sales of natural gas fuel as
part of thermat generation resource optimization activities and lower
usage of our thermal generation plants in 2011 as compared to 2010, This
was due in parito increased hydroelectric generation. In 2011, $38.6
million of these sales were made to our natural gas operations and are
included as intracompany revenues and resource cests. In 2010, $24.7
million of these sales were made to our natural gas operations.

The net margin on wholesale sales and sales of fuelis appiied to
reduce or increase resource costs as accounted for under the ERM,
the PCA mechanism, and in general rate cases as part of base power
supply costs.

5Y



The follewing table presents our utility natural gas operating revenues ant therms delivered for the year ended December 31

{dollars and therms in thousands):

Natuval Gas Naturai Gas

Qparating Revenues Therms Delivered

2m 2010 2011 2010

Residential § 219557 § 193169 207,202 188,546
Commercial 111,964 98,257 125,344 113422
Intarruptible 2519 2,738 4503 4,443
Industrial 4,180 3,756 5,654 5312
Total retail 338,220 297,920 342,703 MR
Wholesale 195,882 197,364 510,755 468,887
Transportation 6,709 6,470 162,515 142,093
Other 7414 9,495 440 393
Total § H825 § SN 49 1,006.413 473,06

Retail natural gas revenues increased $40.3 million due to an
increase in volumes {increased revenues $30.6 million) and higher retail
rates {increased revenues 39,7 mitlion). We sold mora retail natural gas
in 2011 as compared to 2010 primarily due to colder weather in the
heating season, Compared to 2010, residential natural gas use per
customer increased 9 percent and commercial use per customer
increased 10 percent. The increase in retail rates reflects purchased gas
adjustments, as well as general rate increases.

Whaolasale natural gas revenues decreased $1.5 million due to 2
decrease in prices {decreased revenues $17.5 million), partially offset by
an increase in vofumes {increased revenues $16.0 million). We plan for
sufficient natural gas capacity to serve our retail customers ona
theoretical peak day, As such, we generalty have more pipeline and

storage capacity than what is needed, during periods other than the
peak day. We engage in optimization of available interstate pipeline
transportation and storage capacity through wholesale purchases and
sales of natural gas to generate economic value that partially offsets net
natural gas cests. In some situations, ¢ustomer demand is below the
amount hedged and we sell natural gas in excess of load requirements.
In 2011, $54.5 million of these sales were made to our electric generaticn
operations and are included as intracompany revenues and resource
casts. In 2010, 541.2 miltion of these sales were made to cur electric
generation operations. Differences betwean revenues and costs from
sales of resources in excess of retail load requirements and from
resource optimization are accounted for thraugh tha PGA mechanisms.

The following table presents onr average number of electric and natural gas retail customers for the year anded December 31:

Electric Natural Gas

Customers Customers

2011 2010 2611 2040

Residential 316,762 35,283 284,504 28211
Commercial 39,618 39489 33540 33431
Interruptible — — 38 K}
Industriat 1,380 1,376 255 x4
Public street and highway lighting 455 449 — —
Tatal retail customers 358,215 356,597 318337 316,444

ANIST S
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The follewing tabie presents our utility resource costs for the year ended December 31 {doftars in thousands);

2m 2010
Electric resource costs:
Power purchased $ 169845 5 186312
Power cost amortizations—net 3190 2,79
Fuel for generation 84,267 142,154
(Other fuel costs 164,173 114,211
Other regulatery amortizations—net 16,381 17,172
Other glectric resource costs 17,683 16,005
Total alectric resource costs 484,359 479,252
Natural gas resourge costs:
Natural gas purchased 396,497 386,428
Natural gas cost amortizatiens—net (10,041} {18,741
QOther requlatery amortizations—net 12,323 13622
Total natural gas resource costs 398,779 381,709
Intracompany resource costs {93,090 (65,586}
Total resource ¢osts $ 790048 & 795078
Power purchased decreased $16.5 million due to a decrease inthe Ecova
volume of power purchases {decreased costs $18.0 million), partially
offset by a slight increase in wholesala prices {increased costs $1.5 2012 compared to 2011

million}. The decrease in the volume of the power purchases was due in
partto anincrease in hydroatectric generation.

Met amortizetion of deferred power costs was $31.9 million for
2011 compared to $2.8 million for 2010. During 2011, we recovered
{collected as revenue) $14.9 million of previously deferred power costs
in ldaho through the PCA surcharge. The Washington ERM surcharge
was eliminated in February 2010, sinca the previous balance of deferred
power costs had been recovered. During 2011, actual power supply
cosis were below the amount included in base retail rates in beth
Washingten and ldsho. This was due toimproved hydroelectric
generation and lower purchased power and fuel casts, As such, we
deferred $4.2 million in |daho and $12.8 million in Washington for
potantial future rebate to customers,

Fuel far generation decreased $57.8 million primarily due to a
decrease in thermal generation, This was due in part to anincrease in
hydroaleciric generation.

Other fuel costs increased $50.0 million. This represents fuel that
was purchased for generation but was later sold when conditions
indicated that it was not ecanomica| to use the fuel for generation, as
part of the resource optimization process, The associated revenues are
reftected as sales of fuel,

The expense for natusal gas purchased increased $9.7 million due
to an increase in total therms purchased (increased costs $31.0 million},
partially offset by a decrease in the price of natural gas (decreased
costs $21.3 millien). Total therms purchased increased due to &n
increase in retail loads (resulting from colder weathes in the heating
season} and an incraase in wholesale sales with the batancing of loads
and raseurces as part of the natural gas procurement and resource
optimization process. We engage in optimization of available interstate
pipeline transportation and storage capacity through whelesale
purchases and sales of natural gas to generate economic vafue that
offsets net natural gas costs. During 2011, natural gas resource costs
were reduced by $10.0 million reflecting the rebate of a deferred liability
for natural gas costs through the purchased gas adjustmants.

Ecova’s netincome atiributable to Avista Corp. sharehalders was
$1.8 miltion for 2012 compared to net income of $9.7 million for 2011,
Dperating revenues increased $17.8 million and total operating expenses
ingreased $35.8 million. The increase in operating revenues was
primarily the resuft ¢f the acquisitions of Prenova effective November
30, 2011 and LP8 effactive January 31, 2012, which added $22.5 million
to operating revenues for 2012 over 2011 revenues. In addition, there
were delays associated with the process of enboarding new customers
onto the monitoring system for energy management services due to
more complex customers and systems, and there was a reduction in
revenues related to the deconsolidatien of a partnership. This, combined
with the incraasad operating expenses has contributed to a net
decrease in netincome attributable to Avista Corp. shareholders.

The increase intotal operating expenses primarily reflects
increased costs necessary to suppert engoing and future business
growth, as well as to suppart the increased revenue volume obtained
through the acquisitions. There were increases in employee costs of
$20.5 million, facilities costs of $1.7 million, and information technology

costs and professional fees of $4.6 million. In addition, Ecova incurred

$2.6 mitlion in transaction and integration costs. Depreciation and
amortization increased $6.3 million dus 1o intangibles recorded in
connection with the acquisitions. Included in the increased depreciation
and amortization is an impairment foss of $1.1 million pre-tax (80.7
miltien aftes-tax} related to the write-off of internally developed
software during the fourth quarter of 2012.

As of December 31,2012, Ecava had 740 expenze management
customers rapresenting 697,076 billed sites in North America. In
2012, Ecova managed bills totaling $19.4 billion, an increase of $1.1
billion as compared to 2011, This increase was due to an increase in the
number of accounts managed (mostly due to acquisitions), partially
offset by a decrease inthe average value of each hili {due in partto a
decling in natural gas rates). The increases in the number of accounts
and the total bills managed indicates an increase inthe use of Coova's
services and provides support for potential future revenue growth.

5
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2011 compared to 2010

Ecova's net income attributable to Avista Corp. sharehoiders was
$9.7 million for 2011 compared ta $7.4 million for 2010. Operating
revenites increased $35.8 million and total operating expenses
increased $30.8 million. The increase in operating revenues was
primarily due to growth in energy management and expense
management services, as well as the acquisition of Loyalton effective

December 31, 2010, which added $8.5 million to 2011 operating ravenues.

Ecava's organic revenue growth was approximately 13 percent from
2018te 2011, The increase in aperating expenses primarily refiects
increased costs necessary for business growth and the acquisition of
Loyalton. The acquisition of Pranova, effective Nevember 30, 2011, had
minimal impact to 2011 resufts. During the fourth quarter of 2611, Ecova
determined that ¢ertain revenues, which had previously been reported
nat of expenses, should he raparted ona gross hasis. This increased
operating revenues and expanses by $3.2 million with no impact to net
income for 2011, As of December 31, 2011, Ecova had 645 expense
management custorers representing 496,842 billed sites in North
America. In 2011, Ecova managed bilis totaling $18.3 bittion, anincrease
of $1.0 billion as compared to 2010.

Other Busiresses

2012 campared to 2011

The net loss from these operations was $5.3 million for 2012
compared to a netloss of $0.3 miltion for 2011. The declina in raslts was
dua in part to losses on investments of $3.3 million far 2012 comparad te
$0.5 million for 2041. The Jesses for 2012 were primarily the result of an
impairment loss of $2.4 million pre-tax ($1.5million after-tax) recognized
during the third quarter of 2012 related to the impairment of our
investmentin a fuel cell business and the write-off of our investment in
a sclar energy campany. Additionally, there were increased costs
associated with strategic consulting and other corparate costs of $2.3
million and litigation costs related to the previous operations of Avista
Energy of $1.5 million. These losses were partially offset by METALfx
whith had net income of $1.2 mitlion for 2012 and $1.4 million for 2011,

2011 compared to 2010

The net loss from these operations was $0.3 miilion for 2011
compared to $1.7 million for 2010. Operating revenues decreased $20.7
milion and total operating expenses decreased $19.7 million. The
decrease in operating revenues and operating expenses was primarily
dueto the assignment of the Lancaster PPA to Avista Corp. in
December 2010. Earnings from METALTX increased to $1.4 million far
2011 compared to $0.8 million for 2010. Losses on invesiments were
£0.5 million for 2011 compared to losses of $3.3 million far 2010, The
loss for 2010 included a $2.2 million impairment of our investmentin a
fuel cell business. -

Accounting Standards to be Adopted
in 2013

At this time, we are not expecting the adoption of accounting
standards to have a material impact on our finangial condition, results of
operations and cash flows in 2013, For information on acceunting
standards adopted in 2012 and eatlier periods, see “Note 2 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Stataments.”

STA

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in
confermity with accounting principles generally accepied inthe United
States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect amounts reported in the consolidatad financial statements.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions are considered reasonably
possible and may have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements and thus actual results could differ from the amounts
reported and disclosed herein. The following accounting policies
represent those that our management believes are particularly
important to the consolidated financial statements that raquira the use
of estimates and assumptions:

Avista Utilities Qperating Revenues
Operating revenues for eur utility business related to the sale of

anargy are generally recorded when sgryice is renderad or energy is
delivered to our customers. The determination of energy sales 1o
individual customers is based on the reading of their meters, which
oCCUrs on & systematic basis throughout the month. Atthe end of each
calandar menth, we estimate the amount of energy delivered to
customers since the date of the last meter reading and the
corresponding unbilled revenue is estimated and recorded. Dur estimate
of unbitled revenue is based on:

+ the number of customers,

* currentrates,

« meter reading dates,

+ actual pative load for electricity, and

= actual throughput for aatural gas.

Any difference between actual and estimated revenue is
automatically cerrected in the following month when the actual meter
reading and custemer billing occurs.

Regulatory Acenienting
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance
with regulatery accounting practices. This requires that certain costs
and/for obligations (such as incurred power and natural gas costs not
currently racovered through rates, but expected to be recovered in the
future] be reflected as deferred charges an our Consalidated Balance
Sheets and are not reflected in our Consplidated Statements of Income
until the pariod during which matching ravenues are recognized. We
expect to recover our reguiatory assets through future rates, Our
regulatory assets are subjectio review for prutence and recoverabitity.
As such, certain deferred costs may be disallowed by our regulators. i
at some point in the future we determine that we no longer meet the
criteria for continued application of regulatory accounting for all or a
portion of our regulated operations, we could be:
+ required to write off ragulatory assets, and
» precluded from the future deferral of costs not recevered through
rates when such costs are incurred, evan if we expect to recover
slch costs inthe future.

Liility Energy Comunadily Derivative Assets and Liahilities

Qur utitity entars into forward contracts to purchase or sell a
specified amgunt of energy at a specified time, or during a specified
period, in the future. These contracts are entered into as part of our
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management of loads and resources and certain contracts are
considered derivative instruments. The UTC and the IPUC issued
actounting orders authosizing us to offset commodity derivative assets
ot liabilities with a raguiatory asset o7 liability. This accounting
treatment is intended to defer the recegnition of mark-to-market gains
and losses on energy commadity transactions until the peried of
settlament, The orders provide for us to not recognize the unrealized
gain or loss on utility derivative commodity instruments in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. Realized gains or losses are
recognized in the period of settlement, subject to approval for recovery
through retail rates. Realized gains and losses, subject to regulatory
approval, result in adjustments ta retail rates through purchased gas
cost adjustments, the ERM in Washington, tha PCA mechanism in ldaho,
and periodic general rates cases. We use quoted market prices and
forward price curves to estimate the fair value of our utility derivative
commodity instrements. As such, the fair value of utility derivative
commodity instruments recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets is
sensitive to market price fluctuations that can occur on a daily basis,

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

We have a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all
regular full-time employees at Avista Utilities.

Our Finance Committee of the Bpard of Directors approves
investment pelicies, abjectives and stratagies that seek an apgropriate
retura for the pensian plan and it teviews and approves changes to the
investment and funding policies.

We hava contracted with an independent investment consultant
who is responsible for managing/monitoring the individual investment
managers. The investment managers’ performance and relatad
individual fund performance is reviewed at least quarterly by an internal
benefits committee and by the Finance Committee to monitor
compliance with our established investment policy ohjectives
and stratagies,

Our pension plan assets are invested primarily in marketable debt
and squity securities. Pension plan assets may also be invested in real
estate, absolute return, venture capital/private equity and commadity
funds. in seeking to obtain the desired return to fund the pension plan,
the investment consultant recommends aHecation percentages by asset
classes. These recommendations are reviewed by the internal henefits
committee, which then recommends their adeption by the Finance
Committee. The Finance Committes has established invastmant
allecation percentages by asset ¢lasses as disclosed in "Note 10 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

We also have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan {SERP}
that provides additional pension benefits to our executive officers
whose benefits under the pensian plan are reduced due to the
application of Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the
deferral of salary under deferred compensation plans.

Pension costs {including the SERP) were $28.1 mitlon in 2012,
$23.9 million for 2011 and $21.3 mitlion for 2010. Df our pension ¢osts,
approximately 65 percent are expensed and 35 percent are capitalized
consistent with [abor ¢harges. The costs related to the SERP are
expensed. Qur costs for the pensien plan are determined in part by
actuariat fermulas that are dependent upon numerous factors resulting
from actual plan experience and assumptions of future experience. The
SERP is available to ali new executive officers.

AVISTA

Pension costs are affected by:
» employee demographics (incfuding age, compensation and length
of service by employees),
+ the amount of cash contributions we make to the pension plan, and
+ the return on pensien plan assets.

Changes made to the provisiens of our pension plan may also
affect current and future pension costs. Pension plan costs may also be
significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions,
including the:

= gxpected return on pension plan assets,

* discountrate used in determining the projected benefit abligation
and pension costs, and

¢ assumed rate of increase in employee compensation,

The change in pension plan obligations associated with these
factors may not be immediately recognized as pension costs in our
Consolidated Statement of Income, but we generally recognize the
changa in future years over the remaining average service period of
pension pian participants. As such, our costs recorded in any period
may not reflect the actual level of cash benefits provided ta pension
plan participants,

We have not made any changes to pension plan provisions in 2612,
2011 and 2010 that hava had any significant effect on our recorded
pensicn plan amounts. We have revised the key azsumption gfthe
discount rata in 2012, 2011 and 2010. Such changes had an effecton our
pension costs in 2012, 2011 and 2010 and may affect future years, given
the cost recognition approach described abave. However, in
determining pension ebligation and cost amounts, our assumptions can
thange from period to period, and such changes could result in material
changes to our tuture pension costs and funding requirerments.

in selecting a discount rate, we consider yield rates for highly
rated corporate bond portfolios with maturities similar to that of the
expected term of pension benefits. In 2012, we decreased the pension
plan discount rate fexclusive of the SERP} to 4.15 parcent from 5.05
percentin 2011. We used a discount rate of 5.70 percent in 2010. This
increased the projected benefit obligation (exclusive ofthe SERP) by
approximatety $66.5 mitlion in 2012 and $40.0 million in 2011

The expected long-term rate of return op plan assets is based on
past performance and economic forecasts for the types of investments
held by our plan. We used an expected long-term rate of seturn of6.95
percentin 2012, 7.40 percent in 2011 and 7.75 percentin 2010. This
increased pension costs by approximately $1.5 milkien in 2012 and by
approximately $1.1 million in 2011, The actual return on plan assets, net
of feas, was a gain of $54.3 million {or 15.9 percentj for 2012, a gain of
$14.7 millicn {er 4.8 percent) for 2011 and a gain of $29.8 million {or 19.9
percent} for 2010, We periodically analyze the estimated long-term rate
of return on assets based upan updated econopmic forecasts and
revisions to the investment pertfolio.

T
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The following chart reflects the sensitivities associated with a change in certain actuarial assumptions by the indicated percentage

(dallars in thousands}:

Actuarial Changein Effect on Projected Etfecton
Assumption Asspmption Benefit Obligation Pension Cost
Expected long-term return on plan assets -0.6% $ - 3 1,13
Expected long-term return on plan assets +05% —* {(1,Nn3}
Discount rate -0.5% 43473 3,380
Discount rate +0.5% {38,647) (3,041)

* Changes in the expected return on plan assats would nof have an effect on our total pension lability.

We provide certain heafth care and life insurance benefits for
substantially all of our retired employees. We accrus the estimated cost
of pestretirement benefit abligations during the years that employees
provide service. Assumed health care costtrend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for our postretirement plans. A
ang-percentage-point increase in the assumed heaith care cost trend
rate for each year would increase our accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2012 by $20.8 million and the
service and interest cost by $1.4 miflion. A one-percentage-point
decrease inthe assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would
decrease our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2112 by $16.7 million and the service and interest cost by
$1.1 million,

Goodwill

We evaluste goodwill for impairment using a discounted cash flow
model on at feast an annual basis or more frequently if impairment
indicatars arise, Examples of impairment indicators include: a
deterioration in general economic conditions, market considerations
such as & deterioration in the environment in which the entity operates,
adecline in market-dependent multiples or metrics, increases in costs,
overall financial parformance such as a decline in earnings or cash
flows, or a loss of key customers.

The annual evaluation of goodwill far potential impairment is
completed as of December 31 for Ecova and as of November 3¢ for our
other husinesses. As of December 31, 2012, we had goodwill of $70.7
million related to Ecava and $5.2 milfion related to our other businesses,
Our geodwill at Ecova has increased significantly in 2011 and 2012 with
the acquisitions of Prenova and LPB.

Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment and
the use of significant estimates, including the identification of reporting
units, assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting units, and the
estimation of the fair value of reporting units. The goodwill impairment
tastis a two-step process performed at the reporting unit level. The first
step involves comparing the carrying amount of the reporting unitto its
estimated fair valve. If the estimated fair value of the reperting unitis
greater than its carrying value, the goodwill impalimenttestis complete
and #o impairment is recarded, |f the estimated fair value of the
reporting unitis less then its carrying value, the second step of the test
is performed to determine the amount of impairment loss, if any. This
would resultin a full valuation of the reporting units assets and liabilities
and comparing the valuation ta its carrying amounts, with the aggregate
difference indicating the amount of impairment. In 2012, 2011 and 2010,
gach reporting unit that has been evaluated for impairment has passed
the first step of the test, and no impairment losses have been recorded.

Contingencies

Ws have unresolved regulatory, legal and tax issues for which
there is inherent uncertainty for the uliimate outcome of the respective
matter, We accrue a loss contingeney if itis probablg that an assetis
impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss or
impairment can be reasonably estimated. We also disclose losses that
do not meet these conditions for accrual, if there is a reasonable
possibility that & loss may be ingurred.

For all material contingencies, we have made a judgment asto
the probability of a loss occurring and as to whether or not the ameunt
of the l0ss can be reasonably estimated. if the loss recognition
critaria are met, fiabilities are accrued or assets are reduced.
Hawever, no assurance ¢can be given to the ultimate outcame of any
particuler contingency.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

Heview of Cash Flow Statement

Overall—During 2012, positive cash flows frem operating
activities of §316.6 million, proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
of $80.0 millien, $19.0 million of borrowings under Eceva's committed
line of credit, and the issuance of $29.1 mitlion {net of issusnce costs) of
commen stock were used to fund the majority of our cash requirements.
These cash requirements included utility capital expenditures of $271.2
miltien, cash paid fos the acquisition of LPB of $50.3 million and
dividends of $68.6 million,

Operating Activities—Net cash provided by operating activities
was $316.6 million for 2012 compared to $269.5 million for 2011, Net cash
provided by working capital components was $63.6 mitlion for 2012,
compared to net cash used of $14.9 millian for 2011. The net cash
provided during 2012 primarily reflects positive cash flows from other
current assets (primarily related to a decrease in deposits with
counterparties and incoma taxes receivable) and net cash inflows
refetad to accounts payable.

The net cash used during 2011 primarily reflects negative cash
flows from other current assets {primarily related to anincrease in
daposits with counterparties), net cash outflows related to
accounts payable and an increase in natural gas stored. These
negative cash flows were partially offset by net cash inflows
related to accounts receivable.

Net amortization of deferred power and natural gas costs was
$6.7 million for 2012 compared to $21.9 million for 2011. The provision
for deferred income taxes was $21.4 million for 2012 compared to $24.0
million for 2011, Contributions to our defined benefit pensien plan ware
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$44.0 million for 2012 compared to $26.0 million for 2011. Cash paid for
interest was $74.9 miltion for 2012, compared to $69.1 millien for 2011.

Wnvesting Activities—WNet cash used ininvesting attivities was
$294.7 milfion for 2012, an increase compared to $282.3 million for 2011.
Utility property capital expenditures increased by $31.4 million for 2012
as compared to 2011, [n 2012, 2 significant portion of Ecova’s funds held
for clients were held as securities available for sale {purchases of $100.4
million and sales and maturities of $138.0 million). At the end of 2011, the
maiority of Ecova’s funds held for clients were hald as securities
available for sale (purchases of $96.6 million]. The nat cash paid by
subsidiaries for acquisitions in 2012 ¢f $50.3 million represents Ecova's
acquisition of LPB. The net cash paid by subsidiaries for acquisitions in
2011 of $31.4 million primarily represents Ecova's acquisition of Prenova.

Financing Activities—Net cash used in financing activities was
$21.1 million for 2012 compared to net cash provided of $18.1 million for
2011, During 2012, short-term barrowings on Avista Corp.'s committed
line of credit decreased $3.0 million. Barrowings on Ecova's committed
line of creditincreased $19.0 million {net of borrowings of $33.0 million
and repayments of $14.0 millien) and these proceeds were used to fund
a portion of the acquisition of LPB. Cash dividends paid increased to
€88.6 million {or $1.16 per share} for 2012 from $63.7 million {or $1.10 per
share} for 2011, We issued $29.1 million of comman stock during 2012,
We cash settled interest rate swap agreements for $18.5 million related
to the pricing of $80.0 million of long-term debt issued in November 2012,
Customer fund obligations at Ecova decreased $31.0 million.

During 2011, short-term borrowings on Avista Corp.'s committed
line of credit decreased $49.0 millien. Borrowings en Ecova's committed
line of cradit increased $35.0 million and these proceeds were used to
fund the acouisition of Prenova. We issued $26.5 million of common
stock during 2011, We cash settled interest rate swap agreements for
$10.8 million refated to the pricing of $85.0 million of long-term debt
issued in December 2011, Customer fund ¢bligations at Ecova increased
$17.8 million.

Cverall Liguidity

Our consolidated operating cash flows are primarily denived
framthe pperations of Avista Utilities. The primary source of
operating cash flows for our utility operatiens is revenues from sales
of electricity and natural gas. Significant uses of cash flows from our
utility operations include the purchase of power, fusl and natural gas,
and payment of other operating expenses, taxes and interest, with any
excess baing available for uther corporate uses such as capital
expenditures and dividends.

We design operating and capital budgets to control operating
costs and to direct capital expenditures to choices that support
immediate and long-term strateqies, particularly for our regulated wtility
pperations. In addition to operating expenses, we have continuing
commitments fer capital expenditures for construction, improvement
and maintenance of utility facilities.

Our annual net cash flows from aperating activities usually does
not fully support the amount required for annual utility capital
expenditures. As such, from time to time, we need to access long-term
capital markets in order to fund these needs as well as fund maturing
debt. See turther discussion at “Capitai Resources.”

We periodically file for rate adjustments for recovery of operating
co5ts and capital investments to provide the oppertunity to improve our
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earned returns as allowed by regulators, Sea further details in the
section "Avista Utilities—Regulatory Mattars.”

For our utility operations, when power and natural gas costs
axceed the levels currently recovered from retail customers, net cash
flows are negatively affected. Factors that could cause purchased
power and ratural gas costs to exceed the levels currentiy recovered
from our custemers include, but are not limited to, higher prices in
wholesale markets when we buy energy or an increased need to
purchase power in the wholesale markets. Factars beyend our contrel
that could result in an increased need to purchase power inthe
wholesale markets include, but are not limited to;

* increases in demand (due to either weather or customer growth),
* |ow availability of streamflows for hydroelectric genaration,

» unplanned outages at generating facilities, and

» failure of third parties to deliver on energy or capacity contracts.

We monitor the potential liquidity impacts of changes to energy
commadity prices and other increased operating costs for our utility
aperations, We believe that we have adeqeate liquidity to meet such
potential neads through our $400.0 million committed ling of credit,

As of December 31, 2012, we had $312.1 million of avaitable
liquidity under aur committed fine of credit, With our $400.0 million
credit facility that expires in February 2017, we believe that we have
adequate liguidity to meet our needs for the next 12 manths.

Qur utility has reguiatary mechanisms in place that provide for the
deferral and recovery of the majority of power and natural gas supply
costs. However, if prices rise above the level currently allowed in retait
rates in periods when we are huying energy, deferral balances would
increase, negatively affecting our ¢ash flow and liquidity until such time
as these costs, with interest, are recovered from customers,

Collateral Reguirements

Our contracts for the purchase and sale of energy commodities
canrequire coilateral in the form of cash or letters of credit. As of
December 31, 2012, we had cash deposited as collateral of $18.1 million
and letters of cradit of $28.1 million outstanding related to our energy
derivative contracts. Price movements andfor 2 downgrade in our ¢redit
ratings coufd impact fusther the amount of collateral required. See
“Credit Ratings” for further information. For example, in addition 1o
limiting cur ability 1o conduet transactions, if our credit ratings were
lowered te below “investment grade™ based on aur positiens
outstanding at December 31, 2012, we would potentially be required to
post additional coliateral of up to $19.3 million. This amount is different
from the amount disclosed in "Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” because, while this analysis includes contracts
that are not considered darivatives in addition to the contracts
considered in Mote 6, this analysis takes into account contractual
threshold limits that are not considered in Note 8. Withaut centractual
thresheld limits, we would potentially be required to post additional
collateral of $43.4 million.

Under the terms of interestrate swap agreements that we enter
into periodically, we may he required to post cash or letters of credit as
collateral depending on fluctuations in the fair value of the instrument.
This has net histarically been significant to our liquidity position. As of
December 31, 2012, we had interest rate swap agreements outstanding
with a notional amount totaling $168 million and we did not have any
collateral posted. If our eredit ratings were lowered to below
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“investment grade” based on our interest rate swap agreements
outstanding at December 31, 2012, we would not be required to past
additional collateral.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refcrm and
Consumer Protection Act

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
{Dodd-Frank Act) was enacted into law in July 2010, The Dodd-Frank Act
establishas regulatory jurisdiction by the Commodity Futures Trading
Commissien {CFTC) and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
for certain swaps {which include a variety of derivetive instruments)
and certain users of such swaps that previously had been largely
exempted from regulation.

A variety of rules must be adopted by federal agencies fincluding
the CFTC, SEC and the FERC) to implement the Dodd-Frank Act. Thase
rules being developed and implemented will clarify the impact of the
Dodd-Frank Act on Avista Corp., which may be significant.

Underthe Dodd-Frank Act, “Swap Dealers™ and "Major Swap
Participants” generally will be required to collect minimum initial and
variation margin from their counterparties for non-clearsd swaps.
However, the requirament varies with the type of counterparty and the
regulator of the “Major Swap Participant” or “Swap Dealer.” Avista
Corp. should be categorized as a counterparty that is a nen-financial
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end user for the purposes of the Dodd-Frank Act, i.e., as a non-financial
entity that engages in derivatives to hedge commercial risk. in April
2012, the SEC and the CFTC issued a joint final rule withrespect to
security-based swap dealers or security-based majer swap
participants, Based on the proposed definitions and the de minimis rule,
we believe that Avista Corp. is unlikely to be classified as a security-
based swap dealer or security-based major swap participant,

The Dodd-Frank Act alse requires certain swaps to be cleared and
traded on exchanges er swap execution facilities. Such clearing
requirements could resultin a change from our current practice of
bilaterally negotiated credit terms. An gxemptien from mandatory
clearing is available under the Dodd-Frank Act for counterparties that
are non-financial end users using swaps to hedge commercial risk.

In July 2012, the CFTC issued a final rule providing for an
exemption from clearing requirements as outtined in Dodd-Frank for end
users that enter inte hedges to mitigate commercial risk. We axpect
most of aur transactions to qualify under the end user exemption,
howaver we may choose to use a clearing agent for many transactions
even if we are allowed bilateral transactiens. Buring 2012, the Board of
Directors of Avista Corp, approved the use of the end user exemption, if
we choose to utifize this exemption.

We will continue to menitor developments regarding
implementation steps defined in the Dodd-Frank Act. We cannot predict
the impact the Dodd-Frank Act may ultimately have on our operatiens.

Qur consalidated capital structure, including the current portion of lung-term debt and shart-term horrowings, and éxcluding noncentrolling
interests, consgisted of the following as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 {dollars in thousands):

December 31,2012 December 31, 201

Pergent Percent

Amount of tatal Amount of total

Current portien of long-term debt 5 50372 1% § 7474 0.3%
Current portion of nonrecourse fong-term debt (Spokane Energy) 11 955 ol 13,668 0.5%
Short-term horrowings YR 1 5% 95,000 38%
Leng-term borrowings under commitied fine of credit 54000 7 4 — —
Long-term debt to affifiated trusts 1547 1.3 51,547 20%
Nonrecourse long-tarm debt (Spokane Energy} 17,838 Q. 32,803 1.3%
Lgng-term debt 117837 qeqgm 1,169,826 457%
Total debt 1419088 530 1,371,318 536%
Total Avista Corporation stockholders” equity AT 0% 1,185,701 46.4%
Tatal $ 2678565 1000% § 2557018 100.0%

We need to finance capital expenditures and acquire additional
funds for operations from time to time. The ¢ash requirements needed to
service our indebtedness, both short-term and long-term, reduce the
amount of cash flow available to fund capital expenditures, purchased
power, fuel and natural gas costs, dividends and other requirements.
Qur stockholders’ equity increased $73.8 million during 2012 primarily
due to net income, the issuance of commaon stack, and the expiration of
the subsidiary noncontrolling interasts redemption rights, partially
pffset by dividends,

We genarally fund capital expenditures with a combination of
internally generated cash and external finanging. The level of cash
gensetated internally and the amount that is available for capital
expenditures fluctuates depending on & variety of factors. Cash
provided by cur utility operating activities, as well as issuances of
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{ong-term debt and commaon stock, are expected to be the primary
source of funds far operating needs, dividends and capital expenditures
for 2013. Borrowings under eur $400.¢ million committed line of credit
will supplement these funds to the extent necessary.

In August 2012, we entered into twe sales agency agreements
under which we may sell up to 2.7 miilion shares of our common stock
from time to time. In 2012, we soid .9 million shares for a total of $23.4
mitlion (net of issuance costs). As of December 31,2012, we had 1.8
miflion shares available to be issued under these agreements,

We are planning 1o issue up to $50.0 miilion of comman stock in
2013 in order to maintain our capital structure at an appropriate level for
our business. In 2012, we issued $2%.1 million (net of issuance costs) of
comman stack. The additional shares were issued under sales agency
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agreemsnts, as well as the dividend reinvestment and dirsct stock
purchase plan and employee plans.

In Novembar 2012, we issued $80.0 million of 4.23 percent First
Mortgage Bonds due in 2047, The net proceeds from tha sale of the
bonds were used to repay a portion of the borrgwings outstanding under
our $400.0 million committed line of credit. In connection with the
pricing of the First Mortgage Bonds, we cash settied interest rate swap
confracts and paid a total of $18.5 million, which will be amortized as 2
component of intarest expense over tha lifa of the debt. Thera are $50.0
million in First Mortgage Bonds maturing in 2013 and wa expect to issue
up o $100.0 million of long-term debt during the second half of 2013,

We have & committed line of credit with various financial
institutions in the total amount of $400.0 million with an expiration date
of February 2017, Borrowings under this line of credit agreement are
classified as short-term on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

This facility contains customary covenants and default provisions,
including a cavenant which does not permit our retio of “conswlidated
total debt” to "consolidated total capitalization” to be greater than 65
percent at any time. As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance
with this covanant with a ratio of 53.0 percent.

Batances sutstanding and interast rates of borrowings fexcluding letters of cradit) under our committed line of credit were as follows as of and for

the year ended Decembar 31 (doBars in thousands):

2012 2m 200
Balanca outstanding at and of yaar 3 52000 & 61000 § 110000
Letters of credit outstanding et end of year $ 31885 ¢ 28030 § s
Maximum balance outstanding during the year 3 92500 § 130000 5 1720000
Avarage balance outstanding during the year $ 8921 § M1 % 50,230
Average interest rate during the year 1.18% 1.43% 0.60%
Average interest rate at end of yeer 1.12% 1.12% 0.57%

The decrease inthe average balance outstanding was due in part
to a new intercompany barrowing arrangement betwaen Avista Corp,
and Ecova. As part of their cash management practices and operations,
Ecova and Avista Corp. entered into an arrangementin January 2012
under which {1) Avista Corp. igsued to Ecova a master unsecured
pramigsory nots and 12) Ecova will from time to time make short-term
loans to Avista Corp. as a temporary investment of its funds received
from its clients. The master promissory note limits tha total outstanding
indabtedness to no more than $50.0 million in principal. Additionally,
such loans are required ta be repald on the last business day of each
quarter (March, June, Septembar and December) and sooner upon
demand by Ecova. Amounts are loaned at a rate consistent with Avista
Carp.’s creditfacility. The average balance outstanding was $31.6
million and the maximum balance was $50.0 million during 2012.

Any default on the line of credit or other financing arrangsments of
Avista Corp. or any of our "significent subsidiaries,” if any, could resuit
in cross-defaults to other agresments of such entity, andfor to the line
of credit or ather financing errangements of any ather of such entities.
Any defeults could also induce vendors and other countarparties to
demand collateral. in the event of any such default, it would be difficult
for us to obtain financing on reasonable terms to pay creditors or fund
operations. We would atso likely be prohibited from paying dividends on
our common stock. Avista Corp, does not guarantee tha indebtedness of
any of its subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2012, Avista Corp. and its
subsidiaries were in compliance with all of the covenants of their
financing agreaments, and none of Avista Corp.’s subsidiaries
constituted a “significant subsidiary” as defined in Avista Corp.'s
committed fine of credit.

Ecova also has a commitied ling of credit agreement with various
financial institetions for $125.0 million with an expiration date of July
2017. This credit agreament is used primarily to fund acquisitions at
Ecova and supplsment cash flow for Ecova's operations when
necessary and is generally not avaitable for capital acyuisitions. Thera
were $54.0 million of borrowings outstanding under Ecova's credit
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~ agreemsnt as of December 31, 2012 classified as long-term. See the

“Eeova Credit Agreement” section below for further discussion
regarding this agreament.

Woa are restricted under our Restated Articies of Incorporation, a5
amended, as to the additional preferrad stock we can issue. As of
Dacember 31, 2012, we could issue $876.7 million of additional preferred
stock at an assumed dividend rate of 6.0 percent. We are not planning to
issug preferred stock.

Under the Mortgage and Dead of Trust sacuring aur First Mortgage
Bunds {including Secured Medium-Term Notes), we may issue additionat
First Mortgage Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal te the
sum of:

» 6% percent of the cost or fair value (whichever is lower) of
property additions which have not previously been made the basis
of any application under the Mortgags, or

« gn equal principal amount of retired First Mortgage Bonds which
have not previously bean made the basis of any application under
the Mortgags, or

_ » depesitof cash.

Howevar, we may not issug any additional First Mortgage Bonds
{with certain exceptions inthe casa of bonds issued on the basis of
ratired bonds) unless our et earnings” {as defined in thie Mortgage) for
any period of 12 conzecutive calendar months out of the preceding 18
calendar months wers at laast twice the annual interest requiraments

. on all mortgage securities at the time outstanding, including the First

Mortyage Bonds to he issued, and on all indebtedness of prior rank. As
of December 31, 2012, our praperty editions and retired bonds would
hava allowed, and the net earnings test would not have prohibited, the -
issuance of $640.1 million in sggregate principal amount of additionat
First Mortgege Bonds. We believe that we have sdequate capacity to
issue First Mortgage Bonds to méet cur finencing needs over the next
several years.
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Avista Utilities Capital Expenditures

Capital expendituras for our utility were $713.2 milfion for the
years 2010 through 2012, We expect utility capital expenditures to be
about $260 million for each of 2013, 2014 and 2015.

Our capital budget for 2013 inchudes the fallowing (dolars in milliens):

Transmission and distribution {upgrade current facilities)  § 85
Information technology 53
Customer growth {incremental transmission and distrbution} 23
Genaration K]
Natural gas 2
Facilities 17
Environmental 14
QOther 10
Tutal $ 266

Most of tha capital expenditures above are for upgrading and
maintenance of our existing facilities, and not for construction of new
facilities and we expect all of these capital expenditures to be included
in rate base in future years. These estimates of capital expenditures are
subject to continuing review and adjustment. Actual capital
expenditures may vary from our estimates due to factors such as
changes in business cenditions, construction schedules and
environmental requiraments.

Future generation resource decisions may be further impacted by
legislation for restrictions an greenhouse gas (GHE) emissions and
renewable energy requirements as discussed at “Environmental Issues
and Other Contingencies.”

Included in our estimates of capital expenditures is the
replacement of our customer information and work managemant
systems, which is axpacted to ba completed by the and of 2014, Our
customer information system and work management systems are two of
our most critical technology systems and are interconnected to every
other system in our company. Wae expect to spend a total of
approximately $80 million {including internal laber} over the term of the
project. Major signed contracts for third parties total approximately $25
million as of December 31, 2012,

Ecova Credit Agreement

In July 2012, Ecova entered into a $125.0 million committed line of
credit agreement with various financial institutions that replaced its
$60.0 million committed fine of credit agreement and has an expiration
date of July 2017. The credit agreement is secured by all of Ecova’s
assets excluding investments and funds held for clients. There were
$54.0 million of borrowings outstanding under Ecova's credit agreement
as of December 31, 2012 classified as long-term. The proceeds from
these borrowings were used to fund the acquisitions of Prengva in
November 2011 and LPB in January 2012

The committed line of credit agreement contains customary
covenants and default provisions, including a covenant which requires
that Ecova’s “Consalidated Total Funded Deht to EBITDA Ratio” (as
defined in the credit agreement) must be 2.50 to 1.00 or less, with
pravisions in the credit agreement allowing for a temporary increasa of
this ratio if a qualified acquisition is consummated by Ecova. In addition,
Ecova's “Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” {as defined in the
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credit agreement) must be greater than 1.50to 1.00 as of the last day of
any fiscal guarter. As of December 31, 2012, Ecava was in compliance
with thesa covenants and based on the Consolidated Total Funded Debt
to EBITDA Ratio, Ecova could borrow an additional $5.6 million and still
be compliant with the covenants. The ¢ovenant restrictions are
calculated on a rolling twelve month basis, so this additional borrowing
capacity could increase or decrease or Ecova could be required to pay
down the outstanding debt as future results change. We expect Ecova’s
earnings to increase in the future, so we expect the excess horrowing
capacityto increase as well.

Ecova Redeemable Stock

Ecova’s amendad amployae stock incentive plan provides an
annital wintdow atwhich time helders of commen stock can put their
shares back to Ecova, providing the shares are held for a minimum of six
months. Stock is reacquired at fair market value at the date of
reacquisition. As the repurchase feature is at the discretion of the
minority shareholders and option holders, there were redesmable
noncontrolling interests of $4.9 million as of December 31, 2012 for the
intrinsic value of stock options outstanding, as wall as outstanding
redesmable stock. In 2009, the Ecova employes stock incentive plan
was amended such that, on a prospective basis, not all options granted
under the plan have the put right. Additionally, thers were redeemable
noncontrolling interests related to the 2008 Cadence Natwork
acquisition, a3 the previous owners could have exercised a right to put
their stock back ta Ecova in July 2011 or July 2012 if their investment in
Ecova was not liquidated through sither an initial public offering or sala
of the business to a third party. These redemption rights were not
exercised, expired effective July 31, 2012 and were reclassified to
permanent equity.

Off-Balance Shest Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, we had $35.9 million in letters of credit
outstanding under our $400.0 million committed line of credit, compared
t0.$29.0 million as of December 31,2011,

Pension Plan

As of Dacember 31, 2012, our pension plan had assats with a fair
value that was lass than the benefit obligation under tha ptan. The
pension plan funding deficit {as measured under ASC 715} increased in
2012 primarily due to a decrease in tha discount rate. In 2012, ths
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Cantury (MAP-21) Federal
legislation was approved that changed how the required discount rate
was calculated for funding purposes, impacting the minimum required
contributions as determined by ERESA federal regulations and the
Internal Revenue Code. The change in law required the discount rate
(for the target liability) to be calculated gver a 25 year average versus
the previously required 2 year average. Although the legisletion was not
passed until late 2612, the change in discount rate was retroactively
effective to January 1, 2012, This significantly increased the discount
rate resulting in a lawer target liability. The funded status, as
determined by ERISA federal requtations and the Internal Revenug
Code, for our plan increased from approximataly 80 percant to 102
percent without any other changes as of January 1, 2012, We
contributed $44 million to the pension plan in 2012, We expectto
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gontribute a total of $148.5 million to the pension plan in the period 2013
through 2016, with contributions of $44 million per year for the period
2013to 2015 and a contribution of $16.5 million in 2016. Our contribution
is expected to decrease in 2016 as we move toward fully funded status.
The final determination of pension plan contributions for future periods
is subject to multiple variables, most of which are beyend our control,
in¢luding further changes to the fair value of pension plan assets,
changes in actuarial assumptions (in particular the discount rate used in
determining the henefit ehfigation), or changes in faderal legislation. We
may change our pension plan contributions inthe future depending on
changes to any of the above variables.

Credit Ratings

Qur access to capital markets and our cost of capital ara directly
affacted by our credit ratings. |n addition, many of our contracts for the
purchase and sale of energy commoditias contain terms dependent
upon our credit ratings. See “Collateral Requirements”™ and "Note 6 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The following table summarizes our credit ratings as of
February 26, 2013:

Standard

& Poor's™  Moady's"?
Corporateflssuer rating BBB Baa2
Senior secured debt A- A3
Senior unsecured debt BBB Baa2

{1} Standard & Poor's lowest “investment grads” credit rating is BBB-.
(&} Moody's lowest “investmant grade™ credit rafing is Baas.

AVISTA

A sacurity rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities, Each security rating is subject to revision or withdrawat at
any time by the assigning rating organization. Each security rating
agency has its own methodology for assigning ratings, and,
accordingly, each rating should be considered in the context of the
applicable methodology, independent of &li other ratings. The rating
agencies provide ratings at the request of Avista Corp. and charge
faes for their services.

Dividends

The Board of Directors considers the level of dividends en our
commen stock on a regular basis, taking into account numercus factors
including, without limitation:

« pur results of operations, cash flows and financial condition,
¢ the success of our business strategies, and
= ganeral economic and compatitive conditions,

Our netincome available for dividends is primarily derived from our
regulated utility operations.

The payment of dividends on common stock is restricted by
provisions of certain covenants applicable to preferred stock
(when outstanding) contained in our Restated Articles of
Incorporation, as amended,

On February 8, 2013, Avista Corp.'s Board of Directors declared a
quarterly dividend of $0.305 per share on the Company’s commaon stack.
This was an increase of $0.015 per share, or 5 percent from the previous
quarterly dividend of $0.29 per share.
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Contractual Obligations

The folowing table provides a summary of our future contractuzl shligations as of December 31, 2012 (dollars in millions):

203 2014 2015 2076 2017 Thereafter
Avista Utilitias:
Long-term debt maturities $ 50 % — 3 — 8 — 3 — § 1,203
Long-term debt to affliated trusts - - - — — 52
Interest payments on long-term debt? 67 66 66 66 61
Short-term borrowings 52 — —_ - - —
Energy purchase contragts® 306 228 1% 178 169 1,704
Public Utlity District contracts @ 3 3 3 3 3 L <]
Operating lease obligations® 2 2 — — — 3
{ther obligations™ 3 32 29 Kii} 2 230
Information technology contracts® 15 22 8 g 9 1
Pension plan funding® 44 44 i 17 — —
Spokane Energy:
Nonrecoursa long-term debt maturities 15 16 1 —_ - —
Interest payments on nenracourse long-term debt 2 1 — — — —
Avista Capital (consolidated):
Redeemable noncontrolling interests™® 5 — _— - — —_
Long-tarm horrowings under committed ling of credit — — — — 54 —
Interest payments on leng-term borrowings
under committed line of credit® 1 1 1 1 1 -
Venture funds investments™ 2 — — — — —
Operating lease obligetions®™ 5 5 3 2 1 2
Client fund obligations 88 —— — — — —
Total contractual obligations $ 688 § 20 § k& N2 $ 3 5 3817

{1} Represents our astimate of interast paymants an fong-term debt, which is calculated based on the assumption that aff debt is outstanding until maturity. interest on
vaniable rate debit is calculated using the rata in effect at Dacember 31, 2072,

2] Energy purchasa contracts were entered into as part of the abligation to serve our retaif eleciric and natural gas customers’ energy requiremants. As g result, costs are
genarally recovered aither thiough base retail rates or adjustments to retail rates as part of the power and natural gas cost adjustmant machanisms.

18} Includes the intarest componant of the laase obligation. Futura capital feege abligations are not materis!,

4}  Represents eperational agreements, settfements and other contractual obligations for our generation, transmission and distribution facﬂirie“s_.f Thase cosis are generaily
racoverad through base retail rates.

5] Repressnts our astimated cash contributions to the pansien plan through 2016. We cannot ressonably estimate pension plan contributions bevong 2016 at this time and
have excluged tham from the table abave.

(61 Certain sharas acquirad under Ecova’s employee stock incentive plan are redeemabls at tha option of ths shareholder.

7t Represents a commitment to fund & limited partnership ventura fund commitment made by & subsidiary of Avista Capital,

(8 Includes information service contracts which ara recorded to other oparating expenses in the Cansolidated Statements of Incame as welf as infermation technology
cantracts associated with the raplacemant of our customer information and work mansgement systems, which are capital expsndituras and axpected to be completad

in 2014,
The above contractual obligations do netinciude income tax Competition
payments. Alse, asset retirement obligations are not included above and
payments associated with these have historically been Jess than §1 Our utility electric and natural gas distribution husiness has
millfon per year. There are approximately $3.2 million remaining asset historically been recognized as a natural monopaly. In each regulatory
retirement ohiigations as of December 31, 2012 jurisdiction, our rates for retail electric and natural gas services {octher
In addition to the contragtual obligations disclosed above, we will than specially negotiated retail rates for industrial or large commerciat
incur additional operating costs and capital expenditures in future customers, which are subject to regulatory review and approval) are
periods far which wa are not contractuglly obligated as part of our determined on a “cost of service” basis, Rates are designed to provide,
normal business pperations, after recovery of allowable operating expensas and capital investments,

an opportunity for us to earn a reasonable return on investment as
allowed by our regulators.

{n retail markets, we compate with various rural electric
cooperatives and public utility districts in and adjacent to our service
territories in the provision of service to new electric customers.
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Alternative methods of generation, including safar and other self
genaration, may also compata with us for sales to existing customers.
Similarly, our natural gas distribution operations compete with other
energy sources including heating oil, propane and other fuels.

Certain natural gas customers could by-pass our naturai gas
system, reducing both revenues and recovery of fixed costs. To reduce
the potential for such by-pass, we price natural gas services, ingluding
transportation contracts, compatitively end have varying degrees of
flexibility to prica transportation and delivery rates by means of
individual contracts. These individual contracts are subject to state
regulatory review and approval. We have long-term transportation
sontracts with several of ous largestindustrial customers under which
the customer acquires its own commodity while using our infrastructure
for delivery. Such contracts reduca the risk of these customers
by-passing our system in the foresesable future and minimizes the
impact on our earnings,

Also, non-utility businesses are developing new technalogies and
services to help energy consumers manage energy in new ways that
may improve productivity and could alter demand for the energy we sell.

tn wholesale markets, competition for available electric supply is
influenced by the:

* localized and system-wide demand for energy,

* type, capacity, location and availability of generation
rescurces, and

* variety and circumstances of market participants.

These wholasala markets are regulated by the FERC, which
requires electric utilities to;

* transmit power and energy to or for wholesale purchasers
and sellers,

* anlarge or construct additional transmission capacity for the
purpase of providing these services, and

* transparently price and offer transmission services without favor
to any party, including the merchant functions of the utility.

Participants in the wholesale energy markets include:
= gther utilities,
+ federal power marketing agencies,
* energy marketing and trading companies,
* indspendent power producers,
+ financial institutions, and
¢ commedity brokers.

Ecova is subjact to competition for service to existing customers
and as they develop products and services and enter new markets,
Compatition from other companies may mean challenges for Ecova to
be the first to market a new product or service to gain an advantage in
market share. In addition, Ecova's services utilize rapidly advancing
tachnologies which require comtinual product enhancement to
avoid obsolescence.

Economic Conditions and Utility
Load Growth

The ganeral economic data, on both national and local levels,
contained in this section is based, in part, on independent government
and industry publications, reports by market research firms or other
independent sources. Whila we believe that these publications and
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other sources are reliable, we have not independently verified such data
and can make no representation as to its accuracy.

We track multiple sconomic indicators affecting threa distinct
metropolitan areas in our service area: Spokane, Washington, Coesur
¢'Alene, Idaho, and Medford, Oregon. Several key indicators ara
employment change, unemployment rates and foreclosure rates. Ona
year-over-year basis, December 2012 showed positive job growth, and
lower unemployment rates in ali three matropolitan areas. Foreclosure
rates are in line with of balow the U.S rate in all three areas. However,
the unemploymiont rates are still above the national average and twa key
laading indicaters, initial unemployment claims and residential building
parmits, continue to signal modast growth over the next 12 months,
Therefore, in 2013, we continue to expect economic growth in our
service area to be somewhat slower than the 1.S. as a whole.

Seasonally adjusted nonfarm employment in our gastern
Washington, nerthern |dahe, and southwestern Oregon metropolitan
service areas exhibited moderate growth between December 2011 and
December 2012, In Spokane, Washington employment growth was 1.4
parcent with gains in mining, logging, and construction; leisure and
hospitality; and busiress and professional servicas. Employment
increased by 3.2 percent in Coeur d"Alene, Idaho, refiecting gains in
construction; profassional and business services; financial activities;
trade, transport, and uiilities; and education and health services. In
Medford, Gregon, employment growth was 4.3 percent, with gains in
manufacturing; construction; trade, transport, and utilities; leisura and
hospitality; and financial activities. U.S. nonfarm sector jobs grew by 1.4
percentin the same twelve-month period.

Seasonally adjusted unemployment rates went down in December
2012 from the year earlierin Spokane, Coeur d’Alene, and Madford. In
Spokane the rate was 5.2 parcent in Dacember 2011 and declined to 8.5
percentin December 2012; in Coeur d'Alene the rate want from 9.7
percent to 7.8 percent; and in Medford the rate declined from 11.2
percent to 10.4 parcent. The U.5. rate declined from 8.5 percentto 7.8
percentin the same period.

The housing market in our service area continues to experience
foreclosura rates in line with or lower than the national average. The
December 2012 national rata was 9.12 parcent, compared to 0.15 percent
in Spokane County, Washingten; 0.13 percent in Kootenai County {Cosur
d'Alens), idaho; and 0.01 percent in Jackson County (Medford}, Oregan.

Based on our forecast for 2013 through 2016, we expect annual
electric customer growth to average 0.7 percent to 1.3 percent per year
and annual natural gas customer growth to average 0.7 percentto 1.8
percent within our service area. We anticipate retail electric load
growth to average between 0.7 percent and 1.0 percent and natural gas
load growth to average between 0.7 percent and 1.4 percent. Wa
anti¢ipate customer and load growth atthe lower end of the range in
2013 and a modest recovery ag the écunumy strengthens during the
four-year periad. While the number of electric and natural gas
custamers is growing, the average annual usage by each residential
customer has not changed significantly. Growth in electric and natural
gas sales has slowad as retail prices have increased and Company
sponsared conservation programs have intensified. With a weaker than
normal post-recession recovery in Avista's service area, population and
business growth in our three-state service territory remains ator below
the national average. In addition to the foregoing, stectric and natural
gas sales vary significanty with annual fluctuations in weather within
our service territories.
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The forward-looking statements set forth above regarding retail
load growth are based, in part, upon purchased economic forecasts and
publicly available population and demographic studies. The
expectations regarding retail load growth are alse based upoen various
assumptions, including:

* assumptions relating to weather and economic and competitive
conditions,

« internal analysis of cempany-specific data, such as energy
consumptien patterns,

* internal business plans, and

* an assumption that we will incur no material loss of retail
customers due to self-generaiion or retail wheeling.

Changas in actual experignce can vary significantly from
our projections.

Environmental Issues and Contingencies

We are subject to environmental regulation by federal, state and
local authorities. Tha generation, transmission, distribution, service and
storage facilitias in which wa have ownership interests are designed
and operated in compliance with applicable environmental laws.

* Furthermore, we conduct parindic reviews and audits of pertinent
fagilities and operations to ensure compliance and to respend to or
anticipate emerging environmantal issues. The Company’s Board of
Directors has established & committee to oversee environmental issues.

We monitor legislative and regulatory developments at all levels of
government for environmental issues, particularly thosa with the
potential to impact the operation and productivity of our generating
plants and other assets.

Environmental laws and requlations may:

+ increase the operating costs of generating plants;

+ increase the lead time and capital costs for the constructien of
new generating plants;

+ require modification of our existing generating plants;

* require existing generating plant operations to be curtailed or
shut down;

» reduce the amount of energy available from our generating plants;

 restrictthe types of generating plants that can ba buitt or
contracted with; and

» require construction of specific types of generation plants at
higher cost.

Compliance with environmental laws and regulations could result
in increases to capital expenditures and operating expenses. We intend
to seek recovery of any such costs through the ratemaking process.

Clean Air Act

We must comply with the requirements under the Clean Air Act
(CAA)in oparating our thermal generating plants. The CAA currently
requires a Title V aperating permit for Colstrip Steam Ganeration Facility
(Colstrip) (axpires in 2017}, Coyote Springs 2 (ranewal sxpected in 2013),
the Katile Falls Generation $tation (GS}{renewal expected in 2013}, and
the Rathdrum Combustion Turbine (CT) {expires in 2016). Boulder Park
GS, Northeast CT, and other activities only require minor source
operating or registration permits hased on their lirnited operation and
emissions. The Title V operating permits are renewed every five years
and updated ta include abl newly applicable CAA requirements. We
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actively monitor legislative, requlatory and program developments
within the CAA that may impact our facilities.

0n July 30, 2012, we received a Notice of Intent to Sue for
violations of the Clean Air Act at Colstrip Steam Electric Station {Notice)
from counsel on bahaif of the Sierra Club and the Montana
Environmental Information Center {MEIC). An Amended Notice was
received on September 4, 2012, and Supplemental Noticas were
raceived in October and December 2012, We are evaluating the
allegations set forth in the Notices and cannot at this time predict the
gutcome of this matter, See “Siarra Club and Montana Envirgnmental
Information Center Notice™ in “Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated
Finaneial Statements” for further information on this matter.

HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANTS [HAPs)

The EPA regulates hazardous air pollutants from a published list of
industrial sources referred to as "source categories” which must meet
controf technology requiremants if they amit one or more of the
poflutants in significant guantities. In 2012, the EPA finalized the
Mercury Air Toxic Standards [MATS)} for the coal and oil-fired source
category. For Colstrip Units 3 & 4, the only units in which we are a
minority owner, the existing emission control systems should be
sufficient to meet mercury limits. For the remaining portion of the rule
that spacifically addresses air toxics (including metals and acid gases),
the Calstrip ewners are currently svaluating whattype of new emission
controf systems may be needed for MATS compliance in 2015. We
centinue to monitor, but are unable to determine to what extent or if
thers will be any material impacts to Colstrip at this time.

REGIONAL HAZE PROGRAM

The EPA set a national goal of eliminating man-made visibility
degradation in Class | ereas by ihe year 2064, States are axpected to
take actions to make “reasonable progress” through 10-year plans,
including application of Best Available Retrofit Tachnology (BART)
requirements. BART is a retrofit program appliad to larga smission
sources, including electric generating urits built between 1962 and
1977. In the case whare a State opts out of implementing the Regiona!
Haze program, the EPA may act directly. On $eptember 18, 2012, the
EPA finalized the Regionai Haze federal implementation plan {FIP) for
Montana. Tha FIP includes both emission limitations and pollution
controls for Colstrip Units 1 & 2. Colstrip Units 3 & 4, the anly units of
which we are a minarity owner, are not currently affectad, but will be
evaluated for Reasonable Progress atthe next review period in
September 2017. We do not anticipate any material impacts on Units
3 & 4 at this time. [n November 2012, the National Parks Conservation
Association, MEIC and Sierra Club filed a petition for review of EPA’s
Montana FIP inthe L.5. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. We
continue to monitor, but we are enahla te predict the outcome of
this matter.

Climate Change

Concarns ahout fong-term global climate changes could have a
significant effect on our business. Qur operations could alse be
affected by changes in laws and regulations intended to mitigate the
risk of or alter giobal climate changes, including restrictions on the
operation of our power generation resources and obligations imposed
on the sate of natural gas. Changing temperatures and precipitation,
including snowpack conditions, affect the availability and timing of
streamflows, which impact hydroelectric generation. Extrame weather
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events could increase service interruptions, outages and maintenance
costs. Changing temperatures could alse increase or decrease
customer demand.
Qur Climate Policy Council {an interdisciplinary team of
management and other employees):
+ facilitates internal and gxternal cammunications ragarding climate
change issues,
« analyzes policy impacts, anticipates opportunities and evaluates
strategies for Avista Corp., and
» develops racommendations on ¢limate related policy positions and
action plans.

FEDERAL LEGISLATION

The LS. Congrass has considered many proposals te reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and mandate renewabla or clean energy.
The financial and operational impacts of climate or energy legislation,
if enacted, would depend on a variety of factors, including the specific
provisions and timing of any fagislation that might ultimately be adopted.
Federal legizlative proposals that would impose mandatory
requirements related to greenkouse gas emissions, renewable or clean
gnargy standards, and/or energy efficiency standards are expacted to
continue to be considerad by the U.S. Congress.

FEDERAL REGULATDRY ACTIONS

Tha U.S. Suprema Court rulad in 2007 that the EPA had authority
under the CAA to regulate greenhouse gas emissions from naw motor
vehicles; subsequently, the EPA issued reguiations on tailpipe emissions
of greenhouse gases {GHG), When these regulations became effactive,
GHG became regulated pollutants under the Prevention of Significant
Deterioration (PSD} preconstruction permit program and the Title ¥
operating permit program, which hoth apply to power plants and other
commercial and industrial facilities. In 2010, the EPA issued & final rule,
known as the Tailoring Rule, governing how these programs would be
applied to stationary sourcas, including power plants. The EPA
proposed a rule in garly 2012 setting performance standards for GHG
emigsions from new and modified fossil fusl-fired elactric ganarating
units and announced plans te issue GHG emissions guidelines for
axisting sourcas, Tha ruls for new sources has not been finalized, and
na rule for existing sources has yst been proposed.

GHG emission standards could resultin significant compliance
costs. Such standards could also preclude us from developing,
operating or contracting with certain types of generating plants. Gur
thermal generation facilities may be impacted by the promulgated PSD
permitting rules in the future. These rules can impact the time to obtain
permits for new generation and major modifications to existing
generating units and the final permit fimitations. The promulgated and
proposad GHG rulemakings mantioned above aiso have been legally
challenged in multiple venues, sowe cannot fully anticipate the outcome
or extent our facilities may be impacted by these regulations at this tima.

EPA MANDATORY REPORTING RULE {MAR)

Any facility emitting over 25,000 metric tons of GHGs per year must
reportits emissions. Wa currently report under this requirement for
Colstrip, Coyote Springs 2, and Rathdrum CT, MRR also requires GHG
reporting for natural gas distribution system throughput, fugitive
amissigns from eleciric power transmission and distribution systems,
fugitive emissions from natural gas distribution systems, and from
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natural gas storage facilities. We reported the applicable GHG
emissions in 2012.

STATE LEGISLATION AND STATE REGULATORY ACTIVITIES

The states of Washington and Oregon have adopted non-binding
targets to reduce GHG emissions. Both states enacted their targets with
an expectation of reaching the targets through a combination of
renewable energy standards, and assorted "complementary policies,”
but na specific reductions are mandated.

Washington State's Departmant of Ecology has adopted
regulations to update its State Implementation Plan relstive to EPA's
regulation of GHG emissions. We wifl continue to monitor actions by the
Department ag it may progeed to adopt additional regulations under its
CAA authorities, and cannot pradict any material impact at this tims,

Washington and Oregon apply 2 GHG emissions performance
standard {EPS) to electric generation facilities used to serve retail loads
in their jurisdictions. Tha EPS prevents utilities from constructing or
purchasing generation facilities, or entering inte power purchasa
agreements of five years or longer duretion, to purchase energy
produced by plants that have emission levels higher than 1,100 pounds of
GHG per MWh. The Washington State Departmeant of Commerge
{Commerce} initiated & process to adopt a lower emissions performance
standard in 2012; any new standard will be applicable until at least 2017,
Commerce published a supplemental notice of proposed rulamaking on
January 16, 2012 with a new EPS of 970 pounds of GHE per MWh. We
will continue to monitor this rulemaking, and cannot predict any material
impact at this tims.

Initiative Measure 937 (I-937}, the Energy Indepandence Act,
became [aw in Washingtan's 2006 General Election. |-937 requires
alectric utilities with over 25,000 customers to acquire qualified
renewable energy resources and/or renewable energy credits equal to
15 percent of the utility's total retail load in 2020, 1-937 also requires
these utilities to meet biennial energy ¢onservation targets beginning in
2012, Furthermore, by January 1, 2012, electric utilities subjectto 1-937's
mandates must acquire enough qualified renawable energy andfor
renewable energy credits to meet three percent of their retail load. This
ranewahle energy standard increases to ning percentin 2016, Failurs to
comply with renewable energy and efficiancy standards could resultin
penalties of $50 per MWh or greater assessed against a utility for each
MWh itis deficientin meeting a standard. We have met, and will
continug to meet, the requirements of 1-937 through a variety of
renewable energy generating means, including, but not limited to, soma
combination of hydro upgrades, wind and biomass. In 2012, 1-937 was
amendad in such a way that our Kettle Falls Generating Station and
certain other biomass energy facilities which commenced operation
hetora March 31, 1999, are considered resources that may be used to
meet the renewable energy standards baginning in 2016.

Coal Ash Management/Disposal

Currently, coal combustinn byproducts {CCBs) are not regulated
by the EPA as a hazardous waste. Under a proposed rule issead in 201¢,
tha EPA is reconsidering the classification of CCBs under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act [RCRA). The draftrules included two
options: to require management of CCBs as a hazardous waste under
Subtitle C of the RCRA; or to regulate coal ash under Subtitle D, for
non-hazardous solid wastas, with possible special waste requirements,
Should the EPA determine to requiate GCBs as a hazardous waste
under RCHA, such action could significantly impact future eperations of
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Colstrip. Congress has also considerad proposad legislation regarding
CCB management. We cannot predict the impact of future CCB
regulation. If we were to incur incremental costs as a result of new CCB
regulations, we would seek recovery in customer rates.

Threatened and Endangered Species and Wildiife

A number of species of fish in the Northwest ara listed as
threatened of endangered under the Federal Endangered Species Act.
Efforts to protect these and other species have not directly impacted
generation levels at any of our hydroelectric facifities. We are
implementing fish protection measures at its hydroelectric project on
the Clark Fork River under a 45-yaar FERC operating ficense for Cabinet
Gorge and Noxon Rapids {issued March 2001) that incorporates a
comprehensive settlement agreement. The restoration of native
salmonid fish, including bull trout, is a key part of the agreement. The
result is a collaborative nativa salmonid restoration program with the
.5, Fish and Wildlife Service, Native American tribes and the states of
Idaho and Montana onthe lower Clark Fork River, consistent with
requirements of the FERC license. The U.5, Fish & Witdtife Service
issued an updated Critical Habitat Designation for bull trout in 2010 that
includes the lower Clark Fork River, as well as portions of the Coeur
d"Alene basin within our Spokane River Project area, and is currently
developing a final Bull Trout Recovery Plan undar the ESA. Issues
related to these activities are expected to ba resolved through the
ongoing collahorative affort of our Clark Fork and Spekane River FERC
licenses. See “Spokane River Licensing” and "Fish Passage at Cabinet
Gorge and Noxon Repids™ in “Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” for further information.

Various stautory authorities, including the Migratory Bird Treaty
Act, have established penalties for the unauthorized take of migratory
birds. Bacause we operate facilities that can pose risks te a variety of
such hirds, wa have developed and follow an avian protection pian.

Other
For other environmental issuas and other contingencies see “Note
21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RiSK

Qur primary market risk exposures are:

« Commedity prices for electric power and natural gas

» Credit related to the wholesale energy market

+ |nterast ratas on long-term and short-term debt

« Foreign exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the
Canadian dollar

Commedity Price Risk
ELECTRIE POWER COMMODITIES
We are exposed to market risks for electric power because of:
+ imbalances between availabla power supply resources and our
load obligations,
= substitution of resources to achieve economic dispatch from
available power supply choices, and
+ pur objective to optimize the value of specific power
resource facilities.
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Imbalances between availahlz powsr supply resources and our
electric load obligations arise hecause of seasonal factors, operating
parameters of our facilities, contract rights and contract ebligations,
and variations in customer demand. We forecest both obligations and
resources to estimate our future surplus ar deficit positions. We hedge a
portion of the open position with forward transactions that establish
physical supply {or dispasition) and/or financially-equivalent derivatives
that mitigate economic uncertainty. Seasonal factors and pravailing
weather affact pawer supplies. Supply is affected by both temperature
and the timing and amount of precipitation, particularly with respact to
our hydroelectric generation facilities that rely on river flows from
immediate precipitation and from melting snow. Wind conditions affect
the amount and timing of supply from wind generation facilities.
Operational parameters affecting power resources include natural river
flow, water storage and requlation-driven constraints for hydroelectric
generation. Operational parameters also incfude maintenance
requirements and forced outages at eleciric generating plants, fual
availahility for thermal plants, environmental and other regulatory
tonstraints and other factors.

Electric power obligations include retail customer demand and
other commitments between Avista Corp. and other parties in the
wholesale power market. Retail customer demand is sensitive to
temperature and to normal seasonal temperature variation that impacts
customers’ heating and cooling-related demand for anergy. Obligations
are alse affected by customer growth, economic conditions, technology
that adds to or reduces electric demand, and choices that customers
make about energy usage. Our forecasts of obligations consider
contractterms, past energy demand patterns and indicators of potential
changes in energy consumption.

Economic dispatch invelves the decisions that we make in the mix
of power resources to meet our retail customer requirements and other
ubligations. We make dispatch decisions to operate or not operate our
reseurces and to dispose of energy or to obtain resources from others in
the wholesale power market {including natural gas fusl markets),
Hydroelactric generation is typically the lowest cost source of supply.
Thermal generation resourca costs vary with fuel costs and other
factors. Power purchase agreements may provide us with variable
power supply quantities and contract terms can include both fixed and
variable costs,

To balance electric power resources and elactric demand
obligations, we enter into transactions in the wholesale power and fuel
markets, These transactions include physical power and natural gas and
derivative instruments based on wholesals prices of power and natural
gas. Wholesale market prices tend to vary with niatural gas fuel costs to
the extent that natural gas-fired resources are the least cost alternative
in the region {which is often the case in racent years). Wholesale prices
&lso tend to vary with the extent of hydroelectric surplus or shortages,
particularly during the highest hydroalectric generation periods of
Spring rains and snow mett. Wholesale prices also vary based on wind
patterns that affect output from wind generation facilities in the region,
Requirements for renewable energy resources and tax credit incentives
for such resources can impact wholesale prices, including sometimes
pushing pricas to negative values. Generating resgurce availahility and
regional demand tend to impact energy prices. Wholesale prices are
quoted for energy te be delivered intime frames ranging from intra-hour,
hourly, daily, multi-day, menthly, quarterly and annvally. Future market
prices extend several years into the futurs, though market liguidity tends
te become limited beyond a few years into the future.
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NATURAL GAS COMMODITIES

We purchase natural gas for delivery ta retail natural gas
customers. Some natural gas is purchased for injection into storage,
which can later be withdrawn from storage. We also sell natural gas
originally purchased for retail natural gas supply or inventory back into
the wholesale market. Some of the wholasale natural gas transactions
are executed at fixed prices for future delivery, while some are executed
basad on marketindex prices or spot prices, We transact for physical
delivery of natural gas and we enter into swaps that create a financial
hedga for future natural gas prices.

Natural ges is a significant seurca of fuel for elactric gensration.
Wa buy natural gas as fuel for electric generating facilities that we awn
and for the Lancaster Plant where we have contractuai rights to
dispatch its operation. We also sell natural gas when we have an
opportunity to displace thermal generation with ather power supply
resources or whan expected thermal generation does not actually eccur
for any reason.

We hedge a portion of these natural gas purchases and sales,
inchuding the use of physical delivery contracts and derivative
instruments based on wholesale prices of natural gas. We also transact
based on index pricing in the wholesale natural gas market and at spat
market prices that can vary significantly.

Some, but not all, natural gas transactions related to thermat
genergtion are executed concurrently with similar quantities of electric
energy (based on physical fugl-to-power conversien parameters of
ganeration facilities that we own or control). In such cases, the net
economic cost or benefit between natural gas purchases and power
sales {or gas sales offset by power purchases) will vary as each
commodity price moves independently of the other.

Wa enter into natural gas transactions intended to extract value
{rom our assets and contract rights. These asset pptimization
transactions include purehases and offzetting sales at twoe delivery
locations when we have excess capacity avallable in natural gas
pipelines {such pipelines are usually owned by other parties where we
have contract rights for that capacity). Asset optimization strategies
also include time difference purchases and sales of natural gas that use
excess starage capacity available in our underground natural gas
storage facilities. These transactions include commitments for future
physical delivery and/or financial swaps tied to the price of natural gas.

MATTERS AFFECTING BOTH ELECTRIC AND NATURAL GAS COMMODITIES

Variation in electric and natural gas commadity prices affects our
cash flow, customer retail rates and the amount of netincome we
recognize. Regulatory cost recovary mechanisms address these power
supply and gas cost variations, such that a portion of the cost variation
is passed on to customers and a portion is recognized by the Company.
The timing of incurring costs can he significantly different than the
timing for recovering costs, resulting in the need for a significant
liguidity cushion. Historically, we have carried significant balances of
deferred power supply and natural gas supply costs, which reprasent
costs we expectto recaver from customers in future retail rates, subject
to approval by regulators.

When we have surplus electric genaration, its value varies with
market prices and economics of other resources in the region. When we
have a shortage of elsctric generation from our own resources and
other resources thatwe have long-ierm rights to control, the costto
obtain electric power or fuel varies. We make forecasts to estimate
surplus and deficit conditions and we may enter into forward hedging
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arrangements to reduce the expected net surplus or deficit. Our
forecasts cannot avoid uncertainty about loads or obligatiens and we do
not attempt to fully hedge all forecast net open positions. Dur hedges
include forward transactions ranging from intra-hour te multiple years in
the future, with transaction blocks of intra-hour, hourly, daily, monthly,
quarterly, annually, and multiple years. See further information at
“Avista Utilitiss—Regulstory Matters.”

Sea “Risk Management for Energy Resources” for additional
information on our activities to hedge our exposure to price risk by
making forward commitments for energy purchases and sales.

Wholesale electricity prices are affected by a number of
factors, including;

+ demand for electricity, .

» adeguacy of generating reserve margins,

* scheduled and unscheduled outages of generating facilities,

» availahility of streamflows for hydroelectric generation,

+ price and availability of fuel for thermal generating plants,

» disruptions to or constraints on transmission facilities,

+ the number of market participants and the willingness of market
participants to trade, and

» weather {including temparature fluctuations and generation
resulting from wind).

Whalesale natural gas prices are affected by a number of
factors, including:

» demand for natural gas, including natural gas as fuel for
electric genaration,

* actual and expected changes in the North American natural gas
supply volume or source mix including the growthin
unconventional supplies such as natural gas from shale,

* natural gas production that can be delivered to our service areas,

* |gvel of imports and exports, particularly fram Canada by pipetine,
and any taxes or restrictions that apply,

+ potential development of liquefied natural gas export facilities that
compete for supplies,

» |avel of storage inventories and regional accessibility,

+ global energy markets, ingluding oil or other natural gas
substitutes, such as coal,

+ availability of pipeline capacity to transport natural gas from
region to region, and

+ the number of market participants and the witlingness of market
participants te trade.

Any combination of thesa factars that reduces the supply of or
increases demand for energy generally causes the market price to move
upward. Conversely, factors that reduce demand ot increase production
will generally reduce market prices for anergy. In addition to these
factors, wholagale power markets are subject to regulatory constraints
including price controls,

Price risk relates to physical energy preducts and to fluctuation in
market prices of associated derivative commaodity instruments (such as
swaps, options and forward contracts). Price risk may be influenced to
the extent that the performance or non-performance by market
participants of their contractual obligations end commitments affact the
supply of, or demand for, the commedity.

Substantially all forwsrd contracts to purchase or sell power
and natural gas are recorded as derivative assets or liabilities at
estimated fair value with an pffsetting regulatory asset or liability.
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is a decline in the fair valus of the contractthat is determined to be
other than temporary.

Contracts that are not considered derivatives are generally accounted
for on the accrual basis untif they are settled or realized, unless there

The following table presents ensrgy cormodity derivative fair values as a net asset of {fiability} as of December 31, 2812 that are expected fo setile
in each respective year (dallars in thousands}):

Purchases : Sales

Elactric Derivatives fias Derivatives Electric Darivatives Gas Derivatives

Year Physical™  Financial”  Physical™  Finencial®  Physice! Financial Physical Financial
2013 3 (5,165} §& {26,360} & (20,085) § {17.560) $ 154 § 743 3 {709) % 13218
2014 (3,745} {1,684} {6,384} 530 30 6721 {1,125) {434}
pil 13 {2,390) {213) {1,684) 389 {136} 116 — {227
2016 {2,644} — (270} i (194} - —_ —
17 (2.293) - —_ — {323} — — -
Thereafter {2,396) - —_ - {753} - — —

The following tabla presents ensrgy commodity derivative fair values as a net assef ot (liakility) as of December 31, 2011 that are expected to settle
in each respective year {dollars in thousands):

Purchazes Sales
Electric Derivatives Gas Derivatives Electric Derivatives Gas Derivatives

Year Physical®  Financial™  Physical™  Financial™®  Physical Financial Physical Financial

w2 3 m ,%3) s 125,363} § 136,597) § 13,505 & 1007 % 1206 % W 8 3,647

03 {2479 (12,021} {1512 {12,989} {38) 10,060 (1,073} 7,360

2014 {1,203) {73 {4,500} (3,014} {88) 1,347 (918} {235)
2015 {1,186} — (1.014) (435) {114 — — —
2016 {899} — {81) 46 (177 - _— —
Thereafter {695} —_ —_ — {817 — — -_
(1t Physicsl transactions represent commodity transactions where wa will take dalivary of either elactricity or natural gas and financial ransactions represent derivative

instruments with no physical delivery, such as futures, swaps, options, or forward contracts.

The above electric and natural gas derivative contracts will be
included in either powar supply costs or natural gas supply costs
during the period they settle and will be included in the various
recovery mechanisms (ERM, PCA, and PGAs), or in the general rate
case process, and are expected to eventually be collected through
retail rates from customers.

Credit Risk
COUNTERPARTY NON-PERFORMANCE RISK

Credit risk relates to potential losses that we wouldincuras a
result of non-performance of contractual obligatiens by counterperties
to deliver anargy or make financial settiements, We often extend credit
to counterparties and customers, and we are exposed to the risk of not
being able to collect amounts owed to us. Credit risk includes potential
counterparty default dus to circumstances:

* relating directly to the counterparty,

« caused by market price changes, and

= relating te other market participants that have a direct orindirect
relationship with such counterparty.

Changes in market prices may dramaticalfy alter the size of credit
risk with counterparties, even when we astablish conservative credit
limits. Should & counterparty fail to perform, we may ba required to
honor the underlying commitment or to replece existing contracts with
contracts at then-currant market prices.
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Woa enter into bilataral transactions with varicus counterparties.
We also trade energy and reiated derivative instrumants through
clearinghouse exchanges.
We seek to mitigate bilateral credit risk by:
+ antering into bilateral contracts that specify creditterms and
protections against default,
+ applying credit limits and duration criteria to existing and
prospective counterparties,
« actively monitoring current credit exposures,
+ asserting our collateral rights with counterparties, and
* carrying out transaction settlements timely and effectively.

We also mitigate credit risk by transacting through exchanges that
use fully collateralized clearing arrangements to significantly reduce
counterparty default risk. The extent of transactions conducted through
exchanges has increased as many market participants have shown a
preference toward exchange trading and have reduced bilateral
transactions. We actively monitor the collateral required by such
exchanges to effectively manage our capital requirements.

Qur credit pelicy and processas include an evaluation of the
financial condition and credit ratings of counterparties, collateral
requirements or other ¢redit enhancements, such as letters of credit or
parent company quarantees, We use hoth tailored and standardized
agreements as we negotiate contract tarms with counterparties, Such
contract terms often allow for the netting or offsetting of positive and
neqative exposures assncisted with 2 single counterpacty or affiliated
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group. Despite mitigation efforts, the risk of counterparty default or
axcessive collateral domands on us cannot be entirely eliminated.
Credit risk may be affected by industry concentration and
geographic concantration. Wae have cencentrations of suppliers and
customers in the electric and netural gas industries including:
« electric and natural gas utilities,
» glectric generators and transmission providers,
« natural gas procducers and pipelines,
= financial institutions including commodity clearing exchanges and
related parties, and
= gnergy marketing and trading companies.

We have concentrations of credit risk related to our
geographic location in the western United States and western
Canada energy markets, These concentrations of counterparties
and concentrations of geographic [ocation may affect our overall
exposure to credit risk bacause the counterparties may be similarly
affected by changes in conditians.

DEMANDS FOR COLLATERAL .

Credit risk affects demands on our capital. We are subject to limits
and credit terms that counterparties may assertto allow us to enter into
transactions with them and maintain acceptable credit exposures. Many
of our counterparties allow unsecured credit at limits prescribed by
agreements of their discretion. Capital requirements for certain
transaction types involve a combination of initial margin and market
value margins without any unsacursd credit threshold. Counterparties
may seek assurances of performance from us in tha form of latters of
credit, prepayment or cash deposits.

Credit exposure can change significantly in periods of price
volatility. As a result, sudden and significant demands may be made
against our credit facilities and cesh. We actively monitor the
exposure to possible collateral calls and take steps to minimize
capital requirements,

Counterparties’ credit exposure to us is dynamic in normal
markets and may change significantly in morz volatile markets. The
amount of potential dafault risk to us from each counterparty depends
on the extent of forward contracts, unsettiad transactions and market
prices. There is a risk that we may seek additional collateral from
counterparties that are unabla or unwilling to provide it.

Risk Management for Energy Resources

We have an energy resources risk policy, which includes our
wholesale energy markets credit policy and control procedures to
manage energy commodity price and credit risks. Qur Risk
Management Committea established our risk management pelicy for
energy resources. The Risk Management Committae is comprised of
certain officers and ather management. Qur Risk Management
Committer also establishad our wholesale energy markets credit
policy. The credit policy is designed to reduce tha risk of financial toss
in case counterparties default on delivery or settlement obligations
and to conserve our liquidity as other parties may place credit imits or
require cash collateral.

Tha Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors
periodically reviews and discusses enterptise risk management
processes, and it focuses on the Company’s matarial financial and
accounting risk exposures and the steps management has undartaken
to control them. Qur Risk Management Committee reviews the status of
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risk exposures through regular reports and mestings. Nonetheless,
adverse changes in commodity prices, generating capacity, customer
loads, regulation and other factors may result in losses of earnings, cash
flows and/or fair valuas.

Inimplementing our risk management palicy for energy resources,
we measure the volume of monthly, quarierly and annual energy
imbalanges between projected power loads and resources. The
measuremant process is based on expected loads at fixed prices
(including those subject to ratail rates} and expected resources to the
extent that costs are essentially fixed by virtue of known fuel supply
costs ar projected hydroelectric conditions. To the extent that expected
costs are not fixed, either because of volume mismatches between
loads and rasources or because fuel cost is not locked in through fixed
price contracts or derivative instruments, our risk policy guides the
process te manage this open forward position over a pariod of time.
Normal operations resuitin seasonal mismatches between power loads
and availeble resources, We are ablo to vary the operation of generating
resources to match parts of intra-hour, hourly, daily and weskly load
fluctuations. We use the whalesale power markets, including the natural
gas market as it relates to power generation fuel, to sell projected
resource surpluses and ohtain resourcas when deficits are projectad.
We buy and sell fuel for thermal generation facilities based on
comparative power market prices and marginal costs of fueling and
operating available generating facilities and tha relative economics of
substitute market purchases for generating plant operation.

To address the impact on our operations of energy market price
volatility, our hadging practices for electricity (including fuel for
generation) and natural gas extend beyond the current operating year.
Executing this extended hedging program may increase our credit risks.
Our cradit risk managament process is designed to mitigate such credit
risks through limit setting, contract protections and counterparty
diversification, among other practices.

Qur projected retail natural gas loads and resources are
regularty reviewed by operating managemant and the Risk
Management Committee. To manage the impacts of volatite natural
gas pricas, we seck to procure natural gas through a diversified mix of
spot market purchasas and forward fixad price purchases from various
supply basins and time periods. We have an active hedging program
that extends four years into the fature with the goal of reducing price
volatility in our natural gas supply costs, We use natural gas storage
capacity to support high demand periods and to procure natural gas
when prices are likely to be seasonaly lower. Securing pricas
throughout the year and even into subsequent years mitigates
potential adverse impacts of significant purchase requirements in a
valatile price environment.

Interest Rate Risk

Woe are affected by fluctuating interest rates related to a portion
of our existing debt, our future barrowing requirements, and our
pension and other post-retirement henefit obligations. The Finance
Committee of our Board of Directors periodically reviews and discusses
interest rate risk management processes, and it focuses on the steps
managemsnt has undertaken to contral it. We manage interast rate
exposure by limiting our variable rate exposures to a percentage of total
capitalization. Additionally, interest rate risk is managed by monitoring
market cenditions when timing the issuance of long-term debt and
optional debt redemptions and through the use of fixed rata long-term
debt with varying maturities. Wae also hadge a portion of our interest
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rate risk with financial derivative instruments, which may include
interest rate swaps and U.S. Treasury lock agreaments.

These interest rate swap agreements are considered economic
hedges against fluctuations in future cash flows asseciated with
anticipated dabt issuances.

As of December 31, 2012, we had interast rate swap agreemants
with a total notional amount of $160.0 million with mandatory cash
sattlement dates of June 2013, October 2014, and October 2015 {which
we entered into in Septamber 2071 and June 2012,

As of December 31, 2012, we had a current dorivative liability of
$1.4 million and a long-term derivative asset of $7.3 million, with an
nffsetting ragutatory asset and fiability on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets in accordanca with regulatory accounting practices. We
estimate that a 10-basis-point increase in forward LIBOR interest rates
as of December 31, 2012 would increase the interest rate swap
derivative net asset by $3.3 million, while a 10-basis-puoint decrease
would decrease the interest rate swap net asset by $3.3 milfion,

As of December 31, 2011, we had interest rate swap agreements
with a total notienal amount of $160.0 million and a total derivative
liability of $18.9 million. We estimated that a 10-basis-pointincrease in
forward LIBOR interest rates as of December 31, 2011 would have
increased this derivative liability by $3.4 million, while a 10-basis-paint
decrease would decrease the liability by $3.4 million.

In May 2012, we cash settled interest rate swap contracts
(notianal amount of $75.0 militon) and paid a total of $18.5 million. The
interest rate swap contracts were seftled in connaction with the pricing
of $80.0 million of First Mortgage Bonds. Upon settlement of the interest
rate swaps, the regulatory asset or liability {included as part of
long-term debt) will ba amortized as a component of interast expense
over the life of the forecasted interest payments.

The interest rate on $51.5 million of long-term debt to affiliated
trusts is adjusted quarterly, reflecting cutrent market rates. Amounts
berrowed under our committed line of credit agreements have variable
interest rates.

The following table shows our long-term debt (including current pertion} and refated weighted-average intersst rates, by expacted maturity dates

as of December 31, 2012 (dollars in thousands):

2013 mi 2015 2016 2817 Thoreafter Total  FairValue

Fixed rate long-term dett~ § 50,000 — — — ~— § 1200000 § 1253000 3 1485531
Weighted-average

interast rate 1.68% — —_ - — 5.48% 5.33%
Fixed rate nonrecourse

long-term debt of

Spokane Energy $ 14965 § 16407 & 1431 — — — § 1280 § 35,297
Weighted-average

interest rate 8.45% 8.45% 8.45% — — — 845%
Yariable rate fong-term

debt to affiliated trusts — — - - — § G157 § 5T § 43686
Weighted-average

interest rate s — — — — 1.19% 1.19%
Foreign Currency Risk lighilities on the Consolidatad Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2012,

A significant portion of our utility natural gas supply lincluding fuel
for electric generation} is obtained from Canadian seurces. Mast of
those transactions are executed in U.S. dallars, which aveids foreign
currency risk. A portion of our short-term natural gas transactions and
long-term Canadian transportation contracts are commiited based on
Canadian currency prices. The short-term natural gas transactions are
typically settled within sixty days with U.5. dollars. We economically
hedge a partion of the foreign currency risk by purchasing Canadian
currency when such commedity transactions are initiated. This risk has
not had a matarial effect on our financis! condition, resutts of operations
or cash flows and these differences in cost related to currancy
fluctuations are included with natural gas supply costs for ratemaking.
As of December 31, 2012, we had a current derivative liability for foreign
currency hedges of less than $0.1 million included in other currant
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we had entered into 20 Canadian currency forward contracts with a
notional amount of $12.6 million ($12.5 million Canadian). As of
Decembar 31,2011, we had entered into 28 Canadian currency forward
contracts with a notienal amount of §7.0 million {$7.2 million Canadian)
with current derivative asset of lass than $0.1 mitlion,

Further information for derivatives and fair values is disclosed at
“Note b of the Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements” and “Note
17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiem and
Financial Stataments begin on the next page.
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Report of independent Registered Public Accounting FHrm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Avista Corporation
Spokane, Washington

We have audited the accompanying censolidated balance sheets of Avista Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”} as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the rolated consolidated statemants of ingoms, comprehensive income, equity and redeemable noncontrolling intorests, and cash
fiows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Qur responsibility is ta express an opinion on these financial statements baged on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard {United States). Those
standards raquire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, avidence supporting the ameunts and disclosures in tha financial statements. An audit
alsu includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, a3 well as evaluating the overalt financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonahble basis for our epinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements presant fairly, in all matarial respacts, the financial pasition of Avista Corporation and
subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and tha results of their operations and thair cash fiows for each of the three years in tha period snded
December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for variable interest entities
effective January 1, 2010, due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update No, 2009-17, Censelidations—improvemenis to Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Varable Interest Entities.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boerd {United States), the Company's
internal controd over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in /ntemal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committae of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report, dated February 26, 2013 expressed an ungualified
epinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Toucha LLP

Seattls, Washington
February 26, 2013
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Aviste Corporation
For the Years Ended Decamber 31,
Dollars in thousands, except par shars amounts

2012 2011 200
Operating Revenues:
UHility revenues $ 1352385 $ 1441522 § 1417846
Ecova ravenues 165,664 137,848 102,035
Other non-utility revenuss 38,983 £410 38,859
Tatal opevating revenues 1,547 002 1,619,780 1,558,740
Oparating Expanses:
Ltility operating expensas:
Resolrce costs 693,177 790,048 785,075
Other operating expenses 276,780 261926 262431
Depreciation and amortization 112,091 105,629 100,554
Taxes other than income taxas 83,409 83347 73382
Ecova operating expenses;
Gther operating expenses 139,173 109,738 80,100
Depreciation and amortization 13519 7,193 6,070
Other non-utility operating expenses:
Other operating expenses 38,041 Bz 30,386
Depreciation and amortization 792 178 1,002
Total operating expenses 1,356,932 1,391,776 1,339,006
Income from operations 190,070 23,004 219,734
Interest expense 76,894 73,876 75,789
Interest expense to affiliated trusts 541 32 535
Capitalized interest {2,401) {2.942) (298}
(thar income—nsgt {5,025) {3,433) {2,407}
Income before income taxes 120,061 160,171 146,105
Income tax expense 41,261 §6,632 51,157
Netincome 78,800 103,539 94,948
Less: et income atiributabla to noncontrofling interasts (590) {3,315) {2523}
Netincome attributable to Avista Corporation shareholders $ 78210 § 100224 § 92425
Weighted-average common shares outstanding {thousands)}—hasic 59,028 57872 55,595
Weighted-avarage common shares outstanding {thousands}—diluted 5,201 58,092 55,624
Earnings per common share attributable to Avista Corporation shareholders:
Basic 8 132 § 73§ 1.66
Diluted § 132 § 172 § 1.65
Dividends paid per common share $ 116 § 110 § 1.00

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Fart of Thesa Statemants.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Avista Corporation
For ths Years Ended December 31,
Dollars in thousands
2012 20m 2010
Net income 73800 § 103533 $ 94,948
(Other Comprehensive Income {Loss):
" Unrealized investment gains—net of taxes of $191 and $77, respectively i 134 —
Reclassification adjustment for realized geins on investment securities
included in net incame-—net of taxes of ${171) (290} - e
Change in unfunded benefit obligation for pension and other
postretirement benefit plans—net of taxes of ${5901, ${778) and ${1,064), respectively (1,096 {1,445) [1,976)
Totad othar comprehensive loss (1,063) {1,311) {1,976)
Comprehensive income 71137 102,228 92,972
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests {590) {3,315} {2.523)
Comprehensive income attributable to Avista Corporation shareholders ALY 98813 § 90,448

The Accompanying Notes are an Integrel Fart of These Stataments.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Avista Corporation
As of December 31,
Dollars in thousands
2012 2m
Assats:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $§ 75464 § 74,662
Accounts and notes receivable—less allowances of $44,155 and $43,958 193,683 203,452
Utility energy commodity derivative assets 4139 1,13%
Regulatory assat for wility derivatives 15,082 £9,685
Investments and funds held for clients 83,272 185%
Materials and supplies, fuel stock and natural gas stored 47,455 52,006
Deferred income taxes 3.2 30473
Income taxes receivable 20n 15,378
Dther current assets 2454 10,25
Total current assets 505,794 614,556
Net Utility Property:
Utility plant in service 4,064,644 3887,304
Construction work in progress 143,098 7192322
Total 4,197,742 3,966,706
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,174,026 1,105,930
Total net utdity property 3,023,116 2,860,776
Other Non-current Assets:
Investmentin exchange power—nat 16,333 18,783
Investment in affiliated trusts 11,547 11,547
Goodwill 75,959 35,045
Intangible assets—net of accumulated amertization of $26,030 and $16,629, raspectively 48,756 uen
Long-term energy contract receivable of Spokane Energy 52,033 62525
Other property and investments—net 46,542 15,687
Total other non-currant assats 248,670 212,209
Defarred Charges:
Regulatory assets for deferred incoma tax 79,406 34576
Requlatory assets for pensions and other postretirement benefits 306,408 260,359
Other regulatory assets 103,946 118,738
Nen-current utility enargy commodity derivative assets 1,093 185
Nen-current regulatory asset for utility derivatives 25218 40,345
Other deferred charges 18,928 21,18
Total defarred charges 534,995 526,980
Total assets $ 4313173 § 421450

The Accompanying Notes ars an Integral Part of Thesg Statemeants.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

Avists Corporation
As of lecember 31,
Dollars in thousands
0z 2011
Liabilities and Equity:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 108914 166,954
Chisnt fund obligations 87,839 118,325
Current portien of long-term deft 50,372 1474
Current partien of nonrecourse long-tarm debt of Spokane Enargy 14,965 13,668
Shart-term borrowings 52 000 95,000
Uhility energy commadity derivative liabifities 29515 70,824
Other currant liabilitias 142 544 153829
Total current linhilities 576,149 627,174
Long-term debt 1,178,367 1,189,826
Nonrecourse long-term dabt of Spokanae Enargy 17,428 32803
Long-term debt to affiliated trusts 51,547 51547
Long-term borrowings under committed line of credit 54,000 —
Regulatory liability for utility plant retirement costs 234,128 207,282
Pensions and other postretirement benefits 283,985 246177
Deferrad income taxes 524 877 505,954
Other non-current liabilities and deferred credits 110,215 116,084
Tatal Eabilities 3,031,106 2,476,847
Commitments and Contingencies (See Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements)
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests 4,938 51,809
Equity:
Avista Corporation Stockholders’ Equity:

Commen stock, no par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 59,852,796 and 58,422,781 shares outstanding 889,237 55,188
Aceumulated other comprehensiva loss {6,700) {5637)
Retained earnings 376,940 336,150

Total Avista Corporation stoeckholders’ equity 1,259,477 1,185,701
Noncontrolling interests 17658 174

Total equity 1,277,135 1,185,875

Total liabilitias and equity

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Aviste Corporation
For the Yeers Ended December 31,
Dallars in thousands
22 2m Fiiy]))
Operating Activities:
Net incoms S 78800 & 103539 $ 94,948
Non-cash items included in net income:
Depreciation and amortization 126,402 13,600 107,626
Provision for deferred income taxes 21,449 24007 3734
Power and natural gas cost amortizations {deferralsk—net 6,702 21870 {9,795)
Amortization of debt expense 3,803 4517 4414
Amortization of investment in exchange power 2,450 2450 2450
Stock-based compensation expense 5792 5,756 4916
Equity-related AFUDC #0550 (2,225 {3.353)
Pension and other postretirement benefit expense 39,838 32,087 24760
Amortization of Spokana Energy contract 10,492 9,645 8856
Gther 5,256 {4,988) (2,365)
Contributions to definad benafit peasion plan {44,000} {26,000) {21,000}
Changes in working capital componants:
Accounts and notes receivable 8,100 0615 {19,081}
Materials and supplies, fuel stock and natural gas stored 4,551 {3,388) {11,248}
Other current azsets 27,258 {23881 (3,230}
Accounts payable 30,189 {18,032) 13,606
Other current liabilities (6,474) {188) 5,169
Net cash provided by operating activities 316,553 269,465 228437
Investing Activities:
Utility property capitsl expenditures {excluding equity-related AFUDC) (21,187 {239,752) (202,227
Other capital expenditures {4,787 {3,590} {2429
Federal grant payments received 8,217 16,928 1,585
{ash paid by subsidiaries for acquisitions, net of cash received {60,310} (31,409) 3170
Decreast {increase) in funds hald for clients 6811} 78,561 {48,895)
Purchasa of securities available for sale (100,374} (96,634} -—
$ale and maturity of securities available for sale 137,999 il —
Other {7,475} {6,435} {3.480)
Net cash used in investing activities {294,668) {282,281 (253,223

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Avista Corporation
For the Years Ended December 31,
Dollars in thousands
2012 2M 2m0
Financing Activities:
Net increase {decrease in short-term borrowings {9000) § (480000 $ 23080
Borrowings from Ecova line of credit 33,000 35,000 2300
Repayment of Bermowings from Ecova line of credit {14,0600) — (8,000)
Proceoeds from isstiznce of long-term dabt 80,600 85,000 136,365
Redemption and maturity of long-term debt (11,492) (297} {110,242
Premiums paid for the redemption of long-term debt - — {10,710)
Maturity of nonrecourse long-term debt of Spokane Energy 113.669) {12,463} (11,370
Long-term debt and short-term borrowing issuance costs {764} {4,477} [916)
Cash paid for settiement of interest rate swsp agreements {18,547} {10,557 —
Issuance of common stock 29079 26,463 46235
Cash dividends paid {68,552} (83,737} {55,682}
Purchase of subsidiary noncontralling interest {917} 6,179} (2,533)
Increase {decreass) in client fund obligations {30,956} 12,782 48,885
Issuance of subsidiary nencentrolling interest 34 — —
Other 1,061 530 {118}
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities {21,083} 18,065 57,164
Metincrease in cash and cash equivalents 802 5.24% 32378
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 74,662 69413 37,035
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 75464 $ 74662 $ 69.413
Supplementai Cash Aow Information:
Cash paid during the year:
Interast 74800 $ 63083 $ 74,195
Income taxes £,069 26,451 14,153
Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Accounts payable for capital expenditures 21,33 20,629 8215
Utility proparty acquired under capital leases — - 5,300
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 110,104} 4,059 10,442
Contingent consideration by subsidiary for acquisition 375 e 1134

The Accompanying Notes are en Imagral Part of Thosa Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Equity and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Avista Corperation
For the Years Ended Dacamber 31,
Doltars in thousands
2012 20N 2019
Commean Stock, Shares:
Shares outstanding at beginning of year 5842278t S2,119723 54838781
Issuance of common stock through equity compensation plans 245 661 151057 141,545
kssuante of commen stock tirough Employee Investment Plan (401-X) 45715 59 11,116
Issuance of commaon steck through Dividend Reinvestment Plan 167,448 177,822 76,071
Issuance of common stock 931,191 807,000 2,054,110
Shares cutstanding at end of year 59,812,796 58,422,781 57,119,723
Common Stock, Amount:
Balance at beginning of year $ 855188 3 B27592 &  TIRAY
Equity compensation expense 5116 3535 3,097
Issuance of common stock through equity compensation plans 305 1879 1942
Issuance of common stock through Employee Investment Plan (401-K) 1,165 1,073 235
Issuance of common stock through Dividend Reinvestment Plan 4,226 4,799 1,451
Issuanca of common stock, net of issuance costs 23,383 18,213 42,607
Equity transactions of consolidated subsidiasies {745) (2,503} {387)
Balance at end of year §89,237 855,188 §27592
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Balanca at baginning of year {5,637} (4,326} {2,350}
Other comprehensive loss {1,083} (1.311) {1,976)
Balance at end of year {6,700} (5.637) (4,326)
Retgined Earnings:
Balance at beginning of year 336,150 302,518 274990
Net income attributable to Avista Corporation sharghalders 78,210 100,224 92475
Cash dividends paid (common stock} {68,552} {63,737 {55,682}
Expiration of subsidiary nongontrolling interests redemption rights 23,305 — —
Valuation adjustments and other noncontrolling interests activity 7,321 {2,455) {3,215}
Balance at end of year 376,940 336,150 302,518
Tutal Avista Corporation stockholders’ equity 1,259477 1,185,701 1,125,784
Nancontrolling Interests:
Balance atbeginning of year 174 {600} {673)
Natincome attributahie to noncontrolling interests 451 756 66
Deccnsoiidation of variable interest entity {673} — -
Purchase of subsidiary nonconirolling interests {11 — -
Expiration of subsidiary noncontrolling interests rademption rights 17,790 — —
Other 33 18 7
Balance at end of year 17,658 174 {600}
Total equity $ 1777135 $ 1185875 § 1,125,184
Redeemable Noncontroliing Interests: :
Balance at beginning of vear $ 51809 § 8722 $ 3483
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 139 2559 2451
Issuance of subsidiary noncontrolling interests 3n4 - —
Purchase of subsidiary nonconwolling interests (784) {6,179 {2,593}
Expiration of subsidiary nancontralling interests redemption rights (41,595) — —
Valvation adjustments and gther noncontrofling interests activity 18,345) 8,707 12,025
Balance atend of year $ 4938 § 51,809 $ 46,722

The Accompanying Notes are en Integral Part of These Statemants.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

Avista Corporation {Avista Corp. or the Companyl is an energy
company engaged in the generatign, transmission and distribution of
anergy, as well as other energy-refated businesses, Avista Utilities
is an operating division of Avista Corp., comprising the regulated utility
operations. Avista Utilities generates, transmits and distributes
alactricity in parts of eastern Washington and northern idahe.
In addition, Avista Utilities has electric generating facilities in
Montana and northern Oregon. Avista Utilities also provides natural
gas distribution service in parts of aastern Washington and northern
ldaho, as well as parts of nertheastern and southwestern Oregon.
Avista Capital, In¢. {Avista Capital), a wholly owned subsidiary of Avista
Corp., is the parant company of all of the subsidiary companies in the
non-utifity businesses, except Spokane Energy, LLC {Spokane Energy).
Avisia Dapital's subsidiaries include Soova, Ing. {Eoova), 2 79.0 porcent
owned subsitiary as of December 31, 2012. Ecovais a provider of energy
efficiency and other facility infermetion and cost management programs
and services for multi-site customers and utilities throughout North
America, See Note 24 for business segment information.

Basis of Reporting

The consolidated financial statements includa the assets,
liahilities, revenues and expanses of the Campeny and its
subsidiaries, including Ecova and other majority owned subsidiaries
and variable interest entities for which the Company or its
subsidiaries ara the primary beneficiaries. Intercompany balances
were eliminated in consolidation. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements include the Company's proportionate share of
utitity plant and related operations resulting from its interests in
jointly owned plants {sae Note 7).

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally aceepted inthe United
Statas of America (U.S. GAAP} requires managemant to make estimates
and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consclidated
financial statements. Significant estimates include:
» determining the market value of anergy commodity derivative
assats and liabilities,
+ pension and other postratiremant benefit plan obligations,
» contingent liakilities,
« recoverability of regulatory assets, and
« unbilled revenues.

Changes in these estimates and assemptions are considered
reasanably possible and may have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements and thus actual results could differ from the
amounts reperted and disclosed herein.

AVISTA

System of Accounts

The accounting records of the Company's utility operations are
maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts
prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {FERC) and
adopted by the state regulatory commissions in Washington, ldzhe,
Montana and Oregon.

Regulation

The Company is subject to state regulation in Washington, Idaho,
Montana and Oregor. The Company is also subject to federal regulation
primarily by the FERC, as well as various other federal agencies with
regulatory ovarsight of particular aspects of its operations.

Utifity Revenues

Utility revenues related to the sale of energy ara recorded when
service is rendered or energy is defivered to customers. Revanues and
resource costs from Avista Utilities” settled energy contracts that are
“booked vut” (not physically deliverad) are raported on a net basis as
part of utility revenues. The determination of the energy salas to
individual customers is based on the reading of their meters, which
VECUTS DR 8 Systematic hasis throughout the month. Atthe end of sach
calendar month, the amount of energy deliverad to customers since the
date of the last meter reading is estimated and the corresponding
unbilled revenue is estimated and recorded.

‘Accounts receivable includes unbilled energy revenues of the

following amounts as of December 31 (dollars in thousanids):

2012 2
77298 § 82,950

Unbilled accounts receivable $

Ecova Revenues

Service revenues from Ecova are recognized over the period
services ars rendarad, which is typically on a straight-line basis for
fixed-fee or project-fee engagements or ratably for other types of
services. New client account setup fees and implemantation
{onboarding} fees are deferred and recognized over the contractuai
life that approximates the expected customer relationship, which is
typically the contract period. Investment earnings on funds held for
clients and fees earned from third parties on payment processing ara
an integral part of Ecova's product offerings and are recognized in
revenues as earnad, Revenue arrangements with multiple elements
occurinfraquenty and generally represent a very small percentage
of total Ecova revenues, When they occur, the separate deliverables
are divided into separate units of accounting if certain criteria are met,
and the total consideration received is allocated among the different
deliverables using the relative selling price method, [n most cases,
management uses its best estimate of the selling price for gach
deliverable to determing the amount of consideration to allocate and
revenue is recognized for each deliverable once all the applicable
revenus recognition criteria are met. Inthe Consolidated Statements
of Income, the full amount of Ecova revenues are recorded in operating
revenues {inclusive of the noncontrolling interest partion), butthen the
nongantrolling interest share {currently 21.0 percent) is backed outin
the “Net income attributable to noncontrofling interests” line on the
Consolidated Statements of income.
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Other Non-Utility Revenues

Revenues from tha other businesses derived from the operations
of Advanced Manufacturing and Development {doing business as
METALfx} and are recognized when the risk of loss transfers to the
customer, which occurs when praducts are shipped.

Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising
axpanses werg nof & material portion of the Company's operating
expansas in 2012, 2017 and 2010,

Depreciation

Far utility opgrations, depraciation expense is estimated by a
method of depreciation accounting utilizing composite rates for utility
plant. Such rates are designed to provide for retirements of properties
atthe expiration of their service lives.

For utility operations, the ratio of depreciation grovisions to average
dapreciable property was as follows for the years ended Decembor 31:
2012

201t 20

Ratio of depreciation to average

depreciable property 2.92% 292% 284%
The average service lives for the following broad categories of
utility plantin service are:
+ glectric thermal production—33 years,
* hydroelectric production—73 years,
« electric transmission—51 years,
 electric distribution—38 years, and

* natural gas distribution property—49 years.

Taxes Dther Than Income Taxes

Taxes other than income taxes include state excise taxes, city
occupational and franchise taxes, real and personal property taxes and
certain other taxes not based on netincome. These taxes are generally
based on revenues of the value of property.

Utility related taxes collected from customers (primarily state excise
taxes and city atility taxes) are recorded as aperating revenue and
expense and totaled the following emounts for the years ended
December 31 (dollars in thousands);

2012
$ 53716 §

201
55739 §

2010
49,953

Utifity taxes

Allowance for Funds tUsed Buring Construction

The Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC)
represents the cost of both the debt and equity funds used ta finance
utility plant additions during the construction period. As prescribed by
requlatory authorities, AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of
utility plant and the debt related portion is ¢redited against total
intarast expenss in the Consolidated Statements of Incame in the line
item “capitalized interest.” The equity related portion of AFUDC is
included in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the line item
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“other expense {incoma}—net.” The Company is permitted, under
established reguiatory rate practices, to recover the capitalized
AFUDL, and a reasenable return thereon, through its inclusion in rate
base and the provision for dépreciation after the related utility plantis
placed in service. Cash inflow ralated to AFUDC does not occur until
the refated utility plant is placed in service and included in rate base.

The effective AFUDG rate was the following for the years ended
December 31;

202
762%

2010
8.25%"

20
781%

Effactiva AFUDC rate

{1} Ganarally, the AFUDL rsta changes effective January 1 of avary year,
however this rate was affective from January 1, 2000 to Nevember 30, 2070.
Effective Dacember 1, 2010, the rate was ehanged to 7.81%.

Income Taxes

A deferred income tax asset or Hability is determined based on
the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when the differances
between tha financial statement carrying amounts and tax basis of
existing assets and liabilitias 2re expected to be reported in the
Company’s consolidated income tax returns. The deferrad income tax
expense for the period is equal to the net change inthe deferred
income tax aszet and liability accounts from the baginning to the end of
tha period. Tha effect on deferred income taxes from a changain tax
rates is racognized in income in the period that incledes the enactmant
date. Deferred income tax liabilities and requlatory assets are
established for income tax benefits flowed through to customers as
prescribad by the respactive regulatory commissions.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions
is recognized in the Company's financial statements based on the fair
value of the equity or fiability instruments issued and recorded over the
requisite service period. See Note 20 for further information.

Dther Income—Net
Dther Income—net cenzisted of the follawing items for the years ended
December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Interest income $ (944) % (1320 $ {1,159)
Interest on ragulatory
deferrals {68} {89 {248)
Equity-refated AFUDC {4,055} {2.225) {3,353}
Net foss on investments 3343 438 347
Otherincoma {3,301} {280) (1,034
Total® $ {5,025} § {3433} 3 (2,497)

) Ineludes an immatarial eorvaction of an erer refated to the reclassification of
certain operating expenses from other expenss—naet to utility snd non-utility
ather aparating expenses and ulflity taxes other than incoms taxas. This
correction did not have an impact on net ingome or aamings per share. See
further discussion of this replassification below under “Immaterig! Correction
of an Error”.
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Earnings per Gommon Share Atiributable to Avista Corporation
Shareholders

Basic earnings per common share attributable to Avista
Corporation shareholdars is computed by dividing nat income
attributable to Avista Corporation sharsholders by the weighted-
average number of commen shares outstanding for ths period. Diluted
earnings per common share attributable to Avista Corporation
shareholders is calculated by dividing netincome atiributable to Avista
Corperation shareholders (adjusted for the effect of potentially dilutive
securities issued by subsidiaries) by diluted weighted-average commen
sharaes outstanding during the period, ineluding comman stock
equivalent shares outstanding using the treasury stock method, unless
such shares are anti-dilutive. Commen stock equivalent shares include
shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and contingent stock
awards. See Note 19 for earnings per common share calculations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,
the Company considers all temporary investments with & maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to
provide for estimated and potential losses an accounts receivable.
Tha Company determinas the allowante for wtility and other customer
accounts receivable based on historical write-offs as compared to
accounts receivable and operating revenues. Additionaily, the Company
establishes specific allowances for certain individual accounts.

The follewing tabla presents tha activity in the allowance far daukthul acconnts during the years snded December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 2m 2040
Allowance as of the beginning of the year $ 43958 § 44883 $ 42928
Additions expensad during the year 413 5232 5194
Net deductions {3,016) {6,157} 3,239
Allowancs as of the and of the year $ #1855 § 43958 $ 44,883

Materials and Supplias, Fuel Stock and Natural Gas Stored

Inventosies of materials and supplies, fue! stock and natural gas stored are recorded at average cost for our regulated operations and the lower
of cost ar market for our nen-regulated operations and consisted of the following as of Decembar 31 {dollars in thousands);

nz o

Materials and supplies 8 26,058 $ 24,148
Fuel stock ' 442 4248
Natural gas stored 17,276 23610
Total $ 47455 § 52,006

Invastments and Funds Held for Clients and Client Fund Obligations

In connection with the bili paying services, Ecova collects funds
from its clients and remits the funds to the appropriate uiility or other
service provider. Some of the funds collected are invested by Ecova and

classified as investments and funds held for clients and a related
liability for client fund obligations is recorded. Investments and funds
hetd for chients include cash and cash equivalent investments, money
market funds and investmant securities classified as available for sale.

Investments and funds held for clients as of December 31, 2012 are as follows (dotlars in thonsands):

Amortized  Unrealized
Cost" Gain {Loss]  Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13867 § — 8 13,867
Munhey market funds 15,084 — 15,084
Securities available for sale:
U.S. government agency 48,340 156 42,436
Municipal g20 28 848
Corporate fixed income—financial 5010 16 5,026
Corporata fixed income—industrial 3,887 45 393
Certificates of deposit 1,000 15 1,015
Total securities available for sale 55,057 264 59,31
Total investments and funds held for chonts $ 83,008 $ B4 & 88,272

f1

AVISTA

Amortized cost represents the original purchase price of the investments, plus or minus any amortized purchase pramiwms or accretad purchase discounts.
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Investments and funds beld for clients as of December 31, 2011 are as follows (dollers in thousasds):

Amortized  Unrealized
Cost  Gaim(loss]  FairValue
Maoney market funds § 21957 § — § 21,957
Securitivs availabla for sale:
U5, government agency mm 172 74,853
Municipal 425 -— 425
Corporate fixed income—financial 1,13 15 11,154
Corporata fixed incoma—industrial 6,495 FA] 6,518
Corporate fixed income—utility 2088 4 2032
Certificates of deposit 1,500 {3) 1,497
Total securities available for sale 96,368 211 9,579
Total investments and funds held for clients $§ 1838 § 211§ 11853%

Investments and funds held for clients are claszified as a current
asset since these funds are held for the purpose of satisfying the client
fund obligations. Approximataly 97 parcent and 88 parcent of tha
investment portfolio is rated AA or higher as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively, by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations. All fixed income securities were rated as investment
grade as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The Company reviews its investments continuously for indicators
of other-than-temporary impairment. To make this determination, the
Company employs a methodology that considers available quantitative
and qualitative evidence in evaluating potential impairment of its
investments. [f the cost of an investment exceeds its fair value, the
Company evaluates, among other factors, genaral market conditions,
credit quality of instrument Issuers, the length of time and extentto
which the fair value is less than cost, and whether it has plans to sefl the

security or it is more-likely-than-not that the Company will be required
to 5ell the security before recovery. The Company also considers
specific adversa conditions related to the financial health of and
specitic prospects for the issuer as well as other cash flow factors.
Once a decling in fair value is determined to be other-than-temporary,
an impairment ¢charge is recorded in earnings and 2 new cost basis in
the investment is established. Based on the Company's analysis,
securities available for sale do not meet the criteria for other-than-
temporary impairment as of Decambar 31, 2012,

Proceeds from sales, maturities and calls of securities available
for sale were $138.0 million and $0.1 million, for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Gross realized gains were
$0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 and were negligible
for the year ended December 31, 2011, There were not any gross realized
losses during these periods,

Contractual maturities of securities available far sale as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (dellars in thousands):

Due Aftert After 5
within bt within but within After
Maturity date 1 year Syears 1@ years 10years Total
December 31, 2012 047 8 1786 § 41485 3 003 8 59321
December 31, 2011 425 55,126 41,028 - 96,579

Actual maturities may differ due to call or prepayment rights and the effective maturity was 1.9 yoars as of December 31, 2012 and 1.3 years as of

Dacembar 31, 2011.

Utility Plant in Service

The cast of additions to utility plant in service, including an
allowanca for funds used during construction and raplacements of units
of property and improvements, is capitalized. The cost of depreciable
units of property retired plus the cost of removal lass salvage is charged
to accumulated depreciation.

Asset Retirement Qbligations

The Company recovars cartain assst retirement costs through
rates charged to customers as a portion of its depreciation expense
for which the Company has not recorded asset retirement obligations
{see Note 8}

The Company had estimated retirement costs (that do not represent legai ar contrectusl obligations) included as a regalatory liability on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets of the following amounts as of December 31 {dollars in thousands):

2012 2011

Regulatory liability for utility plant retirament costs

AVISTA
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising from acquisitions represents the excess of the
purchase price over the astimated fair value of not assets acquired.
The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment using a discounted
cash flow modal on at least an annyal basis or more frequently if

impairment indicators arise. The Company completed its annual
avaluation of goedwill for potential impairment as of December 31, 2012
for Ecova and as of November 30, 2012 for tha other businesses and
determined that goodwill was notimpaired at thattime.

The charges io the carryisg amoust of geodwill are as follows (dollars in thoasands):

Accamulated

Impairment
Ecova Other Losses Total
Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ 20589 $ 129719 § {7733 § 25,935
Goodwill acquired during the year 12,833 — — 12,933
Adjustments 177 — — 177
Balance as of the December 31, 2011 33,7199 12979 {1733 39,045
Goodwill acquired during the year 33484 - — 33,484
Adjustments 3430 — _— 3430
Balance as of the Decembar 31, 2012 § 03 % 12979 $ (7,733) § 75,959

Accumulated impairment losses are attributable to the other
businesses. The goodwill acquired in 2011 was related to Ecova's
acquisition of Prenova, Inc. {Prenova) on November 30, 2011, The
goodwill acquired in 2012 was related to Ecova’s acquisition of
LPB Enargy Management (LFB) effective January 31, 2012. The
adjustment to goodwill recorded represents purchase accounting
adjustments for Ecova's acquisition of Prenova based upon final
review of the fair market values of relevant assets and liabilities
identified as of the acquisition date. The primary cause of the
revisions was due to a net operating loss study and a change in the
value of customer relationships. Final purchase accounting related to
LPE is panding the completion of further review of the fair markat
value of the noncontrolling interests associated with a portion of the
LPB business and this will be completed during 2013

Intangihle Assets

Intangible assets primarily represent the amounts assigned to
clientrelationships related to the Ecova acquisition of Cadence
Network in 2008 (estimated amortization period of 12 years), Ecosin
2009 (estimated amortization period of 3 years), Loyalton in 2010
lestimated amortization period of 6 years), Prenova in 2011 {estimated
amortization period of 9 years) and LPB in 2012 (estimated amortization
period of 10 years}, software development costs (estimatad
amortization period of 3 to 4 years) and other. Adjustments to acquired
intangible assets associated with Prenova based on final review of the
fair market values include decreasss of $0.4 million to the customer
relationships intangible, $2.1 million to the internal use softwara
intangible, and $0.8 million to other intangibles.

Amortization expense relaied to Intangible Assets was as follows for the years ended December 31 {dollars in thousands):

2012 201 200

Intangible asset amortization

5 10435 § 4682 § 3,755

The following table details the estimated amostization expense for the next five years related to Intangible Assets {dallars in thousands);

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Estimated amortization expense

9853 8 9621 $ 1238 $ 6116 § 5222

The gross camying amount and accsmulated amortizatien of Intangible Assets as of Decomber 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows

{dollars in thousands):

2012 201

" Client relationships $ 32009 3 18,859
Software davefopment costs 33,990 29377
Other 6,237 3,065
Total intangible assets 12,286 51,251
Client refationships accumulated amortization {7.793) (3,623}
Software development costs accurnulated amortization 116,557} (12,016}
Other accumulated amortization {1,680} {290}
Total accumulated amortization (26,030% {16,629]
Total intangible assets—net 3 %625 $ 34622

AVISTA
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Of the total net intangibla assets above, intangible assets
associated with Ecova reprasent approximately $45.4 million and $33.6
million at December 31, 2012 and Dacember 31, 2011, respectively.

Derivative Assets and Liabilities

Berivatives are recorded as either assets or liabilities on the
Consolidated Balanca Sheets measured at estimated fair value.

In certain defined conditions, a derivative may be spacifically
designated as a hedge for & particular expasure. The accounting for
derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivatives and the
resulting designation,

The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission {UTC)
and the Idaha Public Utilities Commission {IPLC) issued accounting
orders authorizing Avista Utilities to offset commodity derivative
asssts or lizhilitias with a regulatory asset or liability. This accounting
treatment is intended to defer tha recognition of mark-to-market gains
and logses on energy commudity transactions until the peried of
settlement. The orders provide for Avista Utilities to not recognize the
unrealized gain or toss on utility derivative commodity instruments in
the Consolidated Statements of Incoms. Realized gains or losses ara
recognized in the period of settement, subject to approval for
racovery through retail rates, Realized gains and losses, subject to
regulatory approval, result in adjustments to ratail rates through
purchased gas cost adjustments, the Energy Recovery Mechanism
(ERM} in Washington, the Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) mechanism in
Idahw, and periodic general rates ¢ases. Regulatory assets are
assessed regularly and are probable for recovery through futura rates.

Substantially all forward contracts te purchase or sell power and
natural gas are recorded as derivative assets or iabilities at estimated
tair value with an offsetting ragulatory asset or liability. Contracts that
are not cansidered derivatives are accountad for on the accrual basis
until thay are sattled or realized, unless there is & decline in the fair
value of the contract that is determined to be other than temporary.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair valug represents the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit prica) in an orderly
transaction hetween market participants at the measurement date.
Energy commodity darivative assets and liabilities, investments and
funds held for cliants, deferred compensation assets, as well as
derivatives related to interest rate swap agresments and foreign
currency exchange centracts, are reported at estimated fair valus
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Nota 17 for the Company's
fair value disclosures.

Regulatory Deferred Charges and Credits
The Company prepares its consolidated financial statemants in
accordance with requlatory accounting practices because:
* rates for regulated services are establishad by or subject 1o
approval by independent third-party regulators,
« the regulated rates are designed to recover the cost of providing
the regulated services, and
* in view of demand for the requlated services and the level of
competition, itis reasonable to assume that rates cen be charged
to and collected from customers at |avels that will recover costs.

AVISTA

Regulatory accounting practices require that certain costs
andfor obligations {such as incurred power and natural gas costs not
currently included in rates, but expected to be recovered of refunded
in the futura) are reflected as deferred charges or credits onthe
Consolidated Balance Sheets. These costs and/or obligations are not
reflected in the Consolidated Statemants of Incoma until the peried
during which matching revenues are recognized. If at some point in the
future the Company determines that it no longer meets the criteria for
continued application of regulatory accounting practices for all ora
partion of its ragulated operations, the Company could be:

* required to write off its regulatory assets, and

» precluded from the future deferrel of costs not recovered through
rates at the tima such costs are incurred, even if the Company
expected to recover such costs in the future.

See Note 23 for further details of regulatory assets and liabilities.

Investment in Exchange Power—Net

The investment in exchange power represents the Company's
previous investment in Washington Public Power Supply System Project
3(WNP-3}, a nuclaar project that was terminated prior to completion.
Under & settlement agreement with the Bonneville Powar
Administration in 1385, Avista Utilities began receiving power in 1987,
for a 32.5-year period, refated to its investment in WNP-3. Through &
settlement agreement with the UTG in the Washington jurisdiction,
Avista Utilities is amortizing the recoverable portion of its investment in
WNP-3{recorded as investment in exchange power} over a 32.5-year
period that bagan in 1987, For the ldaho jurisdiction, Avista Utilities fully
amortized the recoverable portion of its investment in exchange power.

Unamortized Beht Expense
Unamortized debt expensa includes deht issuance costs that are
amortized over the life of the related debt.

Unamortized Deht Repurchase Costs

For the Company’s Washington regulatory jurisdiction and for
any debt repurchases beginning in 2007 in 2ll jurisdictions, pramiums
paid ta repurchase debt are amortized over the remaining fife of the
origingl debt that was repurchased or, if new debt is issued in
connection with the repurchase, these costs are amortized overtha
lite of the naw debt. Inthe Company's other regulatory jurisdictions,
premiums paid to repurchasa dabt prier to 2007 are being amortized
over the average remaining maturity of outstanding debt when no new
debtwas issued in connection with the debt repurchase. These costs
arerecoverad through retail rates as a component of interest expense.

Redeemahle Noncentralling Interests

This item represents the estimatad fair value of redesmable stock
and stock options of Ecova issued under its employee stock incentive
plan and to the previous owners of Cadence Network. See Notes 5and
20 for further informatian.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other compeehensive loss, net of tax, consisted of the following as of December 31 (dollars in thossands):

2012 2m
Unfunded benefit obligation for pensions and other postretirernent benefit plans—net of taxes
of $(3,698} and $(3,107), respectively 5 {6,867} $ {5,771
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale—net of taxes of $29 and $79, respectively 167 134
Totad accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (8,700} § {5637}

Coatingencies

The Company has unreselved regulatory, legel and tax issues
which have inherently uncertain outcomes. The Company accrues a loss
contingency if it is probahle that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the loss er impairment can be reasonahly estimated. The
Company also discloses lesses that do not meet thess conditions for
accrual, ifthere is a reasonable possibility that a loss may be incurred.

\mematerial Corection of an Error

Subsequent to the issuance of the Company's 2011 conselidated
financial statements, the Company’s management identified certain
employee-related opsrating expenses, dues and donations, and other
operating expenses totaling $2.8 millien and £10.5 million in 2011 and
2010, respectively, which had been erroncously included in “Other
expense—net” in the previously issued financial statements rather than
as a reduction to “Inceme from operations.” Accordingly, such
classification has been corrected in the accompanying 2041 and 2010
consolidated statements of income by including these costs within
“other” operating expenses. Tha restated items are also reflected in the
information presented in Note 24, Information by Business Segments
and Note 25, Selectad Quartsrly Financial Data {Unaudited}. Such items
hkad no effect on netincoma or eatnings per share,

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts on the Company’s Consalidated
Statements of Income, Consolidated Balance Sheets, and Consclidated
Statements of Cash Flows have been reclassified to conformto the
current year prasentation, In the current year Consolidated Statements
of Income, Ecova aperating revanues and cperating expenses have been
reclassified to separate line items. Previously, such amounts had been
classifiad within the line items captioned "Other non-utility revenues”
and “Other nan-utility operating expenses”™, respectively, Also, see
Mote 1, “Other Income—Net” concerning a corrective reclassification
made to certain 2011 and 2010 eperating expenses. n the current year
Consulidatad Balance Shests, "Intangible assats™ are presented as
their own line itam. These were previously includad in “Other
intangibles, proparty and investmants, net”, which has now been
renamed to "Other preperty and investments, net”. In the current year
Consolidated Statemants of Cash Flows, “Pension and other
postretirement benafit sxpansa” and “Amortization of Spokane Energy
contract” have been added as their own line items. These were
previously included in "Other” in the uperating activities section. Also,
“Payments for settlemants with Coeur d'Alene Tribe™ was previousty
included as its own line item in operating activities. This has how been
includad in “Other” inthe operating activities section.

AVISTA

Note 2. New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted Accounting
Standards Updata (ASU) No. 2011-04, "Fair Value Measurement {Topic
820]: Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.” This ASU requires
anhanced disclosures for fair value measurements, including
quantitative analysis of unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements, The ASU also clarifies the FASE’s intent aboutthe
application of existing fair value measurement requirements. Tha
adoption of this ASU did not have any impact on the Company's
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. See Note 17
for the Company's fair value disclosures.

InFehruary 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02,
“Comprehensive Income {Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified
Out of Accumulated Dther Comprehensive Income.” This ASU does not
changa current requirements for reporting net income or other
comprehensive incema in financial statements; hawever, it will require
entities to discluse the effect on the ling items of nat income for
raclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income if the
item being rectassifiad is required to be reclassified inits entirety to net
income under U.5. GAAP, For other items that are not required to be
reclassified in their entirety to netincome under U.5. GAAP, an entity is
required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP
to provide additional detail about those items. This ASU is effective for
fiseal years beginning after December 15, 2012, The Company does not
axpact that this ASU will have any material impact on its financial
cendition, results of operations and cash flows.

in December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, “Balance
Sheet (Topic 210}; Disclosures about Dffsetting Assats and Liabilities.”
This ASU enhances disclosure requirements about the nature of an
entity's right to offset and related arrangements associated with its
financial instruments and derivative instrumeats. ASU No. 2011-11
requires tha disclosure of the gross amounts subject to rights of set-off,
amounts offsat in accordance with the accounting standards followed,
and the related net exposure. The Company will he required to adopt this
ASU affective January 1, 2013. Adoption of this ASU will require
additional disclosures in the Company's financial statements; however,
the Company does not expect that this ASU will have any matarial
impact on its finanecial condition, results of aperations and cash flows,

In January 2013, the FASB izsued ASU No. 2013-01, “Balance
Sheet{Topic 210k Ctarifying the Scope of Disclosuras about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities.” This ASU clarifies which instruments and
transactions are siibject to tha enhanced disclosure requirements of
ASU 201111 regarding the offsetting of financial assets and liabilities.
ASU No. 2013-01 limits the scope of ASU No. 20%1-11 to only recognized
derivative instruments, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agreements, and borrowing and lending securities transactions thatare
offsetin accordance with either ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45. The
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Company will be requirad to adopt this ASU effective January 1, 2013
The Company does not expect that this ASU will have a material impact
on its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Note 3. Variable Interest Entities

Lancaster Power Purchase Agreement

The Compary has a power purchass agreament (PPA) for the
purchase of all the output of the Lancaster Plant, a 270 MW natural
gas-fired combined cycle combustion turbine plant located in Idaho,
owned by an unrelated third party (Rathdrum Power LLE), through 2026.
Beginning in July 2007 through the end of 2009, the mejority of the rights
and obligations under the PPA were conveyed to Shell Energy in
connaction with the sale of the majority of Avista Energy’s contracts
and ongoing operations to $hell Energy. These rights and obligations
were conveyad to Avista Corp. {Avista Utilitias) beginning in January
2010, Effective December 1, 2010, the rights and obligations under the
PPA ware assigned to Avista Corp.

Avista Corp. has a variable interestin the PPA. Accordingly, Avista
Corp. made an evaluation of which intarest holders have the power to
direct the activities that most significantly impact the ecanomic
performanca of the entity and which interest holders have the obligation
to absorb logses or receive benefits that could be significant ta the
entity. Avista Cosp. pays a fixed capacity and operations and
maintenance payment and certais monthly variable costs under the
PPA. Under the terms of the PPA, Avista Corp. makes the dispatch
decisions, provides all natural gas fuel and recaives all of the electric
energy output from the Lancaster Plant. However, Rathdrum Power LLC
(the owner} controls the daily aperation of the Lancaster Plant and
makes operating and maintenance decisions, Rathdrum Power LLC
controls all of the rights and obligations of the Lancaster Plant after the
expiration of the PPA in 2026. Itis estimated that the plant will have 15to
25 years of useful life after that time, Rathdrum Power LLC bears the
matntenance risk of the plant and will receive the residual value of the
Lancaster Plant. Avista Corp. has na debt or equity investments in the
Lancaster Plarit and does not provide financial support through liguidity
arrangements or other commitmaents {other than the PPA). Based on its
analysis, Avista Corp. does not consider itself to ba the primary
beneficiary of the Lancaster Plant. Accordingly, neither the Lancaster
Ptant nor Rathdrum Power LLC is included in Avista Corp.'s consolidated
financial statements. The Company has a future contractual obligation
of approximately $320 million under the PPA (representing the fixed
capacity and nperations and maintenance payments through 2026) and
believes this wauld be its maximum axposura ta lass. However, the
Company helieves that such costs will be recovered through retail rates.

Palouse Wind Power Purchase Agreement

In June 2011, the Company entered into a 30-year PPA with
Palouse Wind, LLC {Palouse Wind), an affiliate of First Wind Holdings,
LLC. The PPA relates to a wind project that was developad by Palouse
Wind in Whitman County, Washington and under the terms of PPA, the
Company acquires all of the power and renewable attributes produced
by the wind project for a fixed price per MWh, which escalates annually,
without considaratien for market fluctuations. The wind project has a
nameplate capacity of approximataly 105 MW and is expected to
produce approximately 40 MW annually. The project was completed and
enargy deliveries began during the fourth quarter of 2012, Under the
PPA, the Company has an annual option to purchase the wind project
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following the 10th anniversary of the commercial aperation date ata
fixed price determined under the contract,

The Company evaluated this agresment to determine # ithas a
variatle interest which must be consolidated. Based on its analysis,
Avista Corp. does not consider itself to be the primary beneficiary of the
Palouse Wind facility due to the fact that it pays a fixed price per MWh,
which rapresents the only financial obligation, and does not have any
input into the managemsnt of the day-to-day operations of the facility.
Accordingly, Palouse Wind is not included in Avista Corp.’s consolidated
financial statements. The Company has a future contractual obligation
of approximately $576 million under the PPA (representing the charges
associated with purchasing the energy and renewable attributes
through 2042} and believes this would be-its maximum exposure to loss.
Howaver, the Company believes that such costs will be recovered
through retail rates.

Spokane Energy

The implementation of amendments to ASC 810 resulted in the
Company including Spokane Energy, LLE {Spokane Energy} in its
consolidated financial statements effective Janiary 1, 2010,

Spokane Energy is a special purpose limited fiability company and all
of its membership capital is owned by Avista Corp. Spokane Energy
was formed in December 1998 to assume ewnership of a fixed rate
electric capacity contract batween Avista Corp. and Portland
General Electric Company.

Spokane Energy borrowed $145.0 million from a funding trust and
paid $143.4 million to Avista Corp. to acquire its rights under the
contract. The loan, which maturas in January 2015, is structured so that
Spokane Energy is the sole obligor. Avista Corp. has no obligation or
liability related to this foan.

The cost of acquiring the energy contract is being amortized and
matched with sales revenue over the lifa of the contract using the
effectiva interest method. Avista Corp. acts as the servicer under the
ctontract and performs scheduling, billing and celiection functions.

Pursuant to orders from the UTE and the IPUC, Avista Corp. fully
amortized the $143.4 million received by the end of 2002.

Prior to 2010, Avista Corp. did not consolidate Spokane Energy
because Spokane Energy mat the definition of a qualified special
purposa entity {0SPE). As the amendments to ASC 810 and 860
eliminated the congapt of a QSPE, Avista Corp. evaluated Spokane
Energy for consolidation as a variable interest entity and determined
thatit was required to consolidate the entity. This determination was
based primarily on Avista Corp. controlling the significant activities
of Spakane Energy, owning all of the member capital of Spokane
Energy, and receiving the majority of the rasidual benefits upon
liquidation of tha entity.

Note 4. Voluntary Severance Incentive
Program

On October 22, 2012, Avista Corp. announced a voluntary
severance incentive program to reduce the total utility workferce and
achieve necessary lang-term, sustainable, Company-wide savings, in
addition to ether cost saving measures.

In general, most regular full- and part-time employees of Avista
Corp. {notincluding any of its subsidiaries) who wers not covered by
a collective bargaining agreament were eligible te participate in the
program. Based en the response to the program by interested
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employees and the approvals by Company management, the program
rosulted in the termination of 55, or approximately 6 percent, of the
eligibla $1% non-union employees, and the total severance costs under
the program were §7.3 million {pre-tax). The total severance costs ara
made up of the severance payments and the related payroll taxes and
employee benefit costs, Approximately 50 percent of the applicants te
the program were approved for termination by Company management.
Tha long-term operating and maintenanca cost savings under the
program are expected to exceed the severance costs of the program
and the expected payback periad for the severance costs will be
approximately 1.4 years.

Each participant in the program was entitled to recsive severance
payin an amount calculated by reference to the participant’s years of
service and base pay as of December 31, 2012. In no avent did the
amount of severance pay exceed 78 weeks of a participant’s base pay.

Al terminations under the voluntary severance in¢entive program
were completed by December 31, 2012, The cost of the program was
recognized as expense during the fourth quarter of 2012 and severance
pay was distributed in a single lump sum cash payment to each
participant during January 2013.

Note 5. Redeemable Noncontroling
Interests and Subsidiary Acquisitions

Tha acquisition of Cadence Network in July 2008 was fundad
by issuing additional Ecova cammon stock. Under the transaction
agreement, the previous owners of Cadence Network had a right ta
have their shares of Ecova common stock redeemed by Ecova during
July 2011 or July 2012 if their investment in Ecova was not liquidated
through either an initial public offering or sale of the business to a
third party. These rademption rights were not exercized and expired
effective July 31, 2012, As such, this redeemable noncontroliing
interest was raclassified to equity effective July 31, 2012.
Additionally, certein minority shareholders and option holders of
Ecova have the right to put their shares back to Ecova at their
discretion during an annual put window. Stock options and other
outstanding redeamable stock are valued at their maximum
redemption ampunt which is equal to their intrinsic value {fair value
fess exercise price} (see Note 20 for further information).

The following details redeemable noncontrolling interssts as of December 31 {dolars in thousands):

2012 20m
Previous owners ¢f Cadence Network § — 8 38,893
Stock options and other outstanding redeemabls stock 4,938 12,916
Total redeemable noncontrelling interests 5 4938 § 51,809

In January 2011, Awista Capital purchasad shares held by one of
the previous owners of Cadence Network for $5.6 milfion.

On December 31, 2010, Ecova acquired substantislly all of the
assets and liabilities of The Lovalton Group {Loyalton), 8 Minneapaolis-
based energy managemant firm providing energy procurement and price
risk management solutions. The acquisition of Loyalton was funded
primarily through available cash at Ecova plus contingent consideration
based on revenue targets over the nextthrea years. The acquirad assets
and liabilitfes assumed of Loyalton were recorded at their respective
estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. The results of
operations of Loyalton are included in the consolidated financial
statements beginning January 1, 2011

In January 2011, Ecova acquired substantiatly all of the assets and
liabilities of Building Knowledge Networks, LLC (BKN), a Seattle-based
real-time building energy managemant servicas provider. The
acquisition of BKN was funded through available cash at Ecova.

On November 30, 2011, Ecova acquired ali of the capital stock of
Prenova, Inc. (Prenovaj, an Atlanta-based energy management
company. The cash paid for the acquisition of Prenova of $35.7 million
was funded primarily through borrowings under Ecova’s committed
credit agre2ment, The acquirad assets and assumed liabilitias of
Prenova were recorded at their respective estimated fair values as of
the date of acquisition. Assets recorded include the following finclusive
of purchase accounting adjustments recordad during 2012): accounts
receivable of $2.6 million, deferred income tax assets of $3.1 mitlion,
goodwill of $16.6 millicn, client relationships of $7.0 miltion {estimated
amaortization period of 3 years) and internal uss softwara of $3.3 million
(estimated amortization period of 5 years). These intangible assets are
included in intangible assets an the Consolidated Balence Sheet, The
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results of operations of Prenova are included in the consolidated
financial statements baginning December 1, 2011,

0On January 31, 2012, Ecova acquired all of the capital stock of LPB
Energy Management(LPB), a Dallas, Texas-based energy managemant
company. The cash paid for the acquisition of LPB of $50.6 million was
funded by Ecova through $25.0 million of borrowings under its
committed credit agreement, a $20.0 million equity infusion from
existing shareholders {including Avista Capital and the other owners of
Ecova), and available cash. The acquired assets and assumed liabilities
of LPB were recorded at their respective astimated fair values as of the
date of acquisition. Assets recorded include the following: accounts
receivable of $2.5 million, goodwill of $33.2 million, client backiog of $8.2
million {estimated amortization perind of 3 years), clisnt relationships of
$4.3 million (estimated amortization period of 10 years) and internat use
softwarg of $2.5 million (estimated amortization period of 3to 4 years).
These intangible assets are included in intangible assats on the
Consolidated Belance Sheet. included in the gocdwill amount is $1.1
million attributabla to assembled workforce thatis deductible and will
be amortized for tax purposes over a 15-year period and is subject to
impairment review annually. The results of operations of LPB are
included in the consalidatad financial statements beginning February 1,
2012. The sellers of LPB did not receive additional purchase price
payments in 2012; however, they have the potential to receive additional
purchase price payments of $1.0 million in 2013 and $1.5 miffion in 2014,
These payments are contingent upon reaching certain revenue
thresholds for certain customer contracts. As of December 31, 2012,
Ecova has recorded 2 contingent liability of $0.2 million based on
management's assessment of the probability of the revenue thresholds
heing achieved,
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Pro forma disclosures raflecting the effects of Ecova’s
acquisitions are not preseated, as the acqguisitions are not material to
Avista Corp.'s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Note B. Derivatives and Risk Management

Energy Commodity Derivatives

Avista Uilities is exposed to market risks relating to changes in
plectricity and natural gas commeodity prices and certain other fuel
prices. Market risk is, in general, the risk of fluctuation in the market
price of the commodity being traded and is influenced primarily by
supply and demand. Market risk includes the fluctuation in the market
price of associated derivative commodity instruments. Avista Utilities
utilizes derivative instruments, such as forwards, futures, swaps and
options in order to manage the various risks relating to these commodity
price exposures. The Company has an energy resources risk policy and
control procedures to manage these risks. The Company’s Risk
Management Committee establishes the Company's energy rasources
rigk palicy and monitors compliance. The fisk Manzgement Committee
is compriged of certain Company officers and other members of
management. The Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors
periodically revisws and discusses enterprise risk management
processes, and it focuses on the Company's material financial and
accounting risk exposures and the steps management has undertaken
to control them.

As partof our resource procurement and management operations
in the elzctric business, we engage in an ongoing process of resource
optimization, which invalves the economic selection from available
energy resources to serve our load obligations and the use of these
resources to capture avaifable econamic valus. We transact in
wholesale markets by selling and purchasing electrie capacity and
energy, fuel for electric generation, and derivative contracts relatedto
capacity, energy and fuel. Such transactions are part of the process of
matching resources with our load obligations and hedging the related
financial risks. These transactions range from terms of intra-hourup to
mutiiple yeaars.

Avista Utilities makes continuing projections of:

* electric loads at various points intime {ranging from

intra-hour to multigle years} based on, among other things,

estimates of customer usage and weather, historical data and

contract terms, and

¢ resource availability atthese points in time based on, among
other things, fuel choices and fuel markets, estimates of
streamflows, availability of generating units, historic and
forward market information, contract terms, and experience,
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Onthe basis of these projections, we make purchases and sales of
electric capacity and energy, fuel for electric generation, and refated
derivative instruments to match expected resources to expected
electric load requirements and reduce our exposure to electricity {or
fuel) market price changes. Resource optimization involves generating
plant dispatch and scheduling available resources and also includes
transactions such as;

+ purchasing fuel for generation,

+ when economical, selling fuel and substituting wholesale electric
purchases, and

* gther wholesale transactions to capture the value of ganaration
and transmission resources and fuel delivery capacity contracts.

Avista Utilities' optimization process includes entering into
hedging transactions tg managa risks. Transactions include both
physical energy contracts and refated derivative instruments.

As part of its rescurce procurement and management of its natural
gas business, Avista Utilities makes continuing projections of Hs natural
gas loads and assesses availzble natural gas resourcas including
natural gas storage availability. Natural gas resource pianning typically
includes peak reguirements, low and average monthly requirements and
delivery constraints from natural gas supply locations to Avista Utilitiss’
distribution system. However, dsily variations in natural gas demand can
ke significantly different than monthly demand projections. Onthe basis
of these projections, Avista Utilities plans and executes a series of
transactions to hedge a significant portion of its projected natural gas
requirements through forward market transactions and derivative
instruments. These transactions may extend as much as four natural
gas operating years {Novembar through October) into the futura. Avista
Utilities also leaves a significant portion of its natural gas supply
requirements unhedged for purchase in short-term and spot markets.

Natural gas resource optimization activities include:

* whaolesale market sales of surplus natural gas supplies,

+ optimization of interstate pipeline transportation capacity
not needed to serve daily load, and '

* purchases and sales of natural gas to optimize use of
storage capacity.
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The following table presents the underlying energy commodity derivative volurees a2 of December 31, 2012 that are expected to sattle in sach

respective yeur (in thousands of MWhs and mmBTUs):

Purchases Sales

Electric Derivatives Gas Darivatives Electric Derivatives Gas Derivatives

Physical™ Financial®  Physical Financial Physical Financial Physical  _Finencial

Year MWh MWh mmBTUs mmBTUs MWh MWh mmBTls mmBTUs
013 n3 3,365 18,523 88391 264 2712 7,252 91,962
o014 KT 801 6,294 55407 wn 134 1,786 33,623
015 373 614 3,390 424930 286 982 - 25,575
06 37 — 1,265 455 287 — —_ -
it ¥ 366 — —_— — 286 — —_ —_—
Thereafter 583 — - - 443 — — —

{1} Physicsl transactions reprasent commodity transactions where Avista will take defivary of either aleciricity or natural gas and financisl transactions reprasent derivative

instrumants with no physical defivery, such as firtures, swaps, aplions, or farward contracts,

The above electric and natural gas derivative contracts will be
included in aithar power supply costs or natural gas supply costs
during the peried they settle and will be included in the various
recovery mechanisms (ERM, PCA, and FGAs}, or in the general rate
case proCess, and are expected to eventually be collected through
ratail rates from customers.

Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

A significant portion of Avista Utifities’ natural gas supply
(including fuel for power generation) is obtained from Canadian
sources. Most of those transactions are executed in 1.5. dellars,
which avoids foraign currency risk. A portion of Avista Utilities’
short-term natural gas transactions and long-term Canadian
transportation contracts are committed based on Canadian currency
prices and settled within sixty days with U_S. dollars, Avista Utilitics
economically hedges a portion of the foreige currency risk by
purchasing Canadian currency contracts when such commodity
transactions are initiated. This risk hies not had a material effect on
tha Company's financial condition, resuits of operations or cash flows
and these differences in cost related to currency fluctuations were
included with natural gas supply costs for ratemaking.

The following teble summarizes the foreiga carrency hedges that the
Gompany has entered into as of December 31 {dollars in thewsands):

Nz 201
Number of contracts i ;]
Motional amount {in United States doflars] $ 12621 § 7033
Netional amount {in Ganadian dollars} 12,502 7192
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Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Avista Corp. hedges a portion of its interest rate risk with financial
derivative instruments, which may includa interestrate sweps and U.S.
Treasury lock agreements. Thess interest rate swap agreements are
considered economic hedges againstfluctuations in future cash flows
associated with anticipated debtissuances.

The follewing table summarizes the interast rate swaps that the
Compary has entered into as of Decembar 31 {dollars in thouzands):

2012 20
Number of contracts — 3
National amaunt L3 - § 75,000
Mandatory cash settlament date — July 2012
Number of contracts 2 2
Notional amount 3 85000 § 85,000
Mandatory cash setdement date June 2013 June 2013
Number of contracts 2 —
Notional amount 3 50000 § —
Mandatory cash setdement date October 2014 —
Mumber of contracts 1 -
Netional amount $ 25000 § —
Mandatory cagh setttement date October 2015 —

In May 2012, the Company cash settled intersst rate swap
contracts [notional amount of $75.0 million) and paid a total of $18.5
million. Tha interest rate swap contracts were settled in connection
with the pricing of $80.0 million of First Mortgage Bonds. In September
2011, the Company cash setiled interest rate swap contracts {notional
amount of $85.0 million) and paid a total of $10.6 miflion. The interest
rate swap contracts were settled in connection with the pricing of
$85.0 million of First Mortgage Bonds.

Upen settlement of the interest rate swaps, the regulatory asset or
liability {included as part of long-term debt) is amortized as a component
of intarest expense over the life of the forecasted interest payments.
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Derivative lnstruments Summary

The following table presents the fair valzes and locations of derivative instruments recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

December 31, 2012 {in thousands):

Fair Value
‘ Collateral Net Asset
Derivative Balance Shest Location Asset Liability Netting {Linbility)
Foreign cUrrency contracts . Other current liabilities $ 7% {38) 8§ — 3 zn
Interest rate contracts Other currem liabilities — {1,406} — 11,406)
Interest rata coniracis Other property and investments—net 1,265 — - 7,265
Commadity contracts Current utility energy commadity
derivative assets 10,772 (6,633} — 4,139
Commodity coniracts Non-current utifity encrgy commaodity
derivative assets 1817 {17,686} _— 1093
Commodity contracts Current uiility energy commadity
derivative liabilities 50,227 {89,449) 9,707 {29,515}
Commodity confracts Other non-current liabilities and
deferrad cradits 2,47 {28 558) . {26.311)
Total derivative mstruments
recorded on the balance sheet $ 89297 § (M43766) § 9707 § {44,762
The following tabla presents tha fair values and locatiens of darivative instrumsnts recordad on the Consolidated Balance Shest as of
December 31, 2011 {in thousands):
Fair Value
Net Asset
Derivative Balance Sheet Location Asset Liability {Lishility)
Foreign currency contracts (Other current assets 8 RN 3% ] KFd
Interest rate contracts Other property and investments-~pet - {16,253} {16,253}
Interest rate contracts Other non-current liabilities and deferred credits — {2,642} {2,642
Commodity contracts Current utility energy commodity derivative assets 1,618 (479} 1,138
Commodity coniracts Non-curront utility ensrgy commadity derivative assets 185 - 185
Commodity contracts Current utility energy commodity derivativa liabilities 40,080 {110,914} (70.824)
Commodity contracts Other non-current liabilities and deferred credits 44,308 (84,838} {40,530)
Total derivative instruments
recorded on the balance sheet $ 86233 § {31516 §  (128893)

Exposure to Demands for Collaterai

The Company's derivative contracts often require collateral {in the
form of cash or letters of cradit) or other credit enhancements, or
reductions or terminations of a portion of the contract through cash
settlement, in the event of a downgrade inthe Company's credit ratings
or changes in market prices. In periods of price volatility, the level of
exposure can change significantly. As aresult, sudden and significant
demands may he made against the Company’s credit facilities and cash,
Tha Company actively monitors the exposure to possible collateral calls
and takes steps to mitigate capital requirements. As of December 31,
2072, the Company had cash deposited as collateral of $10.1 million and
letters of credit of $28.1 million outstanding relatad to its energy
derivative contracts. The Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31,
2012 reflects the offsetting of $9.7 million of cash collateral against net
derivative positions whera a lagal right of offset exists.

Certain of the Company's derivative instruments contain
pravisions that require the Company to maintain an investment grade
credit rating from the majer credit rating agencies. if ths Company's
cradit ratings were to fall helow “investment grade,” it would be in
violation of these provisicns, and the counterparties to the derivative
instruments could request immadiate payment or demand immediata
and ongaing collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability
positions. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with
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credit-risk-related contingent features that are in a liahility position as
of December 31, 2012 was $35.9 million. If the credit-risk-related
contingant features underlying these agreements were triggered on
Decamber 31, 2012, the Company could be required to post $25.8 million
of additional coliateral to its counterparties.

Credit Risk
Credit risk relates to the potential losses that the Company
would incur as a result of non-performance by counterparties of
their contractual obligations to deliver energy or make financial
settlemants. Tha Company often axtends cradit to counterparties and
customers and is exposed to the risk that it may not be able to collect
amounts owed to the Company. Credit risk includes potential
counterparty default due to circumstances:
= relating directlyto it,
« caused by market price changes, and
« relating to gther market pariicipants that have a direct orindirect
relationship with such counterparty.

Changes in market prices may dramatically alter tha size of

credit risk with counterparties, even when conservative credit limits
are established. Should a counterparty fail to perfarm, the Company
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may be raquired to honor the underlying commitment or ta replace
existing contragtswith contracts atthen-current market prices.

We enter into bilateral transactions betwesn Avista and various
counterparties. We also trade energy and related derivative instruments
through clearinghouse exchanges.

The Company secks to mitigate bilateral credit risk by:

* antaring into bilatsral contracts that specify credit terms and
protections against default,

* applying eredit limits and duration criteria to existing and
prospective counterparties,

* actively monitoring current credit exposures,

« asserting our collateral rights with counterparties,

s carrying out fransaction settlements timely and effectively, and

+ gonducting transactions an exchanges with fully collateralized
clearing arrangements that significantly reduce counterparty
default risk.

The Company’s credit policy includes an evaluation of the
financial condition of counterparties. Cradit risk management includes
collatersf requirements or other credit enhancements, such as letters
of credit or parent company guarantees. The Company enters into
varigus agreements that address cradit risks including standardized
agreements that allow for the netting or offsetting of positive and
negative exposures.

The Company has concentrations of suppliers and customers in
the alectric and natural gas industries including:

* glectric and natural gas utilities,

» electric generators and transmission providers,

 natural gas producaers and pipalines,

» financial institutions including commodity clearing exchanges and
related partias, and

= gnergy marketing and trading companies.

Note 8. Property, Plant and Equipment

In addition, the Company has concentrations of credit risk refated
to geographic lecation as it operates in the western United States and
western Canada. These concentrations of countarparties and
concentrations of geographic location may impact the Company's
overall exposure to credit risk because the counterparties may be
similarly affectad by changes in conditions.

The Company maintains credit support agreemants with certain
counterparties and margin calls ara parindically made and/or received.
Margin ¢alls are triggered when exposures exceed contractual imits or
when there are changes in a counterparty's ereditworthiness. Price
movements in electricity and natural gas can generate exposure lavels
in excess of thesa contractual limits. Negotiating for collateral in the
form of cash, latters of credit, or performance guarantees is common
industry practice.

Note 7. Jointly Owned Electric Facilities

The Company has a 15 percent ownership interestin a twin-unit
ceal-fired generating facility, the Colstrip Generating Project
{Colstrip} located in southeastern Montana, and providas financing
for its ownership interest in the project. The Company's share of
related fuel costs as well as aperating expenses for plantin service
are included in the corresponding accounts in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

The Coinpany’s share of utility plant in service for Colstrip and
actumulated depraciation were as follows as of December 31

{dollars in theusands):

2012 0t
Utility plantin service $ 344958 § 342539
Accumulated depreciation {234,126) (225,746

The batances of the major classifications of property, plant and equipment are detailed ir the following table as of Decembar 31

(deltars in thousands):

2012 201
Avista Uiilities:

Electric production $ 1N2670 § 10842213
Electric transmission 546,019 522,930
Electric distribution 1,117,827 1,167,012
Electric construction work-in-progress [CWAP) and other 244,781 205,437
Electric total 3127 2.879,602
Natural gas underground storage 40,890 40,430
Natural gas distribution 704,839 683,948
Natural gas CWIP and other 57,745 41,077
Natural gas total 803,474 766,455
Common plant {including CWIP} 272891 221,649
Total Avista Uhilities 4,197,742 3,966,706
Ecova " 30,138 25,763
Other O 22,690 22,042
Total $ 4250570 § 401451

{1} Included in other property and investments-net on tha Consalidated Balance Sheets. Accumuiated depraciation was $23.4 miltien &s of Decomber 31, 2012 and
$20.2 miltion 88 of December 31, 201 for Ecove and $13.7 milfion as of Dacamber 31, 2012 and $13.1 million as of Dacember 31, 2011 far the other businesses.
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Note 9. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which itis incurred. Whenthe
[iability s initially recorded, the associated costs of the asset retirement
obligation are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related
long-lived asset. The liability is accreted tn its present value each period
and the related capitalized costs are depreciated over the useful life of
the related asset. Upon ratirement of the asset, the Company sither
settles the retirement obligation for its recorded amount of incurs a gein
or loss. The Company records regulatory assets and liabilities for the
diffaronce between asset retirement costs currently recovared in rates
and asset retirement obligations recorded since asset retirement costs
are recovered through rates charged to customers. The regulatory
assets de not earn a return.

Specifically, the Company has recorded liabiliies for future asset
retirament obligations to:

* rastore ponds at Colstrip,

* cap a landfill at the Kettle Falls Plant,

+ remove plant and restore the land at the Coyote Springs 2 site at
the termination of the land lease,

* remove asbestos atthe corporate office building, and

» dispose of PCBs in certain transformers.

Due to an inability to estimate 2 range of sattlement dates, the
Company cannat estimate & fiability for the:
« removal and dispoesal of certain transmission and distribution
assets, and
= shandonment and decommissioning of certain hydroelectric
generation and natural gas storage facilities.

The fallowing tabte documents the changes in the Company’s ssset retirament vhligation during the years ended December

3t (dollars in thomsands):

202 2011 200
Asset retirement obligation at beginning of year $ 3513 § 3887 § 3mn
New liahility recognized — — 18
Liahility settled (550} (612} {460)
Accration expanse 214 233 357
Asset retirement obligation at end of year § 3,168 § 3513 § 3887

Note 10. Pension Plans and Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially all regular fulf-time employses at Avista Utilities. Individual
benefits undarthis plan are based upon the employee's years of service,
date of hire and average compensation as spacified in the plan. The
Company's funding poficy is to contribute at least the minimum amounts
that are required to be fundad under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act, but not more than the maximum amoxnts that are currently
deductible for income tax purposes. The Company contributed $44

million in cash ta the pension plan in 2012, $26 million in 2011 and $21
million in 2010. The Company expects to contribute $44 million in cash to
the pension plan in 2013.

The Company also has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
{SERP) that provides additional pension bansfits to sxecutive officers of
the Company. The SERP is intended to pravide henefits to executiva
officers whosa banafits undar the pension plan are reduced dus to the
application of Section 415 of the Internal Revenus Coda of 1986 and the
daforral of salary under deferred compensation plans. The liability and
expense for this plan are included as pension benefits in the tables
included in this Note. ‘

The Company expects that benefit payments under the pension plan and the SERP will total {dollars in thousands):

Total
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2b22
Expected benefit payments $ 24504 § 2250 §  »mAW $ 2657 § 7791 § 162488

Tha expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on
past performance and econgmic foracasts for the types of investments
held by the plan. In selecting a discount rats, the Company considers
yield rates for highly ratad corporate bond portfolios with maturities
similar to that of the axpected term of pension benafits.

Tha Company provides certain health care and life insurance
benefits for subsiantiatly all of its retired employees. The Company
agerues the estimated cost of postretiremant benafit obligations during
the yaars that employees provide services. The Company efected to
amaortize the transition ohligation of $34.5 million over a period of 20
years, beginning in 1993.
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The Company has a Health Reimbursement Arrangement to
provide employeas with tax-advantaged funds to pay for allowable
medical expenses vpon retirement. The amount earned by the employee
is fixed on the retirement date based on the employee's years of service
and the ending salary. The liability and expense of this plan are incfuded
as other postretirement benefits.

Tha Company provides death benefits to heneficiaries of executive
officers wha die during their term of office or after retirement. Under the
plan, an executive officer's designated beneficiary will receiva a
payment equal to twice the executive officer’s annual base salary atthe
time of death {or if death occurs after retirement, 2 payment equai to
twice the executive officer’s total annual pension henefit). The liability
and axpense for this plan are included as other postretiremant banafits.
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The Company expects that benefit payments ander other postretirement benefit pians will total (deltars in thousaads):

Total
2013 2014 2015 2016 017 2018-2922
Expected bensfit payments $ 6093 § 6160 § 5261 § 5389 § 6371 § 36,342
The Company expects to contribute $6.1 million to other measurament date for its pension and other postretirement
postrotiremant benefit plans in 2013, reprasenting expected benefit benefit plans.

payments to ba paid during the year. Tha Company uses a December 31

The following table sets forth the pension and ather postretirement benefit plan disclosures as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the composents
of net periodic banedit costs for the years ended Decomber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (dollars in thousands):

Other Post-
Peasion Benefits retirement Benefits
2012 2011 2012 2m
Change in henefit obligation:
Benefit obligation as of beginning of year $ 494192 § 433491 § 104730 60,338
Service cost 15,551 12,935 2,804 1,505
interest cost 24,349 24,134 5,056 4,126
Actuanialloss 72,170 44,148 24,543 42476
Transfer of accrued vecation — — 3% 450
Benefits paid (21,643) (20517) 4.928) {4,486)
Benefit obligation as of end of year $ 5B4619 § 44192 § 132541 § 104730
Change in plan assets: ’
Fair value of plan assets as of beginning of year $ 328150 § 306712 § 7245 § 22475
Actual return on plan assets 54,318 14,705 2,833 {420}
Employer contributions 44,000 26,000 — —
Benefits paid {20,407} {19,267 — —
Fair value of plan assets a3 of end of year $§ 10606t § 378750 § 25288 $ 22,455
Funded status § (1785580 & (166042 8 (107,253} § (82275}
Unrecognized net actuariel loss 223,308 192,883 94,202 16,187
Unrecognized prior service cost Kt 665 {856} (1,008}
\Inrecognized net transition obligation — — - 505
Prepaid {accrued) benefit cost 45,069 27,506 {13.907} {6,588)
Additional ability {223,627} (193,548} {93,346} {75,587)
Accrued bensiit liability § 78558 § 66042 3 N07.253) § 182.%7H)
Accumulated pension benefit obligation § 505695 $ 429,135 -— —
Accumulated postretirement benefit obkgation:
For retirees s 49232 % 33,470
For fully eligible employees ] K50 $ 29,597
For other participants $ 7738 8 35,663
included in accemulated comprehensive
loss {income} (net of tax);
Unrecognized net transition obligation ] — 8 — 5 — 3 323
Unrecognized prior service cost 207 433 (556} 858}
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 145,150 125,374 61,231 49,522
Total . 145,357 125,807 80,675 49,197
Less ragulatory asset (138,184} (119,350) (60,981) {29,873}
Accumulated other comprehensive loss income) $ IALEIR M7 § (306) § {676}
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Other Post-

Pengion Benefits retirement Bonefits

2012 2011 2012 20
Waightod-average assumptions as of December 31;
Discount rate for benefit obligation © A.15% 5.04% 415% 4.98%
Discount rate for annual expense 5.04% 5.68% 4.98% 5.53%
Expectad long-term return an plan assets 6.95% 1.40% 6.55% 7.00%
Rate of compensation increass 4.89% " A8%
Medical cost frend pra-age 65-—initial 1.00% 1.50%
Medical cost trend pre-age E5—ultimats 5.00% 5.00%
Ultimate medical cost rand year pre-age 65 018 w7
Medical cost trend post-age 65—initial 750% 8.00%
Medical cost trend post-age 65—ultimate 5.00% 6.00%
Ultimate medical cost trend year post-age 65 202t s

Pension Bensfits Other Postretirement Benefits

2012 2018 2010 2012 201} 201
Componens of net pariodic benefit cost:
Sarvice cost S 15551 § 1293 § 1608 % 2804 § 1805 § 684
Interest cost 24349 434 323 5,056 4126 264
Expected return on plan assets (23,810 {23,115} (21,381) {1.471) (1,501} {1,581)
Transition obligation recognition - — - 505 506 505
Amortization of prior service cost 346 475 650 (148) {149} (148}
Net loss recognition 11637 9,493 7,189 5,020 3,458 1,379
Net periodic benefit cost $ 28073 § 393 § 298 § 1,765 § 8144 § 3462
Plan Assets The market-rolated value of pension plan assets invested in debt

The Finance Committes of the Company’s Board of Directors
approves investment policies, objectives and strategies that seak an
appropriate return for the pension plan and other postretirement
benefit plans and reviews and approves changes to the investment
and funding policies.

The Company has contracted with investmant consultants who
ara responsible for managing/monitoring the individual investment
menagers. The investment managers' perfarmance and related
individual fund parformance is periadically reviewed by an internal
benefits committee and by the Finance Committee to monitor
compliance with investmant policy objectives and strategies.

Pansion plan assets are invested primarily in marketahle
debt and equity securities. Pension plan assets may also ba
invested in real estate, absolute return, venturs capitalfprivate
equity and commodity funds. |n seeking to obtain the desired
return to fund the pension plan, the investment consultant
recommends aliocation percentages by asset classes. These
recommendations are reviewed by the internal benefits
committee, which then recommends their 2doption by the
Finance Committee.

The Finance Committea has established target investment allecation
perceatages by asset classes as indicated in the table below:

2012 2m

Equity securities 5i% 51%

Debt securites N% 3%

Real estate 5% 5%

Absolute retum 10% 10%

Other 3% %
AVISTA

and equity securities was based primarily on fair value {market prices).
The fair value of investment securities traded on a national securities
exchange is determinad hased on the last reported sales price;
securitias traded in the over-the-counter markst are valued at the fast
reported bid price. Investment securities for which market prices are
not readily available or for which market prices do not represent the
value at the time of pricing, are fair-valued by the investment manager
based upon other inputs {including valuations of securities that are
comparabte in coupon, rating, maturity and industry). Investments in
commen/collactivae trust funds are presented at estimated fair vaiue,
which is determined based on the unit value of the fund, Unit value is
determined by an independent trustes, which spansors the fund, by
dividing the fund's net assats by its units outstanding at the valuation
date. Tha fair value of the closely held investments and parinsrship
interests is based upon the allocated share of the fair value of the
underlying assets as well as the allocated share of the undistributed
profits and losses, including realized and unrealized pains and losses.

The market-refated value of pension plan assets invested in real
estate was detarmined by the investment manager based on three
basic approaches:

» properties are externally appraised on an annual basis by
indapendent appraisers, additional appraisals may be performed
as warranted by specific agsetor markst conditions,

= property valuations are reviewad quarterly and adjusted as
necessary, and

+ |pans are reflected ot fair value,

The market-related value of pension plan assets was determined
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

T4
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The followiag table discloses by level within the fair value hierarchy {see Note 17 fer a description of the falr value hierarchy) of the pesion

plan’'s assets measured and reportad as of December 31, 2012 at fair vatue {dollars in thousands);

Level Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

Mutual funds;

Fixed income securities $ 83097 § — § — § By

1).8. equity securities 135436 — — 135436

Intgrnational sguity securities 79,448 e — 79,448

Absolute return 20,764 - — 20,764

Commodities 8258 — — 8253
Commony/collective trusts;

Fixed income securities — 43,107 — 43,107

Real pstate _ —_ 17.5% 17,59
Partnership/closaly held invastments; '

Absolute return - — 12,7195 17,755

Private aquity funds — — 660 660
Total I s § 4307 § 36011 3 406,061

The following table discloses by levet within the fair value hisrarchy {ses Nots 17 for a description of tha fair value hierarchy) of the pension

plan’s assets measurad and reported as of Decembor 31, 2011 at fair velue {follars in thousands);

Lovel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents ’ $ - § 1550 § — § 7,550
Mutual funds:

Fixed income securities 76,486 — — 76,486

LS. equity securities 102,750 — — 102,790

International equity securities 62,241 - — 52,241

Absolute return M 18,121 — — 16,121

Commaodities @ 6,526 — — 6,526
Commuon/collective trusts;

Fixed incoma securities — FINFL) - 27,774

U.5. equity securities — 12,669 - 12,668

Real estate — — 8,598 8,598
Partnership/closely held investmants:

Absolute return @ — — 18,587 16,547

Private equity funds —_ — 808 508
Total $§ B4 § 7983 § 2599 3 328,150

{1t This category invests in multipla stratapios to diversify risk gnd reduce volatility. The sirategies include: {a) event driven, ralative valua, convertibie, snd fixed income

arivitrage, Ib} distressed investments, (o} tong/short eguity and fixed inceme. and (d) market neutral stratagies.

{2} The fund primsrily invasts in derivatives linked te commodity indices to gain exposure to the commaodity marksts. The fund manager fully colleteralizes thase positions

with debt securities.
{3} This category includes private equity funts that invest primarity in U.5. companies.

The table below discloses the summary of changes in the fair value of the pension plan’s Level 3 nssats for the year ended December 31, 2012

{dollars in thomsands);

Common/collective trusts Partnership/closely held investments

Private

Real Absshuts squity

astate raturn funds

Balance, as of January 1, 2012 $ 8,598 3 16597 § 808
Realized gains ) 411 —- 08
Unrealized gains ilosses} 1,087 1,168 80
Purchases {sales}—net 7,500 — {336)
Batance, as of December 31, 2012 $ 17,598 $ 17755 § 660
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The table halow discloses the summary of changes in the fair value of the pension plan’s Level 3 assets for the year eaded December 31, 2011

{dollars in thousands):
Common/eollective trusts Partnersbip/closaly held investments
Privata
Absolute Resl Absolute squity
return astate reture funds
Batance, as of January 1, 2011 $ %5 § 3 § BT § 1231
Realized gains (insses) {748} 2 — n
Unrealized gains (losses) 746 1,038 {330 {218}
Purchases (sales}-—net {93) 7,055 — {619)
Balance, as of Decamber 31, 2011 : $ — § 4,598 $ 16587 § 808

The market-related value of other postratirement plan assets
invastad in debt and equity securities was based primarily on fair value
{market prices], Tha fair value of investment securities traded on a
national securities exchangs is determined based on the last reported
sales price; securities traded in the over-the-counter market are valped
at the last reperted bid price. Investment securities for which market
prices are not raadily available or for which market prices do nat

represent the velue at the time of pricing, are fair-valued by the
investment manager based upon other inputs {including valuations of
securities that are comparable in coupon, reting, maturity and industry}.
The target asset allocation was 62 percent equity securities and 38
percent debt securities in 2012 and 2011,

The market-telated value of other postretirement plan assets was
determined as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The following table discleses by level within the fair value biersrchy (see Note 17 for a description of the fair value kieratchy) of ather
postretiremaent plan assets measured and reported as of December 31, 2012 at fair value {dollars in thonsands):

Level 1 Level 2 Lavel3 Total
Cash equivalents $ — B § — ]
Mutual funds:
Fixed income securities 9314 — — 9314
LL.S. equity securitigs 10,268 — — 10,266
International equity sacurities 5,702 —_ — 5,702
Total 5 AW 0§ B § — % 25,208
The following table disctoses by level within the fair value hierarchy {ses Note 17 for a description af the fair valus hisrarchy} of other
pestratiroment plan assets measured and reported as of December 31, 2011 at fair valua {dollars in theusands):
Leval 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalents 3 . — & B § — 3 86
Mutual funds:
Fixed income securities 8683 — — 8,683
U.S. equity securities 1278 - — 7.278
International equity securifies 4,766 — - 4766
LLS. equity securities 1569 — — 1,569
Cthar 73 — — 73
Total $§ ¥ § 86 3 — § 2,455

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effecton
the amounts reportad for the health cara plans. A one-percentage-point
intrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would
increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2012 by $20.8 mitlion and the servica and interest cost by
$1.4million. A one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed health
care cost trend rate for each year would decrease the accumulated
postretirement banefif obligation as of December 31, 2012 by $16.7
million and the service and interest cost by $1.1 million.

AVISTA

The Company and its most significant subsidiaries have salary
deferral $01(kj plans that are defined contribution plans and cover
substantially all employees. Employees can make contributions to their
respective accounts in tha plans on a pre-tax basis up to the maximurm
amount permitted by law. The respective company matchas a portion of
the salary defarred by sach participant according to the schedule in the
respective plan.

76

97



Employer matching contributions were as follows for the years eaded December 31 {dollars in thousands}):

2012 am 2510
Employer 401{k] matching contributions 5 8,168 § 107§ 5405
The Company has an Executive Deferral Plan. This plan sllows up to 75 parcant of their base salary and/for up to 100 percent of thair
executive officers and other key employees the opportunity to defer incentiva payments. Deferred compensation funds are held by the

until the earlier of their retiremant, tarmination, disability or death, Company in a Rabbi Tryst.

Thera wore deferred compensation essets included in ather property and investments-net and corresponding deferred compensation liabilities

included ia ather non-currant linhilities and deferred credits ontha Conselidated Balance Shests of the following amounts as of December 31
{dollars in thousends}):

2012 am
Deferred compensation assets and liabilities § 8806 § 8,653
Note 11. Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax sxponse consisted of the fellowing for the years ended Dacomber 31 {dollars in thousands):

2012 2mMm 2010

Taxes currently provided % 19812 § 2625 & 13483

Deferrad income tax expense 21,449 24007 713

Total incoma tax expensa 3 N7 8 56632 $ 51,157

A raconciliation of federal income taxes derived from statutory fedaral tax rates (35 percent in 2012, 2011 and 2010) epplied to income

befere incoma taxes as set forth in the accompanying Consalidated $tatements of lacome is as fellows for the years ended December 31
(dollars in thousands):

2012 2m 200
Federal income taxes at statutory ratas 5 4201 § 55,060 $ 51,137
Increase (dacrease) in tax resulting from:
Tax effect of ragulatory treatment of utility plant differences 2432 1,748 2,761
State income tax expense 985 &7 624
Settlement of prior year tax retums and adjustmant of tax reservas . {2,198} 163 {1,030}
Manufacturing deduction {1,100} {1,099) {1,630}
Other : (879} {9 {705}
Total income tax expense $ 41,261 § 56632 $ 81,157
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Daferred incame taxes reflect tha nat tax affacts of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purnoses and the amounts usad for income tax
purposes and tax credit carryforwards.

The total net deferred income tax lability consisted of the fallowing as of December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 20M
Deferred income tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3 12140 § 12,086
Reserves not currently deductible 5,923 6,302
et aperating loss from subsidiary acquisition 11,136 14,867
Deferred eompensation 3631 3,248
Unfunded benefit obligation 94,891 80,939
Litility energy commodity derivatives 22,953 38,99
Power and natural gas defarrals 12,440 9548
Tax credits 19,401 16,924
Other 19,291 18,838
Total defarred income tax assets 201,856 201,748
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Irtangible assets from substdiary acquisition 582 8334
Differences between book and tax basis of utility plamt 494519 478,604
Regulatory asset for pensions and other postretirement benefits 107,243 N5
Power exchange cantract ' 10,753 1551
Utility energy commodity derivatives 22954 38,992
Loss on reacquirad deht 6,751 1183
Interest rate swaps 12,308 3720
Settlement with Coeur d'Alene Tribe 13,448 19,185
Other 18227 14,505
Total deferred incame tax liabilities 691,845 671229
Net deferred income tax liabity $ 489989 § 475481
Current deferved income tax asset 8 M2 3 304713
Ecova long-term deferred income tax asset™ 647 —_
Long-term deferrad income tax liability 524,877 505,954
Net deferred income tax liability $ 439989 § 45481

{1} Ecova files its own tax returm and its daferred tax assats and liabifities cannot be netted with Avista Corp.'s dafarred income tax assets and liahilities, This bafancs is
Included in other deferred charges on the Consolideted Balance Sheat af December 31, 2012,

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $13.9 million of state
tax credit carryforwards. State tax credits expire from 201510 2025. The
Company recognizes the effect of state tax credits generated from
utility plant as they ara utilized.

The realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon
the ability to genarate taxable income in future pericds. The Company
evaluatad available evidence supporting the realization of its deferred
income tax assets and determined it is mora likely than not that deferred
incoms tax assets will be realized.

The Company and its eligible subsidiarias fila consolidated federal
income tax returns, The Company also files state income tax returns in
certain jurisdictions, including idahe, Oregon and Montana. Subsidiaries
are charged or credited with the tax sffects of their cperations on e
stand-alons basis. The internal Revenue Sarvice {IRS) has comploted its
axamination of all tax years through 2009 and all issues were resolved
related to these years. The IRS has not completed an examination of the
Company's 2010 through 2011 federal income tax returns. The Company
does not helieve that any open tax years for federal or state incoma
taxes could rasult in any adjustments that would be significant to the
consolidated financial statements.

AVISTA

The Company did not incur any penalties on income tax positions
in 2012, 2011 or 2010. The Company would recognize interest acerued
rolated to income tax positions as interest expense and any penaltias
incurred as other operating expense.

The Company had net regulatory asseis related ta the prabable
racovery of certain deferred income tax liabilities from customers

through future rates as of December 31 (do}ars ia thousands):

2012 201

Regulatory assets for

deferred income taxes $ 79406 $ 84,576

Note 12. Energy Purchase Contracts

Avista Utilities has contracts for the purchase of fusl for
thermal generation, natural gas for resale and various agreements
for the purchass or exchange of electric energy with other entities.
The termination dates of the contracts range from one month to the
year 2055,

/Of
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Total expenses for power purchased, nataral gas purchased, fuel far generation and ather fuel costs, which are included in wutility resource costs
inthe Consolidated Siatements of Income, were as follows for the years esded December 31 idollars in thousamds):

2012 2011 2010
Utifity power resources $ 52346 § 557619 $ 649408

The following table details Avista Utilities’ future contracinal commitments for power resources {including transmission contracts} and nataral
gas resources (including trensportation contrasts) (dallars in thousands):

203 214 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Totak
Powver resources § 196877 § 132378 8§ N804 0 117,779 &5 116580 § 1025941 § 1707609
Natural gas resources 109,406 96,092 77.688 60,104 51,850 578,042 1,073,282
Total § 306283 § 208470 § 195742 $ 177883 § 166530 § 1703983 § 2780841
These energy purchase contracts were enterad into as part of In addition, Avista Utilities has operational agreements,
Avista Utilities” obligation to serve its retail electric and natural gas settlements and other contractual obligations for its generation,

customers’ anergy requirements. As a result, these costs are recovered  transmission and distribution facilities. The expenses associated with
gither through basa retail rates or adjustments to retail rates as part of these agreements are reflected as other operating expenses in the
the power and natural gas cost deferral and recovery machanisms. Consolidated Statements of Income.

The following table details future contractual commitments for these agraements {dollars in thausands):

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter Total
Contractual obligations $ 003 % nm 8 0% § 544 § 21708 3 230453 § 385009
Avista Utilities has fixed coniracts with certain Publie Uity requirements of the PUD)} whether or notthe facilities are operating. The
Districts (PUD} to purchase portions of the output of certain generating cost of powar obtained under the contracts, including payments made
facilities. Although Avista Utilities has no investment in the PUD when a facility is not operating, is included in utility resource costs in

generating facilities, the fixed coniracts obligate Avista Utilities to pay the Conselidated Statements of Incoms.
certain minimum amounts {(based in part on the debt service

Expenses under these PUD contracts wore as follows for the years ended December 31 {dollars in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
PUD contract costs $ 843 § 10533 $ 8,267

Information as of December 31, 2012 pertaining to these PUD contracts is summarized in the fellowing table (dolfars in thousands):

¢ Company's Curtent Share of
Debt
Kitawatt Annua! Service Bonds  Expiration
Output  Capability Costs™ Costs"™ (htstanding Date
Dougtas County PUD:
Woells Projoct 14% 28§ 2ne § 814 3 3z 2018
Grant County PUD:
Friast Rapids and
Wanapum Projacts 3.3% 65,800 517 242 30,655 2055
Totals 53848 § 8431 § 3299 ¢ nm

{1} The annual costs will change in proportion to the percentage of output alfocatsed to Avista Utifftias in a particular yoar. Amounis represant the operating costs for 2012,
Dabt service costs ara incfuded fn annual costs.

The estimated aggregate amounts of raquired mininium payments (Avista Uhilities” share of existing debt service costs) under these PUD
contracts are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter Total
Minimum payments $ 338 § 3332 § 323 3 3222 § 320 § 42988 % 59333
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in addition, Avista Utilities will be required to pay its proportionate
share of the variable eperating expenses of these projects.

Note 13. Short-Term Borrowings

Avista Corp.

Avista Corp. has a committed line of credit with various financial
ingtitutions in the total amount of $400.0 million with an expiration date
of February 2017.

The committed ling of eredit is secured by non-transferable First
Mortgage Bonds of the Company issued to the agent bank that weuld

only bec:ome due and payahls in the event, and then only to the extent,
thatthe Company defaults on its obligations under the committed line
of credit.

The committed line of credit agreement contains customary
covenants and default provisions. The credit agreement has a covenant
which does not permit the ratio of “consolidated total debt” ta
“consolidated total capitalization” of Avista Corp. to be greater than 65
percent atany time. As of December 31, 2012, the Company was in
compliance with this covenant,

Balances outstanding and interest rates of borrewings {excluding letters of credit) under the Compeny’s revolving committed lines of credit were

as follows as of December 31 {dollars in thousands);

2012 2811 2010
Balance outstanding at and of period $ 52000 $ 61000 $ 110,000
Letters of credit outstanding at end of period $ 35885 $ 26030 $ 712
Avgrage interest rate at end of period 112% 112% 0.57%

Ecova

In July 2012, Ecove entered into a $125.0 millien committed line of
credit agreemsnt with financial institutions that replaced its $60.0
million committed credit agreement and has an expiration date of July
2017, The credit agreament is secured by all of Ecova’s assets exeluding
investments and funds held for clients.

The committed line of credit agreemant contains customary
covenants and default provisions, including a covenant which requires

that Ecova's “Consolidated Total Funded Debt to EBITDA Ratio” [as
defined in the credit agreement) must be 2.50 to 1.00 or less, with
provisions in the credit agreement allowing for a temporary increase of
this ratio if a qualified acquisition is consummated by Ecova. In addition,
Ecova's “Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio™ {as defined in the
credit agreement] must be greater than 1.50 to 1.00 as of the last day of
any fiscal quarter. As of December 31, 2012, Ecove was in compliance
with these covenants. :

Balancas outstanding and interest rates of borrowings under Ecova’s cradit agrasmants wers as follows as of December 31 (dellars in thowsands):

2012 201 2010
Balance outstanding at end of period $ 54000 $ 35000 § —
Average interest rate at end of period 221% 2.38% —

During 2011, Ecova's committad line of credit balance was
clagsified as short-tarm and was included in Short-term borcowings on
tha Consolidated Balanca Shest. During 2012, the balance has been

AVISTA

classified as long-term and is included in Long-term borrowings under
committed fine of credit on the Conselidated Balance Shaet,
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Note 14. Long-Term Debt

The Sollowing details long-term debt outstanding as of December 31 {dollars in thousands):

Matsrity Interest
Yoar Bescription Rate 2012 am
anz Secured Medium-Term Notes 3% § — § 1,000
013 First Mortgage Bonds 1.68% 50,000 0,000
08 First Mortgage Bonds 5.95% 250,000 260,000
2013 Sacured Medium-Term Notes 7.39%-7.45% 22,500 22,500
09 Rrst Mortgage Bonds 5.45% 56,000 93,000
2020 First Morigage Bonds 3.89% 52,000 52,000
2022 First Mortgage Bonds 5.13% 250,600 250,000
2023 Secured Medium-Term Notes 7.18%~7.54% 13,500 13,500
2028 Secured Medium-Term Notes 6.37% 25,000 25,000
032 Secured Pollution Control Bonds i 66,700 66,700
2034 Secured Pollution Controd Bonds @ o 17,000 17,000
2035 First Mertgage Bonds 6.25% 160,000 150,000
2037 First Mortgage Bonds 5.70% 150,000 150,000
040 Rrst Mortgage Bonds 555% 35,000 35,000
2041 First Mortgage Bonds 4.45% 85,000 #5,000
2047 First Mortgage Bonds® 4% 80,000 ——
Total secured fong-term debt 1,336,700 1,263,700
2023 Unsecured Polution Control Bonds 6.00% — 4100
Other long-term debt and capital leases 5,092 5,455
Settled interast rate swaps {27,900} {10,629}
Unamortized debt discount {1,453) {1,626)
Total 1,312,439 1,261,000
Secured Pollution Control Bonds held by Avista Corporation & {83,700 (83,700)
Current portion of long-term debt {50,372} {7.474)
Total long-term debt § 1178367 § 1,189,826

{1} InDecember 2010, $66.7 milion of the Lity of Farsyth, Montana Poltution Control Revenua Refunding Bonds {Avista Corporation Colstrip Project) due 2032 which had
been held by Avista Corp. since 2008, were refunded by a new bond issue (Series 2010A). The new bonds wers not offsred 2o the public and were purchased by Avista
Corp. dua to market conditions. The Company expects that at a latar date, subject to market conditions, thase bands may be remarketed {0 unaffiliated investors. So long
as Avista Corp, is the holder of these bonds, the bonds will not be raflcted as an assat or a liability on Avista Corp.s Cansolidated Balarce Sheet.

{2t In December 2010, $17.0 million of the City of Fersyth, Montana Poliution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, [Avista Corporation Colstrip Project] dus 2038, which had
begn hefd by Avista Corp, since 2008, were refundad by 8 new bond issue (Sarigs 20198). The new bands were aot offered ta the public and were purchassd by Avista
Corp. dua to market conditions. Tha Company expacts that at a tatar date, subjact te merkat conditions, the bonds may be remerketed to unaffilisted investars, So Jong as
Avista Corp. is the holder of these bonds, the bonds wilf nat be reflected as an asset or & liability on Avista Cerp.'s Consolidated Balance Sheat.

(8 In November 2012, the Compeny issued $80.0 million of 4.23 percent First Marigage Bonds dueg in 2047,

The following table details future flong-term debt maturities including long-term debt to affiliated trusts (see Note 13) (dollars ia thousands):

2013 M4 2015 216 2017 Thereafter Total
Debt maturities $ 50000 $ — $ — § — § — § 1284847 $ 1304547
Substantiatly al! vtility properties owned by the Company are amount of retired First Mortgage Bonds which have not previously been
subjact to the lien of the Company’s mortgage indenture. Under the made the basis of any applicatien under the Mortgage, or 3) deposit of
Mortgage and Deed of Trust securing the Company's First Mortgage cash. Howaver, the Company may not issue any additionat First

Bonds {including Secured Medium-Term Notes), the Company may issue ~ Mortgage Bonds (with certain exceptions in the case of bonds issued on
additional First Martgage Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal the basis of refired bonds} unlessthe Company's "net earnings” {as

to the sum of: 1) 66-2/3 percent of the cost or fair vatue {whichever is dafinad inthe Mortgage} for any period of 12 consecutive calendar
lower} of property additions which have not previously been made the months out of the preceding 18 calendar menths wera at lsast twice the
basis of any application undar the Mortgage, or 2) an equal principal annualinterest requirements on all mortgage securities at the time
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outstanding, including the First Mortgage Bands to be issued, and on all
indebtedness of prior rank. As of December 31, 2012, property additions
and retired honds would have allowed, and the net earnings test would
not have prohibited the issuance of $640.1 million in aggregate principal
amount of additional First Mortgage Bonds.

See Note 13 for information regarding First Mortgage Bonds
issyed to secure the Company's obligations under its committed line of
credit agreement.

Nonrecourse Long-Term Debt

Nonrecourse fong-term dabt {including current partion) represents
the fong-term debt of Spokane Energy. To provide hunding to scquire a
long-term fixad rate electric capacity contract from Avista Corp.,
Spokzne Energy borrowed $145.0 million from a funding trust in
December 1998, The long-term debt has scheduled monthly installments
and interest at a fixed rate of 8.45 percent with the final payment due
in January 2015. Spokane Fnergy bears full recourse risk for the deb,
which is secured by the fixed rate electric capacity contract and
$1.6 million of funds held in a trust account.

The fallowing table detalls fwture nonrecourse long-term debt maturities (dollars in thousands):

03 2014 2015 2016 Total

Debt maturities $

14,965 § 16407 § 140 3 — § 32,803

Note 15. Long-Term Debt to Affiliated Trusts

In 1957, the Company issued Floating Rate Junior Subordinated
Defarrable lnterest Debentures, Series B, with a principal amount of
$51.5 million to Avista Capital |1, an affiliated business trust formed by

the Company. Avista Capital || issied $50.0 million of Preferred Trust
Securities with a floating distribution rate of LIBOR plus 0.875 percent,
calculated and resat quarterly.

The distribaticn rates paid were as follows during the years ended Decomber 31:

2012 2011 2010
Low distribution rate 1.19% 1.13% 1.13%
High distribution rate 1.40 1.40 1.4
Distribution rate at the end of the year 1.19 140 117

Concurrant with the issuance of the Preferred Trust Securities,
Avista Capital || issued $1.5 million of Comman Trust Securities to the
Company. These debt securities may be redeemed at the option of
Avista Capital !/ an or after June 1, 2007 and mature on June 1, 2037,

In December 2000, the Company purchased $10.0 million of these
Preferred Trust Secusities.

The Company owns 100 percent of Avista Capital Il and has solely
and unconditionally guarantead the payment of distributions en, and
redemption price and liquidation amount far, the Preferred Trust
Securities to the extent that Avista Capital || has funds available for

Note 16. Leases

such payments from the respective debt securities. Upon maturity or
prior redemption of such debt securities, the Preferred Trust Securities
will be mandatorily redeemed. The Company does not include these
capital trusts in its consolidated financial statements as Avista Corp. is
not the primary beneficiary. As such, the sole assats of tha capital trusts
are $51.5 million of junior subordinated daferrable interest debentures of
Avista Corp., which are reflected on the Consolidated Batance Sheets.
interest expense to affiliated trusts in the Consolidated Statements of
Income represents interest expensa on thase debentures.

The Company has multiple lease arrangemants involving various assets, with minimum terms ranging from 1 to forty-five years.

Rentel expensa undsr operating lenses was as folows for the years ended Decamber 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 2m 2010

Rental expense

$ 8152 § 6463 § 6,080

Future minimum laase payments required under operating leases having initial or remsining noncancelable loase terms in excess of one year as of

Deacomber 31 wera as follows {dollars in thousands):

2013 2014

2015 2016 217 Thereafter Total

Minimum payments required 3 5794 §

6352 $

W $ 174 § 1308 § 4883 § 24857
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Note 17. Fair Value

The carrying values of cash and cash eguivalents, accounts and
notes receivable, accounts payeble and short-term borrowings are

reasonable estimates of their fair values. Long-term debt lincluding
currant portion, but excluding capital leases}, nonrecourse long-term
dabtand long-term debt to affiliated trusts are reported at carrying
value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

The follewing table sets forth the carrying value and estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments not reported ot estimated faiy
value on the Consalidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 (dellars in thousands):

2 20

Carrying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated

Value Fair Value Value  Fair Value

Long-tarm debt {Level 2) $ 951000 § 1164639 § 962100 $ 1,135,536
Long-term debt {Level 3} 302,000 320,292 222,000 23425
Nonrecourse long-term debt (Laved 3) 32,803 35,297 BAN 51,974
Long-term dabt to affiliated trusts {Level 3} 51,547 43686 51,547 43810

These estimates of fair vaiue of long-term debt and long-term debt
to affiliated trusts ware primarily based on available marketinformation.
Due to the unigue nature of the long-term fixed rate alactric capacity
contract securing the long-term debt of Spokane Energy (nonrecourse
long-term deht), the estimated fair value of nonrecourse long-term debt
was determined based on a discounted cash flow model using available
market information.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used to measure
fair value. The hisrarchy gives tha highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical essets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unabservable inputs
{Leval 3 measuremant).

The three levels of the fair valua hierarchy are defined as follaws:

Level 1—Queted prices are available in active markets far
ilentical assets or liabilities. Active markets are those in which
transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficiant frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

level 2-—FPricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active
markets included in Lavel 1, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 inchudes those financial
instruments that are valued using models or other valuation
mathodelogias. These modals are primarily industry-standard models

AVISTA

thet consider various assumptions, including quoted forward prices
for commaodities, time value, volatility factors, and current markst
and contractual prices for the underlying instruments, as welt as
other relavant aconomic measures. Substantially all of thase
assumptions are abservable in the marketplzce throughout the full
term of the instrument, can be derived from observable date or are
supported hy ohservable lavels at which transactions are executed
in the marketplace.

Leval 3—Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are
generally unobservable from objective sources. These inputs may
be used with internally developed methodologies that resultin
management’s best estimate of fair value,

Financial assets and liabilities are ¢lassified in their entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair valug
measurement. The Company's assessment of the significance of 2
particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and
may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their
placement within the fair value hierarchy levels, The determination of
the fair valugs incorporates various factors that not only inciude the
credit standing of the countarpartiss involved and the impact of credit
enhancements [such as cash daposits and latters of credit), but also the
impact of Avista Corp.'s nonperformance risk on its liabilities.
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The follewing table discloses by level withix the fair valua hierarchy the Company's assets and liabilities measured and reported on the

Consolidatad Palance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 st fair value on a recurring basis (doltars in thousands):

Connterparty
amd Cash
Collateral
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting™ Total
Aszels:
Enargy commodity derivatives 8 — § Bp0 3 — § (76408) § 5,232
Level 3 energy commodity derivatives:

Power exchange agreements — _ 98K {385) .
Foreign currency derivatives —_ 7 — n _
Interast rate swaps — 7,265 — — 7.265
Investments ard funds held for clients:

Money market funds 15,084 — — —_ 15,084

Securities available for sale:

U.4. government agency — 48,45 — —_ 43,49

Municipal — 848 - — 848

Corporata fixed income—financial — 5,026 - - 5,026

Corporate fixed income—industrial — 3,93 — - 3936

Certificate of deposits - 1015 — — 1,015
Funds held in trust account of Spokane Energy 1,600 - — — 1,600
Deferred compensation assets:

Fixed income securitips ¥ 2010 - - — 2010

Equity securities® £.955 — —_ — 5,965
Total $ 24649 § 148233 § 365 § (76.800) § 96467
Liabilities:

Energy commodity derivatives § — & 130 § — & (BNng $§ 38
Level 3 energy commadity derivatives:

Natural gas exchange agreements — — 2,319 - 2319

Power exchange agreements - - 18077 {385) 18,692

Power option agreements — — 1,480 - 1,480
Foreign currency derivatives — 2 _ n 77
Ireerast rate swaps — 1,406 — - 1406
Total 3 — §__ 120830 § 2293 § (86507 §  67.289

fif  The Company is permitted to net derivative assets and derivative lishilities wiih the same caurdarparty when a legally anforceable mastar netting agresment
axists. In gddition. the Company nets derivative assets and derivative liabititins against any payables and recaivables for cash collateral helt or placed with

these same counterparties,

{2} These assats ara trading securitiss and are included in other property and investments—net on the Consolidated Balsnee Shaets.
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The following table disclosss by level within the fair value hisrarchy the Company’s assets and lishilities measured and reported on the
Consolidated Balance Shests as of December 31, 2011 at fais value on a recurring basis {dollars in thousands):

Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral
Level 1 Level 2 Levei3 Netting™ Total
Assets:
Energy cornmodity derivatives — B0S1 & — § (127 % 1,324
Level 3 energy commodity derivatives:
Natural gas exchange agreements _— — 958 {956} —
Power exchange agreements — — 4674 (4,674} -
Forgign currency derivatives — 32 — - k)
Investments and funds held for clients:
Monay market funds 21,957 — — — 21,957
Securities available for sale:
t).5. government agency - 74,893 _ — 74,893
Munigipal - 4% — — 425
Corporate fixed income-financial — 11,154 — — 11,154
Corporate fixed income—industrial — 6,518 — — 6,518
Carporate fixed income—utility - 2092 —_ — 2092
Certificate of deposits — 1497 — — 1497
Funds held in trust account of Spokane Energy 1,600 — —— s 1,600
Deferred compensation assets:
Fixed income securities® 2116 —_ — — 2118
Equity securitias® 5,252 — — — 5,262
Total O A 5630 3 (84877} 8 128860
Liabilides:
Energy commodity derivatives — § mas 8 — § (B s 98,495
Level 2 energy commadity derivatives: '
Natural gas exchange agreements — - 2p44 {956} 1,688
Power axchange agreements - — 14,584 (4,674) 9910
Power option agreements — — 1,260 — 1,260
Interest rata swaps — 18,895 - — 18,895
Total — § 196538 $ 18488 &  (84877) § 130,49

{1} Tha Company is parmittad to net derivative assats and derivative liabilitias with the same counterparty when & legally anforceable master netting agreemant

axists. In addition, the Company nets derivative assats and derivative liabilities against any payables and racelvabies for cash caliateral held or placed with

these same counierpartios,

{2} Thase sssets ara trading securitias and are includad in other proparty and investments-—net on the Consolidated Balance Sheats,

Avista Corp. enters into forward contracts to purchase or sell a
specified amount of engrgy at a specified time, or during a specified
period, in the future. These contracts are entered into as part of Avista
Corp.’s management of loads and resources and caertain contracts are
considered derivative instruments. The difference between the amount
of derivative assets and liabilities disclosed in respective [evals and tha
amount of derivative assets and liabilities disclosed on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets is due to netting arrangements with certain
counterparties. The Company uses quoted market prices and ferward
prica curves to estimate the fair value of utility derivative commedity
instruments included in Level 2. In particular, electric derivative
valuations are performed using broker quotas, adjusted for periods in
hetween quatable periods. Natural gas derivative valuations are
estimated using New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) pricing for

AVISTA

similar instrumenis, adjusted for basin differences, using broker quotes.
Where observable inputs are available for substantially the full term of
the contract, the derivative asset or liahility is included in Level 2.

For securities avatlabla for sale {held at Ecova) the Company uses
a nationally recognized third party to obtain fair value and reviews these
pricas for accuracy using a variety of market tools and analysis. The '
Company's pricing vendor uses a generic mode! which uses standard
inputs, including (listed in order of priority for use} benchmark yields,
reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided
markets, benchmark securities, market bidsfoffers and other reference
data. The pricing vendar also monitors marketindicators, as well as
industey and economic events. All securities available for sale were
deemed Level 2.
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Deferred compensation assets and liabilities represent funds
held by the Company in 2 Rabbi Trust for an axecutiva deferrat plan,
These funds consist of actively traded equity and band funds with
quoted prices in active markets. The balance disclosed inthe table
above excludes cash and cash equivalents of $0.8 million as of
December 31, 2012 and $1.3 million as of December 31, 2011,

Level 3 Fair Value

Fer power exchange agreements, the Company compares the
Level 2 brokered quotes and forward price curves described above to
aninternally developed forward price which is based on the averaga
operating and maintenance (0 &M) charges from four susrogate nuclear
power plants around the country for the current year. Because the
nuclear power plant 0&M charges are only known for one year, all
forward years are estimated assuming an annual escalation. In addition
to the forward price being estimated using unobservable inputs, the
Company also estimates the volumes of the transactions that will take
place in the future based on historical average transaction volumes per
delivary year (November to April). Significant increasas or decreasesin
any of thess inputs in isolation would result in & significantly higher or
lower fair value measurement. Generally, a change in the current year
0&M charges for the surragate plants is accompanied by a diractionally
similar changa in D&M charges in future years. There is generally not a
correlation between external market prices and the 0&M charges used
to develop the internal forward price.

For power commedity option agreements, the Company uses the
Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model to estimate the fair value, and
this mode! includes significant inputs not ohservable or corroborated in
the market. These inputs include 1) the strike price iwhich is an
internally derived price based on 8 combination of genaration plant
haat rate factors, natural gas market pricing, delivery and other 0&M
chargas, 2) estimated delivery volumes for years beyond 2013, and 3)
volatility rates for periods beyond January 2018. Significant increases
or decreases in any of these inputs in isolation would resultin a
significantly higher ar lower fair value measurament. Generally, changas
in overalt commodity market prices and volatility rates are accompanied
by directionally similar changes in the strike price and volatility
assumptions used in the calculation.

For natural gas commodity exchange agreaments, the Company
uses the same Leval 2 brokered quotes described above; however, the
Company also estimates the purchase and sales velumes {within
contractual limits) as well as the timing of those transactions. Changing
the timing of volume astimates changes tha timing of purchasss and
sales, impacting which brokered guote is used. Because the brokered
quotes can vary significantly from period to periad, the unobservable
estimates of the timing and volume of transactions can have a
significant impact on the calculatad fair value. The Company currently
estimates volumes and timing of transactions based on a most likefy
scenario using historical data. Historically, the timing and volume of
transactions have not hean highly correlated with market prices and
market volatility.

The following tehle presents the quantitative informsation which was used to estimata the fair values of the Lovel 3 assets and liahilities ahove as of

Dacembar 31, 2012 {doMars in thousands):

Fair Value—Net at Valustion Unobservable
December 31, 2012 Technique Ingurt Renge
Power exchanga agreements $ {18,692) Surrngate facility 0&M charges $30.49-953.82/MWh™
pricing Escalation factor 5%-——2013 to 2015
3%—2016 to 2019
Transaction volumes 366,619-379,156 MWhs
Power option agresments {1,480} Black-Scholes- Strike price $52.60/MWh-—2013
Merton §76.635/MWh—2019
Delivery volumes 125,491-267,147 MWhs
Volatility ratas o0
Matural gas exchange agreements (2,319) Internally derived Forward purchase prices $3.19-$3.38/mmBTU
welghted-average Forward sales prices £3.29-$4.46/mmBTU
cost of gas Purchase volumas  135,000~465,000 mmBTUs
Salesvolumes  140,010-520,000 mmBTUs

{1} The average O&M charges for 2002 were $40.87 par MWh.

2] The estimated volatility rate of 0.20 is compared to actual quated volatility rates of 0.32 for 2012 to 0.21 in January 2015,

Avista Corp.'s risk management team and accounting team are
responsible for developing the valuation metheds described above and

both groups report ta the Chief Financial Officer. The valuation methods,

the significant inputs, end the resulting fair values described above are

AVISTA

reviewed on at least a quarterly basis by the risk management team and
the accounting team to ensure they provide a reasonable estimate of
fair value each reporting peried.
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The fallowing table presents activity for energy commodity derivative assets (liabilities) measured at fair value using significant unobservable
inputs (Lavel 3) for the years exded December 31 (doMars in thousands):

Natural Gas Power Power
Exchange  Exchange Option
Agresments  Agreement Agresments Total

Year endad December 31, 312:
Balance as of January 1, 2012 3 (1688} $ [9.9t0) (1,260 § (12,858}
Total gains or losses {realized/unrealized):

Included in net income —_ — — —

Included in pther comprehensive income — - — —

included in regulatory assetsfliabilities™ 343 {15,238} (220} {1513
Purchases — — — —
lssuance — — - —
Settlements (1,034} 6454 — b4
Transfers toffrom other categories — — — —
Ending balance as of December 31, 2012 $§ (23791 % (18692) § {1480} § (22551
Year ended Dacember 31, 2011;
Balance as of January 1, 2011 5 — 3 15793 § (2334 $ 13,459
Taotal gains or losses (realized/unreatizedk:

Intluded in net income - — — —

Inclided in other comprehensive income — - — —

Included in regulatory assets/liabiliies ™ 2521 {28,511) 1,074 (24.875)
Purchases — — — —
Issuance — —_ — —
Settements 95 2,868 — 2,963
Transfers from other categories® {4.404) —_ — {4,404)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2011 § N6 s e s (.60 3 (12.858)
Year ended December 31, 2010;
Balance as of January 1, 2010 $ — % 51,250 § {7.780) § 29,470
Total gains or Josses {realized/unrealized):

included in netincoma — —_ - —

Included in other comprehensive income — — — e

included in regulatory assets/liabilites — {39,180} 5445 {33,734}
Purchases -_ - - —
Issuance — — — —
Sottements — 2,277} — {2,217
Transfers toffrom other categories — — —_ —
Ending balance as of Decembar 31, 2010 3 — § 15193 § (2334 & 13,459

{1t The UTC and the IPUC issuad aceounting ordars suthorizing Avista Utititias to affest commoity derivative assets or iabilities with g raguistory asset or lishility.

This accounting lreatment is intendad lo defer the racogaition of mark-to-market gains and losses on energy commadity transactions until the period of settfement.

The orders provida for Avists Utilities to not recognize the unrealized gain or loss on wility derivative commodily instruments in the Cansolidated Statements of

Income. Realized gains or lossas are racognized in the paried of settlement, subject to approval for racavery through reteil rates, Reatized gains and Josses, subject

to reguiatory approval, rasult in adjusiments to retail rates thraugh purchasad gas cost adjustments, the ERM in Washington, the PCA mechanism in Idaho, and

periadic ganaral rates cases.

{2} Adenvative contract was reclassified from Level 2 to Level 3 during 2011 dus to 2 particular unobservable input becoming mora significant to the fair value
measurement. There were not any reclassifications betwaen Leve! | and Level 2. The company’s policy is to raclassify identified items as of the aad af the

reporting periad.
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Note 18. Common Stock

The Company has a Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvastment Plan under which the Company’s shareholders may
automatically reinvest their dividends and make optional cash payments
for the purchase of the Company’s commen steck at current market
value. Shares issued under this plan in 2012, 2011 and 2010 are disclosad
in the Consolidated Statements of Equity and Redeemable
Noncontrolling Interests.

The payment of dividends on commaon stock is restricted by
provisions of certain covenants applicable to preferred stock contained
in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

In August 2012, the Company entered into two sales agency
agreements under which the Company may sell up to 2,726,390
shares of its common stock from time to time. As of December 31, 2012,
the Company had 1,735,199 shares available to be issued under
these agreements.

In August 2010, the Company enterad into 2n amended and
rastated sales agency agreament with a sales agentto issue up to
3,087,500 shares of its comman stock from time to tima. The Company
eriginally entered into a sales agency agreement to issue up to 1,250,000
shares of its common stock in December 2009, This sales agency
agreemant was terminatad in August 2012,

Shares issued ender sales agency agreements were as follows in the
year ended Decomber 31:
2012

201 2010

Shares issued under sales

agency agreement 931,19 807,000 2,054,110
The Company has 10 million authorized shares of prefarrad stock.
The Company did not have any preferred stock outstanding as of

December 31, 2002 and 2011,

Note 19. Earnings Per Common Share Attributable to Avista Corporation Shareholders

The following table presents the computation of basic and dituted eamings per commosa shars attributable te Avista Corporation sharehelders for

tha years onded Dacember 31 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2012 2m 2010
Numerntor:
Net income attributable to Avista Corporation shargholders ] 78210 § 10024 3 92425
Subsidiary earnings adjustment for dilutive securities {38) {473} {226)
Adjusted netincome attributable to Avista Corporation shareholders for
computation of diluted earnings per common share b 78172 § 99751 § 92,199
Derominator:
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding—basic 59,028 57,872 55,595
Effect of dilutive securities:
Performance and restricted stock awards 162 172 157
Stock options 1 43 72
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding—diluted 59,201 58,0092 55,824
Potential shares excluded in caleulation™ — - _
Earmnings per common share attributable to Avista Gorporetion sharaholders:
Basic $ 132 § 173§ 1.66
Diluted $ 132 8 172 § 1.65

{1l There were no shares excluded from the calculation because they were antidilutive. All stock options had exercise prices which were fess than the average markat price

of Avista Corp. common stock dvring the respective period.
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Note 20. Stock Compensation Plans

Avista Corp. {Excluding Ecova)
1998 PLAN

In 1938, the Cempany adopted, and sharehclders approved, the
Long-Term Incentive Plan (1998 Plan). Under the 1988 Plan, certain key
employees, officers and non-employee directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries may be granted stock options, stack appreciation rights,
stock awards (including restricted stock} and other stock-based awards
and dividend equivalent rights. The Company has available a maximum
of 4.5 million shares of its common stack for grant under the 1998 Plan.
As of December 31, 2012, 0.7 million shares were remaining for grant
under this plan.

2000 PLAN

In 2000, the Company adopted a Non-Officer Emplayes Long-Term
Incentive Plan (2000 Plan), which was not required to be approved by
shareholders. The provisions of the 2000 Plan are essentially the same
as those under tha 1998 Flan, axcept for the exclusion of non-smployee
directors and executive officers of the Company. The Company has
avaitable a maximum of 2.5 million shares of its common stock for grant
under the 2000 Pfan. However, the Company currently does not plan to
issue any further options or securitias under the 2000 Plan. As of
December 31, 2012, 1.2 million shares were remaining for grant under
this plan.

STOCK COMPENSATION

The Company records compensation cost relating to share-based
paymant transactions in the financial statements based on the fair valua
of tha equity or liability instruments issued.

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense {included in ether aperating expanses} and incoms tax benefits in the Consolidated
Statements of lncome of the following amennts for the years ended Dacember 31 (dollars in thousands):

2012 2m 2010
Stock-based compensation expense $ 5792 § 579 5 4916
Ingome tax benefits 200 2014 1,720
STOCK OPTIONS

The following summarizes stock aptions activity uader the 1998 Pian and the 2000 Plan for the years ended December 31:

2012 2 20

Number of shares under stock options:

Options outstanding at beginning of year 92,499 201,674 523973
Options granted — — —
Options exercised (89,499) {107,575} {101,649)
Options canceled — {1,600} {220,650)

Options outstanding and exercizable atend of year 3,000 9248 201,614

Weighted-average exercise prica:

Options exercisad $ 1063 § 1225 § 1151
Optigns canceled $ — ¥ 1180 3% 2260
Optiens cutstanding and exercisable at end of yeer $ 1241 § 1063 § 1153
Cash received from options exercised {in thousands} $ 951 § 1318 § 2119
intrinsic value of options exercised {in thousands) $ 139 § 18§ 1,006
Intrinsic value of options outstanding {in thousands) 5 B8 1393 3 2217

Information for options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Waeighted-

Weighted- Average

Average  Remaining

Number Exercise Life

Exercise Price of Shares Price {in years)
$ 1241 3000 % 1241 0.35

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s stock options were fully vested and expenséd.
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/12

a9



Restricted Shares

Restricted share awards vestin equal thirds each year over a
thres-year period and ara payabls in Avista Corp. common stock atthe
end of each year if the service condition is met. In addition to the service
condition, the Company must meet a return on equity targat in ordar for
the CEQ's restricted shares io vest. During the vesting period,

employees are entitled to dividend aquivatents which are paid when
dividends on the Company's common stock are declared. Restricted
stock is valued atthe close of market of the Company’s common stock
on the grant date. The weighted-average remaining vesting period for
the Company's restricted shares outstanding as of December 31, 2012
was 0.7 years.

The following tahle summarizos restrictod stock activity for the yoars ended December 31:

2012 201t 2010

Unvested shares at beginning of year 93,482 84,134 71,904
Shares gramed 70,281 50,618 43800
Shares cancelad (790} {431) s
Shares vested {45,855} (40,839) {31,570}
Unvested shares at end of year 117,118 3482 81,134
Weighted-average fair value at grant date b} 2583 § 206 § 19.80
Unrecagnized compensation expense &t and of year finthausands) 3 1428 8 932 & 735
Intrinsic value, unvested shares at end of year [in thousands}) $ 282 % 2407 % 1,895
Intrinsic valug, sharos vested during the year {in thousands) $ 11713 § 934 % 682

Performance Shares

Performanca share awards vest after a period of three yeers and
are payable in cash or Avista Corp. common stock at the end of the
three-year period. Performance share awards entitle the recipients to
dividend equivalent rights, are subject to forfeiture under certain
circumstancas, and are subject to meeting specific performance
tonditions. Based on the attainment of the performance condition, the
amount of cash paid or comman stock issued will ranga from 0 to 150
percent of the performance shares granted for grants prior to 20H and 0
ta 200 percent for grants in 2011 and after, depending on the change in
the value of the Company’s commaon stock relative to an external
benchmark. Dividend equivalent rights are aceumulated end paid out
only on shares that evantually vest.

Performanca share awards entitle tha grantea to shares of
common stock or cash payable once the service condition is satisfiad.
Based on attainment of the performance condition, grantaes may
receive 0 to 150 percent of the original shares granted for grants prior to
2011 and O to 200 percent for shares granted in 2011 and after. The
parformance condition used is the Company's Total Shareholder Return
performance over a three-yaar period as compared against other

utilities; this is considered a market-hased condition. Performance
shares may be settled in common stock or cash at the discretion of the
Company. Histarically, the Company has settled thess awards through
issuance of stock and intends to continue this practice. These awards
vest aithe end of the three-year period. Performance shares are equity
awards with a market-based condition, which rasults inthe
compensation cost for these awards being recognized over the requisite
service period, provided that the requisite service period is rendered,
regardless of when, if ever, the market condition is satisfied.

The Company measures (at the grant date) the estimated fair value
of performance shares awarded. The fair value of each performance
share award was estimated on the date of grant using a statistical
model that incorporates the probability of meeting performance targets
based on histarical returns relative to a peer group. Expected volatility
was based on the historical volatility of Avista Corp. common stock over
a three-year pariod. The expacted term of the performance shares is
three years based on the performance cycle. The risk-free interestrate
was hased on the U.S. Treasury yield atthe time of grant. The
compensation expense on these awards will only be adjusted for
changes in forfeitures.

Ths following summarizes the weighted-average essumpiions used to determine the fair value of gerformance shares and related compensation
expense as well as the resulting estimated fair vaiue of performance shares granted:

2012 2m 2010
Risk-fres interest rate 0.3% 1.2% 1.4%
Expected life, in years 3 3 3
Expectad volatifity 22.7% %.9% 27.8%
Dividend vield 4.5% 47% 46%
Weighted-average grant date fair value {per share} $ w06 $ 2079 § 15.30

The fair vehie inclutes both performance shares and dividend éiiu'wa\m vights.

AVISTA

& /13



The following semmarizes performance share activity:

2012 2011 2010
Opening balance of unvested performance shares 351,345 325,700 300,601
Performance shares granted 181,000 184,600 168,700
Performante shares canceled (4,544) {2177) —
Performance shares vested {168,101} (156,778 {143 601}
Ending balance of unvested performance sharas 359,700 351,345 325,700
Intrinsic valug of unvested performance shares (in thousands) $ 8672 § 9047 & 133
Unrecognized compensation expense {in thousands) $ 3800 & 299 § 2330
The weighted-average ramaining vesting period for the Company’s performance shares outstanding as of December 31, 2012 was 1.5 years.
Unrecognized compensation expense as of Dacember 31, 2012 will be recognized during 2013,
The following summarizes the impact of the market condition on the vested performance shares:

2012 2m 2010
Performance sharas vested 168,101 156,778 143,601
Impact of market condition on shares vastad {168,101) {15,878) 21,540
Shares of common stock earned - 141,100 165,141
Intrinsic value of common stock earned {in thousands) $ — § 3633 § 3719

Shares garned under this plan are distributed to participants in the quarter following vasting.

Outstanding performanca share awards include a dividend
component that is paid in cash. This component of the performance
share grants is accounted for es a liability award, These Dability awards
are ravaluad on a quarterly basis taking inte account the number of
awards outstanding, historical dividand rate, and the changa in the
value of the Company’s commen stock relative to an external
benchmark. Qver tha life of these awards, the cumulative amount of
compensation expense recognized will match the actual cash paid.
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had recognized
compensation expense and a liability of $0.7 million and $1.0 mitlion
related to the dividend componant of performance shara grants.

Ecova

Ecova has an employee stock incentive plan under which
certain employees of Ecova may be granted options to purchase
shares of Ecova at prices no less than the estimated fair value on the
date of grant. The fairvalue of each employee option grantis

estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model and certain assumptions deemed reasonable by management.
Options outstanding undar this plan generally vest over periads of
four years from the date granted and terminate ten years from the
date granted. Unrecognized compensation expense for stock based
awards at Ecova was $3.1 million as of December 31, 2012, which will
be expensed during 2013 threugh 2018,

In 2007, Ecova amended its employee stock incentive plan to
provide an annual window at which time holders of common stock
can put their shares back to Ecova providing the shares are held for
a minimum of six months. In 2009, Ecova amended its employee stock
incentive plan to make this put feature optional for future stock option
grants. Stock is reacquired at fair markset value less sxercise price
atthe dats of reacquisition. Additionally, there were radeemable
nencantrolling interests related to the Cadence Network acquisition,
as the previous ownars can sxercise a right to put their stock back to
Ecova {see Note 5 for further information).

The following amounts of comman stock were repurchased from Ecova employees during the years ended Dacember 31 {dollars in thousands}:

202 2m 2010

Stock repurchased from Ecova employees

‘Note 21. Commitments and Contingencies

Inthe coursa of its business, the Company becomes invalved in
various ¢laims, centraversies, disputes and other contingent mattars,
including the items described in this Note. Some of these claims,
controversias, disputes and other contingent matters involve litigation
ot other contested proceedings. For all such matters, the Company
intands ta vigoreusly protect and defend its interests and pursue its
rights. However, no assurance can ba given as to the ultimate outcome
of any particular matter because litigation end other contested
proceedings are inherently subject to numerous uncertainties.
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For matters that affect Avista Utilities” operations, the Company intends
to sesk, to the extent appropriate, recovery of incurrad ¢osts through

the ratemaking process.

federal Energy Regulatory Commission Inguiry

In April 2004, the Federal Energy Regutatory Commission
{FERC} approved the contested Agreement in Resolution of Section
206 Proceeding (Agreement in Resolution) batween Avista Corp.
daing business as Avista Utilities, Avista Energy &nd the FERC's Trial
Staff which stated that there was: {1) no evidence that any
executives or employees of Avista Uilities or Avista Energy
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knowingly engaged in or facilitated any improper trading strategy
during 2000 and 200%; {2} no evidence that Avista Utilities or Avista
Energy engaged in any efforts to manipulate the western energy
markets during 2800 and 2001; and {3) o finding that Avista Utilities
or Avista Energy withheld relevant infarmation from the FERC's
inquiry into the western energy markets for 2000 and 2001 {Trading
Investigation). The Attorney General of the State of California
{California AG), the California Electricity Oversight Board, and the
City of Tacoma, Washington {City of Tacoma) challenged the FERC's
decisions appraving the Agreement in Resolution, which are now
pending before the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth
Circuit {Ninth Circuit). in May 2004, the FERC provided notice that
Avista Energy was na longer subject to an invastigation reviewing
certain bids above $250 per MW in the short-term energy markets
operated by the California Independent System Operator {CaliSO}
and the California Power Exchange {CalPX} from May 1, 2000 to
October 2, 2000 {Bidding Investigation}. That matter is also pending
before the Minth Circuit, after the California AG, Pacific Gas &
Electric (PG&E), Southern California Edison Company (SCE} and the
Califarnia Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) filed petitions for
reviaw in 2005.

Based onthe FERC's order approving the Agreement in Resolution
inthe Trading investigation and order denying rehearing requests, the
Company dogs not expect that this proceeding will have any material
effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Furthermore, based en information currently known to the Company
regarding the Bidding Investigation and the fact that the FERC Staff did
not find any evidence of manipulative behavior, the Company does not
expect that this matter will have a material effect onits financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

California Refund Proceeding

In July 2001, the FERC ordered an evidentiary hearing to
determine the amount of refunds due to California energy buyers for
purchases made in the spot markets operated by the CallS0 and the
C2lPX during the period from Qctober 2, 2000 to June 20, 2001 {Refund
Period). Proposed refunds are based on the calculation of mitigated

~ market clearing prices for each hour. The FERC ruled that if the refunds
required by the formula would causs a seller to recover less than ifs
actual costs for the Refund Period, sellers may document thesa costs
and limit their refund liability commensurately. In September 2005,
Avista Energy submitted its cost filing ¢laim pursuant to the FERC's
August 2085 erder. The filing was initially acceptad by the FERC, butin
March 2011, the FERC ordered Avista Energy to remove any return on
equity in 2 compliance filing with the CaltS0, which Avista Energy did
in April 2011, A chaflenge to Avista Energy’s cost filing by the California
AG, tha CPUC, PG&E and SCE was denied in July 2011 as a collateral
attack on the FERC's prior orders accepting Avista Energy’s cost filing.
in July 2011, the California AG, the CPUC, PG&E and SCE filed a
petition for review of the FERC's orders regarding Avista Energy’s cost
filing with the Ninth Circuit,

The 2001 bankruptey of PGAE resulted in a default on its payment
obligatipns to the CalPX. As & result, Avista Energy has not been paid
for all of its energy sales during the Refund Pariod. Those funds are
now in escrow accounts and will not be released untit the FERC issuas
an order diregting such release inthe California refund proceeding.
The Call30 continues to work on its compliance filing for the Refund
Period, which will show "who owes what to whom.” In July 2011, the
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FERC accepted the preparstory rerun compliance filings by the CalPX
and CallS0, and responded to the CalPX request for guidance onissues
related to completing the final determination of “who owes what to
whom.” The FERC directed both the CallS0 end the CalPX to prepare
and submit to the FERC their final refund rerun compliance filings. The
FERC's order also directs the CalPX to pay past due principal amounts
to governmental entities. In February 2012, the FERC deniad the
chaflenges made to the July 2011 erder by the California AG, the CPUC,
PG&E and SCE. As of September 30, 2012, Avista Energy's accounts
receivable outstanding related to defaulting parties in California were
fully offset by reserves for uncollected amounts and funds collseted
from the defaulting parties.

In August 2006, the Ninth Circuit upheld Dctober 2, 2000 as the
refund effective date for the FPA section 206 refund praceeding, but
remanded to the FERC its decision not to consider an FPA section 309
remedy for tariff violations prior te that date. In an order issued in May
2011, the FERC clerified the issuez set for hearing for the period May 1,
2000-0ctober 1, 2000 {Summer Period): (1) which market practices
and beheviors constitute a violation of the then-current CallS0, CalPX,
and individual seller's teriffs and FERC orders; (2) whether any of tha
sellers named as respondents in this proceeding engaged inthose
tariff violations; and {3) whether any such tariff violations affected the
market clearing price. The FERC reiterated that tha Galifornia Parties
ara expected 10 be very specific when presenting their arguments and
evidence, and that general claims would not suffice, The FERC also
gave the California Parties an opportunity to show that exchange
transactions with the CallS0 during the Refund Period were not just
and reasonable. Avista Energy has one exchange transaction with the
CallSQ. The California AG, the CPUC, PGAE and SLE filed for rehearing
of the FERC's May 2011 order, arguing that it improperly denies thema
market-wide remedy for the pre-refund period. That request for
rehearing was denied in an arder issuad by FERC on November 2, 2012,
The California AG, tha CPUC, PG&E and SCE filed a petition for review
of the May 2011 and November 2012 orders with tha Ninth Circuit on
November 7, 2012,

A FERC hearing commenced on April 11, 2012 and concluded on
July 19, 2012, On August 27, 2012, the Presiding Administrative Law
Judge issuad a partial initial decision granting Avista Utilities” motion
for summary dispesition, based on the stipulation by the California
Parties that there are no allegations of tariff violations made aqgainst
Avista Utilities in this proceeding and therefore no tariff violations by
Avista Utilitias that affectad the market ¢learing price in any hour
during the Summer Period. On November 2, 2012, FERC issued an order
affirming the partial initial decision and dismissing Avista Utilities from
tha procaeding, thereby terminating all claims against Avista Utilities
for the Summar Period. In the same order, FERC also held that a
markat-wide remedy would not be appropriate with regard to any
respondent during the Summer Period. FERC stated that it is clear that
the Ninth Circuit did not mandate a specific remedy on remand and,
instead, leftit to the FERC's discretion to determine which remedy
would be appropriate. On Decamber 3, 2012, the California Parties filed
a request for clarification and rehearing of the November 2, 2012 order.
On February 15, 2013, the Administrative Law Judge issued an initfal
decision finding that certain Respondents committed various tariff and
other violations that affected the market clearing prica in the California
organized markets during the Summer Period, The tariff violations
identified for Avista Energy are type ll and li bidding violations; false
exportvielations; and selling ancillary services without market-based
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rate authority. The initial decision did not discuss evidenca offered by
Avista Energy, an an hour by hour basis, rebutting the alleged
violations and Avista Energy is currently preparing briefs on
saceptions which will identify these errors. With respact to Avista
Energy’s one exchange transaction with the Call30 during the Refund
Periad, the judge made no findings with respect to the justness and
reasonableness of that transaction, but nonetheless determined that
Avista Energy owed approximately $0.2 million in refunds with regard
to the transaction.

Becausa the resolwiion of the California refund proceeding
remaing Uncertain, legal counsel Cannot express an opinion gn the
extent of the Company’s liability, if any. However, based on information
currently known, the Company doas not expect that the refunds
uitimetely ordered for the Refund Period would resultin a material
loss. In the event that the Commission doas not overturn the legal and
factual errors in the February 15, 2013 initial decision, the Company
does not expect that the refunds uitimately ordered for that period
would result in a material loss either. This is primarily due to the fact
that the FERC orders have stated that any refunds will be netted
against unpaid amounts owed fo the respective parties and the
Company does net believe that refunds would exceed unpaid amounts
owed to the Company.

Pacific Northwest Refund Proceeding

In Juby 2601, the FERG initiated a preliminary evidentiary heasing to
develop a factual record as to whether prices for spot market sales of
whelesala energy in the Pacific Northwest between December 25, 2000
and June 20, 2001 were just and reasonable. In June 2003, the FEAC
terminated the Pacific Northwast refund procesdings, after finding that
the equities do not justify the imposition of refunds. In August 2007, the
Ninth Circuit found that the FERC, in denying the request for refunds,
had failed to take into account new evidenca of market manipulation in
the California energy market and its potential ties to the Pacific
Northwest energy market and that such failure was arbitrary and
capricious and, accordingly, remanded the case to the FERC, stating that
the FERC's findings must ba reavaluated in light of the svidence. In
addition, tha Ninth Circuit conciuded that the FERC abused its discretion
in denying potential relief for transactions involving energy that was
purchased by the California Energy Resources Scheduling (CERS) inthe
Pacific Northwest and ultimately consumed in California. The Ninth
Circuit expressly declined to direct the FERC to grant refunds. The Ninth
Cireuit denied petitions for rehearing by various parties, and remanded
the case to the FERC in April 2009.

0On October 3, 2011, the FERE issued an Order on Remand, finding
that, in light of the Ninth Circuit's remand order, additional procedures
ara ngeded to address possible unlawful activity that may hava
influenced prices in the Pacific Northwest spot market during the
period from December 25, 2000 through June 20, 2001, The Order
establishes an evidentiary, trizl-type hearing before an Administrative
Law Judge {ALJ}, and raopens the record to permit parties to present
evidence of unlawful markat activity during the relevant perigd, The
Order also allows participants to supplementthe record with additional
evidence an CERS transactions in the Pacific Northwest spot market
from January 18, 2001 to June 20, 2001. The Order states that parties
seaking refunds must submit evidence demonstrating that specific
unlawful market activity ogcurred, and must demonstrate that such
activity directly affected negotiations with respect to the specific
contractrate about which they complain. Simply alleging & general link
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betwean the dysfunctional spot market in California and the Pacific
Morthwest spot market will not be sufficient to establish a causal
connection between a particufar seller's alleged unfawful activities
and the specific contract negotiations atissue. Claimants filed notice
of their claims on August 17, 2012, and they filed their direct testimony
on Septambar 21, 2012. Respondents’ filed their answering testimony
ot December 17, 2012 and staff filed its answering testimany on
February 5, 2013. Respondents’ cross-answering testimony is due
February 22, 2013 and claimants’ rebuttal testimony is dus March 12,
2013. The hearing is scheduled to begin on April 15, 2013. Gn July 11,
2012, Avista Energy and Avista Utilities filed settlements of all issues in
this docket with regard to the claims made by the City of Tacoma. On
September 21,2012, and September 26, 2012, the FERC issued orders
approving tha settlaments hetwaen the City of Tacoma and Avista
Utilities and Avista Energy, respectively, thus terminating those claims.
The two remaining direct claimants against Avista Utilities and Avista
Energy in this proceeding are the City of Seatile, Washington, and the
Califernia Attorney General (on behalf of CERS].

Both Avista Uhilities and Avista Energy were buyers end sellers
of enargy inthe Pacific Northwest energy market during the pariod
between December 25, 2000 and June 20, 2001 and, are subject to
potential claims in this proceeding, and if refunds are erdered by the
FERC with regard to any particular contract, could be fiable to make
paymants. Tha Company cannot predict the cutceme of this proceeding
or the amount of any refunds that Avista Utilities or Avista Energy could
be ordered to make. Therefore, the Company cannot predictthe
potential impact the outcome of this matter could ultimately have on the
Company's results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Calitornia Attorney General Complaint (the “Lockyer Complaint”}

In May 2002, the FERC conditionally dismissed a complaint filed in -
March 2002 by the Califernia AG that alleged violations of the FPA by
the FERC and all sellers (including Avista Corp. and its subsidiaries) of
electric power and energy into California. The complaint allaged that
the FERC’s adoption and implementation of market-based rate
authority was flawed and, as a result, individual seflers should refund
the difference between the rate charged and a just and reasonable
rate. In May 2002, the FERC issued an order dismissing the complaint.
In September 2004, the Ninth Circuit upheld the FERC's market-based
rate authority, but held that the FERC erred in ruling that it lacked
authority to arder refunds for violations of its reparting requirement.
The Court remanded the case for further proceedings.

fn March 2008, the FERE issued &n order establishing a trial-type
hearing to addrass “whether any individual public utility seller’s
violation of the FERC's market-based rate quarterly reporting
requirement led to an unjust and unreasanabla rate for that particufar
sellerin California during the 2000-2001 period.” Purchasers in the
California markets were given tha opportunity to present evidence that
“any selter that viclated the quarterly reparting requirement failed to
disclose an incraased market share sufficient to give it the ability to
exercise market power and thus cause its market-based rates to be
unjust and unreasonable.” In March 2010, the Presiding ALJ granted
the motions for summary disposition and found that a hearing was
“unnecessary” because the California AG, CFUC, PG&E and SCE
“failed to apply the appropriate test to determina market power during
the relevant time period.” The judge determined that *[wlithout &
proper showing of market power, the California Parties failed to
establish a prima facie case.” In May 2011, the FERC affirmed “in afl

%1

116



respecis” the ALJ's decision. In June 2011, the California AG, CFUC,
PG&E and SCE filed for rehearing of that order. Those rehearing
requests were denied by the FERC on June 13, 2012. On June 20, 2012,
the California AG, CPUC, PG&E and SCE filed a petition for review of
the FERC's order with the Ninth Circuit. Or February 6, 2013, the
California AG, CPUC, PG&E, and SCE filed an unopposed motion with
the Ninth Circuit, requesting that a briefing schedule be established,
such that petitioners’ joint opening brisf would be due May 17, 2013;
respondentis’ answering brief would be due July 16, 2013; respondent-
intervenars’ joint brief would be due August 6, 2013; and petitioners’
optional joint reply brief would be dua September 10, 2013.

Based on ipformation eurrently known to the Company’s
management, tha Company does not expect thet this matter wil
have a material effect on its financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Colstrip Generating Project Complaint

In March 2007, two families that own property near the holding
ponds from Units 3 & 4 of the Colstrip Generating Project {Calstrip) filed
a complaint againstthe owners of Colstrip and Hydrometrics, Inc. in
Montana District Court. Avista Corp. owns a 15 percent interest in Units
3 & 4 of Colstrip. The plaintiffs alleged that the holding ponds and
remediation activities adversely impacted their property. They alleged
contamination, decrease in water tables, reduced flow of streams on
thair property and other similar impacts to their property. They also
sought punitive damages, attorney’s fees, an order by the court io
remove certain ponds, and the forfaiture of profits sarned from the
generation of Colstrip. In September 2010, the ewners of Colstrip filed a
motion with the courto enforce 2 settlement agreemant that would
resolve all issues hetween the parties. In Qcteber 2011 the courtissued
an order which enforces the settlemant agreement. The plaintiffs
subsequently appealed the court's decision and, on December 31,2012,
the Montana Supreme Court issued its docision, holding that the District
Court properly granted the motion to enforca the settlement agreement.
A petition for rehearing before the Supreme Courtwas denied on
February 5, 2013, Under the settlement, Avista Corp.’s portion of
payment {which was accrued in 2010) to the plaintiffs was not material
to its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Sierra Club and Montana Environmental Information Center Notice
On Juty 30, 2012, Avista Corp. received a Notice of Intent to Sue
for vinlations of the Clean Air Act at Colstrip Steam Electric Station
{Notice} from counsel on behalf of the Sierra Club and the Montana
Environmental Information Center {MEIC), an Amended Notice was
received on September 4, 2012, and a Second Amended Notice was
received on October 1, 2012, A “supplemental” Notice was received on
December 4, 2012, The Notice, Amendad Notice, Second Amended
Notice and Supplemental Notice were ali addressed to the Ownar or
Managing Agent of Colstrip, and t0 the other Colstrip co-owners: PPL
Montana, Puget Sound Energy, Portland General Electric Company,
NorthWastarn Energy and PacifiCorp, The Notice alleges certain
violations of the Clean Air Act, including the New Source Review, Title
V and opacity requirements. The Amended Notice alleges additionat
opacity violations at Colstrip, and the Second Amendad Notice alleges
additional Title V allegations. All thrag notices state that Sierra Club
and MEIC will requast a United States District Court to impese
injunctive relief and civil penalties, require a boneficial envirgnmental
projectin the areas affected by the allaged air pollution and require
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reimbursement of Sierra Club’s and MEIC's costs of litigation and
attorney's fees. Under the Clean Air Act, lawsLits cannot be filed until
60 days after the applicable notice date. Avista Corp. is evaluating the
allegations set forth in the Notice, Amended Notice and Second
Amended Notice and Supplemental Notice, and cannot at this time
predict the outcoms of this matter.

Harbor 0il Inc. Site

Avista Corp. used Harbor Oil Inc. (Harbor Qi) for the recycling of
wasta 0il and non-PCB transformer oil in the late 19805 and early 1990s.
In June 2605, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region 10
provided notificetion to Avista Corp. and several other parties, as
customers of Harbor Qil, that the EPA had determined that hazardous
substances ware relaased at the Harbor Ol site in Portfand, Oregon and
that Avista Corp. and several other parties may be liable for
investigation and cleanup of the site under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, commonly
referred to as the federal “Superfund” law, which provides for joint and
several fiability. The initial indicatien from the EPA is thet the site may be
contaminated with PCBs, petraleumn hydrocarbons, chlorinated solvents
and heavy metsls. Six potentially responsible parties, including Avista
Corp., signad an Administrative Grder on Consent with the EPA on May
31, 2007 to conduct a remedial investigation and feasibility study {RI/FS).
The draft final RI/FS was submitted to the EPA in Becember 2011 and
was accapted as pre-final in March 2012. The EPAissued a notice of its
plan to make & finding of No Further Action in November 2012. Should
the EPA make & Mo Further Action determination, the EPA stated it
would then propose removal of the site from the National Priority List.
Based on the review of its records related to Harbor Oil, the Company
does not believe itis & significant contributor to this potential
environmental contamination hased on the small vofume of waste oil it
deliverad to the Harbor Oil site. As such, the Company does not expect
that this matter will have a material effect on its financiel condition,
results of operations or cash flows. The Company has expensed its
share of the RI/FS ($0.5 million) for this matter.

Spokane River Licensing

The Company owns and oparates six hydroelectric plants on the
Spokana River. Fiva of thesa {Long Lake, Nine Mile, Upper Falls, Monroe
Street, and Post Falls) are regulated under one 50-year FERC license
issued in June 2009 and are rafarrad to as the Spokane River Project.
The sixth, Litile Falls, iz operated under separate Congressional
authority and is not licensed by the FERC. The license incorporated the
4(e} conditions that were included in the Decembar 2008 Settlement
Agreemant with the United States Department of Interior and the Coeus
d’Alene Tribe, as well as the mandatory conditions that were agreedto
in the Idaho 401 Water Quality Certifications and in the amended
Washington 401 Water Quality Certification.

As part of the Settlement Agreement with the Washington
Bepartment of Ecology {Ecology), the Company has participated in
tha Total Maximum Daily Load {TMDL) process for the Spokane
River and Laka Spokane, the reservoir created by Long Lake Dam.
On May 20, 2010, the EPA approved the TMIIL and on May 27, 2010,
Ecology filed an amended 401 Water Quality Certification with the
FERC for inclusion inta the license. The amended 401 Watar Quality
Certification includes the Company's level of respensibility, as
defined in the TMDL, for low dissolved oxygen levels in Lake
Spokane. The Company submitted a draft Water Quality Attainment
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Plan for Dissolved Oxygen to Ecology in May 2012 and this was
approved by Ecology in September 2012, This plan was
subsequently approved by the FERC. The Company will begin to
implament this plan, and management believes costs will not be
material. On July 16, 2010, the City of Post Falls and the Hayden Area
Regional Sewer Beard filed an appeal with the United States
District Court for the District of idaho with respect to the EPA's
approval of the TMDL. The Company, the City of Caeur d'Alene,
Kaiser Aluminum and the Spokane River Keeper subsequently
moved to intervene inthe appeal. In September 2011, the EPAissued
a stay ta the litigation that will ba in effect until either the permits
areissued and il appeals and challenges are complete or the court
lifts the stay. The stay is still in effect.

The IPUG and the UTC approved the recovery of licensing costs
through the general rate case settlements in 2009. The Company will
continue to seek recovery, through the ratemaking process, of all
operating and capitalized ¢osts related to implementing the ficense for
the Spokana River Project.

Cabinat Gorge Total Dissolved Gas Abatement Plan

Dissolved atmospheric gas levels in the Clark Fork River exceed
state of Idaho and federal water quality standards downstream of the
Cabinet Gorge Hydroelectric Generating Project [Cabinet Gorga) during
periods when excess river flows must be diverted over the spillway.
Under the terms of the Clark Fork $ettlement Agreement as
incorporated in Avista Corp.’s FERC license for tha Clark Fork Project,
Avista Corp. has worked in consultation with agencies, tribes and other
stakeholders to address this issue. In the second quarter of 2011, the
Company campleted praliminary feasibility 2ssassments for several
alternative abatement measures, In 2092, Avista Corp., with tha
approval of the Clark Fork Management Committes (created under the
Clark Fork Settlemant Agreament), moved forward to testone of the
alternatives by constructing a spill crest modification on a single spill
gate. The modification will be tested in 2013 to evaluate whether this
approach will provide significant TDG reduction, and whether it could
be applied to other spill gates. The Company will continue to seek
recavery, through the ratemaking process, of all operating and
capitalized costs related to this issue.

Fish Passage at Cabinet Gorge and Noxon Rapids

In 1999, the USFWS listed bull traut as threatened under the
Endangared Species Act. The Clark Fork Settlement Agreement
describas programs intended to halp restore bufl trout populations in
the project area, Using the concept of adaptive management and
working closely with the USFWS, the Company evaluated the
feasibility of fish passage at Cabinet Gorge and Noxon Rapids. The
results of these studies led, in part, to the decision to move forward
with development of permanent facilities, among other buil trout
enhancement efforts. As of the end of 2012, fishway design for Cabinat
Gorga was still being finalized. Construction cost estimates and
schedules wili be developed in 2013, Fishway dasign for Noxon Rapids
has also been initiated, and is still in early stages.

in January 2010, the USFWS revised its 2005 designation of
critical habitat for the bull trout to inelude the lower Clark Fork River as
criticat habitat. The Company believes its ongoing efforts through the
Clark Fork Settlement Agreement continue to effectively address issues
related to bull trout. The Company will continua to sesk recovery,
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through the ratemaking process, of all operating and capitalized costs
related to fish passags at Cabinet Gorge and Noxon Rapids.

Aluminum Recycling Site

In Octaber 2009, the Company (through its subsidiary Pentzer
Venture Holdings i, Inc. {Pentzer)] received notice from Ecolagy
proposing to find Pentzer fiable for a release of hazardous substances
under the Model Toxics Control Act, under Washington state law.
Pentzer gwns property that adjoins land owned by the Union Pacific
Railroad {UPR). UPR leased their property to oparators of a facility
designated by Ecology as “Aluminum Recycling—Trentwood.”
Operatars of the UPR property maintained piles of aluminum dress,
which designate as & state-only dangerous waste in Washington State.
Inthe course of its business, the operators placed a portion of the
aluminum dross pile onthe property owned by Pentzer. Pentzer does
not belisve itis a contributor to any environmental contamination
associated with the drass pile, and submitted & response to Ecology's
praposed findings in November 2009. In December 2008, Pentzer
regeived notice from Ecology thatithad been designated as a
potentially liable party for any hazardous substances located on this
site. UPR completed a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study during
2011, which wes epproved by Ecology in 2012, Based on information
currently known to the Company’s management, the Company does not
expect this issue will have a material effect an its financial condition,
results of eperations or cash flows.

Collective Bargaining Agreemeants

The Company’s collective bargaining agreement with the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers represents
approximately 45 percent of all of Avista Utilities’ employees. The
agreemant with the local union in Washington and Idaho representing
the majority (approximately 90 percent) of the bargaining unit employeas
expires in March 2014. Two local agreements in Oregon, which cover
approximately 50 employees, expire in March 2014,

Other Contingencies

Inthe normal course of business, the Company has various other
legal claims and centingent matters outstanding. The Company
believes that any ultimate liahility arising from thesa actions will not
have a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows, ltis possibla that a change could occurin the Company's
estimates of the probability or amount of a liability baing incurred.
Such a change, should it oceur, could be significant.

Tha Company routinely assesses, based on studies, expert
analyses and legai reviews, its contingencies, obligations and
commitments for remediation of contaminated sites, including
assessmants of ranges and probabilities of recoveries from other
responsible parties who either have or have not 2greed to a settlement
as well as recoveries from insurance carriers, The Campany's policy is
to accrue and charga to current expense identified exposures related to
environmeatal remediation sites based on estimatas of investigation,
cleanup and monitoring costs to ba incurred. For matters that affect
Avista Unilities’ operations, the Company seeks, to the extent
appropriate, recovery of incurred costs through the ratemaking process.

The Company has potential liabilities under the Endangered
Species Act for species of fish that have either already been added to
the endangered species list, listed as “threatened” or petitienad for
listing. Thus far, measures adepted and implemented have had minimal
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impact on the Company. However, the Company will continue to seek
recovery, through the ratemaking process, of all oparating and
capitalized costs related to this issue.

Under tha faderal licenses for its hydroelectric projects, the
Company is obligated to protect its property rights, including water

basin in the next several years. The Company is and will continuie to
be & participant in these adjudication processes. The complexity of
such adjudications makes each unlikely to ba concludedin the
foreseesble future. As such, itis not pussibla for the Cempany to
astimate the impact of any outcome &t this time.

rights. The state of Montana is examining the status of all water right

tlaims within state beundaries. Claims within the Clark Fork River Note 22. Information Services Contracts

basin could adversaly affect the enetgy production of the Campany's
Cabinet Gorge and Noxon Rapids hydroelectric facilities, Tha state of
Idaho has initiated adjudication in northern ldaho, which will
vitimately include the lower Clark Fork River, the Spokane River end
the Coeur d’Alene basin. In addition, the state of Washington has
indicated an interest in initiating adjudication for the Spokane River

Tha Company has infermation services contracts that expire at
varipus times through 2018. The largest of these contracts provides for
increases due to changes in the cost of fiving index and further provides
flexibility in the annual obligation from year-to-ysar subjectto a
thrae-year true-up cycle.

Total payments under these coniracts were as follows for the years ended December 31 (dallars ia thowsands):

m2 20 2010
Information service contract payments 3 13221 § 130 § 13426

The majority nfllw costs are included in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of lacome. The following teble details minimum
future contractual commitmants for these agreements (dollars in theusands):

2013 2014 03 2016 2017 Thereaftar Total
Contractual obiigations § 11,175 § 9400 § 8700 $ 870 $ 85600 $ o $ 47 A7
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Note 23. Avista Utilities Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The jollowing table presents the Company’s regulatory assets and liabilities as of Decembaer 31, 2012 (dollars in thowsands):

Receiving
Regulatory Treatment
Remaining o Not @
Amortization Earning Eaming  Expected Total Total
Period A Return AReturn  Recovery 2012 2m

Regulatary Assets:
Investment in exchange power—net 2008 § 16,333 — 8 — § 16333 § 18,763
Regulatory assets for deferred income tax @ 19,406 — — 13,406 84,576
Regulatory assets for pensions and other

postretirement benefit plans " — — 306,408 306,408 260,359
Current regulatory asset for utility derivatives & — 5,082 — 35,082 £9,685
Unamortized debt repurchase costs @ 21,635 — — 21,635 23,037
Ragulatory asset for setlement with Coeur d'Alene Tribe 2059 50,509 — - 50,509 52,463
Demand side management programs & — 2519 — 2579 798
Montana lease payments L 4,059 — — 4,059 5,096
Lancaster Plant 2020 net costs 2015 3967 — a— 3.967 5,327
Deferred maintsnancs costs 206 — 312 — 6312 —_
Regulatory asset for interest rata swaps 3 — 1,406 — 1,406 18,895
Non-current regulatory asset for utility derivatives 19 — 25218 — 25,218 40,345
QOther regulatary assets 8 5,053 3,98 4678 13,717 14,313
Total regulatory assets 3 180862 74583 § 311086 $ G6EE3T § 583677
Regulatory Liabilities:
Oragon Senate Bill 408 w2 8 — — 3 — 5 — § 72
Natural gas defervals “ 6,917 — — 6,917 12140
Power deferrals s 213233 — — 21323 13,692
Regulatory fability for utility plant refirement costs n 34128 — — 234128 2,282
Income tax related liabilitios o _— 17,206 —_ 17,206 18,607
Regulatory Fability for interest rate swaps 2014-2015 — 1,265 — 1,265 -
Regulatory liability for Spokane Energy @ — — 21488 21,488 19,902
Other regulztory liabilities o 2118 1,598 -— 4,316 5534
Total regulatory liabilities $§ N0 § %069 § N488 § 318643 § 207920

{1} Earning 8 raturn includes either interest on the regulstory assatiability or a return on the investment as a companent of rate base at the alfowed rate of return.

{2} Expected recovary is pending regulatery treaiment including reguiatory assets and liabilities that have prior regulatory precedence.

{3}  Remaining amortization peviod varies depending on timirg of underlying transactions.
{4 Astha Company has historically recoverad and currantly recovers its pension and other postretirement benefit costs related to its reguisted operatians in retait

rates, the Company records & regulatory asset for that portion of its pension and othar postratirament benefit funding deficiency.

(5} The UTC and the IPUC issued accounting orders eutharizing Avista Utilities to offsat commodity derivative assets or liabilitiss with a regulatory asset or labifity.

This acceunting treatmant is intanded to defer the recognition of mark-ta-market gains snd fosses on energy commodity transactions un;ﬂ the period of settlement,

The orders provide for Avista Utilities to not recognize the unrealized gain or loss on utifity derivetive commodity instruments in the Consolidated Statements of

income, Realized gains or losses are recogaized i the period of setttement, subject to approvel for racovery throuph retail rates. Realized gains and losses, subject

to reguiatory approval, resuit in adjustmants to retar rates throuph purchased gas cost adjustments, the ERM in Washington, the PCA mechanism in Idaho, and

pavigdic general rates cases,

{8 Forthe Company’s Washington jurisdiction and for any debt repurchases beginning in 2007 in alt jurisdictions, pramiums paid to rapurchase debt ara amortized over

tha remaining life of the original debt that was repurchased er. if new dubt is issuad in cornection with the rapurchase, these costs are amortized over the Iife of the

new debt. In the Company’s other regulatory furisdictions, pramiums paid to repurchase debt prior to 2007 are being smortized over the average remaining matunity

of outstanding debt when no new debt was issuad in connsction with the delit repurchase. These costs are recovared through retail rates a5 & componant of

intarest expanse.

7} This amount is dapendent upen the cost of ramoval of underying utility plant assets and the Jife of utility plant.

{B)  Consists of a regulatory liabifity recorded for the cumulative retained eamings of Spokana Energy thet the Company will flow threugh regulatory accounting

mechanisms in future periods.
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Power Cost Deferrals and Recovery Mechanisms
Defarred power supply cests are recorded as a deferred charge on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets for future prudence review and
racovery through retail rates. The power supply costs deferred include
certain differences betwasn actual net power supply costs incurred by
Avista Utilities and the costs included in base retail rates. This
difference in net power supply costs primarily results from changes in:
« short-term wholesale market prices and sales and
purchase volumes,
+ the level of hydroalactric generation,
+ the level of thermat generation lincluding changes in fusi
prices}, and
* retail loads.

In Washington, the Enargy Recovery Mechanism (ERM] allows
Avista Utilities to periodically increase or decrease electric rates with
UTC approval to reflect changes in power supply costs. The ERMis an
accounting mathod usad to track certain differences between actual
net power supply cosis, net of the margin on wholesale sales and sales
of fuel, 2nd the amount included in base retail rates for Washington
tustomers. In the 2010 Washington general rate case settlement, the
parties agreed that there would be no deferrals under the ERM for 2010.
Deferrals under the ERM resumed in 2011. Total net deferred power
costs under the ERM were a liability of $22.2 million as of December 31,
2012, and this balance represents tha customer portion of the deferred
power costs, As part of the approved Washington general rate case
settlement filad on October 19,2012 and approved on December 28,
2012, during 2013 a one-year cradit of $4.4 milkion would be returned to

The following is & summary of the ERM:

electric customers from the existing ERM deferral balanca so the net
average electric rate increase to customers in 2013 would be 2.0
parcent. Additionally, during 2014 a ong-year credit of $3.0 million would
be returned to electric customers from the then-existing ERM deferral
balance, if such funds are available, so the net average electric rate
increase to customers effective January 1, 2014 would be 2.0 parcent.
The credits te customers from the ERM balances would not impact the
Company’s netincome,

Underthe ERM, the Company absorbs the cost or receives the
henefit from the initial amount of power supply costs in excess of or
helow the level in retail rates, which is referred to as the deadband. The
annual {calendar year} deadband amount is currently $4.0 million, The
Company will incur the cost of, or receive the benefit from, 100 percent
of this initial power supply cost variance. Tha Company shares annual
powsr supply cost variances between $4.0 million and $10.0 million with
its customers. There is a 50 percent customears/50 percent Company
sharing ratio whan actual power supply expenses are higher {surcharge
to customers) than the smount included in base retail rates within this
band. There is a 75 percent customers/25 percent Company sharing
ratio when actual power supply expenses are lower {rebate to
customers) than the amount included in base retail rates within this
band. To the extent that the annual power supply cost variancs from the
amount included in base rates exceeds $10.0 million, 90 percent of the
cost variance is deferred for future surcharge or rebate. The Company
abgorbs or receives the benefitin power supply costs of the remaining
10 percent of the annual variance beyond $10.0 million without affecting
current or future customer rates,

Deferred for Future -
Annual Power Supply Surcharge or Rebate Expense or Bensfit
Gost Variability to Customers to itha Company
within +/- $0 to $4 million {deadband) 0% 100%
higher by $4 miilion to $1¢ million 50% 50%
tower by 84 million to $10 million 75% 5%
higher or lowar by over $10 million 90% 10%

As part of the 2012 Washington general rate case settlement,
the praposed modifications to the ERM deadband and other sharing
bands that were included in the original April 2092 general rate case
filing were not agreed to and the ERM will continue unchanged.
Howevaer, the trigger point at which rates will change under the ERM
was modified to be 330 milkion rather than the current 10 percent of
base revenues {approximately $45 million) under the mechanism.

Avista Utilities has a Power Cost Adjustment {PCA} mechanism
irt [daho that allows it to modify electric rates on Dctober 1 of each
year with ldaho Public Utilities Commission (IPUC) approval. Under
the PCA mechanism, Avista Utilities defers 30 percent of the
difference hetween certain actual net powar supply expenses and
the amount included in base retail rates for its Idahe customers,
These annual October 1 rate adjustments recover or rebate power
costs deferred during the preceding July—June twelve-month period.
Total net power supply costs deferrad under the PCA mechanism
were a regulatory liability of $5.1 million as of December 31, 2012 and
$0.7 million as of Decembar 31, 2011,
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Natural Gas Cost Deferrals and Recovery Mechanisms

Avista Utilities files a purchased gas cost adjustment (PGA) in all
three states it serves to adjust natural gas rates for: 1) estimated
commodity and pipeline transportation costs to serva natural gas
customers for the coming year, and 2} the difference between actual
and estimated commodity and transportation costs for the prior year.
These annual PGA fitings in Washington and Idaho provide for the
defarral, and recovery or refund, of 100 percent of the difference
between actual and estimated commodity and pipeline transportation
costs, subject to applicable regulatory review. The annual PGA filing in
Oregon provides for deferral, and recovery or refund, of 100 percent of
the difference between actual and estimated pipalina transportation
¢osts and commodity costs that are fixed through hedge transactions.
Commedity costs that are not hedged for Oregon customers are subject
to 4 sharing mechanism whereby Avista Utilities defers, and recovers or
refunds, 90 percent of the difference between thage actual and
estimated costs. Total net deferred natural gas costs to be refunded to
customers were a liability of $6.3 million as of Decembar 31, 2012 and
$12.1 million as of December 31,2011,
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Washington General Rate Cases

In November 2010, the UTC appraved an all-party settioment
stipulation in the Company's general rate case filed in March 2010, As
agreed to inthe settlement stipulation, elzctric rates for the Company's
Washington customers increased by an averaga of 1.4 percent, which
was designed to increase annual ravenues by $29.5 million. Natural gas
rates for the Company’s Washington customers increased by an
averaga of 2.9 percent, which was designed to increase annual
revenuss by $4.6 million. The new electric and natural gas ratas became
effective on December 1, 2010,

in December 2011, the UTC approved a settlement agreement in
the Company‘s plectric and natural gas general rate cases filed in
May 2011, As agreed to in the settlement agresmant, base electric rates
for the Company's Washington customers increased by an average
of 4.8 percent, which is designed to increase annual revenues by
$20.0 mitlion. Basa natural gas rates for the Company’s Washington
customers increased by an average of 2.4 percent, which is designed to
increase annual revenues by $3.75 million. The new electric and natural
gas rates became effective on January 1, 2012,

As part of the settlement agreement, the Company agreed to not
file a general rate case in Washington prior to April 1, 2012,

The settiement agresment also provides for the deferral of
certain geneération plant maintenanca costs. In order to address the
variability in year-to-year maintenance costs, heginning in 2011, the
Company is deforring changes in maintenance costs related to its
Coyote Spring 2 natural gas-fired generation plant and its 15 percent
ownership interest in Units 3 8 4 of the Colstrip generation plant. The
Company compares actual, non-fuel, maintenance expenses for the
Coyote Springs 2 and Colstrip plants with the amount of baseline
maintenance expenses used to establish base retail ratas, and
defers the difference. The deferral occurred annually, with no
carrying charge, with deferred costs being amortized over a
four-year period, beginning in January of the year following the
period costs are deferred. The amount of expensa to be requested
for recovery in future general rate casas would be the actual
maintenance expense recorded in the test period, less any amount
deferred during the test period, plus the amortization of previcusly
deferred coats. Total net deferred costs under this mechanism in
Washington were a reguiatory asset of $4.0 million as of
December 31, 2012 compared to a regulatory Hability of $0.5 million
as of December 31, 2011.

As partof the settlement agreamentin October 2012 to the
Company’s latest general rate case discussed in further detail below,
the parties have agreed that the maintenanca cost deferral mechanism
on these generation plants will terminate on December 31, 2012, with
the four-year amortization of the 2011 and 2012 deferrals to conclude in
2015 and 2018, respectively.

In Decembar 2012, the UTC approved a settlement agresment
intha Company’s electric and natural gas general rate cases filed in
April 2012. As agread to in the settlement, effective January 1, 2013,
base rates for Washington electric customers increased by an
overall 3.0 percent (designed to increase annual revenues by
$13.6 million), and base rates for Washington natural gas customers
increased by an gverall 3.6 percent (designed to increass annual
revenues by §5.3 million). The settling partiss agres that a one-year
credit of $4.4 million will be returned to aleciric customers from
the existing ERM deferral balance so the net average electric
rate increass impact to the Company's customers in 2013 will be 2.0
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percent. The eredit to customers from the ERM balance will not
impactthe Company's earmings.

The settlement also provided that, effective Januvary 1, 2014,
the Company will implement tamporary base rate increases for
Washington electric cugtomers by an overall 3.0 percent {designed
to increase annual revenues by $14.0 million), and for Washington
natural gas customars by an overall 0.9 percent (designed to
increase annual revenuas by $1.4 millinn). The settling partias agree
that a ona-year credit of $9.0 million will be retumed to electric
customers from the then-existing ERM defarral balance, if such
funds are available, so the net average electric rate increasa to
customers effective January 1, 2014 would be 2.0 percent. The
credit to customars from the ERM balance will not impact the
Lompany's sernings.

The UTC arder agproving the settlement agreement
included certain conditions. The new ratail rates to become
effective January 1, 2014 will be temporary rates, and on January
1, 2015 efectric and natural gas base rates will revert back to 2013
levels absent any intervening action from the UTC. The settlement
agreement also states that the Company will not file a general
rate casa in Washington that would cause an increase in base
retail rates before January 1, 2015. The Company could, hawever,
make a filing prior to January 2015, but new rates resulting from
the filing would not take effect prior to January 1, 2015. This does
not preclude the Company from filing annual rate adjustments
such as the PGA,

In addition, in its Order, the UTG found that much of the
approved basa rate increases are justified by the planned capital
expenditures necessary to upgrade and maintain the Company’s
utility facilities. [f thesa capital projects are not completed to a level
that was contempiated in the original settiement agreement, this
could resuit in base rates which are considerad too high by the UTC.
As a result, Avista Corp. must file capital expenditure progress
reports with the UTC on a periodic basis so that the UTC can monitor
the capital expenditures and ensure they are in line with those
contemplated in the settlement 2greemant.

The settlament agresmant provides for an authorized return on
equity of 9.8 percent and an equity ratio of 47,0 percent, resulting in an
overall return on rate base of .64 percent.

Idaho General Rate Cases

In September 2010, the IPUC approved a settlement agreement in
the Company's general rate case filed in March 2010. The new electric
and natural gas rates became effective on October 1, 2010. As agreed to
in the settlement, base electric rates for the Company’s Idahe
customers increasad by an average of 9.3 percent, which was designed
toincrease annual revenues by $21.2 million. Base natural gas rates for
the Company’s Idaha customers increasad by an average of 2.5 parcent,
which was designed to increase anniual revenues by $1.8 mitlion,

Tha 2010 settlemant agreement includes a rate mitigation plan
under which the impact on customers of the new rates will be reduced
by amortizing $11.1 million ($17.5 million when grossed up for income
taxas and othar revenue-related items) of previously deferred state
income taxes over & two-year period as a credit to customers. While
the Company’s cash collections from customers will be reduced by
this amortization during the two-year period, the mitigation plan wil
have no impact on the Company's net income. Retail rates increased
on October 1, 2011 and will increase on Qctober 1, 2012 as the defarred

state income tax balance is amortized.
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In Saptember 2011, the IPUC approved a setilemant agreemsnt in
the Company's general rata case filed in July 2011. The new electric and
natural gas rates became effective on October 1, 2011. As agreed toin
the settiement agreement, base electric rates for the Company's ldaho
customers increased by an average of 1.1 percent, which was designed
toincrease annual revenues by $2.8 million. Base natural gas rates for
the Gompany’s idaho customers increased by en average of 1.6 percent,
which was designed to increase annual revenues by $1.1 million.

As part of the settlement agreement, the Company agreed to not
seek to meke effective a change in base electric or natural gas rates
prior to April 1, 2013, by means of & general rata case filing. This does
not preclude the Company from filing annual rate adjustments such as
the PCA and the PGA.

The settlement agreement aiso provides for the deferral of
certain generation plant operation and maintenanca costs. In order to
address the variability in year-to-year operation and maintenance
costs, beginning in 2011, the Company is deferring changes in
operation and maintenance costs related to the Coyote Spring 2
natural gas-fired generation plent and its 15 percent ownership
interestin Units 3 & 4 of the Colstrip generation plant. The Company
tompares actual, non-fuel, operation and maintenance expenses for
the Coyote Springs 2 and Golstrip plants with the amount of expenses
authorized for recovery in base rates in the applicabla deferral year,
and defers the differance from that currently authorized. The deferral
oceurs annually, with no carrying charge, with deferred costs being
amortized over a three-year period, beginning in January of the year
following the period costs are deferred. The amount of expense to be
requested for recavery in futurs general rate cases will be the actual
operation and maintenance expense recordad in the test period, less
any amount deferred during the test perind, plus the amortization of
previously deferred costs. Totel net deferred costs under this
mechanism in idaho were regulatory assats of $2.3 million a5 of
December 31, 2012 and $0.1 million as of December 31, 2011,

On October 11, 2012, the Company filed electric and natural gas
general rate cases with the IPUC. The Company requested an overall
increase in electric rates of 4.6 percent and an averall increase in
natural gas rates of 7.2 percent. The filings were designed to increase
annual electric revenues by $11.4 million and increase annual natural
gas revenues by $4.6 million. The Company’s raquests were based on a
proposed overall rate of return of 8.48 percent, with a common equity
ratio of 50 percent and a 10.9 percent return on equity.

0On February 6, 2013, Avista Corp. and certain other parties filed &
settiemant agraement with the IPUC with respect to Avista Corp.'s
electric and natural gas general rate cases. Parties to the settiement
agreement include the staff of the IPUC, Clearwater Paper Corporation,
Idahe Forest Group. LLC, the ldaho Conservation League, and the
Company. Cammunity Action Partnership Association of Idaha (CAPAL),
a low-income custemer advocacy group, and the Snake River Alliance
flid nut join in the settiement agreement. However, on February 20, 2013
the Snake River Alliance provided a letter to the [PUC supporting the
settlement agreement. This settlement agresment is subject to approval
by the IPUC and would conclude the praceedings related the general
rate requests filad by the Company on October 11, 2012. New rates
would be implemented ih two phases: April 1, 2013 and October 1, 2013,

The settlement agreement proposes that, effective April 1, 2013,
Avista Corp. would be authorized to implement a base rate increase for
Idaho natural gas customers of 4.9 percent (designad to increase annual
revenues by $3.1 million). There would be no change in base electric
rates on April 1, 2013. Howaever, the settlemant agreement would provide
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for the recovery of the casts of the Palousa Wind Project through the
Pawer Cost Adjustment mechanism beginning April 1, 2013.

The settlement agreement also proposes that, effective October 1,
2013, Avizta Corp. would be authorized to implement a hase rate
increase for Idaho natural gas customers of 2.0 percent [designed to
increase annual ravenues by 31.3 million). A credit resulting from
deferred natural gas costs of $1.6 million would ba ratumad to the
Company's I¢aho natural gas customers from October 1, 2013 through
Decambar 31, 2014, so the net annual average natural gas rate increase
to natural gas customers effective October 1, 2013 would be 0.3 percent,

Further, the settlemant proposes that, efiective October 1, 2013,
Avista Corp. would be authorized to implement a base rate increase for
idaho electric customers of 3.1 percent {designed to increasa annual
revenuas by $7.8 million). A $3.9 mitlion credit resulting from & payment
ta be made to Avista Corp. by the Bonneville Power Administration
relating to its prior use of Avista Corp.’s transmission system would be
returned to !daho electric customers from October 1, 2013 through
December 31, 2014, so the net ennval everage electric rate increase to
electric customers effective Dctober 1, 2013 wouid be 1.9 percent.

The $1.8 million credit to Idaho natural gas customers and the $3.9
millian credit to Idahe electric customers would not impact the
Company's net income.

Also included in the setttament agreement is a provision that
Avista Corp. may file a general rate cage in Idaho in 2014; however,
new rates resulting from the filing would not take effect priorto
January 1, 2015,

The settlement agreement provides for an suthorized return on
equity of .8 percent and an equity ratic of 50.0 parcent.

The settlement also includes an after-the-fact earaings testfor
2013 and 2014, such thatif Avista Corp., on a consolidated basis for
alactric and natural gas operations in 1daho, earns more than 3 9.8
percent return on equity, Avista Corp. would refund to customers 50
percent of any eamings above the 9.8 parcent.

Oregon General Rate Cases

In March 2011, the OPUC approved an all-party settlement
stipulation in the Company’s general rate case thatwas filed in
September 2010. The settlement provides for an overall rate increase
of 3.1 percent for the Company's Oregon customers, designed to
increase annual revenuss by $3.0 mitlion, Part of the rate increase
became effective March 15, 2011, with the ramaining increase
effactive June 1, 2011, An additional rate adjustment designed to
increase revenues by $0.6 million will occur on June 1, 2012 to recaver
capital costs associated with certain reinforcement and replacement
projects upon a demonstration that such projects are complete and the
costs were prudently incurred,

On January 1, 2013, Avista Corp. purchased tha Klamath Falls
Lateral {Lateral), a 15-mile, 6-inch natural gas transmission pipeline
from Wiliams Nerthwest Pipeline {Williams). The Klamath Falls
Lataralinterconnects with another interstate pipeline, Gas
Transmission Northwaest, to transport natural gas te serve Avista
Corp.'s customers in Klamath Falls, Oragon. The purchase price was
approximately $2.3 million and will save Oregen customers
approximately $1.4 million annually as Avista Corp. will be able to
reduce its contracted natural gas transportation requirements from
Williams. n Order No, 12-429, the OPUC appraved the Company’s
request to recover from customers the revenue requirement
associated with the purchasa of the Lataral, which is approximately
$0.5 million annuatly. This approval will provide a return of and a return
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on Avista Corp.'s investmentin the lateral. While the OPUC approved performance based on income {loss) from opsrations before income
the recovery of the revenue requirement, it will not determine whether taxes as weil as netincome {loss) attributable to Avista Corp.

the purchase of the Lateral was prudent until the Company’s next sharaholders. The aceounting policies of the segments are the same as
Oregon general rate casa. those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
Avista Utilities’ businass is managed based on the total reguiated utility
Note 24. Information by operation, Ecova is a provider of facility information and cost
Business Segments managemant services for multi-site customers throughout North

America. The Other category, which is not a raportable segment,
The business segment presentation refiacts the basis used by the includes Spokane Energy, ather investments and oparations of various
Company's management to analyze performance and determine the subsidieries, as well as certain other operations of Avista Capital.
allocation of resources. The Company's management evaluates

The following table presents inforreation for each of the Company’s business segments (doffars in thousands);

Avista Total Interssgment

litilities Ecova Dther  Non-Uility Eliminations Total
For the year ended Decomber 31, 2012;
Opersting revenues $ 13415 § 155664 § - MBI § 15T § {1,800} 8 134,002
Resource ¢osts 593,127 -_ — —_ e 693,127
Other operating expenses™ 278,780 139,173 3980 179014 {1.800) 453,934
Dapraciation and amortization 112,091 13,519 792 14311 — 126,402
Income from oparations ¥ 188,778 2972 {1,880} 1,292 — 190,070
Interest expense® 72552 1,790 3437 5,221 {344) 11435
Income taxes 42842 1497 (3,078} {1,581} — 41,281
Met income {loss) atiributable to

Avista Corporation sharehoiders 1,204 1825 {5,319} {3,494} — 78,210

Capital expenditures 87 4 566 4,787 — 75914
For the year ended December 31, 2011:
Operating revanves $ 1443322 § 137848 $ 40410 § 178258 § (1,800} $ 1619780
Resource costs 780,048 — -— — — 790,048
QOther operating expensés® 261,926 108,738 a7 144,665 {1,500 404,781
Depreciation and amortization 105,629 7,183 78 1971 — 113,600
Income from operations® 202313 mnmz 4714 25,631 - 228,004
interest expense ™ £9,347 05 4,943 5,248 (387 74,208
incoms taxes 48,964 1.852 {184} 1668 - 56,652
Net income {luss) attributable to

Avista Corporation shareholders 90,902 95N {349) 9,322 — 100,224

Capital expanditurgs 239,782 2,898 592 3530 - 13372
Far the year ended Decamber 31, 2010:
Operating revenues § 1419846 § 102038 3 61067 $ 163,102 $  (24008) & 1558740
Resource costs 795,075 — — — — 795,075
Other operating expansas ™ 252,437 80,100 54,304 134,484 {24,008) 362,923
Depreciation and amortization 100,554 6,070 1002 1,022 — 107,626
income from operations ® 168,200 15,865 5,669 21,534 — 219,734
Interast expensa @ 70,867 276 5,530 5,806 (243} 76424
Income taxes 46,428 5679 {950} 4,729 — 51,157
Net income (loss) attributable to ‘

Avista Corporation shareholders 86,681 7433 {1,689) 8,744 — 92,425
Capital expenditures 202227 1832 497 248 — 204,656
Total Assots:

As of December 31, 2012 § 38Mgn § 3270 % 5638 S5 418358 § — 3 43311
As of December 31, 2011 $ 3809446 § 292940 § 11245 $ 405085 § — § 425N

1} Intersegment eliminations reperted s operating ravenuas and resource costs represent intercompany purchases and sales of eleciric capacity and enargy. Intersegment
eliminations raparted as interast expanse represent intercompany imerest

2)  Including interest expense to affiliated trusts.

{3} ineludes an immateris! correction of an error related to tha raclassification of certain opersting expenses from ather expenss—— nst io utility and nen-utility other
pperating expanses and utility taxes other than incame taxes. This correction did not have an impact on et income or garnings per share. See Note 1 for further
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Note 25. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The Company's enargy operations are significantly affected by weather canditions. Consequently, there can be large variances in revenues,
expenses and netincome betwean quarters based on seasunal factors such as, but ngt fimited to, temperatures and streamflow conditions.

A summary of quarterly operations (in thausanids, except per share amounts) for 2012 end 2011 follows:

Thres Months Ended
March June  September  December
31 30 30 k]|
2012
Operating revenues $ 452257 § 343585 $ 340832 $ 410528
Operating expenses ' 375863 297 565 403 369,481
Income from operations®" $ 734 3 46020 $ 6808 § 40N
Netincome : $ B3 5 18532 & 5962 3 16,083
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests 175 {354) {176) {235}
Net income atiributable te Avista Corporation shareholders 3 38388 3 18,178 $ 5786 & 15,858
Cutstanding common stock:
Woeighted-average—basic - 58,581 58,702 59,047 59,774
Weightad-average-—diluted 58,950 58,924 59,123 50,826
Eamings per common share attributable to
Avista Corporation shareholders—diluted $ 065 § 031 % oio $ 0.28
. )|
Operating revenues $ 47586 $ 36055/ § 3370 3 438927
Operating expenses™ 394,192 306,917 310,084 380,603
Income from pperations $ 82304 § 53640 § 33646 $ 583
Netincome $ 4203 3 73528 §  15H B %91
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests {485) (527 {935} {1,368}
Net income atiributable to Avista Corporation shargholders $ 41918 § 2001 & 10,202 3 24,603
Dutstanding commen stock:
Waighted-average-—basic 57,342 57,187 58,057 58,304
Weighted-average—diluted 57,414 56,143 58,232 53,583
Eamings per common share attributable to
Avista Corporation shareholders—dilited $ 07§ 039 % 018 & 042

{1} includes an immaterial corretion of an arror refated to the reclassification of partain operating sxpenses from othar expense—nat to other operating expenses. This
correciion difl Aot have an impact on net incoms or samings per share. See Note | for further information regarding this reclassification.
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ITEM #. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Net applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Etfectiveness of Disclosure Controls
and Procedures

The Company has disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 132-15(e} and 15d-15{e} under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) to ensure that information required to ba disclosed in
the reports it files or submits under the Actis recorded, processed,
summarized and reported on a timely basis. Dis¢losure centrols and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed ta ensura that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Actis
accumulated and communicatad to the Company’s management,
including its principal executive and principal financial officers as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, the Company eveluated its disclosure controls
and grocedures as of the end of ths pariod covered by this report. There
are inherent limitations to the effectivaness of any system of disclosure
controls and pracedures, including the possibility of human error and
the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures.
Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only
provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.
Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable
assurence of achieving their objectives. Based upon the Company’s
evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have concluded thet the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures are effective at a reasonable assurance lavel as of
December 31,2012,

Manzgement’s Report on Internal Contral Qver Financial Reporting
The Company's management, together with its consolidated
subsidlaries, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

AVISTA

internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Rule
13a-15f) under the Sscurities Exchange Act of 1934}, The
Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed under the supervision of the Company's principat
executive officer and principal financial officer to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
repurting and the preparation of the Company's financial
statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America,

The Company's intarnal control over financial reporting includes
policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflsct iransactions and
dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions
are recorded as nacessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in actordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the
directors of the Company, and provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usa or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a materizl effact on
the Company’s financial statements,

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's
management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, the Company conducted an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting
based on the framework established in Internal Control-intagrated
Framawork issuad by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management

~ determined that the Company’s internal control ovar finaricial reporting

as of December 31, 2012 i effective at a reasonable assurance level.
The Company's indapendent registered public accounting firm,

Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an attest report on the Company's

internal sontrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reparting

There have been no changes in the Company's internal controf
over financial raporting that occurred during the Company’s last fiscal
quarter that has materially affacted, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial raporting.
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Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockhalders of
Avista Corporation
Spokans, Washington

We have audited the internal control aver financial reporting of Avista Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company”} as of December 31, 2012,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commigsion. The Company's management is respensible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial raporting, included in the accempanying Management's Report on Internal Control Dver Financial
Aeporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur suditincluded obtaining an understanding of internat contral over fingncial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internel control based an the
assessed risk, and performing such other proceduras as we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wa believa that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our gpinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected hy the company's board of directors, manegement, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally acceptad accounting principles. A company’s internal control ever financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla datail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance that ransattions are recorded as necessary (o permit proparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally acceptsd accounting principles, and that receipts and expandituras of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Becausa of the inhersnt imitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements dua to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Alse, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financlal reporting to futura pariods are subject to the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proceduras may dateriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the criteria established in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission,

We have also audited, in accordanca with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Dversight Board {United States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 of the Company and our report dated February 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements,

/sf Deloitte & Touche LLP

Seattls, Washington
February 26, 2013
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Nane.

PART il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item (other than the information regarding executive officers and the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics set forth balow) is omitted pursuantto General Instruction G to Form 10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by reference as follows:
* on and after the date of filing with the SEC the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its Annual Meating of $harehelders scheduled
to be held on May 9, 2013, from such Proxy Statement; and
* prior to such dats, from the Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement, dated March 30, 2012, relating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on May 10, 2012,

Executive Dfficers of the Registrant
Name Age Business Experisnce

Scott L. Mowris 55 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer effectiva January 1, 2008, Director singe
February 9, 2007; President and Chief Operating Officer May 2006—Decambar 2007; Senior
Vice President February 2002-May 2008; Vice President November 2000—February 2002;
President—Avista Utilities August 2600-Dacember 2008; General Managar—Avista tilities
far the Oregon and California operations October 1991-August 2000; various other
management and staff positions with the Company since 1981,

Mark T. Thies 4 Treasurer since January 2013; Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Qfficer (Principal
Financial Qfficar) since September 2008; prior to employment with the Company held the
follewing positions with Black Hills Corporation: Exacutive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer March 2003—Januery 2008; Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March
2000-March 2003; Controllar May 1997-March 2000,

Marian M. Durkin 59 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer since November 2005;
Sanior Vice President and Generel Counsel August 2005-November 2005; prior to
employment with the Company: held several legal positions with United Air Lines, Inc. fram
1995-August 2005, most recently served as Vice President Deputy Generat Counsel and
Assistant Secretary.

Karen S. Feltas 57 Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Corporate Secratary since November 2005;
Vice President of Human Resources end Corporate Secretary March 2003-November 2G05;
Vice President of Human Resources and Corporate Services February 2002-March 2003;
various human reseurces positians with the Company April 1998-February 2002,

Dennis P. Vermillion 51 Senior Vice President since January 2010; Vice President July 2007-December 2009;
President—Avista Utilitias since January 2009; Vice President of Energy Resources and
Dptimization—Avista Utilities July 2007-December 2008; President and Chief Operating
Officer of Avista Enargy February 2001-July 2007; various other management and staff
positions with the Company since 1985,

Christy M, Burmeister-Smith 56 Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer since May 2007, Vice President
and Treasurer January 2006—May 2007; Vice President and Controller June 1999-January
2006; various other management and staff positions with the Company since 1980,

Jamas M. Kersok 54 Vice President and Chief Information Officer since January 2007; Chief Information Officer

February 2001-December 2006; various other management and staff posttions with the
Company since 1996,
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Executive Dfficers of the Rogistrant
Name Age

Business Experience

Don F. Kopezynski 57

David J. Meyer 59

Kelly 0. Norwood 5d

Jason R. Thackston 42

Roger D. Woadworth 56

Vice President since May 2004; Vice President of Operations—Avista Utilities since June
2012; Viee President of Customer Solutions—Avista Utilitias April 2011-December 2012,
Vice President of Transmission and Distribution Operations—Avista Utilities May 2004-April
2011; various gthar management and staff positions with the Company and its subsidiaries
since 1979.

Vice President and Chief Counsel fer Regulatory and Governmental Affairs since February
2004; Senior Vice President and General Counsel September 1998-February 2004.

Vice President since November 2000; Vice Presidant of State and Federal Regulation—
Avista Utilities since March 2002; Vice President and General Manager of Energy
Resourcas—Avista Utilities August 2000—March 2002; various other management and staff
positions with tha Company singe 1981,

Vice President of Energy Resources since December 2012; Vice President of Customer
Solutionz—Avista Utilities Juns 2012-December 2012; Vice President of Energy Dafivery
April 2111-December 2012; Vice President of Finance June 2009-April 2011; various other
management and staff positions with the Company since 1996,

Vice President since November 1998; Vice Prasident and Chief Strateqy Officer since April
2011; Vice President, Sustainable Energy Solutions Avista Utilities February 2007-April 2011;
Vica President, Customer Solutions for Aviste Utilities March 2003-Fabruary 2007; Vice
President of Utility Operations of Avista Unilities September 2001—March 2003; Vice
President—Corporate Development November 1958-5eptember 2001; various other
management and staff positions with the Company sincae 1379,

Al of the Company's executive officers, with the exception of James M. Kensok, Don F. Kopezynski, David J. Meyer, and Kelly 0. Norwond,
were officers or directors of one or more of tha Company's subsidiaries in 2012, The Company’s executive officers are elected annually by the

Board of Directars.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Code of Conduct) for directors, officers lincluding the principal executive
officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer), and employees. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s Web site at
www.avistacorp.com and will also be provided to any shareholder without charge upon written request to:

Avista Corp.

General Counsel

P.0. Box 3727 MSC-12

Spokana, Washington 99220-3727

Any changes to or waivers for executive officers and directors of the Company’s Code of Conduct will be postad on the Company’s Web site.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The infarmation required by this ltem is omitted pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K. Such infermation is incorporated herein by

reference as follows:

+ pn and after the date of fling with the SEC the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders schoduled
to be held on May 9, 2013, from such Proxy Statement; and
« prior to such date, from the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement, dated March 30, 2012, relating te its Annual Meeting of Shareholders held

on May 10, 2012,

—_— EY
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{TEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a} Security ownership of certain benaficial ownars (owning 5 percent or mare of Registrant's voting securitias):
Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners {owning 5 percent or more of Registrant’s voting securities) has besn
omitted pursuant to General [nstruction G to Form 10-. Reference is made to the Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with the Registrant’s annual meeting of shareholdars to ba held on May 9, 2013

(b) Security ownership of management:
The information required by this Item regarding the security ownarship of management is omitted pursuant to General Instruction G to Form
10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by reference as feltows:
+ on and after the date of filing with the SEC the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its Annual Maeeting of Shareholders
scheduled to be held on May 9, 2013, from such Proxy Statement; and
# prior to such date, from the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement, dated March 30, 2012, relating ta its Annual Meeting of Sharsholders
heid on May 10, 2012,

{e)  Changesin control;
None,

{d} Securities sutherized for issuance under equity compensation plans es of December 31, 2812

(a} {b) (c)

Number of securitiss to be Weighted-average Number of securitios remaining

issued upon exercise of exercisa price of available for future isssance under

outstandinyg options eutstanding options, equity compensation plens (excloding

Plan category warrants and sights " warrants and rights securities reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 3000 $ 1241 740,747

{1} Excludes unvested restricted sharaes and performance share awards granted under Avista Corp.'s Long Term Incentive Plan. At December 31, 2012, 117,118 Restricted
Share awards ware outstanding. Performance shara awards may be paid out at zero shares at a minimum achievement lavel: 355,700 shares at tergef level: or 718,400
sharas at a maximum igvel. Because there Is no exercise price associated with restricted shares or performanca share awards, such shares are not included in the
weightad-average price calculation.

{2} includes the Long-Term Incentive Plan appraved by shereholdars in 1998 and the Non-Employes Director Stock Plan approved by sharehoiders in 1995, In February 2005,
the Board of Directors elected to terminate the Non-Emplayse Diractor Stock Plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEFPENDENCE

Tha information required by this item is omitted pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by
reference as follows:
= on and after the date of filing with the SEC the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled
to be held on May 9, 2013, from such Proxy Statement; and
= prior to such date, from the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statemant, dated March 30, 2012, relating te its Annual Meeting of Shareholdars held
on May 10, 2012

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this ltem is omitted pursuant to Ganaral Instrugtion G to Form 10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by
referance as follows:
= on and after the date of filing withthe SEC the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement refating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders schedulad
to be held on May 8, 2013, from such Proxy Statement; and
* prior to such date, from the Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement, dated March 30, 2012, relating to its Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on May 10, 2012.

AVISTA 107 /a@



PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

{a}1.  Financial $tatements (Included in Part Il of this report):
Report of Independent Registerad Public Aceouinting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Equity and Redsemable Noncontrolling Interests for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2ﬁ10
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{a)2.  Financial Statement Schedules:
None

(a)3.  Exhihits:

Reference is made to the Exhibit Index commencing on pags 110. The Exhibits include the management contracts and compensatory plans
or arrangsments required ta be filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K pursuant to ftem 15{b}.

13/
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FORECASTED FINANCIALS — REDACTED
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REDACTED

Confidential Addendum Supplement
Ecova, Inc.

TO THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION QF OHIO - Confidential Addendum Supplement to Ecova, Inc. Broker License
Application, Case # 11-5954-GA-AGG, filed on or about November 15, 2013.

C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements™ — The below table describes forecasted financial information for the brokerage
service of Ecova, Inc. within the State of Chio. Forward-looking statements are all statements except those of historical fact
including, without limitation, those that are identified by the use of words that include "will," "may," "could," "should,”
"intends," "plans," "seeks," "anticipates," "estimates," "expects," "forecasts,” "projects,” "predicts," and similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties and cther factors. Many of these factors are
beyond our control and they could have a significant effect on our operations, results of operations, financial condition or
cash flows. This could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in our statements. Such risks,
uncertainties and other factors include, among others:

1. changes in economic conditions impacting client demand or payment for services;

2. disruption to information systems, automated controls and other technologies that we rely on for operations,
communications and customer service;

3. changes in, and compliance with, laws, regulations, decisions, rules and policies;

4. natural disasters that can disrupt energy generation, transmission and distribution, as well as the availability and

costs of materials, equipment, supplies and support services;

the loss of key suppliers for materials or services;

the potential for terrorist attacks, cyber security attacks or other malicious acts, that cause damage to our utility

assets, as well as the national economy in general; including the impact of acts of terrorism or vandalism that

damage or disrupt information technology systems;

7. changes in industrial, commercial and retail growth and demographic patterns in our service territory or the loss of
significant customers;

8. deterioration in the creditworthiness of our customers and counterparties;

9. the effect of any potential decline in our credit ratings, including impeded access to capital markets and higher
interest costs;

10. increasing health care costs and the resulting effect on health insurance provided to our employees;

11. imcreasing costs of insurance, more restricted coverage terms and our ability to obtain insurance;

12. work force issues, including changes in collective bargaining unit agreements, strikes, work stoppages or the loss of
key executives, availability of workers in a variety of skill areas, and our ability to recruit and retain employees;

13. the potential effects of negative publicity regarding business practices, whether true or not, which could result in,
among other things, costly litigation;

14. changes in technologies, possibly making some of the current technology obsolete

15. changes in tax rates and/or policies; and

16. changes in our strategic business plans, which may be affected by any or all of the foregoing, including the entry
into new businesses and/or the exit from existing businesses.

S n

Our expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good faith. We believe they are reasonable based on, without
limitation, an examination of historical operating trends, our records and other information available from third parties.
However, there can be no assurance that our expectations, beliefs or projections will be achieved or accomplished.
Furthermore, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made. We undertake no
obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date
on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time,
and it is not possible for us to predict all such factors, nor can we assess the effect of each such factor on our business or the
extent that any such factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement.

If the Commission has questiens about this information it may contact Jessica Pegram, Corporate Financial Reporting
Manager, for Ecova, Inc. at (509} 329-7498 or by mail at 1313 N. Atlantic St., Suite 5000, Spokane, WA 99201.

Confidential
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Dun & Bradstreet

Exhibit C-7
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Score Class Percentile
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tions without paying all credhiors in full over the next 12 months. Scores are calculated using a
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Among Companies with this Classification: 6.00%
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Factors Affecting Your Score:
UCC Filings reported.
High number of inquiries to D & B over last 12 months.

Limited time under present management controf.

+ The Financial Stress Class Summary Moda! predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing businass without paying
&l craditors in full, or reorganization or cbtaining relief from creditors under statefledsral lew over the next 12
months. Scores were caiculated using a statistically valid model derived from D8B’s extensive data files.

Notes:

* The Flnancial Stress Class indicates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial
characieristics of other companies with this classification. [t does not mean the firm will necessarily
experience financial stress,

+ The Incidence of Financial Slress shows lthe percaniage of firs in a given Class that discontinued
operalions over the past year with loss to creditors. The Incidencs of Financial Stress - National Average
represents the nationai failure rats and is provited for comparative purposes.

« The Financial Stress Nalional Percentils refiscls tha relative ranking of a company amoeng all scorable
companies in 0&B's file.

« The Financial Siress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and
Percentile. it Is especially heipful to customers using a scargcard approach to determining overall business
performancs.
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Supplier

4 v

Madarate risk of supplier experiencing severg
financial siress over the nexl 12 months.

Bigh hhndiu

e

The Supplier Evaluation Risk Rating 1-8 segmentation terived from ihe Financial Stress Score that

Law
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. predicts the likelihopd of supplier failure over the nexi 12 months. The SER Rating is derived from
D&B's Financial Stress Score, which is calculated using a siatistically valid model derived from
D&B's extensive data files.

Factors Affecting This Company's Score:

Suits, Liens, and/or Judgments are present - see PUBLIC FILINGS section.
Business under present control less than five years - see HISTORY section.
A\}erage Payments are 3 day(s) beyond terms. '
.Average Industry Payments are 6 day(s) beyond terms.

uce Filiﬁgs present - See PUBLIC FILINGS section.

Financing secured - See BANK/PUBLIC FILINGS sections.

Under present management control 4 years.

Trends

& 4 A 5 & k4 % ks 4 4
= - - - - 2 .
whar 158y tal AR Wiy Jal
2034 2012 2012 F012 21 4013
fek Apn fun Ay 1 [ T8
2end F412 2612 2012 d1)2 (14 K

= My Company (4}

Conservative Cradil Limil

Risk Cetegory $400k
1 Aggressive Credil Limil
$900k
Low

Mnderstanding My Score

D&B's Cradit Limit Recommendation is intended to help you more sasily manage your credif decisions. It provides
two recommended dollar guidelines:

A conservative limil, which suggests a doller benchmark if your policy is to exiend less cradit 1o minimize risk.

An aggressiva [imit, which suggests a dollar benchmark if your policy is to exlend more credit with potentially more

risk.
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" The dollar guideline amounts are based on a historical anelysis of credit demand of customers in D&B's U.S.

Paym&nts databass which have a similar profile to your business.

Factors Affecting Your Score
# of Employees Total: 750 {530 here)

Payment Actlivity (based on 86 experiences):
"Avergge High Credit:  $13,918

Highest Credit: $300,000

Total Highast Credit:  §884,350

Nale: The Worth amount in this section may have been adjusted by D&B 1o reflect
typleal deductions, such s carlain inlangitde assels.

Inquiries

- 12 Month Summary -
Ovar 1he past 12 months ending 2-2013, 213 Individual requesis for information on
YOUF Gompany were received; this represents a 21.13% increasa over the prior 12
month pardod. The 213 inguiries wera made by 96 unigue companies indicating
that some companies have inquired on your business multiple times and may be
monitoring you, Of the olal products purchased, §1, or 28.64% came from the
Finenee. Insurance and Real Estete seclor; 46, or 21.60% came from the Senvices
sector; 36, or 18.31% came from the Manufacturing secior,

12 Mo, Total: 213
12 My, Unigue Companies: 86

i T 013113 Comprehensive Repart  Wholesale Trade

D1t'31113§ Comprehensive Repart | Wholesale Trada

0113113 Comprehensive Report  Whalesgle Trade
U1’30{13Er Comprehensive Repor Eﬂ;ﬂ%ﬁggﬂﬂggﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁms’ Efectric,

G1/30/13 Comprehensive Reporl g::zi?‘%”g:gi?égﬂg;;wégahm. Electric,

G1BD¥13§ ggg‘nrggrggéocfd“ : Manufaciuring
. otz Ry Analysis Mantfaciuring
m!&o.r-iai ggg:ﬁ;'gfpg{e‘m ; Manufaciuring
030N gg;?{:“;ﬁ‘:ég;e“"  Manufacturing
01:'30.'1312 gg:r:g‘g:;gr{ea it i Manufacturing
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: Beoring Report

Sooring Reporl

Payment Analysis
epor

Comprebensive Repaori -
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Repon
Comprehansive Report
Comprehensive Report
Compratensive Reporl
Comprehensive Repont |
Comprehensive Raport :
Comprehensive Repor
Comprehensive Report

Comprehensive Repart ;
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Reporl
Comprehensive Report

Comprahensive Repart

Comprehensive Report

Commescial Cradi

Coramergial Credit

Camprehensive Reporl *
Comprehensive Repon
Comprehensive Repon

Comprehensive Reponl

Paymenl Analysis
Report
Paymenl Analysis
Repor
Paymenl Analysls
Repart

Paymeni Analysis
Refar

Paymant Analysis
Repont

Payment Analysis
Reporl .
Comprehensive Raport
Comprahensive Report
Cihers
Comprehansive Reporl

Comprghensive Report "
Commercial Credit
Bcoring Reporl
Commercial Credit
Scoting Report

Commercial Credit
Scoving Report

Commercizl Credit
Scoring Report

Comprehensiva Report

Commaercial Credit
Scoting Repor

Maredaciuring
Services
Services
Wholesale Trade

Wholgszle Trade

. Wholesale Trade

Services
Services
Services
Services

Senvices

, Services

Services
Services
Services
hManufactuting

Manufaciuring

¢ Transporlation, Commurications, Electrc,
. Gas and Sanitary Services

Transportation, Communications, Electric,

Gas and Sanifary Services

Earvices

Manuasturing

Manuizcturing

Manufaciuting

Finance, Insurance and Real Estale
Finange, Insurance and Real Eslata
Finance. insuranca and Real Estale
Finance, Insurance and Real Eslale
Finance. insurance and Real Estale
Finance, Insurante and Real Estals
Finarce, Insurances and Real Eslaie

Finante. insurance and Real Eslate

i Transporiation, Communications, Electric,
¢ (3as and Sanitery Services

Servicas

Whalesale Trada

Transportation, Communications, Eisetric,
Gas and Sanilary Services

Transporiation:, Communications, Eleciric,
. Gas and Saniery Services

Vifholesale Trade

% Finance, insurance and Real Eslsle

Services

Finance. insurance and Real Estate
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i 1

Comprahensive Reporf  finance. Thsurance and Real Fsisle

Commercial Cregi

Scoring Repor : Bervices

Comprehensive Repori  Sarvices
Commercial Credit
Stenng Report

Cormnmerciat Credit
Sooring Report

Comprehensive Reporl © Relsil Trace
Comprehansive Report  Wholesale Trede
Comprahensive Repor . Wholesale Trade
Comprehensive Report  Manulacturing
Compwehensive RepoH 1 Manwfatiuing

Comprehensive Repont  Relail Trade

Comprehensive Repori Senvices

Camprehensive Bepont Services
Commercial Credil
Seoring Repor
Commercial Cregit
Scoring Report
Commercial Credit
Scoring Repor
Commercial Creoi
Scoring Reporl
Comrerclat Credil
Secoring Report

Comrnertlal Credit
Scoring Report

Comprehensive Report : Finance, Insurantg and Real Estate

Comprehensive Repan Finance, insurance atkd Real Eslale

Comprehensive Report ; Finance, insurance and Real Eslate

Commercial Credil
Scoring Regporl
Commercial Cradil
Seoiing Reporl

Commetclal Credit

Scoring Report .

Cthers i Services
Cthers * Services

Compeehensive Report E Services

Comprehensive Repod  Services

i

Comprehensive Report | Finance, insurance and Real Eslale
3

Comprehensive Report * Finance, Insurance and Real Estale

Comprehansive Report | Finanee, Insuranice and Real Estale

Commercial Credit
Scoring Repont

Comjpyehensive Report

Comprehensive Repori - Services

Camprehensive Report

Comprahensive Repord . \Wholesale Tradse

Comprehensive Repon i Whaolssale Trade

Comprehensive Reporl * Services

" Transportation, Compwnications, Eletiric,
© (as and Sanilary Services

Transporiztion, Communications. Eleclric,
Gas and Sanitary Services

Finance, Insurance and Real Eslate
: Finance, Insurence and Real Estale
Finance, insurance and Real Eslate
‘l Finance, Inswrance end Real Estate
Finance, insurance and Resl Estale

Finance, Insurance and Real Estals

" Fingnce, Insurance and Reai Estate
Financa. insurence and Real Eslate

: Flnance, Ihsurance and Real Eslate

Finante, Insurance and Real Eslale

Fimance, insurance and Real Estale

{ Transporation, Communications. £lectrie,
Ges end Sanilary Services

i
i
|
i
i
i
i
i
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Commescial Credi
Scoring Repon

Comprehensive Repon

Comprehensive Repor -

Comprehsnsive Repon

Cotnprehensive Faport
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Repon

Comprehensive Repon

Commercial Credit
Scoring Repon

Comprehensive Repor |

Comprehensive Report

Comprehensive Repont

Finance. Insurance and Real Eslate

Comprehenaive Repor: . [ransportation, Communicalions, Electric.

CGas and Sanitary Sarvices

Transporistion, Communications, Electric,
Gas and Sanfiary Services

Transportatica, Communiestions, Electic,

: Gas and Senilary Sewvices

Servicas

. ! Transporation, Communivations, Electric,
Comprehensive Report | 5 m Sanilary Services

Trensponstion, Communicalions, Eletiric,

_ Ges and Sanilary Services

YWholesala Trade

Wholesale Trade

i

Comprehensive Report .

Commercial Cradit
Scoring Reporl

Compretenstve Report .

Camprehensive Repon

Comprehengive Repor

Comprehensive Repor :

Comprehensive Repont

Commercial Credit
Scoring Report

Comprehensive Report

Comprehensive Repori !

Comprehensiva Report
Camprehensive Report
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Repon
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Repod

Comprehensive Repon

Commerciat Credit
Seoring Report

Comprehensive Repon
Comprehensive Report

Others

OG!ZBHZ% Comprehensive Report
08/22112° Comprehensive Repor
05{21!12& Comprahensive Rapon
061‘201'12? Cthars

03/2‘0#12; Comprahensive Repart

Wholesale Trade

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate
Finance, insurance and Real Esiata
Finange, Insurance and Raal Eslale
Manufaciuring

Manufacturing

Manufactuing

Finance, Insurance and Real Estaie
Finance, insurance and Real Eslate
Financa, Insurence and Real Estale
Services

Services

Finance, Insurance and Resl Estale
Services

Flnance, Insurance and Real Estate

" Wholesale Trade

3

| Ratail Trads

Servicas
Services
Services
Esrvic_es

Services

Manuiaciuing

- Wholesale Trade

Senvices

. Wholesals Trade

1

Manufaciuring

Wholesale Trade

Transpotation, Communications, Electric,

Gas and Sanliary Services

Finanee, Insurance and Resl Estalo

Finance, Insursnge and Resi Estale
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Comprehensive Report

Camprahensive Report

GCommercial Cradit
Scaoring Repor

Comprehensive Repor
Comprehensive Report
Compretensive Report

Comprehengive Repor

Business Informaticn
Repor

Comprefiensive Repar
Comprehensive Repan

Comprehensive Repor

Commercial Credit
Scoring Reporl

Comprehensive Report
Comprshensive Repor
Comprehensive Repori
Comprehensive Report ‘

Comprehensive Repon

Business Information
Report

Comprehensive Repor |
Comprehensive Report
Comprehensive Repor
Comprehensive Reporl
Comprehensive Report
Comprehansive Rapon

Comprahensive Report

Business Irformation
Report

Camprehensive Repont

Cormmercial Credil
Scoring Repor

Comprahensive Report

Comprehensive Repan

Commsrcial Credil
Scoring Report

Comprebensive Report :

£

Otlhers

Comprahensive Report
Comprehensive Repor |
Comprehensive Repor
Comprehansive Report
Comprehensive Report ‘
Comprehensive Repod |

Comprehensive Repart

Manulactiring
Manufscturing

Wholesale Trade

Transporation, Communicatlons, Eleciric,

: Ges and Sanitary Services

Transportstion. Communicaiions, Electiic,
Gas ang Sanifary Services

. Transporiafion, Conmimications, Electric,
: (Gas and Sanilary Services

Transporiation. Communications, Electrc,
Gas ard Sanitary Services

Manutaciuring

fManufactuning
Manuiacturmg

Finance, insurance and Real Eslale

! Transporation, Communications, Eleciric,
' (3azs and Sanitary Services

" Wiholesale Treds

Sarvices

Transporsiion, Commiunications, Electric,

‘ Gas and Sanitary Services

Services
Services
Manwacturing
Manufaciuring
Services

Transporiation, Communications, Elsciric,
Gas and Sanilary Services

- Transporlation, Communications, Electric,
- Gab and Sanilary Services

Manufaciuring

" Manufacluring

Wholesale Trade

Manutacturing

Bervites

Finance, Insutance Bnd Real Eslata
Finance, insurance and Real Estate
Finance, Insurance and Real Estals
Finance, Insurance and Real Estale
Financa, Insurance and Real Esiate
Financa, insurance and Real Estale
Relail Trads

Retail Trade

Retall Trede

) Retail Trade

Relail Trade
Manufacturing

Relail Trada
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Seoring Repar
Compmercial Credh
Sctring Repod

Commergiaf Credil
Soaring Reporn

Commercial Credit
Searing Repart
Comnercial Credd
Seoring Report

Comprehensive Reporl

Comprehensive Repori

Cthers

Comprehensive Reporl
Comprabeéns|ve Reporl !

Comprehensive Report 5

Comprehensiva Report

Commefclal Credit
Seeving Report

Comprehensive Reporl
Comprehensive Repoit
Corprehensive Report
Comprehensive Reparl
Comprehensive Report 5
Comprehensive Report .
Comprehensive Repont .
Comprehensive Reporl

Comprehensive Regort

Comprehensive Report
Commerclal Credit |
Seoring Reporl !
Payrent Analysis

Reportt :
Comprehensivae Report !

Commercial Credit
Scoring Report

Comprehansive Repor |

Comprehansive Reporl :
Commergial Cradi
Scoring Report i
Commergigl Cregit
Scoring Report

Paymeni Analysis i
Report !

. Wholegale Trade

Whelesale Trede
Wholesale Trade
Finance, InSurance ang Resl Estale

Constuction

. Teansportation, Communications, Electric.
. Ges and Sanitary Services

Manufachwing

Finante, Insurance Bnd Resl Eslale

Finange, Insurance and Real Eslale

! Finance. Insurance and Real Estate

Finance, insurance and Real Estale
Finance, Insurance ang Real Estate
Services
Finznece. Insurance and Resl Eslaie
Bervices
Services
Finance, Insurence and Resl Eslate
Finanece, Insurance and Real Eslate
Financs, insurance and Real Esiale

Finance, Insurance and Real Estata

" Pullic Adminigtration

Finance, Insurance and Real Estale
Services

Manufacturing

Finance, Insurance and Resl Esiste

Finance, Insurance and Real Estale

. Sernvices

Services
Conslrugiion

Coanslruciion

. Consiruetion

Transportation, Communications, Electric,
Ges and Sanitary Services

, Finance, Insurance ang Real Estata

Manufactuting

. Services

Helail Trads

Retad Trade

{ Manulactiting

Manufacturing

Manufacturing
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Construction

Finance, Inswance and Real Etlale
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Public Agminisiretion
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 Services

! Services

Wholessle Trade

; Business Information Reporl

Comemercial Credit Scoring Report

Comprehensive Report
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Cumrancy: Shown i USD unless otherwisa indicated

Tota! Flaced For Collection:
Average Highesi Credil:
Largest High Credit:
Highest Now Dwing:
Highest Past Dua:

Total payment Experlences in DERE Fila (HQ):
Payments Within Terms {not dollar weighted):

Current Paydex: 78  Equesllo 3 days beyond lerms
ndustry Median: 78  Equalio 6 DAYS BEYCOND terms _
Payment Trand: = = Unchenged, compered o payments three months ago

B

84

NA
13,816
300,000
80,000
750

Paymanis Summary Dy Indusiny

| Total (Last 12 Months): 86
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Top Industiies IF

Telephane communictns 6 ' 526,250 §7.500! 00% | O U 0 ;0

' Nenclassified o $87.500° s40000f 1% . 23 | 0 i o0 ‘ 0
| Electsic services - 518,000 57500| 99% . L0 g L0
fmaoloﬁiceequipmem , 4 SS.EZCIG%E 55000 100% ; ¢ G | 4] ' a !l
%Phommpyjngservice 5 4 ' 51500; SS.OODF 100% 0 0 IT 0 0 :
Whai elecirical equip L2 1 sw0s0m, $55000] 100% | 0 Lo jo 0
Misc equipment renlgl L3 sez.soo% 535000 | 1D0% 0o 0 !4 : o 1
Radiolelephona comenun 2 sas,wu% 525000 100% i 0 ;0 0. | 0 ;
i'Dawprwessmgsm 2 ! 515.100% $15,000,  100% ~J D !j 0o Lo o
| Misc business service 2 1 su.soa; s7.5000  50% i 50 ; o | o o0
.}Miscbusinessmedi! . 2 51,250_§ $750'  100% ] o b i o !
5 Whol compulers/sofwr r saoo.ooug $3000000 w00% | 0 & 0 | a ! 5

| Employment agency . $90.000 | se0000 00% | 0 | o | o ‘ o

' Wihol nondureblie goods i 1 sso.oao% SSD.BGOE % o | o} oo o

£ Mist coml printing : 1 $45,000 | 345.030; 100% ] il ) : o
Executive office 1 $15.000 150000 0% jw00i 0 | o o |
Red mail-orcer house : 1 ; $2.500 . S2,500 , 0% 0 100 Q . D
Mig refrig/heat eouip L ! sz,seo% sz,sonf % L0 a0 Lo
 Mig comptiers : 1 i 1 .l?i()l.tlis $1.000 f 100% o 0 0 i 0

' Gourier service 1 51.0052 s:.eoui‘ W% 0 o i o o

" Mfg photograph equip ; t { $?50§ STSO:E 100% . 4 J o ] a
Whol Industrial squip 1 ’ $750. s750) 100% , 8 o ]o!lo
Security brokeroest : 1 ; $500 - E50D1 100% Q ] 0 0

{ Paper mil " i $500 s500! 0% 0 0 Lo io

: Help supply service i 1 i §500 i 5500 E 100% 1. 0 o B 0
Whol service papet v 5250 f s250] 0% | @ 0 0 o
Natural gas distrib i ! $100 sw0l 100% § 0 | o |0 f D

- Other Calagories % !

‘ Cash experisnces E 17 : §2.550 $1.000 - - - - -

U Uniown L2 $5.050 Y i N B
Unfavorsble commenis 0 §n 80 - f - - - .
Placed for collections with D&B: ‘ a E 50 1 R RN U B

I+ Other } o) NiA ! I S B R
Totat in D&E's fle ; 88 ‘ $864,350 $300000] - N

Total {Lasl 12 Months): & J
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Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
Ppl
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt-Slow 30
Ppt-Slow 30
Ppt-Slow 30
Slow 30
{05T) 7
(058}
{059)
(o0}
{061
(062)
i Ppt
{D64)
i (063)
Ppt

Ppt

§40,000
§7.500
$5,000

$500

E750
550
580 _

H

$50
550

$45.000

%100
550
$1.000|

31,0005

$2.500
$1.000
$2.500
§2.500
o

50
51.000
$750

i
750 ¢

50

S0

50|

e 21 e
§0 - : 1mp
30 ; - ; ima
50 - , imo
$0, N30 812 mps
S0 - 4 mo
30 - Tmo
S0 - { t ma
$o i - i{ 1ma
S0 : Lease Agreemni ‘ 1Mo
50 : - : 1 me
%0 23 mos
50, N30 : 1 ma
30 ‘ Lease Agreemnt ; 1 mo
30 -- : imo
$0 | Lease Agreemnt { 1 ma
50; - ;56-12 mos
$0‘§ - tme
80§ 1 mo
305 1 mo
501 . L1 mo
$0 E - | 612 mog
30 ! N30 1 mo
$Di; - 1mo
§0 - 1mo
50, -~ 1mo

$750° .- {1 mo
30 : N30 4-5 mos

-+ | Cash account 1mo

- tmo

- Cash acoourt 4.5 mos
30 ‘ Cash acsouni 2-3mos

- { Cash account 1 mo

- ¢ Cash account 1mo
$0/-- 1 me

— i Cash account 4-5 mos

- Cash account 1 ma
.’N}:E - ! 1 mo
30 . - i tmo
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0otz | Pt $1.000 5750 30 - 1m0

08/2012 Pot 8500 5500 $0 1mo
pIRMZ  O70) $50 - - ’ Coshsccourt 6,52 mos !

‘o012 P - sasa0 525000 507 .. “ymo
| bzrziz :Pm smo; sof 50 ' - 612 mos {
2012 n {073) $5.000 50 $0: - 6-12 mes
DifRIN2 ! Pt $750 ] 50 . S0 N3O . 2:3mos !
522011 | Pp L stoo0! 50 50 - 612 mos 1i
| 112008 ! siow L w5000 - .- 1 o l
102011, Slow 60 $2.500° $0 50— { 12 mos i
082011 | Ppt smon wim inm |
: ! : ; ' ‘ : i
| oamoi1 - Ppt L 590000 a $40,000 50 N30 1mo ;
; 02017 (060) i 550 i . - Cashsccont | 612 mos J
— R i

indications of siowness tan be ihe result of dispuie over merchendise, skipped invoices, efc. Accounts era sometimes placed for
collection evan though the axistenca or amount of debt is disputed.

The public record ftems contained in this reporl may have been paid, ierminated, vacated or released pricr to the data this report wes
prinded,

History & Operations Cutmency: Shown in USD uriess otherwise inditated

Comparny Overvew

Company Nama: ECOVA, INC. URL: www.advantagelg.com
Doing Business As: (SUBSIDIARY QF Stock Symbol: NA
AVISTA CAPITAL, Hisfory: NA
INC., SPOKANE, Operations: NA
WA), Present Management Control: 4 Years
AVISTA ADVANTAGE Btroet Address: Annuel Sales: NA
$313 N Aflantic 51 Bie Phone:
5000 {508} 329-7600 (508} 328-T640
Spokane, WA 82201 Fax:

History

The following Information was reporied: D6/08/2012

Dificer(s):

JEFF HEGGEDAHL, GEO

SETH NESBAT, v PRES-CMO

DONATD CAPORBIANCO, SVP-GEN COUNEEL
SCOTY MORRIS, CHM

GENE LYNES, CFO-TREAS

KAREN FELTES, SEC i
ED SCHLECT. EXEC V PRES
JON THOMSEN, EXEC V PRES

DIRECTOR(S): .
THE OFFICER(S) and Erik Anderson Krstianne Biake John Kelly Jeff Heggedahi Craig Levinsohn Jeff Lizberman Scotf Moiris,
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i The Washinglon Secreiary of Stals's business registrations fle showed thal Ecova, Inc was registered 85 a corporalion on November 6,

1905
Business starled 1998, Present conlrol succesded Dec 1, 2005, 100% of capltal siock is owned by officers.

RECENT EVENTS:

On March 14, 2011, sources staled thed Advantage I, Inc., Spokane, WA, bas acquired Building Knowledge
Networks, Spokane, WA, in January 2011, Under the terms of the acquishion agreement, Building Knowledge Networks will be fully
integraiad and operated as Advantage Q. Further detals are nol available.
On July 7, 2008, sources sieled that Advandage IQ, Inc., Spokanas, WA, has acouived Cadenca Netwark, inc.. Cindnnali, OH, on June
30, 2008. Afler this acquisifion, Cadence Nelwork, Inc. will cperale as a subsidiary of Advantage 12, Inc. Financlal lerms were nol
disclosed.
JEFF HEGGEDAHL. Antecedenis not available.
SETH NESBITT. Seived as vice president of marketing for Paraliels, Inc. Prior 1o Paraliels, inc., Nesbitl was vice presndent. products
and solutions marketing for Amdocs, Inc., & member of the North American Advisory Board for the CMO Councll, and serves on the

1 Advisory Councd for TM Forum,

DOMATO CAPOBIANCO,. He serves as a Senior Vice Presiden! and Ganeral Counsel for Hollywood Enteriainment Corporation/Movie
Gaflaty, ing,

SCOTT MORRIS. Antecedents ara undaiermined.

GEME LYNES. Anlecedants are undetermined,

KAREN FELTES. Antecadents not available.

ED SCHLECT. Antecedents nol available.

JON THOMSEN. Antecedents nol avallable.

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL SOURCE AS
OF -

JAMUARY 28 2013,

Registered Name: ECOVA, INC,

Business Type: CORPORATION

Corporation Type: PROFIT

Dete Incorporated: Nov 06 1985

Biate of Incarporation: WASHINGTOMN

Fliing Date: Nov O 1895

FilingFedI: NA

Reglstration 1T 501688881

Duration: PERFPETUAL

Duration Date: NA

Status: ACTIVE

Status Attsined Date; NA

Where Filed: SECRETARY OF STATE/CORPORATIONS DIVISION., OLYMPIA, WA

Renistared Agent: € T Corporation System, 505 Union Ave Se Sla 120, Clympla, WA,
885010000

Agent Appointed: NA

AgentStatus: NA

Principais: ERIK ANDERSON, DIRECTOR, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SPOKANE, WA,

282520000

KRISTI BLAKE, DIRECTOR, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SFOKANE, WA,

BO2520000

MARIAN DURKING, VICE PRESIDENT, 1411 E MISSION AVE,

SPOKANE, WA, 992520000

KAREN FELTES, SECRETARY, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SPOKANE, WA,

{ 882520000
JEFF HEGGEDAKL, PRESIDENT, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,
SPOKANE, WA, 892010000

JOHN FXELLY, DIRECTOR, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,

SPOKANE, WA, 392010000

f
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GENE LYNES, VICE PREBIDENT, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,
SPOKANE, WA, 892010000

JOHN RCBISON, TREASURER, 600 VINE S3TREET SUITE 1800.
CINCINMATY, O, 452020000

ED SCHLECT. VICE PRESIDENT, 1313 N ATLANTIC SWITE 5000,
SPOKANE, WA, 092010000

DE/08/2012

Description:

Subsidiary of AVISTA CAPITAL. INC,, SPOKANE, WA slaried 1998 which opetates as holding compeny. Parent
company owng 100% of capitel slock. Parent company has numerous other subsidiaryfies). Inlercompany relations:
As noled, this company is a subsidiary of Avista Comoration, DUNSH 130042848, and referencs s made 1o thal
report for background information on 1he parent company and ils management.

Provides managemeni consulling services, specializing in public uliities (100%).

Hes 250 account{s). Terns are Nel 30 days. Sells lo manulacturers. wholesalers, relailers, commergial concerns
and the govarnmen). Terflory ; United Stales and Cenada.

Nonseasonal.

Empioyees: TS0 which includes offices(s}, 530 emploved here.
Facilflies: Rents 75,000 sq. fi. on 5th fioor of five story frame builting. - i

Locaticn: Central business sectioh on main streat. :

Branches: This business has mullipie branches, delsiled branchidivision informstion is available in Dun & Bradsirest's linkage or family
tres products.

Subsidiaries: NA
Suhsbﬁiaﬂes: NA
Subsidiaries: NA
Subsidiaries: NA i

Subsldiaries; This business has mulllple subeidiaries, detailed subsidiary information Is available in D & B's linkage br family tree
products. .

S1C: .

Based on Infarmation in our file, DEB has assigned this company en exterded 8-digit 3IC. D&Bs use of B-digil SICs
enables us o be more specific 10 a companye operstlons that if we use (e standard 4-digit code. The 4-digit SIC
nambers fink 1o the dascription on the Cecupationel Safety & Health Adminisiration (OSHA) Web sfie. Links epen in
a new browsar window.

8742 0405 Public vilities consultant

HAICS:
541611 Adminisirative Management and General Managemsnt Congulting Services

Public Fiiings Currency: Shawn In USD baless otharwise indlcated

Surnmary

: £
The following daia includes both open and closed filings found in D&B's database on this cempany. i
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Bankruptcy Proceedings : - . -

i Juggmenis | g ‘ -

Liens 1 04/16M12
\ Sulls 0 :
| ees - 04715014

i [ . et e o i e A i TR

The following Public Filing data is for informalion purposes only and is not the official record,
Ceritfiad copies can only be oblainad from the official source.

Wa currently don'i have enough data to display this section.

‘ A lien holder can file the sama llen in mora than one filing location. The appearance of mullipie fens filed by the same fien holder against I
a debior may ke indicative of such an sccurencs, :

Amewnt: NA
Stafus: Released
| FILING NO. 127310436057
Type State: Statg Tax
Filed By: EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Against: ADVANTAGE Q. INC,
Whera Filed: NA
Date Status Attalned: 08/02112
Date Filed: 04/18/12
Latest Info Received: oansMz

We currently don't have encugh data to display this section.

] We currently den't have enough dala to display this section.

Banking & Finance

Aemenis

Financiai 5

| ———

‘ We r.urrenﬂy don't hava enough data 1o d:sp!ay thus aectlon.

Banrking
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{ i . We currently don'l have enough data 1o display this section.

Special Events

We currently don't have enough daia (o display this section.

Corporate Linkage

|

!Pa nt

AVIETA CORPORATION i 00-794-3754

Headguarters (US

AVISTA CORPORATION
AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

AVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC

AVISTA CAPITAL, INC,
ECOS 10, INC.

ECOVA, INC.

US Linkages

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT, INC,

00-794-3764

| 01-113-0205

. 02-995-2647

| 0B-245-2046

13-004-2B48

17-600-1287

94-541-4530

EPDKANE, WASHINGTON

SPOKANE, WASHINGTCON

SPOKAKE, WASHINGTON

| SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

| WILLITS, GALIFORNIA

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

PORTLAND, DREGON

{ SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
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¢ AVISTA UTILITIES.

Subsidiaries

AVISTA ENERGY. INC

PRENOVA, INC.

AVISTA COMMUNICATIONS OF MONTANA. INC
AVISTA COMMUNICATIOS OF tDARO. INC
AVISTA COMMURICATIONS OF WYOMING, INC
Branches

ECOS1Q, iNC.

ECOVA. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

ADVANTAGE 1Q. INC

AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

AVISTA CORPORATION

AVISTA CORPORATION

AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT, ING.
AVISTA UTILITIES

AVISTA UTILITIES,

NC.
AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.
AVISTA UTILITIES INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES.

NC.

- AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

NC.

AVISTA UTILMES. INC.
AVISTA UTILITIES. iNC.
ADVANTAGE (Q, INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

. AVISTA UTILITIES

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.
AVISTA UTILITIES

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT, INC.

_ AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

international Linkages

! (1-518-0698

01-517-1508

06-218-3689 |

06-218-3748

06-218-4318

01-315-3817
018767337
02-469-6573

03.751-8035

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
ATLANTA, GEORGIA

SPOKANE VALLEY, WASHINGTON
SPOKANE. WASHINGTON

SPOKANE. WASHINGTON

DURANGO. COLORADC

PORTLAND, OREGON

* LEWISTON, IDAHO

© COEUR D ALENE. IDAHO

¢ 03-BUZ-3695

" 040524449 .

D4-603-5094
(5-412-9966

08-024-2014

© 09-146-0357

: 10-210-1669

: 10-591-6022

12-000-3215 !

18-722-0243 !

17-7Q7-9282

18-088-6251

E 48.001.1521

18-0954141

181958506 |

B1-4TH-4831
78-171-2822
78-171-3011
78-171-2607
80-820-6607
87-650-8425

02.787-A652

LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY
KETTLE FALLS, WASHINGTON
WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
NOXON. MOMTARNS
FREMONT, CALIFORNA
RATHDRUM, {DAHD
RITZVILLE. WASHINGTON
SPOKAME. WASHINGTON
CROFING. IDAHD

KMEDFORD. OREGON
COLFAX. WASRINGTON
CLARKSTON. WABHINGTON
OTHELLO., WABHINGTON
BOISE, JOAHOD
WESTMINSTER, COLORADD
DAVENPORT, WASHINGTON
DEER PARK, WASHINGTON
GRANGEVILLE, IDARD
S0UTH LAKE TAHOE, CALIFORMIA
WILLITS, CALIFORNIA

GOLDENDALE, WASHINGTCON

We currently don't have sriough data 1o display this sectlon.
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- for explanation, similar functions.
Enter #<Go> for Rating Profile

Avista Corp

Default 21k (DRSES

STABLE

Baa2

Baa?

A3 DUFF & PHELPS
Baa? 0 senicr Secured Debt
WR

‘ WR M Preferred Stochk
§ Short Term R ) Shert Term

10§ STANDARD & POODR'S I’
1) Cutlook STABLE
I2JLT Faoreign Issiuer BEB
BILT Local is - Credit BBR
4) ST Foreign I
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Dun & Bradstreet
CREDIBILITY CORP.

Exhibit C-7

Ecova, INC. puns: sasarasso

Dahboard

Comosny nts

1313 N Aflandic St Ste 5000 DBA's : URL: www.advantageig.com
Spokana, WA 99201 (SUBSIDIARY OF AVISTA CAPITAL,

INC., SPOKANE, WA)
Phone: "(508) 329-7600 AVISTA ADVANTAGE

H i H
Score Class Rating iRacomrnendation;_ Rating

14844 3 | 4V | $400K | -

Score Score Class

.78V [ 4824 1

o,

RN
8 New Inquirles

m oi2a13 2 New Inguiries ; w 01148113

3 New Inquiries

NGV 02/01/13

“Most Recent ¢ -

4 01313 Wheleeale Trade Cemprehansive Repart

f ot31113 | wholesale Trade Commprehensive Report
* i 013113 | Wholesale Trade Comprehensive Report

Transportalion,

¢ giEoia | Eommunications, Comprehensive Report

X Banilary Services

Trangporation,

| ooy | Semmunications, Comprehensive Report

Sanflary Servi

: Top 5 Inquiries by SIC / Sector (12 Months)
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Stawimy
Papon

Scores

3 wonth Paydex a
i 103

78 v 1

3 days beyond terms 120 Days Slaws 33 Ditys Siow Prgemspst

UndeistandingMy Seors:

" The D&R2 PAYDEX is a unique, doliar weighted indlcator of payment performance based on
. payment experiences as reporied to DEB by trade references.

Recent Paymants
| Total (Last 12 Months): 80

1
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{ 012013 | Ppt

$65,000 $2,500 | 50} - 'y mo

012013 | Ppt $7.5000  §5,000! $01 N30 [ 1mo

- 0112613 : Ppt L 57500 50} 50/ - 1 mo

‘0112013 i Ppt 85.000 §780 80|~ | 1mo

0112013 | Ppt | $1,000; $0{ $0 ) {1 mo

. Key

4100 Anticipale 40 60 Days Beyond Terms
20 Digcourt .30 : a0 Days Beyond Terms
B0 Prompt- 20 12G Deys Beyond Terms
70 15 Days Beyond 119 Over 120 Days Beyond Terms

80 22Days Beyord Terms LN | Unavailable

B0 | 30DeysBeyond Temns

Trends

SUNRET WL FURIE SN enmminpereicmse
/’R;; 75 ;-’E; 7 rr & 77 F 77 &
i T sy il Sep Nuw Jen
maz 2452 2012 dui 2012 2613
ks AP Jua Auy Ou e
oY anz 20012 2012 012 ELF]

- Industry Comparison




o
"
20

a0 7o
[ » * -~
K3 2 i 76
i3 4 12 0
Py 2011 ST 2812
ui 35 i Q3
2084 £013 FE: a0ty

« My Company {78)  » industry Median: {76}

Based on payments coliecled ovar the lasl 4 quariers.
s Current FPAYDEX for this business |s 78, or equallo 3 days beyond lerms
*+ The prasent induslry median score Is 76, of equal to 6 days beyond tenms.

4824 1 91%

Low risk of severs payment
delinquency over nexl 12 months

Hi‘gh Mirfe ute tow

:Hogerstanding My:Score:
' The Commercial Credit Score predicts the likelihood that a company will pay ils bills in a severely
" delinquent manner (S0 days or more past lerms), obtain legal reiief from credilors or ceass opera-
© tions without paying all creditors in full over the next 12 months. Scores are calculated vsing a

¢ statistically valid model derived from D&B's exiensive data files.

Incidence of Delinguent Payment:
Among Companies with this Classification: 6.00%

: Factors Affecting Your Score:
Insufficient number of payment experiences.
Most recent amount past due.

. Low proportion of satisfactory payment experiences {o total payment experiances.

. Key

/&6



482.670 |1 Las.100 | e0%

451-481 12 71-90 108%
404450 | 3 31.70 18.4%
381403 |4 1130 31.5%
1-350 5 1410 70.0%

Trends - Scores, 12 Month

L
O

S0

PEL )

L ET) Ry Jul 'Sﬁp K [
2N e 4018 27 2017 2004
feb Agar jun Aug oL 238
211 2012 Pk Ky 2052 2032 4012

+ My Company {482}

Industry Comparison

9% 85%

PACIRC Business
31-5

induslry Industiy - Employes
BUSIMESS, Raulage

LECAL 500+

ARy

ENCINEERING

SERVICES

This business has a Credif Score Percentile thal shows:
* Lower rick than other companies in the same reglon.
= Lower risk than pther companies in the sama industry.
» Lower risk than other companies In the sama employee sizae ranga.
s Lower risk than other companies with 2 comparable number of years in business.

Thic Business indusiry « Rggion Ingliestey - Year in

Score Class Nat'l %

/67



1484v 3  55%

Moderata rigk of severa financial
stress. such as a bankruptcy, over
the next 12 months

High © MRaderaie T fow

iHinderstanding My Score.
Incidence of Flnancial Stress:
Amcng Companies with this Classification: 0.24 {84 per 10000)

Factors Affacting Your Score:
UCC Filings reported.
High number of inquiries to D & B over last 12 months.

- Limited time under present management conirol.

» The Financial Stress Class Summary Model predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing business without paying
all creditors in full, or reorganization or obiaining relief from creditors under stateffadaral law over the next 12
months. Scores were calculated using a statistically valid model derived from D&B's extensive data files.

Motes:

+ The Financial Stress Class Indicates that this firm shares soms of the same business and financial
charactaristics of other companies with this classification. It does nol mean the firm will necessarily
experience financial stress.

+ The Intidence of Financial Stress shows tha percentage of firms in a given Class that discontinued
operations over the past year with foss to creditors. The Incidanca of Financial Stress - National Average
represents the national failure rate and is provided for comparative purposes.

+ The Financial Stress National Percentile refiects tha relative ranking of a company ameng all scorable
sompanies in D&B'S file.

¢ The Financial Stress Score offers a more preclse measure of tha level of risk than the Class and

Percentile. !t is especially belpful 10 customers using a scorecard approach to determining overall business
perfermance.
Al Financial Stress Class, Percentile, Scora and Incidence statistics ara based on sample data from

" Key

F 15701875 ! 1 L 95100 | 6.0%
1510-1888 | 2 694 10.8%

‘ 1450-1508 | 3 3468 18.4%
1340-1449 ; 4 2-33 31.5%
Dwotaze s [ 0w

Trends - Scores, 12 Month
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+ My Company (1,484)
industry Comparnison

61%

AS% . S2%. . B2%

Tlobs Bussiness tidustry - fegion frvduskry - Year in
PAQIAC Ruzinass
15

trdustny lifustry « Emphiyes

BUSINESS, Ringo
EECAL 300=
AND

ERGCINEERING
SERVICES

. Based on paymenis collecled over the last 4 quariers.
* L pwer risk than olher companies in the same region.
* Lower risk than other companies in the same industry.
» Higher rigk than othar eampanies in the same employee size range.
o Lowor risk than other companies with a comparable number of yvears in business.

Moderate risk of supplier axperiencing severe
financial stress over the next 12 months,

nderstanding M
The Supplier Evaluation Risk Rating 1-2 segmentation derived from the Financial Stress Score that




dicts the Ikelihood of supplier failure over the next 12 months, The SER Rating is derived from
&B's Financial Stress Score, which is calculated using a statistically valid modei derived from
D&B's extensive dala files.

Factors Affecting This Company's Score:

Suits, Liens, andfor Judgmenis zre present - see PUBLIC FILINGS section.
Business under present control less than five years - see HISTORY sectien.
Av;erage Payments are 3 day{s) beyond terms. '
-Average Industry Payinents are 6 day(s) beyond terms.

ucc Filiﬁgs prasent - See PUBLIC FILINGS section.

Financing secured - See BANK/PUBLIC FILINGS sections.

Under present management control 4 years.

Trends

Ly sy Juel ep iy Ju
2018 <0 i f01} 2412 - FRH F
[EHH A fur Any iRt Deu
2612 dotbe Pkl ¥4 £H12 2132 2

= My Company {4}

Conservative Credil Limit 1
Risk Category $400k
1 Aggressive Credit Limil
$900k
Low
Mnderstanding My Score .

D&B's Credit Limit Recommendation is intended fo help you more easily manage your credi decisions. Il provides
two recommended dollar guidatines:

A conservative limit, which suggests a dollar benchmark if your policy is 1o extend less credit 1o minimize risk.

An aggressive limit, which supgests a doilar benchmark if your policy Is to extend more credit with potentially mere

risk.

{70



" The dollar guideline amounts are based on a historical analysis of credit demand of customers in D&B's U.S.

payments database which have a similar profile to your buginess.

Rating

Factors Affecting Your Score
# of Employees Total: 750 (530 here)

Payment Activity (based on §6 experiences):
'Average High Credit:  $13,916

Highast Cradit: $300.000

Total Highes! Credit:  $884,350

Nole: The Worth amound In this section may have baen adjusted by D&B 1o reflect
fypical deductions, such as cerain intangible assets.

Inquiries

12 Month Summary

Cwver the past 12 months ending 2-2013, 213 Individual requasts for infarmation on
your company were foceived, this represents a 21.13% increase over the prior 42
month period. The 213 inquiries wera made by 95 unlque nompanias indicating
that some companies have inquired on your business mullipte times and may be
monitoring you. OF the tolal products purchased, 61, or 28.64% came from the
Finance. Insuranca and Real Estate secior; 48, or 21.60% came from the Services
sector; 38, or 18.21% came from (he Manufacturing seclor.

12 Mo. Totfal: 213
12 Mo. Unigue Companles: 96

L eNIIS Comprehensive Report  Wholesale Trade

01/31113; Comprehensive Report | Wholesale Trade

013113 Comprehensive Report  Wholasale Trade
01/3013! Comprehensive Report ggzﬁg’gg‘?ﬁ?égwggam“s' Electric,

0173013 Comprenensive Report (o7 he, ELoh, SaTmbleations, Elecirc,

owaom% ggg;{“ng'g:?;ff"“ Manufacturing
o1f30M1E E:‘émm Analysis Marniufacturing
0130/ ' g"w":{g;'gj'pffd“ | Manufacluring
DUSONS ggm;’g:‘pgfdﬁ Manufacturing
01;30113§ ggg;{:g’,g?;gfd“ i Manufeciuring

/7]
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Paymeni Analysis
Report

Comprehensive Repor

Comprehensive Repon

Comprehensive Report ‘

Comprahansive Repotf
Comprehensive Report

Comprehensive Repott
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Construction 2 4 i ] Q : a PR
Finance, inswance and Real Eslale % 2% 1 Fa| B8 &1
hianulacturing E 1% : 10 3 1% i 38
Public Administretion :i 1 | 0 0 : ) ; 1
Relail Trade { 8 i 1 2 0 11
Services T 2 oz 1o
;a:ﬂzc;naﬁm. Cammunications, EIecIric.VGas and Sanitacy é 4 ; 10 - ’ 5 ' %
Wholesale Trade 4 i ] 6 | g 25

Inquirtes by Repord Type

Business Information Repart 2 i 0 ¢ ; 3
Commercial Credit Scoring Report a 15 & 18 & 48
Comprehensive Report 44 45 30 i 27 146
. Others 2 2 2 1 7
* Payment Analysis Repart 3 0 0 8 i1
Payments Cumency: Shown in USD unless othenwise indicates

Lurrent Paydex: 78  Equal o 3 days beyond lerms
Industry Madlan: 76  Equello 8 DAYS BEVOND terms
Paymeni Trend: “-++  Unchanged, compared o paymenis three months ago

Total payment Experiences In DEBs File {HQ): 86

Payrmenls Within Terms {not dollar weighted): a4

Total Placed For Collection: NA

Average Highest Credit: 12,976 i
Largest High Credit: 300,000

Highest Now Dwing: 80,000

Highest Past Due: 750

Total {Lest 12 Months): 86 :
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indications of slowness can be tha rasult of dispule ovar merchandise, sklpperj iﬁvoices. gl¢. AnCounis are sometimes placed for
collection even though the existence or amount of dabt is disputed.

The public record iteras contained in this report nmay heve been gaid, termingled, vacated of released priof 1o the dals this reporl was
printad.

History & Operations Cusrency: Shown in USD urlsss atherwise indicated

Campsany
Company Hama: ECOVA, INC. URL: www advaniagelq.com
Doing Business As: (SUESIDIARY OF Stock Symboi: NA
AVISTA CAPITAL, History: NA,
ING., SPOKANE, Operatiohs: MA
WA), Present Management Control: 4 Years
AVISTA ADVANTAGE Street Address: Annual Sales: MA
1313 N Adlantic 5t St Phone:
5000 (509) 329-7600 {509) 329-7610
Spokane, WA 99201 Fax:

History

Tha following information was reported: 060812012

Officer{s):

JEFF HEGGEDAHL, CEO

SETH NESBITT, V PRES-CMOD

DONATO CAPCBIANCO, SVP-GEN COUNSEL
SCOTT MORRIS, CHM

GENE LYNES, CFO-TREAS

KAREN FELTES, SEC

ED SCHLECT, EXEC V PRES

JON THOMSEN, EXEC V FRES

DIRECTOR(S); .
THE OFFICER{S) and Erik Anderson Kristianne Blake John Kelly Jefl Heggadahi Craig Levinsohn Jeff Licberman Scolt Morris.
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The Washingion Secretary of State's business registrations fila showed that Ecova, Inc was regisiered 88 a corporalion on November 6,
19885.
Business started 1996, Presant conlrol succeedad Dec 1, 2008, 700% of capital siock is cwned by officers.

RECENT EVENTS:

On March 14, 2011, sources stated thel Adventage 10, Inc,, Spokane, WA, has acquired Building Knowledge
Networks, Spokane, WA, In fanuary 2011. Lindat the terms of the acquisition agreemen!, Buildng Knowledge Networks will be fully
inlegrated and operated ss Advantage 1Q. Further details are not avaliable,
On July 7, 2008, sourcas slated that Advantage 1Q, Ine., Spokane, WA, has acquired Cadence Network, Inc., Cincinnati, OH, on June
30, 2008. After this acguisition, Cadence Nelwork, Inc, will operale as a subsidiary of Advantage 10, Inc. Financial tlarms weare not
disclosed.
JEFF HEGGEDAHL.. Anlacedents not availakis.
SETH NESBITT. Servad as vice president of marketing for Paraliels, Inc. Prior 10 Paralisis, inc., Nesbitt was vice president, products
ard sokiions marketing for Amdocs, Inc,, 8 member of the North American Advisory Board for the CMO Councll, and serves on tha
Advisory Coundil for TM Forum.
DONATO CAPOBIANCO,. He serves as a Senior Vice Presiderd and General Counsel for Hollywood Entarainmant Comporation/Movie
Gallery, Inc.
SCOTT MORRIS. Anfecedenis are undetermined,
GENE LYNES. Antecedents are undetermined.
KAREN FELTES. Antecedents not aveilable.
ED SCHLECT. Antecedends not avallable.
JON THOMSEN. Anmlecadants not available.

CORFORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL SOURCE AS
OF

JANUARY 28 2013,

Registered Name: ECOVA, INC.

Businees Type:! CORPORATION

Corporation Type: PROFIT

Dele Incorporated: Nov 06 1985

Siate of Incorporation: WASHINGTON

Fillng Dala: Nov 06 1805

FilingFedID: NA

Reglstration I10; B01668881

Buration: PERPETUAL

Puration Date: NA

Btatus: ACTIVE

Status Attalned Date: NA

Where Filed: SECRETARY DF STATE/CORPORATIONS DIVISION, CLYMPLA, WA

Registerad Agent: C T Corporation Systam, 505 Union Ave Se Ste 120, Olympia, WA,
985010000

Agent Appointad: NA

AgentStatus: NA

Principals: ERIK ANDERSON, DIRECTOR, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SPOKANE, WA,

982520000

KRISTI BLAKE, DIRECTOR, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SPOKANE, WA,

892520000

MARIAN DURKING, VICE PRESIDENT, 1411 £ MISSION AVE,

SPOKANE, Wh, 292520000

KAREN FELTES, SECRETARY, 1411 E MISSION AVE, SPOKANE, WA,

882520000

JEFF HEGGEDAHL, PRESIDENT, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,

SPOKANE, WA, 882010000

JOHNF KELLY, DIRECTOR, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,

SPOKANE, WA, 882010000
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GENE LYKNES, VICE PRESIDENT. 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,
SPOKANE, WA, 802010000

JOHN ROBISON, TREASURER, 600 VINE STREET SUITE 1600.
CINCINNATL, OH, 452020000

ED SCHLECT, VICE PRESIDENT, 1313 N ATLANTIC SUITE 5000,
SPOKANE, WA, 882010000

Q582012

Description:

Subsidiary of AVISTA CAPITAL. INC., SPOKANE, WA slariad 1888 which oparates as hoiding company. Parent
company owns 100% of capital stock. Parent company has numerous other subsidiaryfies). Intercompany ralations:
As noted, this company is a subsidiary of Avista Comoration, DUNS# 130042849, and reference is made {o that
report for background information on the parent company and ils management.

Provides managemen! consufiing services, specializing in public utilities (100%).

Has 250 accouni(s). Terms are Mol 30 days. Seils o manutacturers, wholasalers, refailers. commercial concerns
and the governmeni. Temitory ; United Stales and Canada.

i Monseasonal.

Employees: 750 which includes officer(s). 530 employed here.
Facililies: Rents 75,000 sq. ft. on 5th floor of five story frame building. . H
Location: Ceniral business section on main street.

Branches: This business has mulliple branches, detatied branch/division informalion is avadlable in Dun & Bradstreet’s Hnkage or family
ree products.

Subsidiaries: NA
Subsidiaries: KA
Subsidiaries: NA
Subsidiaries: NA

Subeidiaries: This business hag mudtiple subsidiarles, detalled subsiciary information Is avaliatie in D & B's linkage or family tree
products.

SIC. ‘

Basad on information in our file, DB has assigned this company an exterded 8-digit 5IC. D8Bs use of B-digit SICs
enshles us lo be more specific 1o a companys cperetions that it we use he siandard 4-digit code.The 4-diglt SIC
numbars link to the descripiion on the Oceupalional Sefety & Health Administration (OSHA]) Wab site. Links open in
a new browsar window,

8742 0405 Publlc utiiies consultant

NAICS:
541611 Adminisirative Managersan! and General Management Consulling Services

Public Filings 4 Currency: Shown [n USE unless olherwise indicated

summary

- - .

; The following data incudes bolh open and closead fillngs found in D&E's dalabass on Hhis company. | l E V



Bankruptcy Procesdings - : -

Judgments l {
Liens 1 0411612
Suily o
Ucss 3 D4/15111

Tha following Fublic Flling data is for information purposes only and is rol the officied record,
Certifiad copies can only be oblained from the official source.

Wa currently don't have enough data to dispiay this section.

A #isn holder can file the same lien in more than one filing Iocalion. The appearance of mullipie fens fed by the same fian holder against
a debtor may be indicaltive of such an coounsnea.

Amount: KA

Status: Raloasad

FILING NO. 127310438057

Type Stata: Slate Tax

Filed By: EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Against: ADVANTAGE IQ. INC.

Where Flied: NA

Date Status Attained: 08/02/12

Date Eiled: 04718712

Latest Info Receivad: 0ananz

We currently don’t have enough data to display this section, |

We currently don't have anough data to dispiay this saction.

E We currently don't have enough data to display this section.

DAty
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We currently don't have enough data to display this s‘ectl on.

Specisl Events

We cumrently don't have enough date {o display this section.

Corporate Linkage

3

Parent

AVISTA CORPORATION i 00-794-3764

Headguarters (LS

AVISTA CORPORATION
AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

AVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC

AVISTA CAPITAL, INC.
ECOS 10, INC.

ECOVA, INC.

US Linkages

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT, INC,

00-794-3764

01i-113-0205

(2-908-2647

08-245-2046

13-D04-2849

17-800-1287

04-541-4530

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
WILLITS, CALIFORMIA

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

PORTLAND, OREGON

i SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
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Subsidiaries

AVISTA ENERGY. INC.

PRENGVA. iNC.

AVISTA COMMUNICATIONS OF MONTANA, INC
AVISTA COMMUNICATIOS OF IDAHO. INC
AVISTA COMMUNICATIONS OF WYOMING. INC
Branches

ECOS 10, INC.

ECOVA. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. ING.

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

ADVANTAGE 1Q. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES, INC.

AVISTA CORPORATION

AVISTA CORPORATION

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

 ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT. INC.
AVISTA UTILTIES

AVISTA UTILITIES, ING.

AVISTA UTILITIES INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. ING.

: AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

© AVISTA UTIITIES. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC,

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

ADVANTAGE K2, INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

. AVISTA UTILITIES

AVISTA UTILITIES. INC.

AVISTA UTILITIES

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND DEVELOPMENT, INC

~ AVISTA UTHLITIES, INC.

: International Linkages

01-518-0658

04-897-1508 |

06-218-3699 |

05-218-3749

06-218-4118 §

01-315-3817

01-976-7317

02-469-8573

03.761.9035

03-802-3698

(4-052-4445

04-602-4004

(&-412-9066

08-024-2014

09-148-0357

. 10-210-1669

10-593-6022

12-000-5215

16:722-0243
17-707-9282
18-088-6251
18-081-1521
18-095-4141
18-185-85886
614754831
78-171-2922
78-171-3011
78-171-3607
&0-880-6697
B7-650-8425

02-787-8852

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON
ATLANTA, GEORGIA

EPOKANE VALLEY, WASHINGTON

| SPOKANE. WASHINGTON

SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

DURANGC, COLORADD
PORTLAND, OREGON
LEWISTON. 1DAHD

COEUR D ALENE, [DAHO
LOVISVILLE, KENTUCKY
KETTLE FALLS. WASHINGTON

WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CARDLINA

i SPOKANE, WASHINGTON

NOXON. MOMTANA
FREMONT. CALIFORNIA
RATHDRUM, IDAHO
RITZVILLE. WASHINGTON
SPOKANE. WASHINGTON
CROFING. IDAHD

WMEDFORD. OREGON

i COLFAX, WASHINGTON

CLARKSTON, WASHINGTON
OTHELLO, WASHINGTON

BOISE, IDAHD

WESTMINSTER, COLORADO
DAVENPORT, WASHINGTON
DEER PARK, WASHINGTDN
GRAMGEVILLE, IGAHD

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE, CALIFORNLA
WILLITS, CALIFORNIA

GOLDENDALE, WASHINGTON

Wa currenlly don't have enough data {o display this section,
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Exhibit D-2 “Operations Expertise”

Cralg Schilling, VP Facility Expense Services

As the senior individual responsible for all client service delivery, Craig leads a team of Utility Expense
Management, Energy Procurement, Facility Optimization, IT and Sustainability experts in providing high
level, value driven solutions to the client. Craig spent two year leading the Energy Procurement and IT
team in support of client contract transactions and customer technology collaborative tools before his
current position. Craig brings 15 years of financial market and trading experience with a BS in Business
from the University of Minnesota and an MBA from the University of Phoenix. Craig is a former Naval
Aviator and a Commander in the U.S. Navy Reserve.

Melody Swanson, Sr. Director Energy Procurement

Melody is an expert in the field of energy procurement and has worked with Ecova, Inc. for more than
twelve years. Melody serves as the primary resource for client risk assessment and analytics, working
with clients to evaluate and establish custom energy procurement strategies. Her team currently
manages over $15 billion in annual energy expenditures for clients and works with nearly 200 multi-site
clients. Having worked as a Market Manager in every market in the U.S. and Canada for both gas and
electric, Melody assisted in the development of the Ecova, Inc. Energy Procurement service offerings.
Melody piayed a crucial role in the development of proprietary analytic tools including: Value at Risk
reporting (VAR), energy forecasting, and historical analytical instruments that evaluate current and
historical wholesale energy prices to identify timing and strategy for executing energy hedge positions.
She developed complex hedging strategies for large energy users and built custom energy reports, such
as benchmark reports, savings calculators, and volatility and risk assessments.

Brad Gawboy, Sr. Director Rates/Expense Management

A degreed engineer and graduate of the U.S. Naval Academy, Brad has worked in the energy industry for
25 years. He began his career in electric generation and then served for an extended period in the
marketing and national account sales arena in the utility industry. Brad leads Ecova, Inc.’s electricity
procurement sclutions in deregulated states and spearheads service offerings related to demand
response and the emerging Smart Grid. He is a Captain in the U.5. Navy Reserves.

Dennis Pearson - Senior Director, Supply Solutions

As Senior Director, Supply Solutions, "Denny” brings nearly 30 years of multi-faceted, energy-related
experience to Ecova Inc. Denny’'s experience includes hands-on operational expertise at interstate and
intrastate natural gas pipeline transmission systems that move supplies from the producing regions to
individual citygates located throughout the lower 48 states and to de-regulated Canadian provinces.
Denny’s operational and marketing experience also includes field and market storage operations, local
distribution company (“LDC) delivery systems from the citygate to the meter, and marketing and retail
sales of natural gas supply and electric supply throughout North America.

During the past 15 years, Denny has focused on developing and negotiating a broad range of value-
added, energy-related products and services that are tallored to meet risk management strategies of
individual, client-specific portfolios that are located in deregulated environments. Denny is responsible
for developing, managing, maintaining, and growing Ecova’s supplier network throughout North
America while also insuring that state-mandated licensing requirements are met.
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